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Shri S.P. Mohanty, CMD inspecting parade of CISF & Vanguard on Republic Day
il celebration, 2022

e DRl

S T A, 3reger Ud ey feeien, M He, Ay | i B PETh
%WWW%W@?W@WW@ o T Oy A, m&@%&ﬁé%,ﬁ@;ammﬁﬁwmma%
Shri S.P_ Mohanty, CMD hoisting National Flag and 7% X ST GIRT ST S M1 ifes SR % g |

Shri S P Mohanty, CMD, welcomed on his joining BVFCL and gaurd of honour by
CISF on this occasion.

taking parade salute on Republic Day at Gandhi Maidan,
Namrup
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Hon'ble Union Minister of Fertilizers and Chemicals, Chief Minister of Assam discussing on Namrup-IV Project with officials of DOF and
Fertilisers Companies
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A Scene of Parliamentary Standing Committee Meeting held at Guwahati in
September, 2021
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Shri S.P. Mohanty, CMD offering floral tribute to statue
of Mahatma Gandhi on 73rd Republic Day
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A scene of mativation programme organised by BVFCL Management
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BVFCL Management signing MoU with IREDA
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BVFCL management showing Award conferred by
Rajbhasha Bibhag (NARACAS), Duliajan for outstanding
performance in Hindi
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A scene of Public Awareness Programme in BVFCL Daily Market during Swachhta
Pakhwada, 2021
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On World Hindi Day, 2021 Small table stand of Hindi words distributed among |
Officers to popularise Hindi
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Shri A.K.Ghosh, Ex-CMD, BVFCL, Shri D.Sahai, D(P),
Shri S.C.Das, D(F) along with officials of company during
Swachhta Pakhwada, 2021
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Employees of BVFCL along with Shri SP Mohanty, CMD, BVFCL taking pledge on
Rashtriya Ekta Divas
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A scene of 105th Board meeting of Company held through
Video conference
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A group photo of women employees of BVFCL A scene of 18th Annual General
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Video conference
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Shri A.K.Ghosh, Ex-CMD, BVFCL donating a cheque of employees contribution to CM Relief Fund to Hon'ble Chief Minister Dr. Hemanta Vishva
Sarma, Govt. of Assam
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Shri A.K.Ghosh, EX-CMD BVFCL planting tree  Shri D. Sahai, Director (Production) and Shri S.C. Das, Director (Finance) BVFCL planting
on World Environment Day 2021 tree during Swachhta Pakhwada, 2021
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Shri A.K. Ghosh, EX-CMD, BVFCL, realising first
* Hindi Grah Patrika 'Mukta Urvara!
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
1. Shri Siba Prasad Mohanty

Chairman & Managing Director (w.e.f. 01.10.2021)
2. Shri Ashim Kumar Ghosh

Chairman & Managing Director (Upto 30.09.2021)
3. Shri Sanjai Maheshwari

Director (Finance) (Upto 30.06.2020)
4. Shri Digambar Sahai

Director (Production) (From 16.11.2020)
9. Shri Subash Chandra Das

Director (Finance) (From 18.12.2020)
6.  Shri K. Gurumurthy

Govt. Director (DOF) (From 13.05.2020)
7. Shri Vinay Kumar Pandey

Govt. Director (DOF) (Upto 29.09.2021)
8.  Shri Shyam Sundar Agrawal

Govt. Director (DOF) (From 07.10.2021)
9.  Shri Bipina Bihari Padhy

Non Official Director (From 9.05.2020)
10. Shri S.K. Sharma

Non Official Director (From 02.11.2021)
11. Shri Rabi Ranjan Sen

Non Official Director (From 15.11.2021)

COMPANY SECRETARY (DGM)
Shri R.K.Gupta

CHIEF VIGILANCE OFFICER

Shri Prabhas Kumar
Dr. Tina Soni

(Upto 04.06.2021)
(From 31.08.2021)
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Shri PC. Gupta - DGM (Finance)
Shri S.Sarkar - DGM (Technical Service)
Shri Mukesh Mishra - DGM (MM and Electrical)

Shri PK. Banik - DGM (Maint)
Shri M.PSinha - DGM (Maint)
Shri D.K.Das - DGM (Maint)
Shri A.K. Dutta - DGM (Marketing)
STATUTORY AUDITORS

M/s. Parik & Co
Chartered Accountants, Guwahati (Assam)

GOST AUDITORS

M/s. Subhadra Dutta & Associates
Cost Accountants, Kolkata (West Bengal)

Registered Office

PO. : Parbatpur, Namrup -786623,

District- Dibrugarh (Assam)

Phone : 0374-2500240;Fax : 0374 —2300317
Email : info@bvfcl.co.in

Website address: www.hvfcl.com
CIN : U24123AS2002G0I006786

UNIT

Namrup (Assam)

LEGAL ADVISORS
M/s. Steel & Hadow, Dibrugarh

BANKERS

State Bank of India
UCO Bank

Syndicate Bank
Punjab National Bank
Bank of India

Axis Bank
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CITIZENS’ CHARTER

Preambhle

This Charter is a declaration of our mission, objectives,
values, commitments, standards and our expectations
from others.

. To produce fertilizer efficiently, economically and in
environment friendly manner.

. To established itself as profit making enterprises

. Towork forall round improvement of the strategically
important North Eastern parts of the country.

. To diversify into production of other industrial
products.

. To provide balanced economic growth in the region.

Objective
BVFCL has the following objectives:

. To produce and market fertilizers efficiently and
economically in an environmentally sound manner;

. To maintain optimum levels of efficiency and
productivity in all activities and to carry out
upgradation of Technology;

. Reduction in specific energy consumption of the
product by taking up and implementing energy
savings schemes;

. To continuously improve plant operation safety.

. To achieve increase in urea production capacity
utilisation during 2020-21;

. To continuously upgrade the quality of human
resources of the company and promote
organizational development.

Values
We shall carry out our functions and duty with utmost :

. Sincerity
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Speed

Equity
Integrity
Transparency

and without any fear or favour.

Standards

We have set up upon ourselves the standards for
all transactions with you. We undertake that in
case of likely or inevitable delay, we shall promptly
communicate the same to the party concerned.

Our Commitments

We commit to:

Produce and distribute quality fertilizers conforming
to the specifications.

Timely distribution of our fertilizers to ensure
consumer satisfaction.

Continual  upgradation of Technology and
Development of Human Resources.

Strict adherence to the prescribed Safety, Health
and environmental Protection Standards.

SERVICE EXTENDED TO THE CUSTOMERS/CITIZENS’

Training is imparted to the farmers free of cost by the
Company in village/block level for balanced use of fertilizers
for improving productivity.

FOLLOWING GRIEVANCES REDRESSAL MACHANISM
HAS BEEN CONSTITUTED IN THE COMPANY.

Employees Grievance Redressal Committee
Township Welfare Committee

Information under the Right to Information Act,
2005

Customer Grievances Redressal Cell

10
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Complaints involving redressal for bribes or financial
irregularities, public may approach to the Chief
Vigilance Officer of the Company

Centralized Public Grievance Redress And

Monitoring System (CPGRAMS)

Internal Complaints Committee under Sexual
Harassment of women at workplace (Prevention,
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013

TIME LIMIT FOR DISPOSAL OF GRIEVANCES

a.

Issue of acknowledgement /interim reply to
petitioner 2 weeks

Forwarding of the grievance petition to the
concerned authority 3 weeks

Final disposal of the grievance petition
2 months

EXPECTATION FROM CUSTOMERS/CITIZENS

a.

®.  UED §RI WIS Y G ] O, aold

MfE & IR ¥ FIT B FHI W <7 |
W AN GEUR B B (oY Ged |

b.

We expect from the customers / citizens to be reasonable
and prompt in exercising your rights and obligations in all
your transactions with the company without extending
inducement of any kind and not raising any frivolous issues.

Timely feed back of information about the product
purchased by the customer, its quality, weight, etc.

Suggestion for further improvement.
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CMD’S ADDRESS AT THE 19TH ANNUAL GENERAL
MEETING OF BVFCL

Dear Members,

It gives me immense pleasure to extend my warm welcome
to all of you at this 19th Annual General Meeting of the
Company. By now you must have received copies of the
Annual Report for the financial year 2020-21. | assume,
you have gone through the full Annual Report and consider
it as read.

Now, directly coming to the production performance of the
Company, it is informed that Urea Production in Namrup-
Il continued to be interrupted during the year mainly
because of breakdown of machineries and equipments and
129858 MT of Neem Coated Urea could be produced in
this unit at about 48.10% capacity utilization compared
to 109905 MT produced in the year 2019-20. Some
of the major restrictions faced during the FY 2020-21

12
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are, replacement of LT catalyst & other maintenance
jobs, problems in Synthesis Gas Compressor, Process Air
Compressor, Water Cooled Condenser, Auxiliary Boiler etc.

Production in Namrup-Il continued to remain suspended
during the entire year except a brief period, when Urea
Plant-Il was operated to produce 2022 MT of Neem
Coated Urea from 20.05.2020 to 27.05.2020 period
with ammonia and CO, from Ammonia Plant-lll, when Urea
Plant-lll was under shut down. This is in comparison to
46,087 MT of Neem Coated Urea produced in FY 2019-
20. In this context, it would be worthwhile to mention
that Namrup-Il plants encountered two major failures on
17.05.2019 and 06.01.2020. About four months after
the first incident, the plant resumed operation, but there
was another major failure on 06.01.2020 and the plant
has remained under shutdown since then. M/s PDIL was
assigned the job of deputation of Technical Experts and
Non Destructive Test (NDT) Team to Study the Health of
the Synthesis Section of Ammonia Plant and to carryout
NDT of weld joints and pipelines wherever required. M/s
PDIL had carried out Magnetic Particle Test, Ultrasonic
Thickness Measurement Test and Dye Penetration Test
in the Synthesis Section of Ammonia Plant. However,
all expenditure for restoration of Namrup-Il plants has
been kept on hold, awaiting a final decision regarding
restoration of Namrup-Il plants. Recently, the Controlling
Ministry (DoF) has constituted a Technical Committee for
vetting the proposal for restoration of Namrup-Il plant,
under the Chairmanship of CMD, BVFCL with Director
(PSU) and Director (Finance) of DoF as the members.
Technical Experts of M/s NFL and M/s RCFL are also likely
to be co-opted in the committee to recommend regarding
the future operation of Namrup-Il plants at the earliest.

Due to paucity of fund, no major renewal replacement job
could be taken in hand to improve the reliability of the
equipments which have passed their effective life and are
inherently prone to frequent failures. In view of the above,
to ensure safe and sustained operation of the existing
plants with some degree of productivity, a proposal was
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& foIg Ta ST IISTHT BT AN T 7g 100 BRIS BUY
P THYd A< JgaT BT Aol a7 & ol Ush o
IR T T o | §9 UK Bl burd HiEFHS | 10.
022021 T AT & oY IR I IR HUAl BT BT & 4
U IS T3 ol | I§ M AlS[ET FIAT Bl 37T 4—5
Iyl T I BT FARTT I & forg T oI e |

9 49 H WRPR & el $T Ured dd gU Sdrtad
IRAT BT IR AT HH BICS IRAT S FI H B | HUA Bl
Ty 2019—20 H 129.70 BRIS BUYY & Hblael Iy 2020—21
& QR 137.75 HRIS BUY BT & HICT 3l B |

W Aftd gRAT & IR & ferar, du A fad ay
2019—20 H SHHT: 35.54 Hfed < 3R 83.86 Mfed <=1 &
T 3 TN 2020—21 B QIRTH HHAT: 14.755 Hifgdh 7 AR
81.02 Hifg®d T4 & Sld SRD AR TH WIS BT IcATaA
frar | HRR MR g IR® BT I BIfdS—19
faetl & SRM HRIX AFRN S 377 el gY Arddl dl
AT 3IR fereiTge @ srueredr 3iR 3fTfie & uR Ia!
IR—YaERIdl & HRUT g HR QAT AT B | 3-8
faeTTSTaT BT SUANT HRD STas! 2021 H AR old SaRd
BT SATEH Yo (AT 74T 8 | T8 HiT SR fquor gran
% MR WR e ®U 3 g Ta J U av 100
Mfed 7 | 200 H. e T ReR MR R I IATGH
YTl B H IATD BIISHE B | Sifdd ARl & ST
DI IGM B o7 YR TBR DI U8 & U I§ B
SO AT B | S99 Bl & arddear Y 97 |

®u fHAHEl B AGE PRI B oY TATHUS IRAT,
THRT, Tagsdl, S1edl, RISt vRe, e BhiRWe 3N
FI fIep S B IaTal & foly TaTRe Tt
SIRI W Y & Al |l $iY Sare U va (RivTe fder
D) & AT IUAT B T | IY 202021 B IR
18668 HI. T UAUHUS JRAT, 8971 HI. T UHIAMI, 23340
Al e yauHdl, 565 |l e SIgd, 1202 Al ¢4 RS
PHHRE, 7598 . T AUd BIWE, 160 Hl. ST ST 31
20 . T IR T ATAR BT, STET a9 2019—20 H 43148

Al ST UAUWUA JRAT, 8676 TAC! THSGI, 10232 YACI

submitted to DoF to approve one time financial grant-
in-aid of Rs.100 Crores to implement an Action Plan to
strengthen the weak areas of the plants. The proposal
was approved by the Union Cabinet on 10.02.2021 and
the amount was made available to the Company recently.
This amount will be spent to ensure running of the existing
plants for another 4 — 5 years.

The entire quantity of Urea produced has been in the form
of Neem Coated urea, fulfilling Govt. directives in this
regard. The Company has incurred net loss of Rs.137.75
crores during the year 2020-21 compared to a net loss
of Rs. 129.70 crores in 2019-20.

Besides production of Neem Coated Urea, the Company
produced Bio Fertilizer and Vermi Compost during FY
2020-21 of 14.755 MT and 81.02 MT respectively,
compared to 35.54 MT and 83.86 MT respectively in
FY 2019-20. Production of Career based Bio Fertilizer
has been stopped due to non-availability of the career
materials viz. Half Burnt Rice Husk and Lignite during
Covid-19 disturbances and their non-viability at economic
rate. Production of Liquid Bio Fertilizer has been started in
January 2021 by using in-house expertise. This is highly
beneficial in achieving higher production on a steady basis
from 100 MT to 200 MT per annum in economically viable
way, depending upon demand and marketability. The step
has been taken in line with the Govt. of India’s initiative to
increase use of organic fertilizers. This will also increase
the profitability for the Company.

The company is continuing the trading activities for
agricultural products like Sale of NFL Urea, MoP. SSP, DAP,
City Compost, Rock Phosphate etc. to help farmers so
that all Agro products are available under one roof (Single
Window Concept). During the year 2020-21, trading of
18668 MT of NFL Urea, 8971 MT of MoP, 23340 MT of
SSP, 565 MT of DAP, 1202 MT of City Compost, 7598 MT
of Rock Phosphate, 160 MT of Zinc and 20 MT of Boron
was traded compared to 43148 MT of NFL Urea, 8676
MT of MoP, 10232 MT of SSP, 1212 MT of DAP. 365 MT
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TATHY!, 1212 1. T SIYUI, 565 HI. e RIS PURT, 2535
1. e P BB Bl PRITR 3T |

IARB ATIANT ST BIRIHH (THYUW), S HUDH
HTAHH AR fHar UferT eripd onfe & IR Sifdd
SIRBT & SYANT 3R oril R At w1 ulderor &
IRl P T o | 9T SdRB P BT UG, AT B HUR
SIeR doI a1 fashar &1 W1 ufkiefor far = arfe a8
fral ®l SfId a¥d o AN &R 96, Rifd J 99
TR IR i & A fea—vfafes dus ox 38 8 | Ifds
IARBI DI 9T o & oY AT & Py fa9mT /Py
3R Afehd |AHT U gaTT |

BIC! &Har, FIRT 3R Sudxvl # [Afed & & HROT
BId 8Y W1 |1 qrensil & drasie, Ul 98d HH IcdTad
AN W Waell IRAT BT IUGT PR I H3Al b
AR IRT & e H TId IRTEH < & 2 |
HIF U & 31l H Dhael QUITH UThiad I/ BT SUANT
PR V8T 2 3R 39 dXE TG TeTToil / IRTATToN
S R Pig iR GHARerd T8l T 8 | $dD 3felmT,
Ifd FIF 980 YR &, AT ATABIY Yol 3d WA
famaretl @ fAHRIa Ha W@l Al 9 T 9 2 |
HUAl 7 AT FATAT IR IERE & dee § fafaa
MR WR fafa= offaRe HeeM wrif R 39T T |
ST eI o T GRIEwT R favasa=iiy warer gifaa
oo I 9 |

DO D FH HHAIRAT B T fdd & 9a7 & NG
& 7, FATHAEG - fITHargd® 10.64 RGBT Dl
RIRT sl R8d DIy § S B oY dIfe Ppifds—19
TEMAR & TNIR Bl b § TRGR BT qHdH far o
D |

el JAMYDT JGAR & [AFIAIDHROT §RT MU BUAT Pl
P & 99 R 999 ™ & FoIT e o T | SR
famT © e dfea JHel @ 2 e & oy St
ST %2 HeA & IR H Gfd F¥d gy G 21 W 7 |

of City Compost, 2535 MT of Rock Phosphate in 2019-
20.

Training to farmers was arranged on uses and benefits of
Organic fertilizers during Fertilizer Application Awareness
Programme (FAAP), Mass Contact Programme & Farmers
Training Programme etc. Training programmes to Dealers
& Retailers on Organic fertilizers was also held on mode
of action, benefits so that they can guide farmers in a
proper way as they are having day to day contact with the
farmers at larger level. Involvement and active Support of
States Agriculture Department/ Agriculture Universities
and Krishi Vigyan Kendra Scientists were received to
promote Organic fertilizers.

Despite all bottlenecks due to small capacity and inherent
deficiency in machineries and equipments, the Company
is immensely contributing to Prime Minister’s call of
Atmanirbhar Bharat by producing indigenous urea at a
very low production cost. The plant is using only APM
Natural Gas from the near-by wells and thereby ensuring
no dependence on imported LNG/RLNG etc. Moreover, as
the plants are very old, so most of the spares are now
procured from indigenous sources by developing local
vendors for the same. The Company has implemented
various in-house modification jobs and other cost cutting
measures on regular basis with respect to plant operation
and maintenance so as to ensure safe and reliable
operation with enhanced energy efficiency of the plants.

With the contribution of one day’s salary of all the
employees of the Company, BVFCL had humbly deposited
an amount of Rs.10.64 Lacs to CM Relief Fund to support
the Government in preventing the spread of the COVID-19
pandemic.

| am happy to inform you regarding some of the steps
initiated recently to bring back your Company in the path
of growth by diversification of business and expeditiously
taking-up some long pending matters with DoF for earlier
resolution.
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)

U$h Amed—|l §93 & 95 81 @ HRY fUsd
§O qul I RS BT Bl AN qEl B B BRI
ST ¥ TaigT SIFReXl # ¥ Udh Py ATl | 9B
ST o | SHf Wl SrHCT UTa R 3R
HUAT B forv faxiig o & forw =g /s firs
P AT Dftca TR TS BRI DI Fa=eql
PR B IV Tehblel HaH SN TV & |

Fdvmdta aRER § ¥% <M R @rell S
&3 H T 20 HITATE AR SHoll YoUTTell Jemfid
T B oI Fad IUYH ASd DI [AHRIT B
% forg w9 s¥eT 8iR didvmdiva & d9
FHSIT S0 TR R R4 ® folU HeH oY
MU drfe fIATedva & v SH3] AR
a8 | Sarfed ifaRs fastell & ®uel &
3T @1 fAfer gord, fam! & forw wrsa /i firs
H o arvetrs fohar e |

3R SYAIRAISH BT IUANT PR 9T 1.00 A
1.20 TIGHST Ufd 99 UHATHAT Bl IATET BRA
BB e WG B & fgAIGT J&T PR
% fou SR T & dus fear @1 28 S
T TEUAU & FI€ AW H ADICT Acad gRI
fquor fepam e |

qaiR 1Al H SRR ®I Fgrar < & foy
IR WRHR S (oW & IFAR, BN BT 40%
Rarad e W TITH AIpfasd 39 98 & S
B | Afdd, gfdh IRAT T WE F WAR &
JfF T Jenfid Jed dF SR UHAEHRl dda
RIS ATAT AR & AR IRAT & RARId
q BI IUET PR BT 8, gAY DU I A
Hae § R WRBR DI A & AR DIy fA<i
™ 8l AT R8T €| Jeg9R, Sa’d [N |
WHiad I & IR—ANS g FERT & Jgar
IR & Rl qog @ TUET PH R B forg
AU AT AT 8, MM JMMUST HUT Alo[aT FIH
% I & oy Ay AIRT B e wR A |
AT 319 A #3Te & Afhy AR 2|

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

One of the two Gas Turbine Generators is lying idle
for the last few years due to no demand of power
because of Namrup-Il plants remaining shutdown.
So urgent steps have been initiated to receive all
permissions and making arrangements for uploading
surplus captive power to state/national grid to have
financial benefit for the Company.

Steps have been initiated to sign a MoU between
M/s IREDA and BVFCL to have their advisory services
for BVFCL to develop the best suited model to install
Solar Power System in Roof Top and vacant ground
area in BVFCL premises to generate solar power of
about 20 MW. The surplus power generated would
also be uploaded in state/national grid for sale to
further fund generation for the Company.

Your Company has approached the DoF for
according permission to establish a new Single
Super Phosphate Plant within the plant premises
by utilizing various infrastructures and utilities of
the existing plants to produce about 1.00 to 1.20
LMT per annum SSP. to be marketed by Company
Marketing Network in the brand name of Mukta
SSP

As per Govt. of India directive to promote
industrialisation in North Eastern states, the
Company is being provided APM Natural Gas at
40% discounted price. But, as the Urea is fully
under govt. administered price mechanism and FICC
is calculating the Concessional Price of Urea as per
the actual invoiced amount only, so the Company
is not receiving any financial benefit as per the
Govt. of India Policy in this regard. Accordingly,
DoF has been approached to start calculation of
Concessional price of Urea as per non-mopped
pricing of Natural Gas, to enable your Company to
invest the balance amount for upgradation of the
existing plants. The matter is now under the active
consideration of the Controlling Ministry.
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FHUAl §RT T DI 1600 HIfgdh ST TDHDI IS
IR ffd R &Y SIgAfd < @ for § SR
[ERIRECIRC Iy

e @ik @ifta @& drg gRAT iR g IRDI
P gRAEd & FARRAT BT B oy AL ST
AN & ARIH W URdIEd BT 9e[r o & forw
HRA ARPR B A D AR TSI AR
YIfIAROT, §ERAMTE, ST 3R STerT HATe
q AU fHar T ®, S W R 2

MBI HUA & YRI §exiT8l W Fdare- 3R
fafrr <= § Swe faaver @ forw emanfad
oA JRAT & fauoE & oy oFrell Sifag
AT gl F ff 97 o B GIEAT 8 | 59D
v SR® favrT 9 uger & Hud fhar T g
IR IR—IR HUT BT RIS IRAT SuRAfT B
foru anfeem ok sIREs wrsat § A1 Acdd
BT fIAR fHar ST R8T 21 S99 MUd! HUl Bl
foxi o7 W o B8R Rl e e waqEh
i & AweEd W gRAT b FUR DI g H
oot ¥ gfg 83 B

MBI HUAT ° Fenfd gAdgE-lll Ao @
ded fIAUEATS B AEwHe—| IR AEeu—|l|
@l @ forg gRar & 150 vuy ufa Hifgs <
& ARy Herael & fAWR & Hayg ¥ W SRS
faurT & 9w fhar 2

MBI HUAT AR AR MU & = Al
@ Al B T JRAT DI Y[ Farer @
& 1Y HIS[ET WA BT I8 GEIdT & A1 Aol
g & fog ff watad gar o) @ 2| SRS
furT & fRcergar, a9d dielemgea = fafd=
BRDI oI b 799 SV & @1 B9 & d18
MYl B ST IET 9 BT B, HIA DI I d@
3Mfe H 98 & BRI AIGET ThHATHAT SHoll
QUd AMGS] B FHIEAT B D 079 T eI
fopar ok reu—lll % A @1 12.688 GCal/MT
H gerdR 1324 GCal/MT &k amwu—Il § 1261
GCal/MT & 9grex gaeamdt uvra ¥ 18.12 GCal/MT

(e)

(f)

(g)

(h)

(i)

| am grateful to Department of Fertilizers to kindly
grant permission to export 1600 MT of Technical
Grade Urea to Bhutan by the Company.

Inland Waterways Authority of India, Ministry
of Ports, Shipping & Waterways, has been
approached as per Govt. of India policy to promote
transportation through National Water Ways,
to arrange for transportation of Urea and other
fertilizers between Dibrugarh and Kochi, which is
under progress.

Your Company is also likely to participate in the next
Online limited bidding for marketing of Imported bulk
Urea for handling at India ports and distribution
thereof in various states. DoF has already
approached for the same and Marketing network
is being extended in the states of Odisha and
Jharkhand to have gradually a pan India presence of
the Company. This will also accrue financial benefit
to your Company because of enhanced margin
compared to trading of Urea through another
indigenous manufacture.

Your Company has also taken-up with DoF regarding
extending Special Compensation of Rs.150 per MT
of Urea for Namrup-Il and Namrup-Ill units of BVFCL
under Modified NPS-Ill Scheme.

Your Company is also making best effort to keep
the existing plants running with enhanced efficiency
to keep supply of “Mukta” Urea uninterrupted to
the farmers of the NE and other nearby states. As
directed by DoF, M/s PDIL conducted a study to
review the existing FICC Energy Consumption Norms
because of change in various factors like leanness
of gas being supplied after the commissioning
of M/s BCPL, ageing of the plants etc. and they
have recommended to enhance the norm from
12.688 GCal/MT to 13.24 GCal/MT in Namrup-III
and 12.61 GCal/MT to 18.12 GCal/MT in Namrup-
Il with retrospective effect. The matter has been
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B BT RIGIRY BT TS | Al BT SIRD fqmT
S | TSN AT | AEUY X B ATAR
IRAT RAIAT oI &1 IT0ET F”d [y B Bl
A o1 & fog fRaFer #atem | W §US
fopar 1 B |

3MYSHT HUN - DTS BT HEAT PR D [T TS
JTIST Y&e HIEhROT, & AT AR Y ARBR GIRT
TR feen—fr<wl &1 |21 &R Afha wu | urer far
2 | 3MMID! BT HRETA IR H YT Iqeadl a7 §Y
2; gof Yaesdr 91y v & fory ers-IRT oiR 9o et
3R A DI AT THAT ST IET & | D! B AT DI oI
&) B, HIoET Sifthes aold & 9¥TeT # b uTd 3R
famRrd favar ST 38T © iR SsARM # Bu-l @ IRUdTd
# waren gfdemslt # guR faar o W@ 2 |

JMYSHT HUA 7 &F H PITIS—19 HSHRI 31X AT 1S
@ R & PROT AAR & dacE IRAT & I
3R UYOT BT qATY I& H FH AT BT AT T |
Tyl faxiia ReIfd & arac[g, e HeMRI & 31dfe &
SR T HHAIRAT DI ATRD I AR IqT BT I
BT H |erH o, foraH ReR, |fdaT HHaRT 3R Sdhar
D BHAN AMHA o | P & Y YR 2T Foredt
Y G B T fAshemail &r Frar ) SN 3@ 2 |

MU HUHT FaTed H NAR BHIASt & BRI HH
I 9 g3 TR faxia Reifd, mdR w8 9&
fOITT BT MR 2=h BRell B |

YD HUHT TITAROT DI FR&T & oY B B @ oy
ftag 2 3R I8 9 urifiTa &R an] St/ et/
AFEDI e S ST (IGHUT Bl ABAM AR FRIF0)
AMAFRIH 1974, I (IGUUT @I AHAM AR FRIF0)
ATAFTIH 1981, TATART HRETUT STAIH 1986, ATASIITH
<A1 ST ARAFTRIA 1991, I (e iR gsfei) A
2001 3MMfe T SrguTer fbar & | fafer=T st / et /
TRBN T B FFAR QT S arel et Re /Rare

taken-up with DoF. The Controlling Ministry has
also been approached to allow special dispensation
by calculating Urea Concessional price as per IPP
rates.

Your Company has followed very religiously and proactively
the guidelines stipulated by National Disaster Management
Authority, Ministry of Home Affairs and State Govt. to
combat COVID. Your Company is maintaining complete
Swachhta in the Factory premises; Township and Market
areas and the places are being sanitized to maintain
complete hygiene. Roads are being repaired, a park &
gym is being developed, adjacent to the existing Officers
Club and improving healthcare facilities in the company’s
Hospital in the Township.

Your Company took all the challenges in maintaining the
production and dispatch of urea in spite of the limitations
due to COVID-19 pandemic and unprecedented flood
situation in the area. Despite stressed financial condition,
management was able to pay the monthly salary and wages
to all the employees including retainers, contractual staff,
and contractor’'s workers on time during the pandemic
period. The Company has also released payment to the
vendors to maintain supply chain system for the Company.

Your Company expresses its gratitude to Department
of Fertilizers for continued support extended and for
resolving some long pending issues to boost the critical
financial condition due to low production caused by
frequent interruptions in operation.

Your Company is committed to work for the protection
of environment and it is adhering to all the relevant
and applicable laws/rules/ standards etc. viz. The Water
(Prevention & Control of Pollution) Act 1974, Air
(Prevention & Control of Pollution) Act 1981, Environment
Protection Act 1986, Public Liability Insurance Act
1991, Batteries (Management & Handling) Rules 2001
etc. All the returns/reports etc., which are required
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anfe, Fraffd wu & w7 W ugd fy o 2| o
3T iR aryg AR & SR Fafia wu | ugyor
o AT & | 519 <1l T AR 1991 & ST
MHA—URT & AN Bl JMMIST B Ry H 91 davst <
% foIU 15.00 RIS BUY & Uiferdl off 78 2 | B 7 faT
qy 2020—21 H 25% & &d B Yblael THUHAUAS [dehaliatl
H AU Gl WG BT 39.45% AHAATYdD BRIl Dl & |
FHu 1 O af 202021 # FHot W BT 33% SHTH
Urce W NIl B B |

Sae ReRar & forg oWl 98d 8Y, dald dEHsd o
21.05.2015 I 8.646 TAUACIUIY &I IUTEH &HAT & AT
Y Are & 71 | uRfad Aamed—|V aRAarsr o
HT & oft | BT, 39 URASHT @1 520 3fFacT &
fog g diell IRqd &% @ oIy IRUGER] & Sfard H
®I3 Ufaferdr Ui T2} 819 & BRI, TN BT WIRST BN
fear T o | ARG T gRT aRASHT &Y T &l
12.70 TAUACIAY % 9™ & folg T ATIdhT AN &
AT A AUIUAS 1R A WRER & T WIh e Bl
TS BRD URATSTAT DI QAU fh U 8 U8l Bl TS
off | SHA IR AT &5 & SERTHROT IR refawer &l
grar e |

ST BIUNCT TR BHIT 3MUDH] HUI bl Ygar 8T
2| U BT T AR & A 3RO Bl Il o
% T U FaER &R < & Bl IR A El &
IUTA H IR GAREd &A1 2 | SUNS TR
feenfrcel @ fory feremel / arfife orgerer Rete @y
e Icell & TR JRITe 3T / SIUls Bl ol &
TS 2 | AHIEATI 99 & SRT, 3MUa! Hu HI fa<ig ay
2020—21 & foTU b SeM fa9IT §RT "G @l faem
¥ Iepee XIS | I har 127 8 | /1 Fieerei iR
RS Jdg ARBIRAT 7 MR A FEi & gurer
@ gfte A 2 |

H AUdl BUAl B AHAl DI FAT H IgHed GHA
IR Arfes™ @& fou fAqee dsa # ome wEaifirl
DI SAFERI A ARIEAT BT ATedl & | § 39 aaR W

to be submitted as per various laws/rules/govt. orders
are submitted regularly in time. Consent to Operate is
renewed by the Pollution Control Board, Assam regularly
as per Water Act and Air Act. A policy of Rs.15.00 crores
under Public Liability Insurance Act 1991 has been taken
to give insurance coverage to the nearby people, in case
of disaster. The Company successfully procured 39.45%
of its total procurement from MSME vendors against the
target of 25% in FY 2020-21. The Company has procured
33% of the total procurement in FY 2020-21 from GeM
portal.

Looking ahead for long term sustainability, the Union
Cabinet had approved the proposed Namrup-IV project on
21.05.2015 through PPP mode with production capacity
of 8.646 LMTPA. However, due to no response received in
reply to RFQ for submission of Price Bid for 52% equity of
this project, the effort was discarded. A new initiative was
taken by DoF to enhance the capacity of the project to
12.70 LMTPA and establish the project by formation of a
JV of CPSEs and Govt. of Assam through nomination route.
This will give a boost to industrialization and economy of
the North Eastern region.

Good corporate governance has always been the hallmark
of your Company. The philosophy of the Company is to
ensure transparency in its dealings and compliance of
country’s laws and regulations in order to promote ethical
conduct of business. Quarterly/Annual compliance report
for corporate governance guidelines have been sent to
the Administrative Ministry/ DPE as per the applicable
guidelines. During the year under review, Your Company
have been awarded "Excellent" Rating towards good
governance by the Department of Public Enterprises for
the financial year 2020-21. All the Directors and Senior
Management officials have affirmed the compliance to
Code of Conduct Rules.

| wish to place on record my sincere appreciation to my
colleagues on the Board of Directors for the valuable
support and guidance in running the affairs of your

19



#
ot <t Tw
BVFC

TGS dell BicaTsoR HaveH fafics

BRAHMAPUTRAVALLEY FERTILIZER CORPORATION LIMITED

IS [IIRT, IR 3R IaRd FATS, Ye1d 3R AR
AREE, AARD, AN AR TGN AT UIEDI, ol
IR = FRIMe WIEdRol $l 96 dgqed ANIGe
& forg gvgare T € 1 S fRaR wweiE @ forg
TR Z | H 3MUdT HU Bl 5T WRBRI AR =T AT
IIERON, YOiRAl, Hedd Sielkl, UTEdhi AR U 3R
Solgg -1 AISAT gRT AU 7T AHF & oY 3R Uahe
PRAT & |

H DUl & T HHATRAT DI [T & AT UL DI T
AT BT FHAAT B & S99 Rax a4l & fofg
gaTe Qa1 g | § ¢ Il Bl I IAAHS FEdN]
& forg +ff g=are a1 €| DI IR |, § e &l aNE
19T FARR FHel =18l & | § Ueb aR R 311q it bl
gATE HRl g |

Sy fevs
8./ —
R1a yare wiEd
J1egeT 3R vseT fevre
SIS : 05336787
I: faeel!

feeT®: 30 FGER, 2021

company. | take this opportunity to thank Department of
Fertilizers, Ministry of Chemicals and Fertilizers, Railways
and other Departments of Govt. of India, Public Sector
Undertakings, Statutory, Secretarial, Internal, Cost and
Govt. Auditors, Banks and other Regulatory Authorities for
their valuable guidance and look forward for their continued
support. | also acknowledge the support extended by the
State Governments and all other authorities, agencies,
valued dealers, customers and press & electronic media
to your company.

| sincerely thank all the employees of the Company for
their sustained endeavors in meeting the challenges
posed before the organization. | also thank the trade
unions for their constructive cooperation. On their
behalf, | seek your continued support, as always. | thank
you all once again.

Jai Hind.
Sd/-
Siba Prasad Mohanty
Chairman and Managing Director
DIN-05336787
Place : Delhi

Date : 30th November, 2021
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19d] qif¥f® I |HT &1 AIfew
T §IRT G a1 STl & 1 81ga defl hidargor

praNe fafics @& wewl @ 19 df affe M
dJoa qfsar BRI (@) /e fffsar difsar
el @UUdTH) & ARIH W AR, 30 HdeR,
2021 @ fA=foRad &t &= & forw s &
ST |

NATHIY Y ddTrdy:

1.

39 3H 9T § 31 ATd, 2021 ®I FAT fa<y oy
P RIST ¥ aT U HRA1, 89 R IR
PR TAT S° UM & AR fAQEd
AUSe Pt RUE, Waa or@rRieTd o Ruid 8k
SH W YR & 93 Td "AeeEaR ([ U
Toll) @ fewfordl &1 JrgAre qeIr SuH |
P ATy 3rerar foAT foeft e & fAferRaa
Ahed YIRT HAT |

99 & fou du & NS affe faxi faaror
31 A/, 2021 P FH & Y, SN A<9d o
Rure, wWda oamies Rue & e ® 3R
D NI AT 3R Sro=ar a7 2|

focig @ 2021—22 @ fow ®u @& wifafos
oG] GEThl b UIRSIHE W faaR B @R
e @& A1t A1 oA fh=) Henes & YR @&
fRiz® T HET JETeR A3 fdoell By ©
wU ¥ fAfeRad Heed o aiRd B

2013 @1 GRT 142 TAT I ANL UG & AT
forg T el @ Arer ues & a8 S JrgUTe
H, B dIUe. IR TS BUHl (THITRG:
311056 §), dlcs PBISccH, drarel, ()
P g3 G CA -V/COY/CENTRAL GOVT-/ BVFCL

NOTICE OF 19TH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given that the 19th Annual General
Meeting of the Members of Brahmaputra Valley Fertilizer
Corporation Limited will be held through Video Conferencing
(VC)/Other Audio Video means (OAVM) on Tuesday,30th
day of November, 2021, at 3.00 PM to transact the
following businesses:-

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. Toreceive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial
Statements of the Company for the financial
year ended 31st March, 2021, together with
the Reports of Board of Directors, Independent
Audit and the comments of the Comptroller &
Auditor General of India (C & AG) thereon and to
pass the following resolution with or without any
modification(s) as Ordinary Resolution :

“RESOLVED THAT subject to the Comments of the
C & AG, the Audited Annual Financial Statements
of the Company for the financial year ended 31st
March, 2021 along with the Director’s Report,
Independent Audit Report thereon be and are
hereby approved and adopted.”

2. To fix remuneration of Statutory Auditors of the
Company for the financial year 2021-22 and to
pass the following resolution with or without
modification(s), as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of
Section 142 and other applicable provisions of
the Companies Act, 2013 read with applicable
rules made there under, M/s. B.L. Purohit &
Co.(FBN:3110586E),  Chartered  Accountants,
Guwahati (Assam) appointed as Statutory
Auditors of the Company, to audit the accounts
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(1) /421 f&-® 19.08.2021 ERT 1,80,000 /—
JUY UIRSASG TN N SHTHST & ATI—HTef
ITAT SR 3T O1d W 18R & 40,000 / — HUY
IT IRAfA® S A FH BT, W BUAl B Qe
oG] WIeTd & BT H dY 202122 D HUA B
gl o o= Jm u_ier 2q Siftigd fhar T
2, 3R SR e orar wied 1991 aifiis
M JSh P FHAT H DR 3FTeT A MH
T BT 98P P FHYH Th UG TR a9 B |

IGEL I CRIIE

3.

faefoRaa Aol R AR &xar demr afe
SUYTH HHS ST dr AeEE Afed ar 4=
LD B AR Fhed & wY H S gTiRd
‘hNHAT:

“HAhed forar Srar ® f dusr efafeas, 2013
D URT 148 IR HU NfAfTH, 2013 qerr
YT (TRAT UNE SR orETuNIeTd) R, 2014
& FHI—FHI R GRS 3 SN U=l &
STRAROT ¥ A ST <01 UU€ UAINITE, ST
AGTHR, PIAGT], HIA & e9d Fed gRI
R B & AN lETIRIeTdT Bl 31 AT,
2022 BT AT fo<ig ¥ & U S & AT
frerEl @ oA e R @ forg TR
qTRsIf¥e faar e

1. a9 2021—22 ([AFHU-l IR Il F93) &
forg 5, Rider &R fadar & A (03)
forfeal & forg arfiies oImTa oiar uRier
3R foATET ST AHieT & foT et UereR
g 37,100 /— ¥UY (HH  BOIR Th
Wl ¥UY) <F B

of the Company for the financial year 2021-22, in
terms of the letter no. CA .V/COY/CENTRAL GOVT./
BVFCL (1) /421 dated 19.08.2021 of the Office of
Comptroller and Auditor General of India (C8AG),
New Delhi, at the remuneration of Rs. 1,80,000/-,
plus applicable GST and the travelling & other out of
pocket expenses, upto the ceiling of Rs. 40,000/- or
actuals, whichever is less and the above Statutory
Auditors shall hold office from the conclusion of
19th Annual General Meeting till the conclusion of
next Annual General Meeting.”

SPECIAL BUSINESS

3.

To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following
resolution, with or without modification(s), as an
Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of
Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 and other
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
and the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014, as amended from time to time, M/s. Subhadra
Dutta & Associates, Cost Accountants, Guwahati
as Cost Auditor of the Company appointed by the
Board of Directors of the Company to conduct
the audit of the Cost Accounting Records of the
Company for the financial year ending 31st March,
2022, be paid the remuneration as under :

1. Atotal professional fee payable Rs. 37,100/-
(Rupees thirty seven thousand and one
hundred only) towards annual cost audit and
quarterly cost review for three (03) quarters
i.e. June, September and December for the
year 2021-22 (Namrup-Il & Il plants);
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qifi¥s RUE Bl TRIHIRIRTS BHC H
gRaftid BT T=AT 39 6,500 / — BUY (B
BOIR UM |l ¥UY AH) Yob IR THRAY

Ul IR 3TUAS HRAT:

IET FI D gAYl SIS IR
P W UORISER AT 9RIER 1 (Uh)
BT BARANT (gHAH Sofl)  (@mE—IH
3 for), 1(Ts) Rifta ww @1 fgda
roft Tl Xl (BMH—STT & forg) 8fiR o
TR HEd 1(TH) DI Jard SO G
X fo=mr Rmi—<m @ o) a1 ardfas
g & AR, S W HH B, X AT
mzﬁﬂﬁ'{ﬁ

FEIYS Jell BicagoRr drare fofics
@ AfAf T8 # o e < & forg
AT & 3TN @l F:3[oh eaeeT |

IHRY Neld W /99 WS 3R BT
P IRC BST A BRI WA TP JM—oT
& o0 SUHl g1 I uRas ged
gare fhar SIQaT | Jorfy, Jel ae oI
PR W qRaed 99R & Haer ¥, afcrgfd
RGN WRIEAT HHATRAT & fory dffel uMR
200 /— BUY 3R WURTSEX IT IHIER Bl
SRIT TR 300 /— UV AT IRA[dD Y,
ST Y ¥ &1, dd A Bl |

3iffec Rurd (M / arfie) @ g1 ST
ST B ¥ gl dfad &R §E g
a1y, e fory didowdta g™ g
AR I &1 fhar S |

| IuYeh AaHRS Yob H AN hR,
Ife Pis 31, A 81 B,

7.

Conversion of Annual Cost Audit Report to
XBRL format and uploading fee to MCA portal
for Rs. 6,500/- (Rupees six thousand and
five hundred only) ;

Reimbursement of travelling expenses
by Airfare (Economic class) (to & fro) to
Proprietor or Partner 1(one) and / or one
(one) qualified staff, the reimbursement
will be in 2AC rail fare (to & fro) and to
audit assistant 1(one), the reimbursement
will be in 3AC rail fare (To & fro) or as per
actuals, whichever is less, on submission of
documentary evidence;

Fooding and lodging to the audit team in
BVFCL Guest House shall be provided free of
charge.

Local transport at the Namrup Railway
Station/Bus Stand and Company’s Guest
House to place of work to and fro, shall be
provided by the company free of charge.
However, in respect of local transport
charges at the originating destination, the
reimbursement shall be limited to auto
charges @Rs. 200/- to Audit staff and Rs.
300/- for Proprietor or Partner by Taxi, or
actual, whichever is less.

The hard copy of the audit report (quarterly/
Annual) should be printed and bind before
submission for which no additional payment
will be reimbursed by BVFCL.

All the charges/fees are excluding the
applicable taxes, if any;
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ffeers Asd B 59 Hhed B AN B A
AT B qAT U 4] AP HEH SO
Tq 9 B, FaRAT AR IEaE™ B b oy
oSG fesar Srar & |

faere Aved & ARATTAR

B8 /—
IAR. D. [T
HUAT Afa

W %Y
feHTe: 25 AGaR 2021

?ﬁE:

1. A ¥ 3 (R —oum) & &g # U+
3T, 2013 @ GRT 102 & ATERVT_H

~ .
AIYTHD [dIRUT Heli %l

2. Bifds —19 HSMRI Bl qwd §Y, T Al
@ HATTT (“TAAIT) 9 8 31, 2020 3R 13
e, 2020 & URUAT & AT 5 A, 2020 Bl
(Frfed wU ¥ 39 “UAA” URYF dET T
2") @ d8d e & Hifae SuRefa & fa=m,
QST PELRITERN) /Nvdivn & Aregq |
aifies S| 98 (“ToNgR”) B rgHf &
Hu oA, 2013 (“srfdfem (@) iR
THAIY URYAT & UTaeEl & fguTa |, U
BT Yoo GRAT / 3edivd & ATer| & ST
o <1 %' 7

3. 9% 99 foid dusl & 9 Al B TP
MABTRSG AT 3MSS! TR ASI TG | §6& o
B B 9T W 15 e Ugdl I dRft/
3MUAIGH Ars H Yolgd § eMfiel &1 9ad © |
d98% Yw B8 D 15 A & AR 0P Aa
SHH wfAe B Aahd & |

Place :

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors
of the Company be and is hereby authorised to do
all such acts, deeds and things and to take all such
steps, as may be necessary or expedient to give
effect to this resolution.”

By Order of the Board of Directors

Sd/-
R.K. Gupta
Company Secretary
Namrup

Date : 25th November, 2021

Note :

1.

Explanatory Statement Pursuant to Section 102 of
the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of the items
No. 3 (Special Business) is annexed hereto.

In view of the continuing Covid-19 pandemic, the
Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCAY) vide its
circular dated May 5, 2020 read with circulars
dated April 8, 2020 and April 13, 2020 (collectively
referred to as “MCA Circulars') permitted holding
of Annual General Meeting ("AGM') through VC
/ OAVM, without the physical presence of the
Members. In compliance with the provisions of
the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act), s) and MCA
Circulars, the AGM of the Company is being held
through VC / OAVM.

The meeting web link will be sent to all the members
of the Company at their official mail id. The Members
can join the AGM in the VC/OAVM mode 15 minutes
before the time scheduled for commencement
of the meeting. Members can also join within 15
minutes of the commencement of meeting.
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I /NUdivy & AT 9 TSeH H o
2013 @I ¥RT 103 & TEd DA BT Yal
@ eI | T g |

08 3N, 2020 | SIRI URUYA HaR 14 /2020 B
Ted, 39 Toligd & o 9w & AdeE §
T o9 3R dIC &= & folv 3+ 19 WR faedl
3 fh Bl [1gwh B Bl Glaer Syl T8l
2| groiifep, Husl AR, 2013 BT aRT 112
3R GRT 113 & IATERVT ¥, YR & gl &
forv Wt & wfafafer drdt /enudied & Areaw
H Uoligd # el B QIR B @ uSeE @
qETH | dIe STl |

HIRANE AW & AT (TARAIY) IRu= e
17 /2020 f&ip 13 aMIel, 2020 & AR,
TSlITH &l AT R el Alfed &I Hul
P deITST Www.bvfcl.com TR srgers o am
=

Aifew ¥ ffde e S/Es 966 3 aRIg
(@ AR 3R ATESID JTBT DI BISHR)
HU B USipd BRI H AawI gRT e
@ o et B

4. The attendance of the Members attending the AGM
through VC/OAVM will be counted for the purpose
of ascertaining the quorum under Section 103 of
the Companies Act, 2013.

9. Pursuant to MCA Circular No. 14/2020 dated April
08, 2020, the facility to appoint proxy to attend
and cast vote for the members is not available for
this AGM. However, in pursuance of Section 112
and Section 113 of the Companies Act, 2013,
representatives of the members such as the
President of India shall attend the AGM through
VC/OAVM and cast their votes through show of
hands.

6.  Inline with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA)
Circular No. 17/2020 dated April 13, 2020, the
Notice calling the AGM has been uploaded on the
website of the Company at www.bvfcl.com.

/. Relevant documents referred to in the Notice
are open for inspection by the members at the
registered office of the Company on all working days
(that is, except Sundays and Public Holidays) during
business hours upto the date of the Meeting.

Jar o To

C 10 1R 3 N I T K s All Members of BUFCL

Advediva 91 @ 9l e All the Directors on the BUFCL Board
fr @ gifafte aEradas Statutory Auditors of the Corporation
g @ gfuarerl e as Secretarial Auditors of the Corporation
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AT BT D

(Ul AfIFrRE, 2013 BT TRT 102 & FTAR
ATt faqeef))

Ae ¥ 3: fa<ig ad 202021 & fay @ohi @
AN dETiEdl & uRHRS o1 srganeda

FUAT & Fewre dsal o faxig 9y 202021 & forg
AT oraT Rare! @ o udie &= @& fog ofar
qRIeAT WY @ RwBIiRe w106 9 96 @1 fadTw
18 I 2021 &I d3d H HAH FAGT <1 UUS
THIRITE, ATTd ofETHR (THRARYA: 000223), TATETC
@ i ok wRsiA® &1 ergaIfad faar| son
AR, 2013 BT GRT 148, I AT] UGl T
DU (@ TRIeTT MR or@TIRIeTd) 9, 2014
| 14 & |1 ufed SUedl & AR gaTl &
AT 9. 3 W Al ¥ 9M ddhed g fa<ig a9
2021—22 & foTQ ANTd SIETRIADT DI T YIRS HEG
@ U rgaAee e &R+ &1 JgRg fhar Sirdn
gl

TR Foers A8 & 9ol gRT JAed Tq
TEIfId AT Hhed bl IR BRI Bl RIBIRT

Pl 2 |

I MR Fhed bl UIRT R | PIs fAe9rh a1
B BT G JHDII BIHD AT I RIWAR fbdl
§ e A, g™ ddfa e © oA foxfg wu @ A
el Bfel el X |

fFawrs Hsel & ATQUTTAR
8. /-
IR, [l
HUAl Afa
R AR
fadI: 25 qdeR, 2021

ANNEXURE TO THE NOTICE

(Explanatory Statement Pursuant to Section 102 of
the Companies Act, 2013)

Item no. 3 : Ratification of the Remuneration of the
Cost Auditors of the Company for the financial year
2020-21.

The Board of Directors of the Company has approved the
appointment and remuneration of M/s. Subhadra Dutta &
Associates, Cost Accountants (FRN: 0000223), Guwahati
as Cost Auditors of the Company in their 106th meeting
held on 18th August, 2021 on the recommendation of
the Audit Committee of the BVFCL Board to conduct the
audit of the Cost Accounting Records of the Company
for the financial year 2021-22. In accordance with the
provisions of Section 148 and other applicable provisions
of Companies Act, 2013 read with the Rule 14 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, ratification
for the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors for
the financial year 2021-22 by way of the an Ordinary
Resolution is being sought from the members, as set out
at item No. 3 of the Notice.

The Board accordingly recommends the passing of
the proposed Ordinary Resolution for approval of the
members.

None of the Directors or Key managerial personnel of the
company or their relatives are, in any way, concerned or
interested, financially or otherwise in passing of the said
Ordinary Resolution.

By Order of the Board of Directors

Sd/-
R.K.Gupta
Company Secretary

Place : Namrup
Date : 25th November, 2021
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T gRT |Gfod fhar SIrar 2 6 g=1ga defl Bidasgor

HraReH fofics @ el @ affid 19df afde
JMH dod HITAdR, 21 fa¥eR, 2021 &I IR 3.00
g ifsar wpw (=) /o oiffear difsar A=
I AT @I S, arfe fFEfaRad ®aar )
T4t fHar S Adi—

NATEIRYT gd4Trd:

1

39 39 |9 ¥ 31 A, 2021 Bl FHT fa<i
99 © v o & oramNferd faxig faavon
BT UTE DR, IR B 3R JuEH @ g,
TR IR 9RT & fR=d IR AgTeRar wRieTdh
(A Js Uol) @1 fewfordl T argAGT $Ra gU
AEIRY Hehed HI AT el GaRE) |fea ar
fed f=faRad Hoea &1 aiiRa T

"gg Aded forar Sirar g fF 30 FdeR, 2021
BT IMARTT HUAT B 1941 af¥d A d5dH
(arfd®) H B & A §RT Hhed faa+
BT UIRT B, difes 31 A/, 2021 BT FATG
foxig 99 & fog du & ofEr wRifed arffe
ol TR RUe iR S W Hivsuel @l
fewfor, vaggRT wied vd A STl 21

s Avsd & JAQUTTAR
g/—
AR & Il
HUl |
RI: AT
faTep: 16 fadaR 2021
fewofy

1.

PIfIS—19 FEMRI & HeIoR, DRURS AHA B
AT (“THATT) T 8 J1e, 2020 AR 13 A,
2020 @ T UfSd 31U 5 A, 2020 & URYA &
ERT (Arffed ©U | “TANIY gRYF" w8l STl

Notice

NOTICE OF ADJOURNED 19TH AGM
is hereby given that the Adjourned 19th Annual

General Meeting of the Members of Brahmaputra Valley

Fertiliz

er Corporation Limited will be held through Video

Conference (VC)/ Other Audio Video Means (OAVM) on
Tuesday, the 21st day of December, 2021 at 3.00 PM, to

transa

ct the following businesses:-

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1.

Place :
Date

Note:

To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial
Statements of the Company for the financial year
ended 31st March, 2021, together with the
Revised reports of Board of Directors, Independent
Audit and the comments of the Comptroller &
Auditor General of India (C & AG) thereon and to
pass the following resolution with or without any
modification(s) as Ordinary Resolution :

“RESOLVED THAT In supersession to the resolution
approved by the members of the Company in 19th
Annual General Meeting (Original) held on 30th
November, 2021, the Audited Annual Financial
Statements of the Company for the financial year
ended 31st March, 2021 along with the revised
Director’s Report, Independent Audit Report and
Comments of CSAG thereon, be and are hereby
approved and adopted.”

By Order of the Board of Directors

Sd/-
R.K.Gupta
Company Secretary

Namrup

: 16th December, 2021

In view of the continuing Covid-19 pandemic, the
Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) vide its
circular dated May 5, 2020 read with circulars
dated April 8, 2020 and April 13, 2020 (collectively
referred to as “MCA Circulars”) permitted holding
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?) e @ Hifde SuRafd & o 9=/
JMTATH & AETH | d1f¥d ofH d8& (“Toigd”)
ST R BT AFANT IT B | B ST,
2013 ("erfrfr )ik vaiie aRu=i & uraer=i
@ SUTAT H, BUAT B TOIgA I/ TATgH
& HEIH | TN B ST & 2|

of Annual General Meeting ("AGM”) through VC
/ OAVM, without the physical presence of the
Members. In compliance with the provisions of
the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”), s”) and MCA
Circulars, the AGM of the Company is being held
through VC / OAVM.

2 AT 0 B e 3 o o 8 e kil s e et
- y ir offici ilid.
Yow T @?ﬁ@?ﬁ?ﬁ?&??lls ?;j; can join the AGM in the VC/OAVM mode 15 minutes
: . before the time scheduled for commencement
vE ?ﬁj‘-ﬁ/a s A | vefien # et @ of the meeting. Members can also join within 15
Nk ? ;{BF;; ?ﬂ%ﬁ ;’ 15 e @ minutes of the commencement of meeting.
W R | The attendance of the Members attending the AGM

3. @ 2013 I URT 103 & Ted PRA through VC/OAVM will be counted for the purpose
ghfad &1 @ SeRd SEEIVEI < @ of ascertaining the quorum under Section 103 of
AT W gl H A ?ﬁ arel He Bl the Companies Act, 2013.

SR 1 T B S | _ Pursuant to MCA Circular No. 14/2020 dated April

4. 08 3, 2020 P THHIY URUS HeE&AT 14 /2020 08, 2020, the facility to appoint proxy to attend
& IR, 39 oA & forg wet o1 suRerd and cast vote for the members is not available for
g 3R are Se & forg b o geh Eagical this AGM. However, in pursuance of Section 112
Jaar Sueel T8 © | Bllild, Hu AT, and Section 113 of the Companies Act, 2013,
2013 @I GRT 112 3R &RT 113 S AT ¥, representatives of the members such as the
TR & U o gt & gfafafsr dRf/ President of India shall attend the AGM through
MdiTH & WeEw J Toled # enfae @R 8k VC/OAVM and cast their votes through show of
B fAETHR AT are STei | hands.

5. BRUNC AWl & HAed (THRY) & aRus In line with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA)
RT 17 /2020 e 13 3, 2020 B AR, Cirqular Np. 17/2020 dated April 13, 2020, the
ol AT & I FU B AR www. Notlcp calling the AGM has been uploaded on the
bfcl.com TR ST @ TE £ website of the Company at www.bvfcl.com.

6. AIfew ¥ wehid e e S8 @) arRg Relevant documents referred to in the Notice
% Gt B feawl @i AR sk ddwfie are opendfolrF msp}e%tlog by the melrlnber‘z atdthe

B B ¥ @ o ¢ : registered office of the Company on all working days
@%ﬁf. ?m ﬁ%&q)“j;?;q Z;\ﬂ_\g;l e (that is, except Sundays and Public Holidays) during
business hours upto the date of the Meeting.

ufa To

fANvwrdiva & O+l g
Advefiva 91 & aft fFRere
e @ wifafse damafias
fm @ afada aeradas

All Members of BUFCL

All the Directors on the BUFCL Board
Statutory Auditors of the Corporation
Secretarial Auditors of the Corporation
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3 foru oyt & G &= § wri—fawred & <ui=
Tl TRIT—RIfeT a1f¥er faxiia faaror afed eraReE
BT 1941 (S=IN4)) arffe Rue Ud add T@muIerd
P RUIE dor S99 W YRd & O9® TG Aol
Werd B TR IR B gU 91 Uil 8l
& 7

1. facig «=rd fAroares & g

fUoe a9 @1 o # FH= av § Bur 3
foxia Rafd &1 fAaxor =1 R &—

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

To,
The Members,

Brahmaputra Valley Fertilizer Corporation Ltd.
Dear Members,

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the 19th
(Nineteenth) Annual Report on the performance of the
your company along with the Audited Annual Financial
Statements for the financial year ended 31st March, 2021
together with Independent Audit Report and Comments of
Comptroller and Auditor General of India thereon.

1. REVIEW OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANGCE:

The summarized financial performance of the
Company during the year under review vis-a-vis
previous year are stated as under :

(EMERISI) (Rs. in Crores)
faavor 31.03.2021 | 31.03.20 Particulars For the For the

B FHI | BT FHIE year ended | year Ended

a4 & fog | af @ fag 31.03.2021 | 31.03.2020

HoueTd, ool 3R &R W gd | (1 101.35) (193.00| |Profit (+)/Loss (-) before (-)101.35| (-) 93.00
(+) /= () Depreciation, Interest & Tax

PSRN 36.40 36.70| |Depreciation 36.40 36.70

ToT 0 0 Interest 0 0

&R gd @™ (+) /89 () (-)137.75| ()129.70| |Profit (+)/Loss (-) before Tax (PBT) | (-)137.75| (-)129.70

X gzarg a9 (+) /8 () (-)137.75| (-)129.70| |Net Profit (4] / Loss (-) after Tax (-)137.75| (-)129.70

FHIEATE fa<fia a9 2020—21 & SR, HUT 7 101.
35 FRIe PUU & UM, T 3R &R d Ugel
(@SR Safes a8 e fUse 9¥ 93.00 R
Juy off | fUsel a9 &I Joir # a9 a9 2020—21 &
SR I 3R 9! # HHT BT HROT G w
q o H gfq g¢ © | fad 99 2020—21 & SR
IRAT BT IATET 131880 Al T (fUBel a9 155092 1

During the financial year 2020-21 under review, the
company incurred losses before Depreciation, Interest &
Tax (PBDIT) of Rs. 101.35 Crores against the loss before
Depreciation, Interest & Tax of Rs. (-) 93.00 crores in the
previous year. The increase in loss is mainly due to the
decrease in production and sales during the financial year
2020-21 in comparison to the previous year. During the
financial year 2020-21, urea was produced 131880 MT
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HTZTRI 30.06.2020 BT U HaTgRT Bl
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS REPORT

A Report on Management Discussion and Analysis
Report covering the operations and future
prospects of the Corporation is enclosed at
Annexure —, forming part of the Directors’ Report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

A report on Corporate Governance along with
declaration of compliance of code of conduct rules
for Senior Management and Board members,
Secretarial Audit Report, Certificate from
Practicing Company Secretaries firm conforming
the compliance of corporate governance guidelines
issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA)
and the Department of Public Enterprises (DPE)
and the management replies on the observations
made in Secretarial Audit Report are enclosed at
Annexure -, forming part of the Directors’ Report.

CHANGES IN BOARD OF DIRECTORS’

During the period under review, the following
changes took place in the Board of Directors of the
Corporation:

. Shri Ashim Kumar Ghosh, CMD, BVFCL has
retired from the services of the company on

attaining his age of superannuation on 30th
September, 2021.

. Shri  Siba Prasad Mohanty has been
appointed for the post of Chairman &
Managing Director, BVFCL vide GOI Order
dated 8.09.2021 and assumed the office of
CMD, BVFCL w.e.f. 1.10.2021.

. Shri Sanjai Maheshwari, Director (Finance),
BVFCL retired on attaining his age of
superannuation on 30.06.2020.
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w0 ¥ g fHar 17| =] 9 7, 2020
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Shri Digambar Sahai, DGM (Operations
& Instruments) appointed as Director
(Production), BVFCL by the Govt. of India vide
Order dated 27.10.2020, who assumed the
charge of the post of Director (Production),
BVFCL w.e.f. 16.11.2020.

Shri Subash Chandra Das appointed as
Director (Finance), BVFCL by the Govt.
of India vide order dated 4.12.2020. He
assumed the charge of the post of Director
(Finance), BVFCL w.e.f.18.12.2020.

The Govt. of India, Ministry of Chemicals
and Fertilizers, Department of Fertilizers
vide Order dated 29th September, 2021
appointed Shri Shyam Sundar Agrawal, Joint
Director(FICC), DOF as a part time Govt.
Nominee Director on the Board of BVFCL vice
Shri Vinay Kumar Pandey, Ex-Director, DOF.

The Govt. of India, Ministry of Chemicals and
Fertilizers, Department of Fertilizers vide
Order dated 20.04.2020 appointed Shri K.
Gurumurhty, Director (IFD), DOF as a part
time Govt. Nominee Director on the Board
of BVFCL vice Shri Satya Mohan Gupta, Ex-
Deputy Secretary, DOF.

The Govt. of India, Ministry of Chemicals and
Fertilizers, Department of Fertilizers vide
Order dated 20.04.2020 appointed Shri
Bipina Bihari Padhy, Practicing Chartered
Accountants, Bhubaneswar as Non official
Director on the Board of the Company for
three years. He assumed the charge of the
post w.e.f. 9th May, 2020.
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. The Govt. of India, Ministry of Chemicals
and Fertilizers, Department of Fertilizers
vide Order dated 5.11.2021 appointed Shri
S.K. Sharma and Shri Rabi Ranjan Sen as
Non official Directors on the Board of the
Company for three years.

Board of Directors wishes to place on record its
sincere appreciation for the services rendered by
the retiring Directors during their tenure on the
BVFCL Board.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:

In compliance of the provisions of Section 134 (3(c)
read with Section 134 (5) of Companies Act, 2013,
your Directors states that:

a)  in the preparation of the annual accounts
for the year ended March 31, 2021, the
applicable accounting standards read with
requirements set out under Schedule Il to
the Act, have been followed and there are no
material departures from the same;

b)  the Directors have selected such accounting
policies and applied them consistently and
made judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent so as to give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Company as at March 31, 2021 and of the
loss of the Company for the year ended on
that date;

c)  theDirectors have taken proper and sufficient
care for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the
assets of the Company and for preventing
and detecting fraud and other irregularities.

d)  the Directors have prepared the annual
accounts on a ‘going concern’ basis;
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el  theDirectors have laid down internal financial
controls to be followed by the Company and
that such internal financial controls are
adequate and are operating effectively;

f) the Directors have devised proper systems
to ensure compliance with the provisions of
all applicable laws and that such systems are
adequate and operating effectively.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY
ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNING
AND OUTGO.

The Disclosure of information in accordance with
the provisions of Section 134 (3) (m) read with
Rule 8(3) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014,regarding conservation of energy, technology
absorption and foreign exchange earnings and outgo
are enclosed at Annexure-| (A) & (B).

STATUTORY AUDITORS:

M/s. Parik & Co., Chartered Accountants, Guwahati
were appointed as Statutory Auditors of the
Company by the Comptroller & Auditor General of
India to audit the accounts of the Company for the
financial year 2020-21. The above Auditors have
submitted their Independent Audit Report dated
27.09.2021 on the annual financial statements
of the Company for the financial year ending 31st
March, 2021. Subsequently, in the process of
supplementary Audit by Govt. Audit Team raised
provisional 7 nos. of audit paras on the audited
financial statements of the company for the
financial year 2020-21 and while replying on the
audit para in consultation with Statutory Auditor.
In this process, Statutory Auditors has revised
Annexure-A of his Audit Report dated 22.11.2021,
by amending its clause 1(c). The Statutory Auditors
has drawn the attention with due emphasis on
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certain key audit matters. The management replies
on the above key audit matters including revised
dated 22.11.2021 are enclosed at Annexure -lll,
forming part of the Directors’ Report. The Audit
Committee has issued directions to the executive
management to take necessary actions on them
during the current financial year 2021-22.

COMMENT OF COMPTROLLER & AUDITOR
GENERAL OF INDIA (C & AG)

The Comptroller & Auditor General of India (C
& AG) has undertaken supplementary audit on
the audited annual financial statements of the
Company for the year ended 31st March, 2021
under the provisions of Section 143 (6) of the
Companies Act, 2013. We have received 7 (seven)
Nos. observations from C & AG Audit Team on
7.10.2021 and Management reply including
comment of Statutory Auditors were sent to
the Director o/o the Principal Director of Audit
(Agriculture, Food & Water Resources), Kolkata
on 2.11.2021. The Comment of the C8AG dated
01.12.2021 on the Audited Financial Statements
of the Company for the year ended on 31st
March, 2021 is enclosed at Annexure-1V, forming
part of the Directors’ Report and do not requires
for any reply, as nil comments has been reported
by CS8AG.

COST AUDITORS:

Your Corporation is maintaining cost accounting
records as specified by the Central Government
under the provisions of Section 148(1) of
the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made
thereunder. M/s. Subhadra Dutta & Associates,
Cost Accountants, Guwahati were appointed to
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10.

1.

conduct the audit of cost accounting records of
the Company for the financial year 2020-21. The
above firm has submitted their Cost Audit Report
to the management on 10.10.2021. The Cost
Audit Report for the financial year 2020-21 was
filed/uploaded on the website www.mca.gov.in vide
SBRN T56637242 dated 28.10.2021, after duly
approved by the Board of Directors of the company
on 27.09.2021.

INTERNAL AUDITOR:

M/s. Birmiwal and Associates, Chartered
Accountants, Tinsukia, Assam was appointed as
Internal Auditor of the Company for the financial
year 2020-21. The above firm has submitted their
audit report for the year 2020-21.

The Audit Committee after review the Internal Audit
Report and compliance, issued necessary directions
/ advisories to the executive management for taking
corrective actions, wherever sought necessary.

The Technical Internal Audit of the Namrup
Plants are being conducted by an in house
Technical Internal Audit Committee consisting the
representatives of Technical Services, Finance and
Material Management Departments.

IMPLEMENTATION OF OFFICIAL LANGUAGE
POLICY:

Your Company is making all efforts to propagate
and implement Official Language Policy of the
Government of India. All Govt. directions for
implementation of Official Language Policy of the
Govt. of India are being followed. During the year
under review, following activities were take place
to increase the awareness and motivate the
employees for the use of Hindi Raj Bhasha in the
Corporation:

35



ot <t Tw
BVFC

TGS dell BicaTsoR Have™ fafics

BRAHMAPUTRAVALLEY FERTILIZER CORPORATION LIMITED

i)

i)

iv)

v)
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ii)

iv)

vi)

vii)

Hindi fortnight was celebrated from 14th
September to 28th September, 2021.
During the fortnight competitions like essay
writing, speech, questionnaire , translation
etc. were organized, in which employees
participated enthusiastically;

Three (03) Hindi workshops were organized
during the year;

Ten (10) employees were trained in July-
November session under Hindi teaching
scheme. Prabodh/Pravin/Pragya training
organized by Hindi Training Institute for
the employees/officers who do not know
Hindi.

11th January (being a Sunday on 10th
January) was celebrated as World Hindi Day.
On this occasion several officials participated
in a technical workshop organized hy
NARAKAS.

For awareness of daily routine notes of Hindi,
are being displayed on the official intra net
and one word Hindi/English is being displayed
in the campus every day, which will help in
the use of Hindi.

Bi-lingual official seals of higher officials of
the Corporation were made for official use;

Annual and quarterly report about
implementation of official language are
regularly sent to the Rajbhasha Department,
Home Ministry, Department of Fertilizers,
Govt. of India, Regional Implementation
Office, Official Language Home Ministry,
Guwahati and Oil India Ltd., Duliajan, Narakas
office.
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12.

13.

vii)  Company is regularly participated in the
quarterly meetings held at Department
of Fertilizers, New Delhi and Half yearly
meetings held at Qil India Ltd., Duliajan,
Narakas through Video Conference.

During the year under review, your company have
been awarded ‘Oil Naracas Rajbhasha Shield’ by
the Hon'ble Governor of Meghalaya State in OIL
RAJBHASHA CONVENTION, 2020 in Shillong on
18/19th October, 2020 for meritorious work in
progressive use of Hindi Language in the official
work.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES UNDER SECTION
197:

As per the provisions of Section 197 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there under,
Government Companies are exempted frominclusion
of the statement of particulars of employees.

RIGHT TO INFORMATION ACT, 2005

Right to Information Act 2005 mandates timely
response to citizen's requests for information
relating to Public Authorities. BVFCL is a
wholly owned Government Company under the
administrative control of the Ministry of Chemicals
and Fertilizers, Department of Fertilizers and come
within the purview of Public Authority. As per the
provisions of Right to Information Act, 2005 your
company makes all efforts to follow the directives so
issued under the Act. Your Company has nominated
Transparency Officer, Appellate Authority, Public
Information Officer and Alternate PIO to respond
effectively to the requests of the applicants under
the Act. The details of the officers nominated under
the Act have been displayed on BVFCL website
to facilitate information about the affairs of the
Company.

37



ot <t Tw
BVFC

TGS dell BicaTsoR Have™ fafics

BRAHMAPUTRAVALLEY FERTILIZER CORPORATION LIMITED

14.

15.

16.

17.

PUEI H Jedrse (www.bvfel.com) # s
AT JAUATS B ST 8 3R FAAT BT DR
JfAf R & | UrEaEEl @1 uers fear T
2| giemi af @ SR ARSR™IS B Sidid
3ISTSH (28) 3Tdad W gU 94 9 27 ATdeAl
BT IR f5ar 1 | g adier =Ror H |
e ur gy, et iR awamE @
AR FYeRT &R fear 17 |

0T / fraer / TR &1 <RI

DU AAFTH, 2013 & HrEEEl B AU
H, 31.03.2021 @I by MU 99 &1 <RI @R
YA 0T/ TRET T fqavor Hefed faavon #
faxira fqavont &1 @il T 2

arftfe gfdemT &1 SgRoT

YA AMRFRH, 2013 BT GRT 134(3) (B) B
AR FEiRa gua # aiies afrar &1 &RV
el e—V # Heli & Sl fFeered @l R &
T 21 99 2019—20 & fory arffe Red, www.
bvfcl.com ™R ®UT & Jafeid H wefRia fdhar T
g, S dafeid https://www.bvfcl.com/wp-content
Juploads/2021/04/Annual Return 2019-20.pdf X
Iue B |

Afadrer:fl a9®

9Y 2020—21 & TRM, 3AMMUd fFH I HU=
N, 2013 & ORT 118 (10) & UTAEHI B
qE&d 991¢ TV 91 &7 b WRGR gRT fafdaa
IR U AT R (STEAIUHaTE) gRT
SIRT fhY T AN AR ATIGS! BT 3gUTel
e 2

i Sed faurT grRT o fdg g
FrTfra wemae feenfden &1 srgures

Ap S faumT (@IE), ¥Ra ReR A Arfaa
TR WR QRGRl & SIuTeld & JAER W

14.

15.
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The Company's website (www.bvfcl.com) s
maintained with updated information and all
provisions of Right to Information Act have been
kept uploaded. During the year under review,
Twenty Eight (28) applications were received under
RTI. Out of this, 27 applications were disposed off.
Three applications received at First appeal stage,
which were disposed off within stipulated time
period.

DETAILS OF LOANS/INVESTMENTS/GUARANTEES

In compliance with the provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013, the details of investments made and
loans/guarantees provided as on 31.03.2021
are given in the respective notes to the financial
statements.

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

In accordance with Section 134(3) (a) of the
Companies Act, 2013, an extract of the annual
return in the prescribed form is enclosed at
Annexure -V, forming part of the Directors’ Report.
The Annual Return for the year 2019-20, has been
displayed in the weblink of the company at www.
bvfcl.com, which is available at weblink https://
www.bvfcl.com/wp-content/uploads/2021/04/
Annual Return 2019-20.pdf

SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

During the year 2020-21, your company has
complied with the applicable Secretarial Standards
issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of
India (ICSI) duly approved by the Central Government
under the provisions of Section 118(10) of the
Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder.

COMPLIANCE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
GUIDELINES ISSUED BY DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC
ENTERPRISES

The Department of Public Enterprises (DPE),
Government of India, has laid down certain
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19.

20.

BoUI ol SUDAT BT MR B S
§ "Ues! B MR fear & ik g8 Ruie
WRHR DI AARID / qMD FR GR IR B
P AMATIHAT B | MIH! HIAT AT w7 |
IS grT FiRa ddlg e &5 Sedl @
fog Tt gemes wR feenferden &1 Ut
PR T T AR TR Bl RUlC IRGd Hahl © |
qY 2020—21 & SR, SIYS 7 3MUDB] HIT BT

9T ST TRy B 2
q9I€ @ 45

IS DI doBl BT [IRga Gl Feld T
siferemae Rare # faar mam 2

HUT AT, 2013 Y &RT 149(6) B
Jaiid w@dd FRe® grRT arvvn

98 & Wad fewe 7 U Srfaf e, 2013
DI GRT 149 (6) ¥ MEIRT IR WA AFGTS
BN R B B oIy GO BT T |

SA A a7 el Fatfaer fas=
2022°

e ST T (QE) 7 = Sfear2022"
DI AUD e F I~ GAllcrdl AR fuerradi
@ A # P dAId a5 STl (@) @
IHPBT 3R BRIYUIET &7 f & aRfa o=
& forg va HEantl o g% b 21 9 anid,
2018 BT a9 9a+, =3 ool # AT T
AT T A gRT A s Bl
"R SfSAT-TIT 2022" ¥ TH I BT FAYA
BT | G ofdf & SR, STl Bl
SiEUH, TRIRSSINH SR ey Uical W aifeT &
kAT G R ol 7 SR AT iR & forg
T T B DI 3T H A HIH 3T @
ST & I fda i B, fSfotea oA
AreaTfEd B, fihoret @ d # o 8Rft 3R FHue @t
4 Uga BT 9grar fHerm |

18.

19.

parameters for the purpose of grading the CPSEs
on the basis of their compliance with guidelines on
Corporate Governance and this report needs to be
submitted to the Government on quarterly/annual
basis. Your Company is regularly complying with the
Guidelines on Corporate Governance for CPSEs laid
down by DPE and submits reports to the DOF/DPE.
During the year 2020-21, DPE has issued ‘Excellent
Rating’ to your Company.

BOARD MEETINGS

The detailed disclosures of Board meetings have
been made in the annexed Corporate Governance
Report.

DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS
UNDER SECTION 149 (6) OF COMPANIES ACT,
2013

The Independent Director on the Board has
given declaration towards meeting the criteria of
independence as laid down under section 149 (6)
of the Companies Act, 2013.

CPSE CONCLAVE “VISION 2022”

The Department of Public Enterprises (DPE) has
embarked on a collaborative exercise for re-defining
the role and functioning of Central Public Sector
Enterprises (CPSEs) in the context of challenges
and expectations emerging from broad vision of
‘New India-2022". This exercise had culminated in
the CPSE Conclave “New India — Vision 2022” held
on 9th April, 2018 at Vigyan Bhavan, New Delhi
which was addressed by Hon'ble Prime Minister.
During the period under review, your company has
completed the process of on boarding GeM, TReDS
and Sambandh Portals and taking adequate actions
towards achieving targets for import substitution
thereby minimizing the import bill of the Country,
MSEs, Skill India, encourage Digital transactions,
Reduction in wasteful expenditure and increasing
geo-strategic reach of a Company.
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21.

STHIX:

fed Aved WRd WRAR & fafa=1 favmm
R FHATEA O WRE 3R SdRG  HAATeTY,
SR AN IHag AfRfd (Uh.3me. ),
Ugiferad iR UIpfde K9 731, Yt A#31ery,
fa H=mera, T8 wATe™, <l S fam,
THIIR] HRIG & HaRi, A @i,
ANTI—odT TieTdhi, UfdefiT duet afeal qer
RA & FE5® Ud AeTerdl wWied, 3H 34
I Bicarsod fofics, IS Hfided T4
U 4T Sodel=h HIfSAT I U ARSI 3R
JAq FEANT & oIy 3R &b el 2 |

e wred W gErR IR, SR AR,
Rifsde o, 9 3w sfear Tor i 9 &
g HEANT & [y BIfde MR <h Rl
gl

e Avsd sMa aTeel & dragE, AHwa—|
3R N FI= & Ieqre Hael BrRi—frdreT |
A TR R GIR A @ o7 e Hiae
S PHARAT & AP YNl B U 1 IR
H HRAT & 3R DT ARTEAT Bl ¢ |

s & forv 3R SH@T IR &

8./—
Rra yare argEd
Jeyel Ud ydy fevre

T AdTH™Y

fed: 16 fodeR, 2021
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el T —1 ANNEXURE - |
g§egq g4t 3iX fazayer Ruid MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT
1. UEITdT 1. PREAMBLE
SEY  defl  BiEemgor  BruReE  frfics Brahmaputra Valley Fertilizer Corporation Limited
Gl a9 2002 GISIEl (BVFCL) incorporated in the. year 2002 (CIN
R (SiollUw), A Td SRS HATe category Central Public Sector Enterprise (CPSU)
' : ' under the administrative control of the Department
HRA WRER & WNIS 630 & aefi9 ua
N o C o of Fertilizers (DOF), Ministry of Chemicals &
@ ?ﬁ a? iq);“e; SIS & SR Fertilizers, Govt of India. BVFCL is engaged in
; Sk @\ml S (orer) the manufacture of Urea, Bio- fertilizers, Vermi-
i -~ N < _W( Em Compost manure at Namrup (Assam) and trading
: ' of Seeds, Pesticides, Fertilizers > SSP. Roc
SIS PRAT & SR AISH], PIEARPT, S f Seeds, Pesticides, Fertilizers (MOP SSP. Rock
(WW' T, e BnT) R e q_ NP~ Phosphate) and Micronutrients. Corporation is
el DT SRR FRAT & | F7 “Foor” e = marketing its products under the brand name
A A TG BT fAYUE R ET 2 | “Mukta”.
2. EIT il AR faem: 2. INDUSTRY STRUCTURE & DEVELOPMENTS:

IRAT, ARSI & UH W AT B B HRO
THAE RIS SaR& 7 SR SO T Il
IeRBI DI JAAT BIB! AeH GUT © | IAA
# gRar aifrard e arfafm (§90) @ d=d
A B R PR fAfd~ Scared! (E90) &
siaeia sl & forg gRar & wfden=e qea @
Y0 Rl 2 3R Fhed e SR Bl
2| dfdure w0 ¥ IRRgfaa fawr ge &R
Aiolde wdared Yadl oo Fafga  fafmsior
(THIIRYY) SHIE & IATGT P AT A HH 2 |
I B AN AR I o / TRARYT &
I BT 3R AT THIATRHIRNE Holl ATD
P IR R HATART & e,/ Rarad
@ w9 H P AT S 2|

IRAT SREG & IARA B foy wwids 9
TUHHATH Hedl A & 3R JRAT e bl Bl

N # W ARG & wU H e 7 AR

Urea, as a major source of nitrogen, is also the
only controlled fertilizer and has a major share of
consumption compared to all other fertilizers put
together. Urea is at present covered under Essential
Commaodity Act (ECA) and the Government declares
statutory price of urea for sale and issues movement
orders under ECA to different manufacturers. The
statutorily notified sale price and indicative MRP is
less than the cost of production of the respective
manufacturing unit. The difference between the
cost of production and the selling price/ MRP is paid
as subsidy/ concession to manufacturers based on
approved FICC Energy norm.

Natural Gas is the only raw material for
production of Urea fertilizer and accounts for
most of the urea production costs. Gas supply
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IS gRT B ST drell 9 JYfd 9 A+
M drell fIff=1 dd-re iR da A
HafId TRl & HR da—4 § - gwrfad
g B 9 MR 1.60 UATATIRAGHS! &
3T TR W) ufaEferd o+ %E 2

JAUEAITE, R STR—Yd IR Ydl 9Rd H
THATE IRAT FAFET §HE 81 & BRUT 9
39 &F ¥ fHaHl & G99 W IRAT T MY
PR BT AAFE RTFERI 2

ARG Sdxd AR Sdve  wiefira!
IqHE™ URYS (AT HITHUHINR)

IR SRS ST 7= ®Y A Fed J1d AR
fa=iforal a1 IR SRl & forg mard R R
2 | fafemfor drenfret & forg o, qwr v |a=
B WOAT & oIy iR A1 & HAlsar \IA0
& dhAdl IV @ oIy URifa] dgad
& fou 73 faceh Sl ® @ e 9 R
21T H B I UM Sl §=& wU
F PR R dfed fAvdl R aEae & B §
BIelifh, <o H Pl FAMNT JJEE A
qEl © Sl IRy ®U A SaRD &F H g
& fog waffa 2| Oy w9 | S&Re a7 H
TTHYT BT qeTaT o1 & forg FAfGd o I
TR & U Td [AdB dg DI WU Bl
3T 2 |

SHfTY, TR fauTT & e & SrER, 19
AT 2019 BT UAUHUS, IIRYIVE, BIfid,
THHIBISUA Ud UaUhAINE & AIh Gl &
HY W R ARG 3R I HIEfrapT argee
= uRye &1 T fbar a1 | aRyg & Aew
B9 ® A0 3MUdT HUAl 7 5.00 ARF BUY ey
PIY H 3R 1.00 TRI BUY AP AR Yo
P BU H 59 99 2020—21 B foIU M fha |
AMIDHT HUAl B eTeT AR Haer e uRvg

from M/s OIL continued to be intermittently
affected due to various technical and HR
problems being faced by M/s OIL. Gas supply
remained restricted at an average level of 1.60
MMSCMD.

BVFCL, being the only urea manufacturing unit in
entire north-east and eastern India, bears primary
responsibility of supplying timely urea to farmers
across the region.

Indian Council for Fertilizer and Fertilizer
Technology Research (ICFFTR)

Indian  Fertilizer industry is predominantly
dependent on imports either for the raw material
& intermediaries or for finished products. Further
for manufacturing technology also, the country is
completely dependent on big foreign players for the
technology license for setting up of new plants as
well as for technological up-gradation of existing
plants. Country is having a number of research
institutions doing research on the subjects
focused primarily on agriculture, however, there
is no dedicated research institution in the country
which is exclusively devoted to research in fertilizer
sector. There is a growing need for setting up a
National Level Research & Development Centre,
exclusively devoted to promotion of research in
fertilizer sector.

Therefore, in line with the direction of Department
of Fertilizers, Indian Council for Fertilizers and
Fertilizer Technology Research was formed as a
society jointly by NFL, RCF, FAGMIL,PDIL, FACT,
BVFCL, MFL, FCIL and HFCL on 19th Aug, 2019. As
a member of ICFFTR, your company has contributed
Rs.5.00 lacs as a corpus of fund and rupees One
Lac annual membership fee for the FY 2020-21.
Chairman and Managing Director of your company
is a member in the Governing Council of ICFFTR
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B TafT FRefia H§ e € iR Al ®
oo (STe) SR SU Hel Uaedh (Tdh-ra!
Jq) gR¥E & HREIBR TS & |

T TN < H SN & &aF H AgHI B
qrel By TR EWRIH §, qUIY, <= H bIg W
EUd gAY R T8 g S faRy WY |
SRS &F # A & fore wAfld g | SRS
&3 | ATHLT BT geral o & foy faviy wy
A AT b I WR S JHI Td [Jmrd
DG DI RITTAT BT MMILIRAT 9§ 8T B |

IEATHUBEIAR A= I pufal grRT

fohy T SR RATAT BT T 9T Y Ve &

. DRI ATSSC, HicTIH JMIIH ATgee
R AHR UINH I (BISSHCSl) &
IdTET B foTU Biehe Reaq &1 SuIHT—
BISISIEC N

W s SRe H1 fAe™, e 3R
YRS TR 0 SAET — IRAVE RT

T Slg-Sdold BT fdera, T SR
IS T TR SATeT—3TRGITh gRT
fopar oI <& 2|

yasia & gHer:

Ty 2020—21 # AFRI—| 3R AR H FRAT
BT SIS HHI: 2022 HfeH e IR 129858
Afgws o7 @ Jorm H fad a9 201920 H
HHI: 46,087 HIfgd <7 AR 1,00,905 HigH
T o 2020—21 # AT IRAT IeAEH IR,
SFfIeaH R USRI & A= Smea J=ad:
T B BT BIRTeT el fbar Sff et | fa=y
99 2020—21 & foTU ATl 3R AFeu—|Il &
Sarfed ufd #difgs e IRIT &1 ol Tud
HHI: 29.31 S /Hed 3R 15.87 Slibd /
Hred ot |

ay 2020—21 R 2019—20 & IR IRAT, G
JdRP 3R TH HHRE BT IATGT BT AR
g fear T '

and Director (Production) and Dy.GM(Technical
Services) of the Company are Executive Members
of ICFFTR.

Although our country has a number of research
institutions doing research in the field of agriculture,
however, there is no dedicated research institution
in the country which is exclusively devoted to
research in fertilizer sector. There is a growing
need for setting up a National Level Research
& Development Centre, exclusively devoted to
promotion of research in fertilizer sector.

ICFFTR is funding following Research Proposals
undertaken by various member companies:

1. Use of Phosphate Gypsum for production of
Calcium nitrate, Calcium ammonium nitrate
and Sulphur nutrient (Hydrometallurgy) — By
PDIL

2. Development, testing and pilot scale
production of Organic Fertilizer — By RCF

3. Development, testing and pilot scale
production of Bio-stimulants — By RCF

REVIEW OF PERFORMANCE:

Urea Production in Namrup-Il and Namrup-Ill in
the year 2020-21 was 2022 MT and 129858
MT, respectively compared to 46,087 MT and
1,09,905 MT, respectively in FY 2019-20. The
targeted Urea production in 2020-21 could
not be achieved due to various unforeseen
breakdowns of old, unreliable equipments.
Energy consumption per MT of urea produced
in Namrup-Il and Namrup-lll was 29.31 GCal/
MT and 15.87 GCal/MT, respectively for the FY
2020-21.

Production of Urea, Bio Fertilizer and Vermi Compost
during the year 2020-21 and 2019-20 are given
below:
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fa<g adf IRar (Wea ) g Sda (Hed) Tff s (W)
FY Year Urea (MT) Bio-Fertilizers (MT) Vermi Compost (MT)
IdIGH ICEQ] S ICG fasY IdIGH fasY

Production Sale Production Sale Production Sale
2019-20 155992 160186 35.54 29.60 83.86 64.73
2020-21 131880 137569 14.755 16.484 81.02 80.19

AFRT—|| FIF BT 98 H 17.05.2019 3R 06.
01.2020 BT T goI famerdrll &1 AEAT BRIl
el emifrr IR Ruder gocie (dlcs
3ife) § S aTell S@a <qra Rt fass 9
(TAUHS) o ST dTell U UrSUeiise & haxe
@ HRT M RIIRT A § 06.01.2020
DI T TSI [ABAAT & d18 IHIAT AR IRAT
e §€ 1| HaE NSRS & M
e & RIIR ARM & WReT & 3euIT
B © foIg ! faRvs &R 9 fewgfiea
R (TASIE) €M &1 ufdgRe &1 & |iar
ISUATgl & GTSIel Bl R &3 & forg |iar
T o7 | A NSRS Ud iR 9 SR
ad, diaAdar 1 A= sy wfafafeat o
off, g Rue NSIAMSTA BT Ao T 2 3R
SISy ¥ s W gs o | Wl Irgdy
@ oIy BRI AT /Y 3T < 3R Yol B
ERIE B UihAT W W & | gTetifd, Amo—|
B 3 fau WY | 39 ey H SdRe T
9 5 AGER, 2021 ® MY P dgd ATl
A3 BT GBIl D U BT FqHIET B oy A
AR AT &1 Ted fhar 7

IRAT RUger dlgR ellbsl & WEREE B
3R PITS—19 ABMRNI H U AT AlbSISA
P DR AFERI—| FIFT 18.04.2020 dH dT
|| gRAT Ruger @& dicq AR a3
D 3 GGRSAT DI de AT | AR Rara &

Namrup-Il plants suffered two major failures in the
year on 17.05.2019 and 06.01.2020. Ammonia &
Urea Plant continued to remain under Shutdown
after the 2nd major failure on 06.01.2020 in the
Ammonia Synthesis Section caused by shearing
off of a pipeline carrying high pressure Synthesis
Mix Gas (SMG), going to Ammonia Synthesis
Reactor inlet (Cold Shot). M/s PDIL was assigned
the job of deputation of Technical Experts and
Non Destructive Test (NDT) Team to Study the
Health of the Synthesis Section of Ammonia Plant
and to carryout NDT of weld joints and pipelines
wherever required. M/s PDIL and M/s Inspection
Survey, Kolkata had carried out various NDT
activities, report of the same were forwarded to
PDIL and advice from PDIL were received. Process
for Placement of Work Order/ Purchase Order
for Service Contract & Procurement of spares is
in progress. However, orders will be placed only
after receipt of clearance to re-commission the
Namrup-Il plants. In this regard, The Department
of Fertilizers vide Order dated 5th November,
2021 constituted a three members Committee for
vetting the proposal for restoration of Namrup-lI
Plants.

Namrup-lll plants remained under Shutdown till
18.04.2020 due to maintenance jobs of the Urea
Reactor liner leakage and National Lockdown due
to COVID-19 pandemic. 3 Nos. of petals of bottom
hemisphere liner of Urea Reactor were replaced.
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BMH R B b 96, Ruger d 0 TRE A
TITT ThY URIGTOT fohaT AT AT | 25.04.2020 BT
T BT ST 8RS fohar T3 |

TeT—lll Wiie @I 19.11.2020 |9 dIi¥d e
TS BT | 59 37afd & IR SURT O T
o 39 IR

®) AT GIF B IR Hhoe HSAAR DI
EIRESIRE]

W) TS HHGCR BT SOHRE R

M) IR @R OPIER A gede TIR Dl
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g) R 9 YR & Ugd IR W
IR B G ARE HARHA

e #RAT & R, T [T Hraf @l
AHedYdad ORT far 1 iR |33l 9 21.12.
2020 BT e R I P& fobar |

TAST H=Icx & Sl DI Fadl Ygil AR TId
WR HIRR & BIe Hold B A aRadl &

BT, 13.02.2021 BT GIAT BT IS SIS o BT
foota forar am |

39 € SIS & SR AHfIRId Rav@rg w1

fu T

P) Tl HacRk  SeTReM-arsdl 3R
QUGN B ABIS BT BM, JF Y
¥ HeUC diToR, PBlEHS SR AR

JUREX |

@) IR T BUER TR Rd IR
TRIEToT

M U TR BIRR SR RO T B
PI TafeT gars

H)  PHeddc JEeR (132 Tds—1) @ 2
Rara ex@i &1 @ far m |

After completion of the liner leakage job, the
Reactor was tested by fully pressurizing the same.
Ammonia Production was achieved on 25.04.2020.

Namrup-lll Plants were taken under Annual Shut
Down from 19.11.2020. Some of the major jobs
attended during this period are as follows:

a)  Replacement of Water Cooled Condenser of
Ammonia Plant

b)  Catalyst Replacement of HT Converter

c)  Retrofitting of Woodward Governor in
Process Air Compressor

d)  Overhauling of 1st & 2nd Barrel of Synthesis
Gas Compressor.

All the planned jobs were successfully completed
during the Annual Turn Around and the plants
resumed production w.e.f. 21.12.2020.

In view of the increasing trend of dP of LT Converter
and limitation of Feed Control of Process Air
Compressor, it was decided to take the Plants
under Shut Down on 13.02.2021.

Following maintenance jobs were done during this
Shut Down:

a.  Cleaning job of LT Converter downstream-
lines and equipments, mainly Condensate
Boiler, Carbonate Boiler and Separators.

b.  Synthesis Gas Compressor 2nd barrel
bearing check-up.

c.  Turbine washing of Process Air Compressor
& Synthesis Gas Compressor

d. 2 nos. leaky tube of Condensate Reboiler
(1.32 HE-1) plugged.
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T) U AT gRT U IR HURR
TUT o1 e argse= &I URIeTor

d) Qo] PAaCk Bl IBRB SRS AR AN
S AT B 7R |

Tl SoR® (Reiad —210) & M & 9%,
SOR® Bl ANST 15.03.2021 BT Y& g AR 19.
03.2021 T YT BT g | 01.04.2021 AT
BT I R I Y B3N AR 04.04.2021 BT
YRAT BT IeUTe UIed febar 1 |

fagoe fasares afier

e | a¥ & SR, 3gs A 7 fa=ferRad
o Tfafafedt 1 E:

fauor v @b gl

®) ol Sare:

) BT A BICS IRAT faT 99 202021 B
SR, ST 7 1,37,569.455 HI. e JRAT
(et a¥ 1,60,185.915 #I. ) fashl @ |

i) la—JaR: 6.70 TARI BUY I BT 13.40
A1, T 3R 4.63 oIF JUY eI BT 3.084
PUA TR SIg—SdxP @ ((Uge 99 I
14.80 AR BUYY HT 29.600 HI. ©4) fden!

BT S |

iii) T PERE: 11.26 TG TUY F BT 80.194
Al e T HHRe @ (TUwel 99 Hed 9.09
TRI BUT BT 64.730 . ) I BT TS |

¥, AUR® IdTS:

Pul 9 faf= By Iare @1 @R fHAr
2 3R 2020—21 @ SR fo=feRad amaRe
HRIGATI BT e fhar &

) IRAT (TITHUA): 988.05 TG BUY Hd
BT 18668.34 HI. T4 (UBl a9 2284.06
TG BUY Heg T 43148.07 HI. )

e.  Process Air Compressor: HP barrel front
vibration probe attended by Inst. Maint

f. Catalyst unloading & repairing of top bed
grating of LT Converter.

After arrival of LT Catalyst (Shiftmax-210), Loading
of catalyst had started on 15.03.2021 and was
completed by 19.03.2021. Ammonia Production
resumed from 01.04.2021 & Urea Production was
achieved at 04.04.2021.

MARKETING PERFORMANGE REVIEW

During the year under review, your corporation has
following marketing activities:

Review of Marketing Operations:
a)  Own Products:

i) Mukta Neem Coated Urea: During the
financial year 2020-21, company sold
1,37,669.455 MT Urea (Previous year
1,60,185.915 MT).

i) Bio-Fertilizers: 13.40 MT Bio-Fertilizers
valued Rs.6.70 lakhs and 3.084 KL liquid Bio-
Fertilizers valued Rs. 4.63 lakhs were sold
(Previous year 29.600 MT valued Rs.14.80
lacs).

i) Vermi Compost: 80.194 MT Vermi Compost
valued Rs.11.26 lakhs were sold (Previous
year 64.730 MT valued Rs. 9.09 lakhs).

h) Traded Products:

Corporation has done trading business of various
Agri Inputs and performed following trading
activities during 2020-21:

i) Urea (NFL) : 18668.34 MT valued Rs.
988.05 lakhs (Previous year 43148.07 MT
valued Rs. 2284.06 lakhs);
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i) THUHU SdRE: 1741.81 TRG BUY HA
BT 2334030 H. o7 (oot a¥ 77274
g ¥UY HI DI 10232.350 HI. TH)

fasa fby Ty |
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7598.00 HI. e fagma fhar Tar| (Rsar
99 162.10 IRG $UY &I 2535.00 HI. <)

vi) 8 wHe: 8152 @RE BT A Bl
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i) SSP  Fertilizers: 23340.30 MT valued
Rs.1741.81 lakhs were sold (Previous year
10232.350 MT valued Rs.772.74 lakhs);

i) MOP Fertilizers : 8970.90 MT valued Rs.
1360.67 lakhs were sold (Previous year
8676.20 MT valued Rs. 1411.81 lakhs)

iv)  DAP Fertilizers : 565.20 MT, valued Rs.
123.97 lakhs were sold (Previous year
1212.20 MT, valued Rs. 265.88 lakhs);

vl Rock Phosphate : 7598.00 MT, valued Rs.
485.84 lakhs were sold (Previous year
2535.00 MT, valued Rs. 162.10 lakhs);

vi)  City Compost: 1202 MT valued Rs.81.52
lakhs were sold (Previous year 565 MT
valued Rs.27.47);

vii) dinc : 159.50 MT valued Rs. 63.13 lakhs
(previous Year Nil);

viil Boron : 22 MT valued Rs. 10.43 lakhs
(Previous year Nil).

c)  Agricultural Promotion Programme:

Your Corporation is the only urea manufacturing
company in Northeast, playing proactive roles in
imparting education/ creating awareness to its
customers/farmers for maintaining the soil health
and increase in crop production. The details of
farmers/dealers training programme undertaken by
the company are mentioned as below:

i) Farmers Training Programme/Fertilizers
application awareness programme:
Your Corporation has conducted 24 nos.
of Farmers Training Programme/ Fertilizers
Application  Awareness Programme at
different destinations of Assam. During the
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ii)

iii)

iv)

Farmers Training Programme, farmers were
encouraged for soil testing and advised
to use balanced/recommended doses of
fertilizers, Neem Coated Urea, Bio-fertilizers
& Vermi compost of the your Corporation.

Dealers Training Programme: 03 (Three)
nos. of Dealers Training Programme were
conducted at the different destinations of
Assam. Since the dealers are vital link in
disseminating the information to the farmers
& retailers. Dealers were educated about
the importance of soil testing, benefits of
balanced use of fertilizers based on soil
sample report and benefits of Neem Coated
Urea, Vermi Compost & Bio-fertilizers of the
your corporation. Dealers were requested to
facilitate supply of fertilizers to the farmers
conforming to their soil requirement.

Distribution of crop Literatures: Your
Corporation has distributed 22,000 nos. of
handbills/leaflets on different crops to the
farmers with details of agriculture knowledge
including specific literature on balance use
of fertilizers, importance of soil testing and
Neem Coated Urea, Vermi Compost & Bio
fertilizers of your corporation.

Model Fertilizer Retail Shops: As per the
directives of Department of Fertilizers, Govt
of India, your corporation is running 10 nos.
of model fertilizer retail shops in the name of
Kisan Suvida Kendra (KSK) in its marketing
territory. Out of this, 07 (Seven) nos.
running at Namrup, Jorhat, Nagaon, Kamrup,
Barpeta, Bogaigaon & Cachar districts under
BVFCL own arrangement and 03 (Three) nos.
at Sibsagar, Dibrugarh & Tinsukia districts
of Assam on franchisee basis to ensure the
smooth supplies of fertilizers.
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CONSTRAINTS FACED IN MARKETING OF UREA:

During the year under review, company experienced
constraints in marketing of urea due to the following
reasons :

Railway related issues:

. Non-availability of rakes due to Restrictions,
Congestions and Quota problem.

Freight Problem:

. In case of Ex-factory- for interstate
dispatches to Manipur & Nagaland average
freight rates are reimbursed instead of
destination States’ freight rates.

. Secondary freight revised are District wise
having discrepancies in PTPK rates.

Movement Prohlem:

. Negligible or no Supply plan for Bihar and
West Bengal.

. Distance limitation of 1400 Kms for rake
movement.

. Limitation of 500 Kms road freight
reimbursement in case of Ex-factory
dispatches.

Other issues:

. Mktg Dept. is working with very limited
manpower.

. Trading business always depends upon the
market conditions and supplies.

PRODUCTION AND MARKETING OF ORGANIC
FERTILIZERS:

Your company is producing two types of Bio-
fertilizers i.e. Azotobacter and Phosphobactrin
(PSB) since 2008-09 and started producing in
Liquid form w.e.f. 8th Jan 2021. Production of
Career based Bio Fertilizer has been stopped due
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to non-availability of the career materials and
their economic non-viability. Production of Liquid
Bio Fertilizer has been started by using in-house
expertise. This is highly beneficial in achieving higher
production on a steady basis in economically viable
way, depending upon demand and marketability.

Vermi Compost Project is also located at Namrup
having production from FY. 2008-09 onwards. For
composting at the initial stage, the earthworm Red
wigglers (Eisenia fetida) species were procured
from Assam Agricultural University, Jorhat. The
Vermi Compost produced is as per FCO norms.
Efforts are being made to further increase the
production of Vermi Compost.

Your company has started marketing of City
Compost from October 2016. City compost
supplies are arranged from West Bengal as no
manufacturer is available in NE states, which
results very high cost of City compost. The current
MDA of Rs.1500/MT is not sufficient for Assam
as the cost of transportation by Road from West
Bengal to various districts of Assam is very high.

Your company is the only urea manufacturing
company in Northeast and playing proactive roles
in imparting education/ creating awareness to its
customers/ farmers for maintaining the soil health
and increasing Crop production. BVFCL is having
Ten (10) numbers of Kisan Suvidha Kendra (Model
Fertilizer Retail Shops) i.e. at Namrup, Jorhat,
Nagaon, Kamrup, Barpeta, Bogaigaon, Cachar,
Sibsagar, Dibrugarh and Tinsukia districts of Assam.

Some of the major steps adopted to reduce marketing
cost are as follows:

Rationalization of movement - Rail-Road movement
ratio brought down to 94:06 against permissible
limit of 80:20 by DoF (Railway freight is 100%
reimbursable).
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Sales in North-Eastern States is given
priority.

Reduction in Inventory Carrying Cost by
maximizing Rail- head sales with minimum
storage.

Minimum Inventory level in Silos.

Maximum Payment collection is through
RTGS/CMS.

Constraints in Marketing of Organic fertilizers:

Vi.

Lack of awareness about uses & benefits of
Organic fertilizers among farmers.

Organic fertilizer does not show instant and
dramatic response like chemical fertilizers.

The shelf life of bio-fertilizer is limited to 6-12
months in powder form and 12-24 months
for liquid form.

Adaptability of bio-fertilizer strains is limited
to specific soil & climatic conditions.

Organic fertilizers are pushed to the dealers
along with Chemical fertilizers and forced
sale is taking place at Dealers/Retailers level
to farmers.

Needs special care during its handling &
transportation to avoid leakage/bursting of
packings.

Steps taken by BVFCL to overcome the Constraints:

Switched over to Liquid bio-fertilizers as they
have longer Shelf life to the extent of 12 to
24 months.

Training to farmers on uses and benefits of
Organic fertilizers during Fertilizer Application
Awareness Programme (FAAP), Mass
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vi.

Contact Programme & Farmers Training
Programmes etc.

Training programmes to Dealers &
Retailers on Organic fertilizers on mode
of action, benefits so that they can
guide farmers in a proper way as they
are having day to day contact with the
farmers at larger level.

Involvement and active Support of States’
Agriculture  Department/  Agriculture
Universities and Krishi Vigyan Kendra
Scientists to promote Organic fertilizers.

In order to promote the use of Organic
fertilizer, BVFCL's Organic fertilizers are sold
in North Eastern states i.e. Assam, Manipur,
Tripura, Nagaland & Mizoram.

We are also trying our best efforts to
promote Organic fertilizers in Meghalaya,
Arunachal Pradesh & Sikkim states as
well, in close coordination with the State
Administration/Agriculture Department/
KVKs of these states.

Provision for subsidy:

Inclusion of Organic Fertilizers i.e. Bio-
fertilizer and Vermi-compost under Subsidy
scheme like other Chemical fertilizers & City
Compost will help these products to get
added into regular package of practices by
the farmers.

M.D.A. applicable for City compost @ Rs
1500/- Per MT needs to be restored.

Achievements of BVFCL Marketing Dept. in
FY 2020-21 towards enhancing the trading
are as follows:
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The company is continuing the trading activities
of Sale of City Compost, Sale of SSP etc. for
agricultural products to help farmers so that all
Agro products are available under one roof (Single
Window Concept).

Neem Coated Urea: As per Government of India’s
directive for mandatory 100% production of
Neem coated urea considering beneficial effects
of Neem Coated Urea (NCU) on increase in soil
fertility and higher yield, BVFCL has successfully
set-up developed in-house Neem coating plants in
Namrup-Ill and Namrup-Il to produce only Neem
coated urea. The company has been producing
only Neem Coated Urea with effect from 20th
August 2015 from both of its plants. The Gol
has allowed sale of NCU at 5% of above MRP of
Urea as encouragement for its production and to
recover extra cost of coating.

Rationalizing the size of urea hag: Government
has made it mandatory to resize urea bag from
50kg to 45kg. The Company is using only 45kg
urea filled bags w.e.f. 01.05.2018 by replacing
50kg bags as directed by Dept. of Fertilizer
vide No. 12012/20/2007-FPP dated 4th Sept.
2017.

FUTURE OUTLOOK AND INITIATIVES FOR THE
CURRENT YEAR:

Some of the new initiatives taken are as follows:

I Due to delay/non-availability of career
material like Lignite, Half burnt Rice Husk
etc. for production of solid Bio Fertilizers
causing production loss/delay, particularly
due to various difficulties in post COVID-19
restrictions, decision has been taken to
start producing Liquid Bio Fertilizers at
the earliest. This will ensure increased Bio
Fertilizer production which will not require
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V.

any career material. This is in line with the
Gol initiative to promote organic fertilizers
with the aim to reduce Urea consumption,
resulting Atmanirbharta in Urea production
and soil upgradation.

In the month of May 2020, Urea-lll plant
was stopped for one week due to its reactor
liner leakage, Urea-Il plant was run with the
Ammonia and CO, produced in Ammonia-
Il plant. This approach of production had
never been tried in past, but the innovative
idea of technical personnel and their zeal
to achieve the same resulted in continuing
production.

For sustenance of ammonia synthesis
reaction in the converter, continuous
purging of some quantity of circulated gas
from the loop is needed. This purging is
particularly needed to avoid the build-up of
the inert (Argon and Methane) levels in the
synthesis loop. If inert level rises then the
loop pressure will increase and also there
will be slow down of the converter reaction
leading to drop in converter temperature
which may even cease the reaction and stop
production.

For this purpose, a bleed line from exit of
Synthesis Gas Compressor recirculator is
provided for purging synthesis loop gas and
which can be sent either to flare header
or to ammonia recovery section. Ammonia
recovery section was not operational since
long due to different operational/machineries
issues. These issues have been sorted out
in-house and the section has been taken
in line. This has resulted in reduction of
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approximately 900 NM?3/Hr gas consumption
of value Rs.5200.00 per hour, of Natural
Gas consumption as fuel in primary reformer
and also an increase in about 3.0 MT/ day
ammonia production.

STATUS REPORT FOR ATMANIRBHAR BHARAT
PERTAINING TO BVFCL NAMRUP:

The Company is immensely contributing to
Atmanirbhar Bharat by producing indigenous urea by
running two very old designed plants of 1960’s and
1970’s at a very low production cost. The plant is
using only APM Natural Gas from the near-by wells
and thereby ensuring no dependence on imported
LNG/RLNG etc. Moreover, as the plants are very
old, so most of the spares are now procured from
indigenous sources by developing local vendors for
the same.

Salient points are given helow:

a)  During the year, the Company has used
only cheap Natural Gas available from
the near-by fields and not used any LNG/
RLNG or other imported feedstock. Inspite
of the plants surpassing their effective
life and troubled with frequent failures,
saving of foreign exchange was achieved
by producing indigenous cheap urea using
local Natural Gas, which would have to be
imported otherwise to meet the shortfall
in Urea.

b)  List of items have been prepared for the
next three years, which can be procured
exclusively from indigenous sources.

c) A proposal to replace the existing plants
by establishing a new modern project of
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bigger capacity is under consideration of
DoF to reduce dependence of urea import
by boosting Urea production by more than
three times to encourage Atmanirbharta.

d)  Unlike other projects which are dependent
on BLNG for about 30% of their feedstock
requirement, the existing plants and the
proposed project will be based entirely on
domestic Natural Gas available from the
near-by areas from M/s OIL. This will give a
big boost to the scheme of Atmanirbharta.

el  This project has a very high potential to
export Urea to the neighbouring countries like
Bangladesh, Nepal, Myanmar etc. because
of its close proximity to these countries and
good connectivity, when self sufficiency in
urea production is achieved in the country.
The Company had already exported more
than 2.0 LMT of Urea to Nepal in the last few
years. This will boost the vision of honourable
Prime Minister for ‘Make for World’, along
with ‘Make in India’.

f) The Company has procured 33% of the
total procurement in FY 2020-21 from GeM
portal against the mandatory procurement
requirement of 25% from MSEs for the
available items.

gl Percentage of procurement of Goods
and Services from MSEs (including MSEs
owned by SC/ST entrepreneurs) out of total
procurement is 39.45% in FY 2020-21.

ISSUES PENDING WITH DEPARTMENT OF
FERTILIZERS:

I Inview of low productionin the plants resulting
dismal fund generation, Concessional Rate
may be revised to IPP rate for BVFCL urea
produced, for next three years.
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Vi.

Revision in energy consumption norm and
Concessional price of urea. A letter was
sent to DoF vide dated 24.02.2020 with a
request to review the Concessional Price
and Specific Energy Consumption Norm of
Urea.

Your company has entered into a Marketing
tie-up with M/s National Fertilizers Limited,
for doing trading business for FY 2019-20
and 2020-21. Department of Fertilizers
and Directorate of Agriculture, Assam has
been requested to take-up the matter with
M/s NFL to provide their urea product to
meet the shortage in the North Eastern
region, because of shutdown of Namrup-
Il plants and low production in Namrup-IIl
plants. Response from M/s NFL is yet to be
received to meet the demand of urea of this
region.

Non-mopping of discounted gas price (40%
concession for NE states) for determining
urea Concessional price, resulting no
benefit of Gol policy being available to the
CPSE.

Due to de-escalation of Natural Gas price
and subsequent recovery from Company’s
subsidy receivable. Out of Rs. 32.69 crores,
Rs. 26.25 crores has been released by FICC
and a letter dated 24.06.2021 has been
sent to DOF with a request to review the
case and release the balance amount of Rs.
6.44 crores in view of precarious financial
status of the company.

The release of Special Compensation
of Rs.150 per MT of Urea for Namrup-
Il 'and Namrup-Ill units of BVFCL under
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10.

vii.

Modified NPS-Ill Scheme needs review
by DOF considering financial strain of the
company.

Approval for Urea export to Nepal, as the
Company had so far exported about 2.25
LMT in earlier years and the same will boost
Gol exchequer by profit sharing in 65: 35
ratio with CPSE.

THE ISSUES BEING TAKEN-UP WITH THE GOVT. OF
ASSAM:

Conversion of the Kendriya Vidyalaya Namrup
from Project KV to Civil KV:

Kendriya Vidyalaya, Namrup is a Project
School under the full patronage of BVFCL and
the Company has been taking the full financial
and infrastructural liabilities of the school as
per the KVS norms so long, inspite of severe
financial crisis.

Due to acute financial crisis and day by day
increase in the expenditure, it has become
unmanageable for BVFCL to run the school.

In this connection, letters were sent to the
commissioner of KVS on many times to take
over this Project School and to run in civil
sector, but no positive response has been
received in this regard.

However, to lower the financial burden
towards KV Namrup, the nearby organizations
like Assam Petro-chemicals Ltd and Namrup
Thermal Power Station (APGCL) have been
requested for sharing the financial burden of
KV, Namrup. But till date no final outcome
has been received in this regard.

58



BRAHMAPUTRAVALLEY FERTILIZER CORPORATION LIMITED

= f Tw &
BVFC

I WPR gRT NAUHHTA o
aeafie faemay &1 iforueor:

JAMIHT HUAT ATHRY H 29 IRATAY fIrerapt
R 1 Rl Rt & At Uh ST
aregfie e ger & g1 o b
SR BEN AT 2, GBS B AR
HIAT ¥ 98 HH IRAT UG B HR]
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T A WRBR A Thel DI A Heol H

Taking over of the BVFCL Higher Secondary
School by Govt. of Assam:

Your company is running a Higher Secondary
School at Namrup with 29 Nos. Temporary
Teachers and 1 No. Permanent Teacher. As
stated above, due to acute financial crisis due
to low fund generation because of very low
Urea production from the existing plants of
BVFCL, the Company is facing huge financial
crunch to continue to run the school.

In view of the above, your company has
requested to the Govt. of Assam to take
over the school and run as Govt. sponsored
schoal.

Monetization of land assets:

The Company is having land under its
ownership as per the following details:

T 3R WRBR gRT UM el & wY

# T BT IR fHaT B |
ii. g HaRT BT gEIPRT:

P & U FEforiRad faeRer & SIgaR

UG WIfHe # A &

q BT A a3%a
PR TICAX i e

Tl 86.97 869744
GRSl 262.40 2623968
Gyl 349.37 3493712

Type of land Land area
Hectare Sq. Mtr
Factory 86.97 869744
Township 262.40 2623968
Total 349.37 3493712

SATHATSA DI AR T & qRIHRT
3R SMEnfe faewrT vd siftread ST
TG A TRD IS U TR A D
forg =z fadi®d 12112020 @& 799 9
WSS | R B 7 |

WSSkl J vivdl & ded s MENfie
GRIAGHT & RIGAT § AGUHANd 9H &
ST & folv 3/ Widfded fofics
@), IFReT & UF fadid 05012021 &
Y ¥ e SR AR wEr ¥ R
Tqud 7 fadid 18012021 & U gRT 0
TRATT R Agifid w0 F Hedd b &I 2|

BVFCL has requested AIDC, vide letter dated
12.11.2020 for conducting a study and
preparation of a road map for monetization
of surplus land of BVFCL and its maximum
utilization for industrial development.

AIDC asked consent & views of Assam
Petrochemicals Limited (APL), Namrup vide
letter dated 05.01.2021 for utilization of
BVFCL land in setting up of new Industrial
Project under APL. M/s APL vide letter dated
18.01.2021 has also in principle agreed to
the proposal.

59



ot <t Tw
BVFC

TGS dell BicaTsoR Have™ fafics

BRAHMAPUTRAVALLEY FERTILIZER CORPORATION LIMITED

11.

12.

D 3TelTdT, eMgSriT ° U= fadi® 10.03.
2021 @ AEIH ¥ GIAUHATS I Tdve
ERT 3 MNP Pl BT AUAT B foTw
IuAS A B [GaR0T USRS BRI BT
R fHT € 3R IR, dvHATe
T 3 aRfY & Wiak Tdivd & Aae
R ST 1472 BFCIR UR Tb YA
BT AMBd [HaT T 39 Feeg H TqIvd
I MU SR AT 91HI B IH
TRGR FHUAT Sleg | fea 39 folg
g PN |

[sitar |rae T

PUAl F SARG I & 1T 99 2004—05 W
FHSIAT S TR EAER dRAT o (6T 7 |
A IEIH fIWIT §RT 99 201920 & QRM
T TR & TR B

99 202021 & foIlU FHSiAT S99 W 28.10.
2020 B! AfTA (SIR®), ARG AT IR 31w
Ud yee fevrd, fiduedvd @ f9 gweER
foy U g SRe T # Ffd wT @
AT fAATET T e 4% H YHag AIvG S|
P THeET B S I8 B |

Rz 43 T 3R ARAd AR @
I HATl /eei Rt enfe & fafr=
et &1 srquTa |

YRT WRAR F Aqvas & = ducsi w
TR @ @ oIy 3 Mg dIicdl & RIg
P BT O 6 Ay, I, 9y, ofe onfe
3R HuA! AT ©9 A FI-TH SUATT SFdR]
@ T 3 AIgST BT AT IR @ ¥ AR [
TRE | Il Irfararsii &I U 3R & 7 |

TSI SUhH fI9INT = 81T 8 H S—aHeT
ged =g fhar & S U 3ifHelied R
R Suied 9F ®, o1 A= eragA

1.

12.

Further, AIDC vide letter dated
10.03.2021 has requested BVFCL to
provide about the details land available
for setting up of new industrial unit by
APL and accordingly, BVFCL has assessed
approximately  14.72  Hectare of
encumbrance free land situated adjacent
to APL within their periphery. A formal
call from APL is yet to be obtained in this
regards. Govt. of Assam may kindly take
initiative for the same at the earliest.

MoU Rating :

The Company had started signing MoU with
Department of Fertilizers w.e.f. 2004-05 and
Ratings obtained during the year 2019-20 was
“Poor”.

MoU for the year 2020-21 was signed between
the Secretary (Fertilizers),DOF and the CMD,
BVFCL on 28.10.2020. MoU parameters are
being reviewed in the Quarterly Review Meeting
held at Department of Fertilizers regularly.

Compliance of various directives of the
controlling Ministry and other Gol Ministries/
agencies etc.

Govt. of India has set-up many online portals viz.
Samanvay, Samadhan, Sambandh, Drishti etc. to
monitor various parameters of the CPSEs and the
Company is regularly updating these sites with the
latest available information and fully complying all
the requirements.

Department of Public Enterprises has recently
launched eSamikSha portal which is an online
Monitoring and Compliance Mechanism, developed
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13.

tofast track the compliance of pending action-points/
proposals/issues/projects/schemes/targets, etc. of
various implementing agencies such as Ministries/
Departments/Organizations of Government of India,
State Governments, Autonomous Bodies, PSUs,
etc.

Once the action-points/proposals/issues/targets,
etc. are added in the eSamikSha digital platform,
system automatically pushes it for the regular
interval updation to the respective stakeholder(s],
till it get compliance. Monitoring Agency(ies) may
obtain various exceptional and compliance status
reports on the fly.

This system also facilitates the Monitoring Agency
(ies) to further give directions/remarks and send
email/SMS to the stakeholder(s) on a particular
action-points/  proposals/issues/targets  etc.
Monitoring Agencies(ies) directions/remarks may
be prioritized and displayed in different colours to
act promptly by the stakeholder(s). The Company
has duly nominated its Nodal Officer and is effectively
interacting by using the latest Gol portal.

STATUS REPORT TOWARDS SETTING-UP OF
NAMRUP-IV PROJECT:

As the plants are facing ageing problem and they
have already surpassed their effective life, so if the
establishment of a new project is not immediately
expedited, serous interruption in urea production
may be resulted because of major failures of the
equipments and machineries. Still with the available
in-house resources, utmost efforts are being made
to continue to run the plants safely till the new
project is commissioned.

As per the Cabinet Approval, RFQ was floated on
28.01.2016 and RFP was floated on 17.06.2016.
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Two bidders viz. M/s Gujarat Fertilizers &
Chemicals Limited and M/s Adani Enterprises Ltd.
were pre-qualified, but none of them submitted
their financial bids in response to RFP As such,
the Two Stage bidding process approved by the
Union Cabinet could not be successful, as there
was no response from the Bidders for the Request
for Proposal.

In view of no response received in PPP mode
bidding, a meeting was held on 05.09.2016 at DoF
and it was inter-alia decided that a proposal should
be put up for setting up the new Ammonia-Urea
plant of BVFCL at Namrup (i.e. Namrup-IV) through
PSU route. A new initiative was taken by DoF
for setting-up of a 12.70 LMTPA NG based plant
through nomination route by forming a JV of CPSEs
and Govt. of Assam.

A high level meeting of all the stake holders of
the proposed Namrup-IV project was held on
21.01.2021 under the chairmanship of Hon’ble
Minister for Chemicals and Fertilizers and the
following distribution of equity for the project was
agreed.

Govt. of Assam 26%
NFL 28%
ol 18%
RCF 17%
BVFCL 11%

In view of the above, Department of Fertilizers had
advised CMD, NFL to prepare and submit the Techno
Economic Feasibility Report (TEFR) and detailed
demand for Viability Gap Funding (VGF) to make the
project successful so that the matter can be taken-
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15.

up by Department of Fertilizers for approval of the
Cabinet.

Accordingly, NFL has initiated the process of
updating the TEFR and submission of demand for
VGF.

RISK MANAGEMENT:

Your company had laid down Risk Management
Policy for Assessment & Minimization procedures to
be reviewed by the Board of Directors on quarterly
basis. The possible risks have been identified and
grouped under specific responsibility areas such as
Feed/Fuel, Plant Operation & Maintenance, Utilities,
Environment Regulatory, Business Competition,
Market, Finance, Human Resources, Project
Management, Information Technology, Legal and
Internal Control.

ENVIRONMENT & SAFETY MANAGEMENT:

I BVFCL Namrup is committed to work for
the protection of environment and it is
adhering to all the relevant and applicable
laws/rules/ standards etc. viz. The Water
(Prevention & Control of Pollution) Act
1974, Air (Prevention & Control of Pollution)
Act 1981, Environment Protection Act
1986, Public Liability Insurance Act 1991,
Batteries (Management & Handling) Rules
2001 etc. All the returns/reports etc., which
are required to be submitted as per various
laws/rules/govt. orders are submitted
regularly in time. Consent to Operate is
renewed by the Pollution Control Board,
Assam regularly as per Water Act and Air
Act. A policy of Rs.15.00 crores under Public
Liability Insurance Act 1991 has been taken
to give insurance coverage to the nearby
people, in case of disaster.
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i All safety norms are strictly followed in BVFCL.
Personnel Protective Equipments (PPE) is
periodically issued to employees and health
check-ups are also carried out. All jobs are
executed as per safety norms. BVFCL is also
having a well equipped Fire Brigade, which is
capable of meeting all regular need. As per
Mutual Aid Scheme with the neighboring
industries in Dibrugarh and Tinsukia district,
external assistance is also available in case
of any disaster.

i.  Liquid ammonia is stored in two Horton
Spheres of 1500 MT capacity each which
are covered by Petroleum Explosives &
Safety Organization (PESO) licence under
Static and Mobile Pressure (Unfired) Rules
2016.

iv.  External Safety Audit for the year 2019-
20 has been successfully conducted. Hazop
Study was done for the first time along with
Risk Assessment Report by engaging the
external Consultant, which conducted the
Safety Audit. Also the On-site Emergency
Plan was updated by the Consultant, as on
01.01.2020.

PLASTIC WASTE MANAGEMENT RULES, 2016

The Ministry of Environment Forests and Climate
Change (MoEF & CC), Government of India, vide
gazette Notification dated 18.03.2016 has
specified rules for Plastic Waste Management.
The Rules fix the responsibility of local bodies,
Gram Panchayat and Waste generators, as well
as producers, importers and brand owners for
collection and management of plastic waste.
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SIRP ITE Hifd Red oI Sferal § faspa
fry Sd € SdRe ST gis Aferd! &1 S
H 37T & S IgRRIA B & AR Ulelimrgeld
A 9 IS /UASUs | 99 8 § | SAferg,
Il & AR, IR H IATRT BT UL HRA
qrel 41 FTS ATfeTd] dI MU ITET & BRI
ST~ WREh HIR DI d9T §hgT B D
forT T WoTrell AT AISTAT AT HRAT BRI |

Ifh garR &, uiad § e @ik f9gR @ &
AL H g1 d&r | @) fdgei & Aem 9
SRE T 9 I & R A gRT SHa
IS IS & HSRY & oIy 3 IR ITANT fabar
ST RET B, 39 S & U8 ARG w4 A
3RFa B | g I 1M qut Idve e WR AN
B § Sl Sth SIRRLEAT & U H HiSTg
TEE B W% &, f Bidagor waifie sife
SfUSAT (THTSMS) o Ik IeRT Bl BT & folg
NG fIURT & A9 W THANS UG 3R IRT &
A1l HHAT SSRIT ® |

17. U Q@ IFET IR ER:

o USHI <El & gRAT &1 i & fay
HYTIAT |

e WAl IR fIuiel
fafaefa=or &1 FyTa=T |

° I PN IEl # fAfderevor |

. TS 919 Wics URITSTAT BT IATYAT |

DY D oI RIH:

o I YR T Ul fSel e
gUd 3R IATEH oTd 6 © I ufoege’ |

Sdred & foru

11.

)

ii)

Fertilizer industry falls under the category of brand
owners as the fertilizer products are sold in plastic
bags that are multi-layered and composed of HDPE/
HDPE lined with polypropylene. Hence as per rules,
all the Brand Owners who introduce the products
in the market have to establish a system or plan for
collecting back the plastic waste generated due to
their products.

Since fertilizer bags are sold through a large
number of sales points in every nook and corner
of the North Eastern Region, West Bengal, and
Bihar and are being used multiple times by the
farmers for storage of their produce etc, collection
of these bags is practically impossible. Since these
rules apply to the complete fertilizer industry
which is finding difficulty in complying with the said
notification, Fertilizer Association of India (FAI) took
up the matter with MoEF & CC through DoF for
exemption of fertilizer industry.

KEY OPPORTUNITIES AND THREATS :
The Opportunities to the company:

. Scope for exporting of urea to neighbouring
states.

. Scope for diversification to produce chemicals
and generation of power.

. Diversification into  other

products.

agricultural

. Setting up new brown field project
The Threats to the company:
. Competition from other urea manufacturing

companies having lower Energy consumption
and lower cost of production.
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i)

RIS ax R rpfares 7 BT YLt B
T G B AT |

[ g # & & BRT Yol e 3
B |

ST Bl I NI 3R F—gagridr
H BRI HY-I BT 8 BT |

IIF T B forv SRR &) rAfdd
B |

F[IA U4 AT AFILIRE BT T DS
A &F & SUHH H AMhNT gTRsIfAew
& T RITAR e |

AlG[ET |IF @ g AU 99 3MBR B
IRIATSHT BT AT § faerm |

oRp SR HASR] -
BT Bl AR

1)

i)

i)

iv)

v)

vi)

IRA ARBR §R ARGRIT o W) IuaT]
THITH WTpfre T | B Wi 3R 3o
B APl ATLIHAT YR BT S & B |
SPIE WIS/ Wpfad 39 & Ad &
forpe Rera 2|

I ghrgal @ 991 felt Thrae aomn
SV Al ShTsAl § ST NI HIth! HH

g

3R fI8R % oA IRAT ITEH HUA
2 SRl i Ml 40 TR H. < qAH B
3Mgfet @ w2 |

RA & JaioR oAl & qrex Rerd o
HUTAT DI AT § JRAT gRTST FRIerd
e Rerfay |

PRI YIHfdd 9 &I gRIed and
BHI |

Uncertainty of continuation of supply of
Natural Gas at a concessional rate.

Shortage of capital investment due to paucity
in fund generation.

Closure of the company due to high cost of
production & un-viability.

Acute shortage of manpower to run the
plants.

Continuous attrition of qualified and
experienced manpower to other CPSUs
offering attractive remuneration.

Delay in establishing a new bigger size project
replacing the existing one.

Strength and Weakness:

The strengths of the company:

1)

i)

iv)

v)

vi)

Entire requirement of feedstock and fuel is
being met from APM Natural Gas available at
Gol notified price.

The unit is close to the source of Feed/ Fuel
NG.

Lower absolute cost of production in the
units if run without interruption.

It is the only urea producing company in the
entire Assam, North-Eastern States, West
Bengal and Bihar where still there is shortfall
to the extent of 40 Lakh MT exists.

Transportation advantage for supply of Urea
compared to other companies situated
outside North-Eastern states of India.

Lower transportation cost of the natural gas
because of location of Namrup plants near to
the gas wells.
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18.

vii)

3T S gAa: e wU ¥ fUweT &
2 3 JarR Il H ISR &1 geued
3R el FoTd BT |

DY P HASIN:

1)
il

i)

iv)

v)

vi)

vii)

T i fre @ o A9 2

AP A ANMBR S AAH DI oIl
BICT & dl & A |

THHIRTETS MR TauhuIver J faxmed
el QRIET Soll sree Wi |

A Bl afeia amyg A |

I B PBRY ARG goll B
FererdT |

B AR YRIfET SRR BT Sruererd |
BT STLIRh DI AcAD BT |

a1 urenfrer S+ iR §—emad

)

A= denfrer =4

T 99 & SR, MUs fH A
Y TS 3R IMNgd &e Jomell H
JRIMICEH SURTT JuTTell T AL B Bl
Ugdl B 2, Sl W R 2| 9Fd HAaeE
YEE YUMTell & i, Aioar O
oRGT YoTell 3R Id- Uald Wee JOlell
BT I R R g 81 2| e #
JNBHTRAT & Feid1 RAC BT Aferrs
WA B U Th WU R @ TS R
Dol IRWR IR SIAUHHIVS SR
D Jex & WM W GRS FAIRET
gomenl g @ g ' fifumiva
Aff e # RIS AR gomedt
P RO ufhar § g1 emue g H
ASHAA ITHH BT SYANT HRD DBIARS
Sl AaT =TS S W& 2 | U I &
Jeqm,  Rorad fafis arierad w150
AT H oiios g sevic GioeT & e

iv)

18.

vii)

Direct and indirect generation of employment
in the states of Assam & other North-
Eastern states, which are predominantly
economically backward.

The Weakness of the company:

i)
i)

i)

iv)

V)

vi)

vii)

Not connected to the National Gas Grid.

Small capacity of the plants compared to
modern standard size plant.

Old energy inefficient technology inherited
from FCIL and HFCL.

Old age of the plants.

Non-availability — of  spares due to

obsolescence.
Non-availability of skilled & trained manpower.

Acute shortage of skilled manpower

IT UPGRADATION AND E-GOVERNANCE

)]

IT UPGRADATION

During the vyear under review, vyour
corporation has implemented Web based
Video Conferencing Solution, Biometric
Attendance System in the Namrup unit.
CCTV Surveillance System has been installed
in the main locations inside the factory
campus and BVFCL Hospital. Installation of
CCTV Surveillance System in BVFCL Guest
House is in process. Your Corporation has
a corporate email service using Rediffmail
platform. A Local Area Network covering
150 work stations at different location is
in position along with leased line internet
facility through managed firewall. Email
space has been upgraded from 200 MB to
25GB. E-payments are being made to all
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SUART FRY Y 2| SHA BRI BT 200
THE ¥ 25 SNl O s fhar mar B
31 f*H & T TR Pl S—IIe
far < 3|1 71 uEdl @ e s
TG BT R AR & oy fquor 3iR fa
Tt & reiv 79 oS TE 2
N SEAw

BRI B PIerd MR I & wWR Bl
I B B ol §—aAfHT B AR foman
AT B

39 AT &1 ITANT AFE fIeradmall aret
qAT 500 oG TUY A IMAH oI &
R—afia arell Qe Wi & &
fog semar o g1 @ Afaed emuw
7 @1 nfieIRe dedrse www.bvfcl.
com 3R W ufeddd MRIRAE dide R
AU B Il B | IRBNI S—HD T
o (GeM) & ARIH | @RIg Bl ST
fpar o &1 ' emuat A @ A9
ATSC BT JATT SFHRI & A1 FHY
Gl T 7| RRRAT/gEG du @t
JeTSe IR UK HRIN FaT & uied
H g {6y 91 7 | SMfdeTiRe feaex
IR BHIH ABISC P T SIHBNI
@ AT gV QT ST V&l ® | IRt
BT MY DI 3R FH B TR BT S
B B forg s—afT ufsear & 21 erw
¥ Wil U v Ui A b
forg 99 dicar (https://eodb.assam.gov.in/)
T X SUIRT fhar S Vel ¥ |

Clkill

F T w4 W G § | AdtTs
AR, 1991 & Wl B A muferd
AR 3MUa f*TH =1 BT 3MUST B @1 Rerfay
H AU & B AN BT S haRST o b
forg 15 FRIe BUY &I Y Uiferdl ofl 7 |

19.

the stakeholders of Your Corporation. POS
machines have been installed in Marketing
and Finance Departments to cater digital
transactions with the customers.

i)  E-GOVERNANCE

E learning for officials to upgrade their skill &
knowledge level has been implemented.

E-procurement ~ has  already  been
implemented in your corporation for high
value transactions. The use of this facility
has been extended to include non proprietary
items having standard specifications and
of value higher than Rs. 5.00 Lakhs. All
tenders are uploaded in your Corporation’s
official website at www.bvfcl.com & Central
Public Procurement Portal. Procurement
through Government e-Marketing place
(GeM) is being utilized. Your Corporation’s
web site is maintained with updated
information. Vacancies/Notices are published
in the company’s website and the portal of
National Career Service. Official Twitter and
Facebook account are being maintained with
updated information. The web portal ease of
doing in Assam (https://eodb.assam.gov.in/)
is being utilized for obtaining all statutory
certificates.

INSURANCE

The properties and insurable assets of your
corporation such as Plant & Machineries, Building
Stocks and others are adequately insured. As
required under the provisions of Public Insurance
Act, 1991, Your Corporation has taken a policy of
Rs. 15 crores to give insurance coverage to the
peoples of adjoining areas, in case of any disaster.
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21.

YT BICATSOR HIFcTad Bl FRefT Bl TR
DL NS GRem I (NATSTACE) GIRT Y
ST @ 8 3R N $T ISR H, H1auiid
9el H GREM USRGR] & ARI—ART J0d Bl T
B R JScAN 7ol R Toidl T &
S E B | N @R & /TRl # wifd a9y
G- & foIU ATHReT TSR # 3R S IRTIT
Adddl Y@ & oy Wi gfer ariiexor &
Teh R0 T A8 Y& &R <&l & | dduhige
haey] URTR B HYUl GRem yumell & FHlel
B B foru, WMSTATH  gbls HHISX B AT
FII—FTT TR GRe 95& SmAIfod &1 il @
3R IfT I gRT BT A rraegarar / gaerdl
DI ool fbar S € ar e & 89 WR e
frar ST 21 veee, gRem dHaRl SR Mud
i & SHea FRI—aHY R @) gRe
A dmsll @ ufd HaaTeid & B |

I H NATHHTT HREET & H 9 &
forg Alemsuaus AT & wiga E=T 176
2| Bifh, 39 9¥ HRmSuavEs WReRY &R
SATHHANS yeed & AT T H WIsMsuay®
HET B Rh BT G qouied & foy Ggw
PRAE DI TS B olfbd, HSMSUATH J&
PRI, T3 facell A 99 gRT S M9 &l
3T Joaia aIRh 3@ T T T8 3T B |

XIS 37T, ATSCHR GREM Toikdl & H1egH 37 28
(375189 &b 3R 3 () wdersd &1 Fgih &
AT ¥ SIAUHHAITE SSARM # 24x7 8¢ & foy
F[e 31(FIN) ol GReH! AT g Y 2 |
Igsdl |ier

3Mue FATH < 37Ul NG Wfhar § URGRIT,
FeaferesT, fAwerar iR fcued o ggM & fory
IRGSAT Wfer (SMSH) BT A far & | adwe H,
3m® R H SHarg Fddhar SMART (AR &1
RreRell . 1 Wdd 9 aRdleTd (SmEsuH)
g fy U 2, S Te aRie BUY QiR S
ed Jou & | FfdSmel # srdedT |
(@MEW) & BraTaId P R BRI B |

21.

SECURITY

The security of the Namrup Fertilizer Complex is
being monitored by the CISF and in Corporation’s
township, the security guarding in Public Buildings
as well as night patrolling are being monitored by the
outsourced private security Agency. Corporation
is providing a night patrolling van to local police
Authority to keep vigil in and around the Namrup
Township for maintenance of peace and tranquility
in entire area/township. In order to review the
entire security system of BVFCL Factory premises,
Security meeting is organized from time to time
with CISF Unit Commander and the requirement/
infirmity if any highlighted by them are immediately
addressed. The management, security staff and
the employees of your corporation are sensitized
periodically to the security needs of corporation.

At present the sanctioned strength of CISF
personnel for deployment in BVFCL factory area
is 176. However, joint survey has been carried
out in this year with CISF Authority and BVFCL
management to reassess the strength of CISF
personnel in the corporation. But, final evaluated
strength to this effect yet obtain by the corporation
from CISF head quarters, New Delhi.

Moreover, with the engagement of 28 nos.
of Guards and 3 nos. Supervisors all total 31
nos. Private Security personnel are deployed in
entire BVFCL township are on 24%7 hrs. through
outsource security agency.

INTEGRITY PACT

Your Corporation has implemented Integrity Pact
(IP) in all the Procurement of Goods and Services
having threshold value of Rs. 1.00 Crores and above
after obtaining approval of Board of Directors.
Further, the Integrity Pact clause is invariably
incorporated in all the Tenders having value more
than Rs. One Crore and above.
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22, ST 9001 3R 14001 SRIOT UF &t 22. STATUS OF ISO 9001 & 14001 CERTIFICATE

23.

Rerfar
HUHI D GEY Gfad IR iR eIl &

FIF A8 H PRI

ST 9001:2015 3R 14001:2015 o foTv YHTOH
JAUEATET & AmwI—ll 9 |9 Al iR
A Har fRT # A fhar 7 @7 ® | ugeln
R ol ORI STFER), 2020 B HeM H
AHAdYdd AT AT 1T | g1 AR
ST URIET BRaY], 2021 & He H AhAdYdd
AT B T8 | oIl WiEm Bl iAo
3R 3MaTTH XSl BT STANT HRD AffSAT
3R NS BfaT & AT A BIfAS—19 AZHRY
B R & SR T wU A fHAT 14T o
T ol 99 Reaw e ursde fafies, =3
facell YA STh & HAEIH | 9ol U 9 |
JMSTH3N 9001:2015 3R IMSTHIN 14001:2015
@ YHIT UF 17 /01 /2019 B U ARG 9
T g3 2, ST 16,/01 /2022 dF q¢T T |
iafRe® fa=vT gomref:

PUAT H IMARD oI IR IR i veers
THetrel gRT AT fa<y ofk o & Hdfa
g3 § gat NidRe I JoTel § | oiid
H OaRTR N & WR 9 d8dR g9 ddb
ST8T ISP ISR Bl Sird @1 ol 8 3R o1fe
IR & IR Had aRkss Afem1Ral
g1 ufd R feu od €1 2ffe The 98
HTAT Y 1 B ARBIT SR TR HIfId TorHT
P S B SR WIar W D! STid By S
21 3 vpR, 9l § @rdl B THI—-aTg R
e foar oaT 1 oRgied @ foru eniaRe
forg=ror gorent Y srgATe o 7, g Jidefd
TUlTell § &1 fhU Y Sl arseR Afed arser]

Implementation in Namrup-Ill Group of Plants and
Common Services Departments of BVFCL:

The Certification for ISO 9001:2015 and
14001:2015 are being implemented in Namrup-IIl
group of plants and common services Departments
of BVFCL. First Surveillance Audit was successfully
conducted in the month of January, 2020. Second
Surveillance Audit was successfully conducted in
the month of February, 2021. The Audit was done
remotely due to COVID 19 pandemic situation
through Audio & Video calls using online tools plus
required documents were sent through post.
Certification Agency: M/s SWISS CERT PRIVATE
LIMITED, New Delhi.

Certificates for 1SO 9001:2015 and 1SO
14001:2015 were obtained w.e.f. 17/01/2019,
which is valid till 16/01/2022.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM:

The Company has adequate internal control
system in the respective areas of Finance &
Accounts supported by Internal Audit and regular
management reviews. In the accounting, internal
control is exercised right from the preparation
of vouchers where each voucher is checked and
countersigned by respective senior officers as per
delegation of power. The daily cashbook balance
on manual basis is physically counted and checked
with the book. Similarly, all bank accounts are also
reconciled periodically. Internal control is also
exercised for accounting where vouchers including
journal vouchers entered into the system are
checked and validated before those are accounted
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BT SHTHROT A Y ST AR JLHROT T ST
2| g1 Gl TP WIS/ BRI B g AT
I YIS Bl YW H g MR HrRifaf
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W FHIET B W ' R YUR TG HRATS
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ToiRl gRT fharr SiraT 2 | AR oiar ulerr §
el / Rpfe / drifaftal & Sig & ST
g 3R arqured & fay smafe Rad gwgd
P S B | IMARD oI weie Rurd ik $9
WR P T3 A BRATs B ARG WU A
o wWer | & 9 uga fear S
2| e wfafa fafia w9 9 eraR®
TRGTORIETT SR SffaRe =0T &1 qafwqar &1
T Rl B o b oidRe oRar ket
B R FUH B R @ WeTdl gRT
Raré fear 1 2 & adae e AifedR
H affaRe =0T gomell o S 3R Ader,
S 5 wraTe M R IMETRd 8, B ST
H yaferd FdEaH AGTHRY ATedR & AT
JEABR HOId B Dl ATIIHAT 2 |

A9 gareq faer
®.  orerke Rerfa:

31 A/ 2021 DI AUD FH H G SRR
499 off | WRPRI FegaR Iggfaa S/
I SAa /3 fUger @l /qayd
Afe IR IIR®d U | fawarT ot @
3Rl fear o Rer & | i 31.03.2021 &1
STerh Rerfer AR ot

24,

for. Every proposal for purchase/works contract or
others having monetary involvement are examined
as per policy and procedures and reviewed by a
committee before taking appropriate decision.
Internal Control System includes compliance of
all the applicable laws, safety of assets of the
company and risk management. The System is
reviewed from time to time and action taken for
improvement. Internal Audit is conducted by the
outside qualified agency supported by the Finance
& Accounts Department. Internal Audit examines
documents / records / procedures and submits
periodical reports for compliance. The Internal
Audit Reports and follow up actions thereon are
regularly placed before the Audit Committee. Audit
Committee regularly reviews the internal audit
and adequacy of internal control. As reported
by the Internal Audit Firm and the Statutory
Auditors of the Company that the check and
balance of internal control system in the present
accounting software, which is based on the
COBOL Programming , needs to be strengthened
by replacing the same with the latest accounting
software prevailed in the Industry.

HUMAN RESOURCE DEVELOPMENT
A. MANPOWER POSITION:

The total manpower status in your corporation
as on 31st March 2021 was 499. Reservation
of SC/ST/OBC/Ex- Serviceman and Physically
handicapped categories in the service are being
maintained as per the government directives. The
manpower position as on 31.03.2021 was as
under: -
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fa<ha ad 2020—21 & <ivE ulreor Rare
@ Rad

PIfds MEMN & TR IR SHd 9% D
dfpersd iR FulRfad &R & HRUT, 95—
B9 BRI AT & AR AT T8I
fg ST |® | 31 #2021 B FATT B ATl
q4 & SR UREr 9T § dad o1 (Td)
ST—8TSY WRMETUT BRIhH ST fhar 13T |

EIG] GEl T % Sl. No. | Categories Nos. %
1 rgqfaa S 42 8.42 1 Scheduled Caste 42 8.42
2 SR ESRCE NI 66| 13.23 2 Scheduled Tribe 66| 13.23
3 g st @it 159 | 31.86 3 0BC 159 | 31.86
4 G GPCEIRED 0 0.00 4 Ex- Servicemen 0 0.00
5 IMIRF ©T T BT 1 0.20 ) Physically handicapped 1 0.20
6 BRIy 34 6.81 6 Women 34 6.81
7 I REEIG 27 5.41 7 Minarity 27 5.41
8 3 170 34.07 8 Others 170 | 34.07
E| 439 100 TOTAL 499 100

g ufe B.  TRAINING :

A report of the Training Records during the FY
2020-21

Due to the spread of COVID pandemic and
subsequent lockdown and collateral reasons, in-
house programmes could not be conducted as
planned. During the year ending on 31st March’
2021, only 01 (one) in-house training programmes
could be conducted at Training Department. Brief

BRIHH BT Wfered fdaror g fear w2 details of the programme is stated as below :
1. d9dIgd yfRrerer i External Training Programmes
- ez X v Sl. | Title of the | Level & No. of | Date Faculty
. yfowrlt & ..
. No. | programme | participants
e
TR =33 |26.02.21 | sriafRa: 1 |Safety Officers = 33 |26.02.21 | Internal:
ST T, HHARI=09 Srfier Awareness, |Workmen= 09 Fire &
CIEENEE 3R e Fire Fighting safety
3R urerfas quTT, & First Aid Deptt,
fafeear b Medical
famT Deptt
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df§9R: 9¥ & SRE HHaRAT 3 03 afdqr § wrr Webinars: During the year employees attended 03
forar e faarer S fear T @

5. fawa Ireie | s@fyr | afawrh
3|
1 |dTeTEs TG 24 wr |02
Icpredl & forg | UferT ok |25 Jarg
AT FRIHBROT | I SRR, | 2020
3 faee |
2 |9 oW g AR 21 wd |07
2020 R HRIAE | FTHIUNS 22 TG
a5 2021
3 |wdwife wle, | g@ed 19 4d 20 |02
WG, TR TR 3R | HRAR
TR (SQH) | IR IR | 2021
SIEEISY
8 faeell

g—offiT: fIquedivad ydue 9 gafd & |
HHAIRAT & 41 §—aA1T B UATed e & oy
T UishAT Yo DI | TGIAR 03 (F19) HHART g—al]

webinars as detailed below :

Sl. Title Organised by | Duration No. of
No. participating
officers
1 Women Integrated 24th & 02
Empowerment Training 25th July
for Organisational | & Policy 2020
Excellence’ Research, New
Delhi.
2 Workshop on New | Bloomasia 21822 |01
Labour Codes 2020 | Incorporate, January
Mumbai 2021
3 Public Integrated 19th & 02
Procurement, Training 20th
Procurement, & Policy February
Govt. Research 2021
Marketplace (GeM) | (ITPR) New
Delhi

E-learning : BVFCL management initiated a process for
encouraging e-learning amongst the employees on the
relevant fields. Accordingly the 03 (three) employees

urgHAl H R 9% gu succeeded in e-learning courses as below :
%. 9. | fqug CIRISED 3rafer Sl. No. | Title Organised by | Duration
01 IS GReT | TUesud, | RdeR ¥ 01 Chemical Process | NPTEL, IIT, Sep-Dec,
ufepar JATSIMEST fagar, 2020 Safety Roorkee 2020 (12
SSeEdl (12 FwTR) weeks)
a8 ufdrerer srfsH External training programmes :
& s R R\ RS 3 T aafr | gframh Sl. Title Organised Venue Duration No. of
q.' No. by partic-
Z ipating
1 g Jiogs =3 | vugdiang, | 04.03.2021 02 officers
wfreror feeel Ry (t)% 03,0001 1 | Advance Centre for | AAETI, Tijara | 04.03.2021 | 02
Tad ® TR e Training s Science | (Rajasthan). | to
TR Programme | and 06.03.2021
on Environment
S Continuous | (CSE), New
3R a8 Emission and | Delhi
R Effluent
oIy Monitoring
5 ; System
2 Brathr 22/03/21 to 02
RN 25/03/21 2 |[Buiding | Department | Shilong, | 22/03/21t0 | 02
Eal competencies | of Meghalaya |25/03/21
afpTd of personal | Public
el excellence Enterprises
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itenfire gder Raie:

Yy & SR A Hae aRged qel A
STifergut o |

Iqygfaa wnfl (@), sgyfua
Sorfol (31, &, ©In), =g fuss aif (3.
.H) dor RS wu A faweni (de=)
@ dedarl 3MX faem & fau suh o)
wfafaferat

MUBT FH 9IRG WRPR gRI FHI—HHY
WR SR S Sfaal (1S, S
STASfeRl (S1S1.ST), o fUss aif (i)
P IIRETT W Hafg wgufad & feemfader
R 9 /3meel BT el R BT 2 | DUl
H e O RR6 U W e &1 & forg
I Sl iR ST SNl &
3T BT fTIe Yoob Dbl YIar § T IRE
A ge &l g B | BTellfd, ST UlhAT Yob DI

HIAl XAl 2ldl =

Iqmue M H wWe APER & AT Tdh
IS, /SIS /3NA UbIS 8, ST 31T/
315151, YT ¥ eferd HenRaAl ol Rrebrdi
BT WARBAT & IR TR dAT NS, /AT,
ST, GAIRIgeE & A1 9al dRad Rrerad &l
T B U Sg9des dNdals Hedl ¢ |

3 FATH ¥ T HeaToT GIAETY 3= HHaTRAT
AT AT /A G B HHANRAT Bl
T Ua™ & ST € | 89N BU Bl IR IRBR
H SO SY—AIST & g A &1 Brg
JTded U Fel BT |

01.01.2021 BT 31, ST, /1. T 9T, 3R Y fuvs
T BT fafAfeied B HRA dTaT arfie faaror
uiRa urey & T9iam a7 € 9O U doiex

Iy 3fd 2020 & IR @ T8 FRIRRAT B
AT e dh—1 () H Here T

INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS REPORT:

The Industrial Relations Scenario during the year
was by and large peaceful.

ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY FOR WELFARE AND
ADVANCEMENT OF SCHEDULED CASTES (SCs),
SCHEDULED TRIBES (STs), OTHER BACKWARD
CLASSES (0BCs) AND PHYSICALLY HANDICAPPED
(PH).

Your corporation is following the presidential
directive and guidelines/ orders issued by the
Government of India from time to time in the
matter of reservation in services for SCs, STs
and OBCs. Candidates belonging to SC and ST are
fully exempted from payment of fee while applying
for any post in the Company. However, they are
required to pay processing fees.

Your corporation is having one SC/ST/0BC
Cell under the Liaison Officer, who initiates
necessary action to settle the grievances of
the employees belonging to SC/ST community
on priority basis and in consultation with SC/ST
Associations.

All the welfare facilities of your corporation are also
extended to the employees of SC/ST community
along with other employees. Our company do not
received any allocation of fund under tribal sub-plan
from the Govt. of India.

The Annual statement in the prescribed format
showing the representation of SCs, STs and OBCs
as on 1.01.2021 and Number of appointments
made during the preceding calendar year i.e. 2020
is enclosed at Annexure — 1(C).
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26.

Hifd (Taews) amaen, 2012

fcir a9 2020—21 H, 9RT PR, JeA, oY
3R AH QT HATGI & e 23 AIE, 2012
(T M) & IMew IR 3MUd i A
GeH, Y IR AH Ml gRT ScTfad Scaral
3R Hamsll BT o dlfbe TG & JAdq 25%
& AT ATUGE & Dol 39.45% Th FHY
e fHar 2| 39 I, Bhad qd W
A 9IER AT ST/ SR STl &
SufRl & @i drel e iR oY Sgaw
A AT R HaRIl B WE B e Ba
GRIE Bl 1.35% oAT| a4 & TR, 30U H
9 ®ad Al STEl b WIAE H I geH
3R g TEM A 1.50% IcUTGl 3R Hawsil o
WRIE BRI &1 & | 9 ffder sHEor et
(TTRMEET) H TAUHS & foly o] BT TR TRER
® feen—Fcwl &1 ool $Rd §U IMMaeTH
grauE fear T €1 THeHUHE W WNIE B
fou ffde axgell @1 wRied & forg 9
T fHU ST %2 €| S HUAl THTHAUHS
uiféal @1 fadll 4 e @ gaar gad B
% oI IoMEREr iR TAuds & Rded
TRTIS T ST s (IRuaIasye) &
RIRSIYT #a & 1T Uofigd 2 |

LGEEI

DO D FADAT YANT B AJd & Al
3T (ATl BRa & SR Ardialr Bl busl
S FdDAT AAPIRIT B U EH §RT FSHIA
Waﬁaﬁﬁi‘lmaﬁ?ﬁwasrﬁww
TV gd gy Fafa ek Mare adedl
ffafe S RAd ST, uesId i
& oIy Fasdr HsRI, RIEERe FIfd $I AR]
BRAT SR HaeTed gal W ARBINGT B
RCeTE oAl TR 1 i f&ar w1 |
YU GoR WR &I dfad dRd D oY
1 FRET 3R |HieT 31 S 38 B |

PUBLIC PROCUREMENT POLICY OF MICRO AND
SMALL ENTERPRISES (MSES) ORDER, 2012

As per this directive of Government of India, Ministry
of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises, vide order
dated 23rd March, 2012 (as amended), your
corporation has achieved an overall procurement
of products produced and services rendered by
Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises to the
extent of 39.45% against set amended parameter
of minimum of 25% of total annual purchases in
the financial year 2020-21.Moreover, percentage
of procurement of Goods and Services only from
MSEs owned by SC/ST entrepreneurs out of total
procurement was 1.35%. During the year, your
corporation has achieved overall procurement of
products and services rendered by MSE owned by
Women Enterprises only of 1.59%. In all Notice
Inviting Tenders (NIT) necessary provision has
been made stating the Government Guidelines for
relaxation applicable to MSEs. All efforts are being
made to procure items specified for procurement
from MSMEs. Your Company is registered with
TReDS platform of Receivable Exchange of India
Limited (RXIL), a joint venture by SIDBI and NSE
for providing bills discounting facilities to MSME
Parties.

VIGILANCE

Vigilance Division of the Company is headed by Chief
Vigilance Officer (CVO) and the CVO is assisted by a
team of Vigilance officers of the Company. Regular
and preventive vigilance activities such as surprise
checks, vigilance clearance for administrative
decisions, enforcement of transfer policy and
rotation of officers on sensitive posts was carried
out by maintaining close coordination with the
Management. The roles and responsibilities of
vigilance officers are being monitored and reviewed
to bring the focus on systemic improvement.
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HHARAT & 919 Sod WR DI S THHAl g9
IEq & for Sfa SR o &1 2 1 Sfd adaar
TFRTeTor U= o’ @ forg fafr=T ufdreror et
H Adddl HHEAT BT 9D 4 AR DI Bl
AT B ® fIU AW ST &1 & difb S=
IUAT WR W AT S | AR IOrEdl Bl

N N

Rl B IRIER AR fbar S A |

faf= |ral 9 ura Rreradl @ S IR fUsd
ST ATl W dfdd f[9riia dRars a1 srgadi
PHRATS A YR TURAT B A1 Bl TS o |

06 (B8) Rrerad, (03 SIBMTE & A AR dqTDH
03 GUEHHTA & 1) et af I 2019 —
20 W AN A8 7%; 02 (]1) Rrerd, e 9
FUT I AR g TRE @1 Rravrad A=A dica
A AAISH HRATS & oy AR A Riwrd
Ty 2020—2021 & IR 3 AT A 91 gs off
3R g2 o & foru foram am o | 39 08 (31M9)
Rrerdl /Amal 3 9, 04 (AR) AW R & gD
g 3R d5 /fued & fow faur fear war g;
SIRTG BT WY T8 o RUIE & IR R Th
IR SMABRT & RIATh JATAAHD BRATS
E DI S B | TP T AW H, Gl 7 T8
W9 & 918 JEMEAIHD BRATS d [olY T
IS FRIUAS A Faoa g Rue udgq
DI URId DI S dfdd | T 02 (]1) AR
[e WIPRI, SRS [T & ol & forg
GIECR

S AATdT, Al bl FUNT &l el oI a2y
MR TR AR §RT O TR A i &I T3
of 3R wWienm RUIE & AER W, T s R
& BN & RIelT® FTTIATHS HRATS o
@ TS o O I W B

99 & SR, Adbdl B ST BT AASH 3R
I A & IR H fera e b SR 9
Addbal JHRAT IR A UeIdhl & 99
AT SR IR a1 &1 IS b 13T |

Due thrust was given to maintain high degree
of awareness amongst the employees. In order
to impart proper vigilance training vigilance
functionaries are being sent at different training
institutes for updating their knowledge and skill to
bring them in a requisite level and to develop the
quality at par the others.

Investigation of complaints received from various
sources and follow up of pending departmental
action on previous investigated cases was also
done with due diligence.

06 (Six) complaints, (03 with DoF and rest 03 with
BVFCL) were brought forward from the last year
i.e. 2019 — 20; 02 (Two) complaints, one from
Insurance Company and similar complaint from CVC
portal for necessary action and another complaint
was received from other source during the year
2020 — 2021 and these were taken up for
investigation. Out of these 08 (Eight) complaints/
cases, 04 (Four) cases have been completed &
considered for closure/disposed off; based on
the Inquiry report submitted to DOF, disciplinary
proceedings has been initiated against a senior
officer. In another case, after thorough inquiry CVO
submitted the investigation report pertaining to one
senior executive to Management for disciplinary
action which is pending. Rest 02 (Two) cases are
pending for decision of Competent Authority i.e.
DoF.

Moreover, two issues forwarded to vigilance were
thoroughly examined by CVO on special ground and
based on the examination report, disciplinary action
against one Board level officer was initiated which
are in progress.

During the year, interactions were organized
between the vigilance functionaries and the
line managers on regular basis, with a view to
understand the role of vigilance and to educate
them on the policies.
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Iy 2019 @ "HiQw AMNHIRAT & Fgad gl
ailer @ TS SR ¥ 2020 @ fog AT g
IR BT T3 IR Fuge! IR GiGes, TR
PRIE® 21, JaTerel, o H & WRIHe 9 |HI
R i wU e = iR Eag srawRal
W B! ToR G S R 2| Y 2020 B U
FEAT A IR " qEIERT & ATHTRAT
D G B UH U DA FADAT SMAT
IR IRE IHRT BT IADB! AT AR AN B
3MaTId: HRATS B oIy IR &I 718 7 |

Tl 3R 3rael Uil W Uiy Red (BR <re
20% WUy Rew) AfeaRal @1 agfes wu
A S B 7 I8 © il g8 gAEd fean
ST 9% 6 HHaRNT 9 /3M@d oFed & R
H yded @ 999 R IFGRI <d & IR g
Sie @ o b 31 AAfEer], Ry w5y |
39 AR /el Ual R ord, Ul |ufy
T €, O a3 & o Wi @ w9 A

JTUTARI ' ST Fehdll & |

IR GHRed R & ot IdRe® 39T /
Do qAddl AAN I W i B g

HRISARIOT R GR foam a1 |

Hu H Afdd fder &1 Al a9 @ forw
AR feenfacel & gurel H 27 SfdcER
H 2 FGR, 2020 TH AADAT TGl TS
T AT | FAhdT SITeddl a<de & U
T & ©U § HHaRAl & 4" e 3R
forder gfofirar & s far T | e
& AR el gdi & 91 AAATgT TR
gfaaiTar 3R URTeT 2re T8+ wforanfirdT &1 o
3o fopar 1T |

‘Agreed List of Suspected Officers’ and ‘List of
Officers of Doubtful Integrity’ for the year 2019
were reviewed & prepared both the list for the
year 2020 and finalized in time in consultation with
CMD and CBI, Anti-Corruption Branch, Guwahati,
Assam. and a close watch is being kept on the listed
officers. A copy of the “Agreed List” and ‘List of
Officers of Doubtful integrity’ for the year 2020
has been furnished to Central Vigilance Commission
and Department of Fertilizers for their information
& further necessary action.

Property returns on Movable and Immovable
property (20% of property returns every year)
of the officers is being scrutinized at random to
ensure that employees submit timely information
to the Management about moveable/immovable
transactions and to check whether any of the
officers, particularly those posted at senior/
sensitive positions, are holding assets which may
be termed as disproportionate to their known
source of income.

To ensure transparency, emphasis was made on
computerization of activities relating to award of
contracts, purchases, etc. in line with instructions
received from the Department of Fertilizers/Central
Vigilance Commission.

Vigilance Awareness Week was observed in the
Company w.e.f. 27th October to 2nd November,
2020 in compliance of CVC guidelines in order
to create an environment of ethical growth in
the Company. As a part of Vigilance Awareness
Week slogan and essay competition were held
among employees. During the observance,
online quiz competition and pencil shade drawing
competition were also organized among the
school children.
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27.

HAeT U (Hiuike  GEIfoI®

ITRGTRIE)

e T 9 dwHaRAl & forw fafis
HATITHRI ATSTATY TAT Y- BIURS ATHTTD
STREId & ®Y # 3Me Su fdhy & (8
fHeAMIeR & SRR & MU & &1l H) | RTawr
Jfera <@RT fore TeR 8

U HHATRAT 3R i & oIy a8k
fafec gRaaw o™ R & o,
HHATRAT TAT STSARM 3R AU & Tdi &
goat @ f Afdre GwTg Sueer  HRIT B |
JMYPT T TP IR AAHe [deme™, UTdh
B faenery, Ua el ST faemey (@Heh
A1) 3R U wifAe fAener el & 2
AMID T 9 Ul AH™Y Bletol BT AT,
Sz R & foy ud d1.Us dfeiol SiR Ay
H UH T NTITAT B AT & foly 3rg=r
TRV U fdhar o emys e 9 R
W W ARG &9 H S8 WS dRd Uh
SRR dielsl 3R Ud AT A faeimerd
B W AgE BT B

HHATRAT 3R e 3@l B fAfdhear giaemg
TeE PR @ U MY SudRvl |fltd d
AT Al SUSALT B | STEl MU & AR
AN 3R ST #if¥HDT Bl A AHAT Yob W

SUHIR IUcI] ORTAT O[] AE-\rl

JMIHT A TH AT 3R AU & &3 § ST
D YISl gfaurg, IR, g1 / Hipiae
IR 3 HRIAl & foly 4A 3R <ol
U], STHER, ISR fAFHT By iR AFTR®
el BT & forT fl S8 Ut oxa 2 |

ST H AHINIG—AIGiad Agrd a1y @
& fo, To—99g W U B dfee SR
ST AR &l A< FerIdT Uer &l ol
s

21.

WELFARE MEASURES
RESONSIBILITY)

(CORPORATE SOCIAL

Your Corporation undertakes various welfare
schemes for its employees and a host of measures
as its Corporate Social Responsibility limited to (the
surrounding areas within 8 kms radius). Briefly they
comprise of the following:

Besides extending housing and medical facilities to
its employees and dependents, your Corporation
also provides educational facilities to the children
of employees and the wards of the Township and
the nearby villages. Your corporation is running one
Higher Secondary School, one Kendriya Vidyalaya
and one Model Higher Secondary School (English
Medium) besides one Primary School and extended
its patronage earlier for establishment of Namrup
College, one B.Ed College for higher education and
establishment of a State Dispensary at Namrup.
Your Corporation also extends its helping hand to
a Junior College and one Assamese medium school,
by providing accommodations within the colony
area at concessional rate.

One hospital with modern equipments is available
to extend medical facilities to employees & their
dependents. Nearby people of the localities and
contract workers are also provided treatment at
nominal fee.

Your Corporation extends facilities to the public
of Namrup and adjoining areas like Drinking Water
Facilities, Market, Land for Religious / Cultural and
other institutions and accommodation for Telephone
Exchange, Post Office, Employment Exchange and
Civil Defense Office.

In order to maintain the total socio-cultural harmony
of the locality, time to time financial assistance are
extended to the nearby educational institutions and
other social organizations.
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o A |rfoTe gRem Aol o |idw
ST & fofY SN & ddel ToisTERA
DI g AT ST, A8 ARG geedT dHT
IS, FHg d9d foide 41 Iio, AfSder

TR SR SRIRT e o @ T

HHATRAT BT S AeIfOrd AT W B B
forv dicafed far Sirar 8, I8 AeIRhaxoT &l
TS & RSTI® gRT S8 BUAT H YaI=id & dRb
o ST H e §91aT ® iR Ty e € A
ST® T SR ATAILAN & R H GuR & |

D 3reral Bl A BN W SN—goy weurg
g Afgdl HHARAT & gaior faery & forw
SR Hed IO R A9y e faar < j&r & |

et A #, fArfaa amfore SRR &1
el FHIST Tl §HR M—IT & Al & W
&I G 2, IR S=° & F9I NG oAl ©
T & ITHT I 98 | 3R I oilaT wR
H GuR B 9 |

TNVEHITS B HHATRAT T2AT SHD AT AT
% oy IHI—9 R Y SIRRedhdl BRIHA
AW U, qAT FH pRITer, faeme o
ATASIG qa=1 § MYPHT HUAl DI Das] bel,
rgaTet 3R drdmiiee ifafer smer, ers+Rm
H 2P IR, Wel & A 3R AdId IS®
@ fhIR aear A B YReaTd & TS |

D ATE], BIfds T8RN | s+ & foIg,
THI—1T R Fefed uferaer gRT fReiRa
feer—fadet &1 9 &k Afhy wu | ure
BT D A, SIAIUHHITA ERT STRTEE]
AT, TUYT T8V, BIfde—19 I Hdfd IR,
IR BT UG i 4l JMMITH HeH I3Y

In addition to social security schemes like Provident
fund, Gratuity, Pension in the Corporation, the
Group Insurance Scheme of LIC in lieu of EDLI,
Group Personal Accident Insurance Scheme, Group
Savings Linked Insurance Scheme, Medi claim policy
and reimbursement Scheme are implemented for
the welfare of the employees.

Employees are encouraged to acquire higher
qualifications, an area of empowerment which would
enable them to go up the ladder in the company as
well improve their knowledge and confidence levels.

Moreover, without indulging any gender
discrimination, special attention are being paid
in taking the appropriate steps for all round
development of the female employees in the
corporation.

In your Corporation, Corporate Social Responsibility
means caring for the society, for the people around
us and contributing in every way possible to add
value and improving their quality of life.

In this connection, under “Swachh Bharat Abhiyan”,
some awareness programme have been undertaken
from time to time for the employees of BVFCL as
well as the residents of its locality and cleanliness
drive has been initiated at all offices, public buildings
like school, factory canteen, hospital & guest house
of BVFCL, daily markets, play grounds and public
road sides in BVFCL township.

Further, to fight against COVID pandemic, besides
following religiously and proactively the guidelines
stipulated by the Concerned Authority from time
to time, all necessary steps have been undertaken
by BVFCL like awareness Campaign, Oath taking,
display of Banners, Posters on COVID-19 related
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28.

M 8| AEINIP FG8R  HFGS, SR
B & oy Aerd MISAT BT [UART Aq1Mb
AR DI ARA D Af&DTH ARSI T UGl
ST | AR T WIiereRor &1 1 g\l f&an
SURED

Hriverd (Rieam, fAeg ik fAaro)
Ffiftram, 2013 # #Afeden @ =
Safled & daiid Yde:

D T« BRI W ARl HHaRAl &
A IS | Hdfd Al B <@ @ forg
PHRRITA W AR & 9 Idred [idem,
faver iR fyamon) erfdfem, 2013 & o&d
U IfaRe Rreraa Ay & qoq fear 2
BRI (R, Ay iR faron) srferfas,
2013 ¥ TAT 3G Jdd IR 99 14 & 1T
Afgeei & A9 ST B ORT 22 & Yraem=
@ SR, 3MUdl Hu gfe o=l § fF o
2020—21 & SR 39 dR8 & SdTed P Ble
Rrerad ura T8 g8 B

social behavior norms, use of Social Media to
spread the awareness so as to reach the messages
to maximum citizens of India and supports extended
to the District Authority as well.

DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT
OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION,
PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013

Your Corporation has constituted an Internal
Complaints Committee under Sexual Harassment
of Women at workplace (Prevention, Prohibition
and Redressal) Act, 2013 to look into the matters
relating prevention of Sexual Harassment of Women
employees at the work places. Pursuant to the
provisions of Section 22 of the Sexual Harassment
of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition
and Redressal) Act, 2013 read with Rule 14
of the Rules issued there under, your Company
confirms that there has been no complaint of such
harassment has been received during the year
2020-21.
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Ryl @ RUId &1 sfera 1(®):
ANNEKURE-I(R) TO DIRECTORS’ REPORT
BiH—% FORM - A
ol ARV & R H Udhed &I ART <9 & oIy BiH
Form for disclosure of particulars with respect to conservation of energy:
®. faorell vd S99 @ Euda A. Power & Fuel Consumption
Ifre Unit 2020-21 2019-20
1. N TE 1. |Purchased
(@) |Ba gfre fop.aresier (ga-1l) | (@) |Total Unit Kwh (N-11) 78233 280969
(Il (N-1ID 1344117| 938191
Hel AT YU ARET H Total Cost Rs. in Lakhs 354.58 319.87
= BUU / fp areser Rate Rs./ Kwh 24.93 26.24
(@) | emeT Sered fop areger (wa-I) | | Own Generation Kwh (N-II) 0 0
Bl Ific (@Il Total Unit (N-IID 86709080 | 127869870
Hel AT YU ARET H Total Cost Rs. in Lakhs 2340 4166
= BUU / fp areser Rate Rs./ Kwh 2.70 3.26
2. wrefas A9 (o 3 2. |Natural Gas (Billed
EUREIRIED) Quantity)
(@) |Bftca sl = & forg (a) |For Captive Power Plant
B AAT TR Total Quantity SM® (N-I 2461637 19715004
TaeH (g SME (N-1Il) 27699737| 26000799
HA ARTT JUT T H Total Cost Rs. in Lakhs 1488.65 3149.58
= BUY /1000 THATH Rate Rs./1000 S\M? 4935.63 6889.48
(@) |arert @ forg (G, (b) | For Boilers (S.8.W.H.B)
SEIEEL)
G AT (@3 afed) | T (Tl Total Quantity (incl. Canteen) | SM® (N-II) 39055 | 13324052
(@Il (N-IID 55724951 | 59855856
HA ARTT JUY ARGy H Total Cost Rs. in Lakhs 2752.30 2041.72
= BUT /1000 THUH Rate Rs./1000 S\V? 4935.63 6889.48
M | P HSRT & forw (c) |For Feed Stock
Gl AT A (TA-) Total Quantity SM?® (N-1 0| 31957114
(@Il (N-IID 79993931 | 72594602
B AT YU ARET H Total Cost Rs. in Lakhs 3948.20 7203.07
ery BUT /1000 TAUH Rate Rs./1000 S\V? 4935.63 6889.48
(@) |Rer owra fag” (d) |For Reformer Fuel®*
Bl AT TR (TH-1) Total Quantity SMSE (N-ID 0| 34618379
Dol ANTd TR (Tl Total Cost (N-ID 96466028 | 87187649
™ YU ARG H Rate Rs. in Lakhs 4761.20 8391.81
JYT /1000 THATH? Rs./1000 SM? 4935.63 6889.48
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@) IR & Ided @ ufa A <7 @ua B.  Consumption per MT of production of Urea
Unit 2019-20 2018-19
1. EICARED {49 1. | Natural Gas
() Bre SR TR /¥red (ga-ll) | () | Feed Stock SMB/ MT (N-I 0 693.41
i | forel (@) (gl (i) | Electricity (CPP) | (N-IID 616.01 660.52
e /e (G-l SM3/MT (N-11) 1217.43 427.78
(T=-11l) (N-1D 213.31 236.58
i) | groer TR /Wred (ga-ll) | (i) | Boilers SMB/ MT (N-ID 19.31 289.11
(g1l (N-II) 429.12 544.61
) | ReER So T /9 ed (ga-ll) | (V) | Reformer Fuel® SMB/ MT (N-ID 0.00 751.15
(gl (N-IID 742.86 793.30
2. fSoreft 2. | Electricity
TR T fop.areeer /M (-l Purchased Kwh/ MT (N-Il) 38.69 6.10
(g=-l) (N-1ID 10.35 8.54
Icqrfea (i) & areder / /e (TH-ll) Generated (CPP) | Kwh/ MT (N-II) 0 0
(@H-1ll) (N-1I 657.48 819.72

AP qIICR SR AP aT GUR BeX H Toll @ud 41 i & |
# Includes NG consumption in Aux. Boiler & Aux. Steam Super Heater also.
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wenfre) gaae v, faqel gs1 aciq

et gfe T @ w9y § faawon &1 yH eI

®. Holl G U

Ul 3R ARl SF HIE T 3T HHTey
i Sfad @1 R &R form ® 3R Tadiuus iR
GSRISTA o9 U digdad gRT I8 gfte & g
g f& ofafifead &, S {6 ad9 & 99% MeR
HAF BT JAN | BH &AL, AT e 3R
araferd SUBRY T ofd 8T ¥ 3MSyH gRT 49
X AU T & oNfe & BRI 39 G & U H Dl
ST GUR §9a T8 2| M I 2011 H yIfora fomam
T o fh 39 WIA BT 4 W 5 ATA db AT ST
HAHAT T 3R AGET IHISAT DI 48 T AARITD
YrenfTa! IR MaRd THh AU AFG MHR & 33 B
RIMOAT & e diferd Raa © forv vears fadwed
2| I8 gRAr AT 2015 3R I9d a1 & FORHAT H
aRaferd g8 ®we @ & iR T Ud& rafyy 7 g
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ANNEXURE-1(B) TO DIRECTORS’ REPORT:
FORM B

DISCLOSURE OF PARTICULARS WITH RESPECT TO
TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE
EARNINGS AND OUTGO:

A.  ENERGY CONSERVATION MEASURES:

Both Namrup-Il and Namrup-lll plants have surpassed
their effective economic life and it has been confirmed
by process licensors like HTAS and PDIL that no major
improvement in performance is possible in these plants due
to inherent deficiencies in these plants like small capacity
compared to present day standard size plant, unproven
technology and obsolete equipments which were long
discontinued by the OEMs etc.. It was further reported
in 2011 that these plants could be run for another
4 — 5 years and establishment of a new standard size
plant based on state-of-the-art technology, after closing
the existing units, is the only alternative for long term
survival. This has been reflected in the Urea Policy 2015
and subsequent amendments. Due to paucity of fund and
not having sufficient payback period, capital investments
are restricted to extremely unavoidable cases and on the
basis of need to run the plants for next 4 — 5 years.

However, to run the existing plants in economical viable
manner till the new plant is commissioned, energy
consumption norm fixed by FICC more than 15 years back
on ad-hoc basis are required to be reworked because of
change in circumstances during the intervening period.
M/s PDIL was engaged to review the FICC energy
consumption norm of Namrup-Il and Namrup-Ill plants and
the report submitted by them has recommended 18.12
GCal/MT of urea w.e.f. 01.01.2015 and 13.243 GCal/MT
of urea w.e.f. 01.01.2017 for Namrup-Il and Namrup-
Il respectively as the new energy consumption norm to
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be adopted by FICC. Accordingly, DoF was approached to
extend special dispensation to BVFCL plants by approving
the enhanced energy consumption norm for Namrup-Il and
through extending IPP rates as the Concessional Price for
the Urea produced from Namrup-ll plants.

B. Technology Ahsorption:

In all the renewal and replacement jobs executed
periodically, products with latest available upgraded
technology are procured. Some examples are,
procurement of multi-whole catalyst in primary
reformer, setting-up of Neem Coated Urea facility
by in-house expertise, implementation of Online
Pollution Monitoring System etc.

Commencement of Liquid Bio Fertilizers:

Efforts made hy the Company to continue/sustain
the production processes despite Covid-19
difficulties:

Due to spread of COVID-19 virus in Assam in
general and in Dibrugarh district in particular,
utmost care is being taken to stop further spread
of virus amongst the employees and other workers
as well as to their families and general people.

Employees and workers worked beyond their
stipulated duty hours to re-start the Namrup-lIl
plants during lockdown and resume urea production
in Namrup-Ill, as only 10% of the total staff was
allowed by the State authorities in view of the
strict lockdown. Some of the spares/repairing jobs
required external involvement, could be avoided by
utilizing own workshops and local vendors as well as
maintaining supply chain management.

Sanitary water supply to the township and power
supply to the plants and township was maintained
during the lockdown period.

84



BRAHMAPUTRAVALLEY FERTILIZERCORPORATIONLIMITED ~ ¥t &t T& #

BVFC

=Aad 15% UG ffed wRe vem iR
HIRCH IS Feld¥d BT HH YUSR T, T gRIdT
HIH W UgAY O & | Blelifh e Al
<9 A Al dfd SIS & BRI, A AT
I FHY Siedl W U 781 8 Aehd o | BRP
TS &1 WU a9 dd el (un) Rera foefar
ERT AT BT AT o, Sl Yo 3 dldb S
@ RO §g B TS M| gW H e Ry
SABIRAT & AT HUDb H B WR, IeA Yo
B T SR WU Y WR 98T W Ugd T,
SRy el g % B F 8 A€ g8 |
HIRCH ArST Feldd WY Bl ARy gl fig
R RABT T, ST AHHY H ST 1000 b+ g
qAT 3R T BT TRT BT TS B D T 30
PR S A TS (AT TAT| 3 aRAT Bl
Y R SRl T8 B B Reafcr #, Seared
H X P BRU AT YH BF H Q8 BN DI
T ol | BTetifs, 5T ARHTRAT §IRT Afehd
FAAT & |, WT DI JIA 3IH 5T H UL
B BT AT & TS|

PIfIS—19 HioASAl & dAvE JRAT IATEA
3R AU @l 917 I@q & U Ul gRT
3T MY HB TSN Had 59 JhR &:

@, dAUHHETA q DIAS—19 BT qHEa
PR D folu IR JMUST T AR,
T8 HATH 3R 5T WRBR §RT FeiRa
feenfdel &1 9gd a1fie iR ¥Sid w
I U fhar ® 1 59 WeY H, U§ed gRT
& AT BT e fhar 1 8, S wue
# fequrei grr fenfaden & srured
@ R &% & o 1fed & 18 7
T, AU Bael URER, STSHRY 3R
IR &3 # Yol Wodl 991¢ I 2 3R
AUl Wesdl 99N @ @ forw el
P AHI-—THI TR A% fhar S RET

There was low stock of Ferric Alum with minimum
15% Alumina and Caustic Soda flex, which are
procured from far-off places and transported
by road by the manufacturers. However, due to
country wide lock down, these items might not be
received quickly at the time when Namrup-Ill plants
were expected to be re-started. The consignment
of Ferric Alum was yet to be produced by the
manufacturer located at Bareilly (UP), which was
initially closed due to lock down. On being pursued
with the concerned district authorities at UP,
production started and the consignment reached
at site in time, so that Namrup-IIl re-start was not
delayed. Caustic Soda flex consignment was held-
up at interstate entry point, about 1000 km from
Namrup and was taken-up with Govt. of Assam
for expediting movement of the consignment. In
case of non-delivery of these items in time, start-
up was likely to be delayed leading to production
loss. However, with active support extended by the
State authorities, the consignment was immediately
allowed to enter the state of Assam.

Some of the precautionary steps taken by the
Company to sustain Urea production and marketing
despite COVID-19 difficulties are as follows:

a. BVFCL has followed very religiously and
proactively the guidelines stipulated by
National Disaster Management Authority,
Ministry of Home Affairs and State govt.
to combat COVID-19. In this connection,
a Committee has been constituted by the
management to monitor the compliance
of guidelines by the stake holders in the
Company.

b.  BVFCL is maintaining complete Swachhta in
the Factory premises, Township and Market
areas and the places are being periodically
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sanitized to maintain complete hygiene. In
the first phase all the places were sanitized
using disinfected solution due to immediate
non-availability of Sodium Hypo-chlorite.
In the subsequent phases, the places have
been regularly sanitized properly with Sodium
Hypo-chlorite solution.

Arrangement of quarantine room at BVFCL
Hospital with sufficient beds has been done
for strict isolation of doubtful patients to
prevent the spread of COVID-19. In addition,
necessary action has been initiated at BVFCL
Hospital for quarantining officials and family
members of BVFCL employees who will be
coming from the outside state.

During the period, BVFCL had arranged tests
from time to time for diagnosis of COVID-19
with the help of District Health Department
for the employees and their wards and
immediate necessary action was initiated
in this regard in all the cases when anybody
tested positive for COVID-19. Further,
employees were quarantined, whenever
they have come in direct/ indirect contact
with COVID-19 positive persons and other
doubtful symptoms.

Duty timing of General Shift has been revised
to avoid rush in the factory main gate and to
maintain social distance.

Masks were distributed to all the employees
including Contractor’s workers of BVFCL.

Announcement at the township made
regarding precautionary measures to be
taken to prevent the spread of COVID-19.
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h.  Administration Department was advised to
maintain the detail report of persons visiting
factory premises/ BVFCL colony from outside
& report the same to District Administration.

. Liquid hand wash kept at all work places as
well as Factory main gate as frequent hand
washing kills the virus and prevents the
spread of COVID-19.

j. Thermal scanner installed at Factory Main
Gate for regular checking of all who enters
into the factory premises.

k. Material Management Department has
been advised to keep aside the materials
received from outside for atleast 24 hrs.,
if not essential and monitoring of proper
washing of hand before and after handling of
materials.

It has been advised to all to use the
'Aarogyasetu’ App for breaking the chain of
transmission of COVID-19.

m.  BVFCL took all the challenges in maintaining
the production and despatches of urea
inspite of the limitations due to COVID-19
pandemic and unprecedented flood situation
in the area.

R & D Efforts : Nil
Benefit derived as a result of R & D : Nil

Foreign Exchange Earning and Outgo : During
the year under review, company has not earned
any foreign exchange but expend Rs. 21.73 Lakhs
towards purchase of foreign goods for Capital
equipment.

87



TEIYA Jell BicAgoR drane™ fafics
BRAHMAPUTRAVALLEY FERTILIZER CORPORATION LIMITED

aﬂaim

BVFC

@ dnoug

0202 ‘eafi sepuajes ay} huranp apew sjuawjuiodde jo Jaguny

k2 @ kboREY Fir | B> & kb 280RE 0202

BRILIDIL 1d frb 156k

kle /Ininle/Inle b 1202710710

- - B hf
9 dnoJg
l - l I hf
g dnoJg
- - & hfk
s9d0 b'hlle SIS “Lininle S35 linie [ej0] il dnoug ht
:(3uBWaIeIS BA0GE 8Y3 Ul papnjaul) Japun se Jamoduew paddeaipuey Ajjeaishyd jo uoijejuasaddad ay|
(12 ez b loabp) bbRhe Dpjiabin 3f) 2 Mbbibl] bORLIDIK It (111> Lllddb] B hés by|l3lIa
- - - - oL 6 L L€ - - - €0 191 99 L4 ELS [B10] 1tz
(WBYIBWJEY IBJES)
g dnodg
Bl Slh
- £0 £0 b bk
(WeyaewJey (ejes buipnjax3)
(el
CIAYTER LN
- 0 | 20 | 10 Il B bk
9 dnodg
! ! ve | 90 | (0 69 L bkt
g dnoJg
6 6 L | og - 89 | s | ol gLl B hf
y dnoJg
80 | s | g2 | €2 152 ® hf
Ll gl Gl Gl €l cl Ll ol 6 8 L 9 G 14 € 4 l
saafiojdwa
jo "op\ |er0L
SJ40 SIS SJS | Ielol | sJ90 SIS SJS | Ielol | sJ90 SIS SJS | Ielol | sJd0 SIS 53§ | 2k RD
phfle | Ininle| Uole [ Ll |‘Rhfie [Usiele | lUsle | klk |Rh)le | lIenie| Uotle | Ll [‘Rh)ie [Usiecle | sl | [R{ehd m._,_m“u
spoyiajy Jayip Ag uoijowo.d fig POYI3N JusauInIIay Le0e’Lo’Lo i
IMB $RD kel IMB Dlks|bh IMB DIBh [Pk \BIR uo se s9gg0 / SIS / S9S 0 uonejuasasday

(J) | — J4NKINNY

‘dNYINYN ‘QILININ NOILYHOdY0D 43ZIMILY34 AITIVA YHLNdYINHYYE :SISIHdYILNT 3178nd IHL 40 INYN

"dY3A HIANITYI INIOIITHd IH1 INIHNA I0YIN SINIINLNIOddY 10 HIGINNN
UNY L20g ‘AGYNNYF L1SL NO SY SHd ANY S380 ‘SLS ‘3S 40 NOILYINISIddIY IHL INIMOHS LNINILYLS TYNNNY
heblls ‘Sk|R| LIad|hid AaBIRD|h P Rk bl 1& bR dLjnplk IR 1 kDbRE| Bl (& LD & kb
280R® PAQY LD lodbb dRylb 1RIb kllad bXREIDIA 1b LrlRdb] Gl LD [tb 196 e Uninle "Ll b 1202 ‘Rbbis |

(L) 1 — ®LRLIe

88



N

TGS dell BicaTsoR HraveH fafics

BRAHMAPUTRAVALLEY FERTILIZER CORPORATION LIMITED

= f Tw &
BVFC

el & Rud &1 ga=a—1
SN 3rferemaa wr Ruid
e arferemaa R s &1 figia

MY HUT F A AT U eI TR Y@ ®
ST JoTTell & 9 Tcdh] & T8I Hdlls 3R BTl
B &M H AT § 3R IAD HRIAR & [T For
# 9rfeRl & Rl &1 wae 3@ B | 3MudsT B
i eIt & I=aan @l BT Ul dRa
I &= & oy ulag & | SH@T g1 Seed a4l
TR R T gfesor & i Srreedr IaH
P AR Mool IS T emierar & ufd
SIRTS®  HIUNTE  A¥PBId, URGRIAT iR IqRard!
SfREHIOT TAMT R SHBT Tl HRAT | STl
BRI BT AT & b ST & Ffid Jeal &
A1 KT Bl 7 A a1 A8y oIl 3ifrey,
FAFCT, SfUa R =ifed & Wigd dFavs &
TR FATeT PRAT AMRY | U] Hul H oy
o H GUR &R 3R U ol & 0o dediadr &
foy SaTee! iR URERAT R 9 a1 S & difd
RNERT &l fa9ard SIS 9 |

. Ao Hvea:

®. 9IS DI TS

A THEATA. DU IARH, 2013 B ORT 2 (45)
& T & TRV H U RGN Hu 8, ot
100% U&< ¥R Yol R & ISl g§RT 1Rd & | 91
@ Aewdl oI Fgfie TRA & IgURT gRT BT S 7 |

g, dqIs /| o1 Saveif¥a AR gedis
afspar

e BT STNGMIT HIAT I O Al @r
TRIeo HRAT 3R HIARTH wres & e 3R
RN -1, FRame urels gRfRad o1 dein
PU D TETeT H BRIUTAD TS & SIRGH BT HH
B dTel JATAT BI THEm BT 2 | IRfd /9 B
fwres &1 Jeaie HRA B oY dre Sugth el /
I TR IR &R =T 2|

ANNEXURE - 1l TO DIRECTORS’ REPORT
REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Corporate Governance has been a continuous endeavor
in your corporation that cares for an overall well-being
and welfare of all the constituent of the system and takes
into account the stakeholder’s interest at every business
decision. Your corporation is committed to pursue growth
by adhering to the highest standards of corporate
governance. The primary objective is to create and adhere
to a corporate culture of consciousness, transparency
and openness in creating awareness of corporate vision
and spark dynamism and entrepreneurship at all levels.
Your corporation believes that governance must balance
individual interest with corporate goals and operate within
the accepted norms of propriety, equity, fair play and a
sense of justice. In your corporation, accountability and
transparency are key drivers to improve decision making
and rationale behind such decisions to create stakeholders
confidence.

. BOARD OF DIRECTORS:
A. CONSTITUTION OF BOARD

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 2 (43) of the
Companies Act, 2013, your corporation is a “Government
Company” holding 100% of its paid up share capital by the
President of India. Members of the Board of Directors are
appointed by the President of India.

B. RESPONSIBILITIES AND EVALUATION PROCESS
OF BOARD / COMMITTEE

The responsibilities of Board is to oversee the company’s
strategic policies, review and monitor corporate
performance, ensure regulatory compliance and reviewing
the risk minimizing efforts of executive management in the
operation of Company. Board is considering appropriate
mechanism for evaluating performance of Committees/
Board.
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With a view to institutionalize all corporate
affairs and set up systems and procedures for
advance planning for matters requiring discussion/
decisions by the Board, your corporation has
defined guidelines for the meetings of the Board of
Directors and Committee thereof. These guidelines
seek to systematize the decision making process
at the meetings of Board/ Committees, in an
informed and efficient manner. Your corporation’s
guidelines relating to Board meetings are applicable
to Committee Meetings as far as practicable.

Il.  Scheduling and selection of Agenda items
for Board/Committee Meetings.

a. The meetings are convened by giving
appropriate advance notice after obtaining
approval of the Chairman of the Board/
Committee. To address the specific urgent
need, meetings are also being called at
a shorter notice. In case of exigencies
or urgency, resolutions are passed in
circulation.

b.  Detailed agenda containing the management
reports and other explanatory statements
are circulated in advance amongst the
members of the Board/Committee for
facilitating meaningful informed and focused
decisions at the meetings. Wherever it is
not practicable to circulate any document
or the agenda is of confidential nature, the
same is tabled with the approval of CMD and
majority of members present in the meeting.
In special and exceptional circumstances,
additional or supplementary agenda are
being considered subject to the permission
of CMD and majority of members present in
the meeting of Board/ Committee.
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The members of the Board are entitled to
access all the information of the corporation
and are free to recommend inclusion of any
matter in agenda for discussion. In case of
need, the senior officials of the corporation
are invited to attend the Board/Committee
meetings to provide additional inputs relating
to the items being discussed and / or giving
presentation to the Board/Committee.

The meetings of Board/ Committee are
normally held at the registered office of the
corporation in Namrup. However, during
the year under review, considering covid
pandemic scenario in the country, meetings
of Board of Directors and Audit Committee
were held through Video conference.

The agenda papers are prepared by the
Sr. executives of concern departments,
sponsored by the Functional Directors and
approved by the CMD. Duly approved agenda
papers are circulated amongst the members
of the Board/ Committee by the Company
Secretary well in advance.

Company Secretary follow up with the
concern Department for the action taken
reports based on the decisions of earlier
Board/ Committee meetings and compiled
the reports in consultation with Functional
Directors and CMD before including in the
agenda of the Board/ Committee meetings.

Minutes of the proceedings of each Board/
Committee meeting are finalized as per the
provisions of Secretarial Standard approved
by the Central Government within stipulated
time. After the finalisation of minutes by
the chairman, certified copy of minutes are
circulated to all the members of the Board/
Committee by the company secretary. These
minutes of Board / Committee are noted
in the next Board/ Committee meetings,
respectively.
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Ire /afafa & Aol &1 IR Hue afaa
ERT S99 WR 3MMATIH HRATS B B o1v
e faarmt & favrmegett &1 aRerfera
fopar ST 2 |

ol & ufderor 93 & Gdy § g
g oIR afa sifteme fRemr—Adet &
IR e Hsel 9 Ud wfdie i
IAIRT @1 & 3R FH | FH Uh TGN
s, e IR MREIRE fAdwd qer
U$h HRIHG FeE DI TS a9 Hefid
T H AT R b1 Ao form 71

DILAT T AT

BRYTAD Y& I, FRE &R feenfe
e & | AL Iraersil BT JrguTer GHrRad
e & fog RFER 8 81 99 Ay drEl,
PR @ fory va e |ifafde srgures Rard
(@ Tl | Uspaa) @ ars gRT FRafia wu

h.

The extract of decisions of Board/ Committee
are circulated by the Company Secretary to
the HODs of concerned Departments for
taking necessary actions thereon.

As per the Corporate Governance Guidelines
issued by DPE regarding training mechanism
of Directors, Board of Directors has
approved a Training Policy and undertake
to nominate every year at least One Govt.
Director, One non official Director and One
Functional Director at the convenience
of concerned Directors for such training,
seminar, conference, conventions sponsored
by the prestigious institutions.

COMPLIANCE OF LAWS

Executive management is responsible to ensure
adherence to all the applicable provisions of

laws,

rules and guidelines, etc. A quarterly

statutory compliance report (collected from all
the departments) confirming adherence to all the
applicable laws, rules, guidelines, etc. are being

31 A9, 2021 dd, du4l & Foud Asa H
B8 (06) Wew o, T4 s M HAR =N,

A FHIET BT ST B reviewed by the Board on quarterly basis.
. dls @l 96 BOARD MEETINGS
FHEATEE a¥ & SRE Feed Aed @l 4 (TAR) During the year under review, 4 (four) meetings of
Job ImAIfTd @Y g off e =IRT S e Board of Directors were held, details of which are
T 2 as under :
HSel ®I d6d ag fraq Pl A Board Meeting Date No. of Directors
. - AT No. attended
101 30.06.2020 4 101 30.06.2020 4
102 27.11.2020 4 102 27.11.2020 4
103 24.12.2020 5 103 24.12.2020 5
104 13.01.2021 6 104 13.01.2021 6
S dIS @ WYEHl COMPOSITION OF BOARD

As on 31st March, 2021, there were six (06)
members in the Board of Directors of the Company,
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Jeuel Ud gde faere, s faier Wer, Mo
(ScTe), 4 gIsT @is <9, e (<), s
faa FAR UIvs, WHR AHT Feed ([SdRD
fom), o & o, WReR Tha Feers
FdRe fowm) ik st fafomr feer omd,

IR—aMEeIRS e |

fUoell affe oMy do@ # UAd Fewd @l
SuReIfd, ®Ul & IS Fewd & o e=
Hufal o Al § el IR Fewyar &r

faaxor S faar T &

comprises Shri Ashim Kumar Ghosh, Chairman &
Managing Director, Shri Digambar Sahai, Director
(Production), Shri Subash Chandra Das, Director
(Finance), Shri Vinay Kumar Pandey, Govt. Nominee
Director (DOF), Shri K. Gurumurthy, Govt. Nominee
Director (DOF) and Shri Bipina Bihari Padhy, Non
Official Director.

The details of composition and category of Directors,
attendance of each Director at the Board Meetings
and the last AGM, directorship and membership in
committees of other companies for each director of
the company are given below.

M |d /st SufRerfa fagzor fewe ik afafa gt /ssae a1 faavor
Name S/Shri Attendance particulars Details of Directorship and Committee memhers/
Chairman
a¥f & SR | 29.12.2021 I ufeds wfafaal &Y wewar siv afifa
do@l F WOT | (@) MR fafies @Y JAEqAAT BT faaor
o drell @1 | 02.03.2020 wufrr o Details of committee memberships
&1 (armeerfira) R &1 and committee Chairmanship
No. of @ g3 e faazor
meetings qiftfe am Details of
attended o9 Directorships
during the year | | .t AGM Held in other
on 29.12.2020 | Public limited
(Original) and companies
2.03.2021
(Adjourned)
Functional Directors
T 3iW HAR Iy 4 8 (q) THUTE | —olEl a¥ie |ffa # we
regeT Ud yey faerd g (Rfira) FAI —uiReife  Affa § v
e (SaareH), afafRe a9 / (%) Yes (original) -Member in Audit Committee
Shri Ashim Kumar Ghosh, Yes (Adjourned) -Member in Remuneration Committee
Chairman & Managing Director and
Director (Production
[Additional Chargel (*)
s fevfer =Ty, 2 g () —oRgT e |y # Hew
e (SaareH) () & (RIfra) —uRsifie Afafa # |9
Shri Digambar Sahai, Yes (original) -Member in Audit Committee
Director (Production) (*¥) No (Adjourned) -Member in Remuneration Committee
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) gari T <, 2 &l ()
fereere fasq (+++) TET (Rerfira)
Shri Subash Chandra Das Yes (original)
Director (Finance) (¥¥¥) No (Adjourned)

Iediferd RN fFevre
Part Time Official Directors

o o FAR v 4 & () - —orET TeT |ffay # e
TRER AT faere (o) el (RARr) —uRerfie Afafa # S

Shri Vinay Kumar Pandey No (original) - Member of Audit Committee

Govt. Nominee Director (¥%%¥) No (Adjourned) - Member in Remuneration Committee
&, THf, 1 gl () - —olT e |fafa § dew
IRPR AT fagra (o) el (Rafrd) —uRsifie Afafa # aeg

Shri K. Gurumurthy Yes (original) -Member of Audit Committee

Govt. Nominee Director (%) No (Adjourned) -Member in Remuneration Committee

Ferpifered AX AfreR® fARvre

Non Official Part Time Director

St R fAErd) Tl () 4 & () - —oign glen AfAfa # sreder

iR anfeRe s el (Rafrd) —uiRsifies Afafa # e

Bipina Bihari Padhy, (%) Yes (original) - Chairman of Audit Committee

Non Official Director No (Adjourned) - Chairman of Remuneration Committee

.

) feerd (SATeH) @ U &7 AfARTH IR 15.11.2020 TH
(*) Hold Additional Charge of the post of Director (Production) upto 15.11.2020

(%) T3P 16.11.2020 ¥ FFee® (IUTEH) BT UG BT fhaT
(**) Assumed the post of Director (Production) w.e.f. 16.11.2020.

(+¥) fadTed 18.12.2020 W Fqerd (AT ) &1 ug Ugwr fohar |
(**¥) Assumed the post of Director (Finance) w.e.f. 18.12.2020.

(495 29.00.2021 W fACEIH BT I AT & TAT
(***) Ceased the Directorship w.e.f. 29.09.2021.

uuuuu

(¥ Assumed the Directorship w.e.f.9.05.2020

HUHT BT BIs ey I I drufat o, g7 gg  No Director of the company is a member in more than 10
freers 8, 10 (€9) ¥ oie |ffal ¥ weww a1 5  (ten) committee or is a Chairman of more than five (5)
(i) & i SRRET o1 oreuer e B committees across all companies in which he is a Director.
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9. TR0 afedr

MY T 5 Huel & Feve dsa 3R aRs yded
HRIUTAS (SU AT 6edh IR FW & ISR &
foy om] aervr Hfgdr SR Sfdear ol U 2 |
3, fAwer, Afde wu 9 IR URERAr iR Rl
P T B BT B AGghal gl g1 v
A8al 3R IR UeeE ®Ifie & aififd MR R
3ITeRT el & AU &l gfte &1 S 1Ry |
JMERYT Afedl &I ®u+l & darge www.bvfcl.com
R yeiRfd far T 21 Aeve Asd & 9l aew
(= Al SN Aled) 3R IR Fde DD
F STERVl AT BT U [T 8 3R I9d §RT
S YT @1 gfte 1 Bl g B | 5 e H Jfedet ud
veer feere g1 fAferad ewdeRa ve =yor srgee
—l (@) F < TE R

B. fIRvIe Aved & Guel Wl S drel
GGhL

HRUTAS Yaee, Feed dred & |Ael fforiaa
IS AT AT HRIGE UF & A & ®Y § &I A7
arS B I8P b IR TRT B

. IR U= ATSTAT 31X gole aIT 3T JTera-
Rerfa |

*  USll guic 3R DI IfEdT Refi|

e  HUYFl 3R D TATAT TN IT PRER B
2 &1 faereT aRom |

e oRg] W I R T & I afafaat w1
ISH B HTIAI |

e IS WR Y 3P A B RS FAHTRAT BHI Al
3R uRsffe Afed ge o< sifery 3R
DUl aferg B Fgfh a1 eI B g |

*  HRU FARI, H, GHSHAT FAY S DI FAAN
3R TUE BT gAY, ST aReh: HEdqUl & |

F.  CODE OF CONDUCT

Your Corporation has adopted a code of conduct and
ethics applicable to the Board of Directors and Senior
Management Personnel (DGM and above) of the
Company. The code requires Directors and employees to
act honestly, fairly, ethically, and with transparency and
integrity. The Board of Directors and Senior Management
Personnel are required to affirm compliance with the code
of conduct on an annual basis. The code has been displayed
on the Company’s website at www.bvfcl.com. All members
of Board of Directors (including Chief Vigilance Officer) and
Senior Management Personnel have complied with the
code and the compliance has been affirmed by them to
that effect. A declaration to this effect, duly signed by the
Chairman and Managing Director is placed at Annexure
-1 (A).

G. INFORMATION PLACED BEFORE THE BOARD OF
DIRECTORS

The Executive Management of your Corporation shall
present following information before the Board of
Directors, either as part of the agenda papers or are
tabled/ presented during the course of Board meeting :

. Annual operating plans and budgets and any
updates.

. Capital budgets and any updates.

. Quarterly results for the company and its operating
divisions or business segments.

. Minutes of meetings of audit committee and other
committees of the Board.

. The information on recruitment and remuneration of
senior officers just below the board level, including
appointment or removal of Chief Financial Officer
and the Company Secretary.

. Show cause, demand, prosecution notices and
penalty notices which are materially important.
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a1 TR gHeAN, WaRATd "eHN, By
SRTHS IEATd AT YATEGROT TGHUT I FHRATY |
S @ fow @ su g facf <l |
DI AW GH AT HUL §RT o9 Y ATA BT
G I A8l BT |

ST A7 SIS Q1 & QI eAe &, faedl
ot a7 ereyr wfed R HU & MRV R
fder feam a1 81 a1 gar SeM & afd faudd
gfEHIoT AR AT B 5 WO PUl W
THRIHAD YT T FhdT ol |

f&=il Wgh Ted AT ASANT PR bl fdaxor |

VAT oF—a o |, soe gfdad) a7 difgs
el & foly qaied e fdar a7 &)

AEYYl ST FHRATY IR ST URATId AT,
AFG HAw©H /e ey & Ak R Bl
Ayl fI@ S, 9a9 |ESiiaT IR EER,
wWied Ha—ghRy Jrerr M |

ST A BRIGR BT 2edr 8 8rar |

fae=l gar1 fafvma & gl &1 foare! faavo
3R Ha1 g &R & aidee SaR—<.d &
SIRgH P! WG R & oY e gIRT IoTg
Y ded, Al Ayl i |

foel 91 AfFame, dda=e a1 geeg
AT BT YA TE B, WAR BATCROT H
faere, amfe &1 rguTer = B

orET gder afifa:
TS IR GHed

fo-ig a¥ 2020—21 & GHIftg # or@T oRIET
AT § IR (04) Al Aa: i At faery

Fatal or serious accidents, dangerous occurrences,
any material effluent or pollution problems.

Any material default in financial obligations to and
by the company or substantial non-payment for
goods sold by the company.

Any issue, which involves possible public or product
liability claims of substantial nature, including
any judgement or order which may have passed
strictures on the conduct of the company or taken
an adverse view regarding another enterprise that
can have negative implications on the company.

Details of any joint venture or collaboration
agreement.

Transactions that involve substantial payment
towards goodwill, brand equity, or intellectual
property.

Significant labour problems and their proposed
solutions. Any significant development in human
resources/industrial relations front like signing
of wage agreement, implementation of Voluntary
Retirement Scheme etc.

Sale of material nature of investments, subsidiaries,
assets, which is not in normal course of business.

Quarterly details of foreign exchange exposures and
the steps taken by management to limit the risks of
adverse exchange rate movement, if material.

Non-compliance of any regulatory, statutory
requirements and shareholders service such as
non-payment of dividend, delay in share transfer
etc.

AUDIT COMMITTEE:
Constitution and Composition

At the end of financial year 2020-21, Audit
Committee comprises Four (04) members i.e. Shri
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Urefl, IR SMEERe ewres (3rge); S e
e, Foeed ([dreA), 4 g gAR uve,
TRBR AT a2 (IR fawm), 47 &, [,
IRBR AT Feerd (SRe fFam) i €

e ¥ & R of@T uRie Iy doai |
fa=forlRad oIt &1 e &1 &

) Pl GERR, "eradl, dUR Sdre ar UfeT
il & Yifae amue o foarer Rurd;

i) fowTEr eniaRe oam wRier (@dea) Rare;

i) 3raR® i e R & e,

iv) 9IS ERT IgAGH ¥ Yd dUAl &I 1 ofr
Qe Dl FHIe;

V) ifafere i uRletreil @ otwr uer fewforay
DI FHIETT TAT 39 TR TEIT BT SR,

vi)  dgeusl &1 fewfOr B e

vi)  wifafde oramierel & TiiRsiie a1 aHe:

vii)  orar wRietr |afifa @ e deal & vkl W)
B TS HRATS RUIE B FqHeT;

x) wded Tt iR fgeryor Rurd;

X)  ®U D I UG yay fewe iR e
(frer) gwr fafia faeRvil & vEmE /o @)
W&‘"IT;

Xi)  BUHl B INARD @l wWiEdl bl FRgRe @
W?ﬂ'f;
Xii) ST oIl WRleThl bl FIYRE Bl e,

Xi) SHIRID / efarie / arfie anTd oRar srfieral
Ell ?:l—‘fmi‘ﬂ;

xiv) ARG Uars RAT ST HT TS FATI;

Xv)  HU B URFURE & Jeaied & fore ofigd
qRTHTdh! DI Fgfh;

Xvi)  9Tel GRET IEradier Rare &1 A |

Bipina Bihari Padhy, Non Official Director (Chairman);
Shri Digambar Sahai, Director (Production); Shri
Vinay Kumar Pandey, Govt. Nominee Director (DOF),
Shri K. Gurumurthy, Govt. Nominee Director (DOF).

During the year under review, Audit Committee has
reviewed the followings business in the meetings:

) Quarterly reports of physical verification of Raw
Materials, Intermediate, Finished product and
Packing materials ;

i) Quarterly Internal Audit (Technical) Reports;
i) Review Internal Audit Reports

iv)  Review of Annual Accounts of the Company before
approval by the Board;

vl Review of Audit observations of Statutory Auditors
and management replies thereon;

vl Review comments of C 8 AG ;
vi)  Review remuneration of Statutory Auditors;

vii)  Review of action taken reports on the decisions of
earlier Audit Committee meetings.

ix)  Management Discussions and Analysis Report;

x)  Review Certification/declaration  of financial
statements by the Chairman and Managing Director
and Director (Finance) of the Company;

xi)  Review appointment of Internal Auditors of the
Company

xii)  Review appointment of Cost Auditors;

xii)  Review quarterly/half yearly/Annual cost accounting
records;

xivl  Physical verification of weighted packed urea Bags

xv)  Appointment of registered valuer for valuation of
assets of the company

xvi)  Review External Safety Audit Report
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4) 9 Bl FFAERA B oY U B A U,
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A UTFher o g @i afafte;

Board of Directors of the Corporation has constituted
Audit Committee initially in their 12th meeting held
on 6.06.2003. The terms of reference of the Audit
Committee has been approved by the Board at the time
of constitution and modified in 57th meeting of Board of
Directors held on 3.06.2011 in line with the guidelines
of corporate governance issued by the Department of
Public Enterprises (DPE) and Further modified in 76th
(Adjourned) meeting held on 10.04.2016 in line with the
provisions of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Il.  TERMS OF REFERENCE FOR AUDIT COMMITTEE OF
BVFCL

The following are terms of reference of Audit Committee :

1. Oversight of the company’s financial reporting
process and the disclosure of its financial
information to ensure that the financial statement
is correct, sufficient and credible.

2. Recommending to the Board the fixation of audit
fees.

3. Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any
other services rendered by the statutory auditors.

4.  Reviewing with the management quarterly, half
yearly and the annual financial statements before
submission to the Board for approval, with
particular reference to:

a. Matters required to be included in the
Directors Responsibility Statement to be
included in the Board’s report in terms of
section 134 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013;

b.  Changes, if any, in accounting policies and
practices and reasons for the same;

c.  Major accounting entries involving estimates
based on the exercise of judgment by
management;
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VA AW, STel ey el a1 srfeafiddr
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d.  Significant adjustments made in the financial
statements arising out of audit findings;

e.  Compliance with legal requirements relating
to financial statements;

f. Disclosure of any related party transactions;
and

g.  Qualifications in the draft audit report.
h.  The going concern assumption.

I Compliance with Accounting Standard of
ICAI.

J. Reviewing the company’s financial and risk
management policies.

Reviewing with the management performance
of internal auditors and adequacy of the internal
control systems.

Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function,
including the structure of the internal audit
department, staffing and seniority of the official
heading the department, reporting structure,
coverage and frequency of internal audit.

Discussion with internal auditors and/or auditors
any significant findings and follow up there on.

Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations
by the internal auditors/auditors/agencies into
matters where there is suspected fraud or
irregularity or a failure of internal control systems
of a material nature and reporting the matter to
the Board.

Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit
commences, about the nature and scope of audit as
well as post-audit discussion to ascertain any area
of concern.
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12)
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14)
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16)
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OsEIHvT: Heferg urdf dAFeT” v &1 98
31ef BT O1T fb R G oRGThY G
ERT SN ol #1918 & Afed 2|

PGl BT G B, LIS FA H FHH
S, 3R T oRaT—ulem & HATEEl & g
SKHATE FARFT B & oY SamRierds Jamdl
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A TETaNIeTh T Yeue & a1 fa=faRaa 17,

P THET B W IR BT

10.

1.

12.

13.

14.

13.

16.

To look into the reasons for substantial defaults in
the payment to the depositors, debenture holders,
shareholders (in case of non payment of declared
dividends) and creditors.

To review the functioning of the Whistle Blower
Mechanism.

To review the follow up action on the audit
observations of the C8AG audit.

To review the follow up action taken on the
recommendations of Committee on Public
Undertakings (COPU) of the Parliament.

Provide an open avenue of communication between
the independent auditor, internal auditor and the
Board of Directors.

Review all related party transactions in the
company. For this purpose, the Audit Committee
may designate a member who shall be responsible
for reviewing related party transactions. A
statement in the prescribed format giving details
about all related party transactions taken place in
a particular year should be included in the Board’s
report for that year for disclosure to various
stakeholders.

Explanation: The term “related party
transactions” shall have the same meaning as
contained in the Accounting Standard 18, issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

Review with the independent auditor the co-
ordination of audit efforts to assure completeness
of coverage, reduction of redundant efforts, and
the effective use of all audit resources.

Consider and review the following with the
independent auditor and the management:
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g9 @ SR ATHA 318 BIs BT |

B A HuAl 7 O AT B

TR & STRRYT H Bl ol Wier |affa &1

e fhar § 1 S<h ofar wRie aifa & fore

39 fader & fAfkT ogaR W iR @rit /

[ENECINERIN

oRgT RIe Affa & faarmet vy § sfeaRaa

ITIAR 31T BIs B A |

HUAl d o iR oiRgy gdes Ny &
THIET BHRAT |

HUAT B FEATEGAT AT URFARRT BT HATDHA
PRAT, STEI—bal IMaTIH BT |

JITR—PURE T 3R e o1 S

HARrT urfeAl & AT HU B ol dad AT 918 H
ot ST T STgAIGH |

oEr wiar afifa «r sikear

U HBT & FTAR [ad AUSA §IRT kAT UIel
afafy o1 FefaRea sffer e fag 1w &

18.

20.

21.

22.
23.
24.

- The adequacy of internal controls including
computerized information system controls
and security, and

- Related findings and recommendations of
the independent auditor and internal auditor,
together with the management responses.

Consider and review the following with the
management, internal auditor and the independent
auditor:

- Significant findings during the year, including
the status of previous audit recommendations

- Any difficulties encountered during audit work
including any restrictions on the scope of
activities or access to required information.

Explanation: If the company has set up an Audit
Committee pursuant to provision of the Companies
Act, the said Audit Committee shall have such
additional functions/features as contained in these
guidelines.

Carrying out any other function as is mentioned in
the terms of reference of the Audit Committee.

Reviewing the company’s financial and risk

management policies.

Valuation of undertakings or assets of the company,
wherever it is necessary.

Evaluation of internal financial controls
Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments.

Approval or any subsequent modification of
transactions of the company with related parties.

POWERS OF AUDIT COMMITTEE

Commensurate with its role, the Audit Committee
empowered by the Board of Directors the following:
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() 3w foawmet favg § f6dl dRIeag &) S
‘DNAT |

(i) TP PHART | AT U BRAT qAT HUT &
JfffrerRdl H Hf2d AT BT SIS of T |

(i) ez qusel & 3rgHIad & 37 qrEsl B

AT 3T ARG Al U AT |

(v) 9= Ffhal & dd faeisdr v oA, afe

VAT BT IIID FHS SITY |

V) U I Uod dRTT &1 Wad |@qda dr
=T AT |

i) AR ISR B dTel DI GRET <7 |

. @ gder afafa #1 dea

T a9 & SR T e AEfy @ 34 (3)
I3 AT @ T

() To investigate any activity within its terms of
reference.

(i) To seek information on and from any employee and
assess to information contained in the records of
the Company.

(i) To obtain outside legal or other professional advice,
subject to the approval of the Board of Directors.

(iv)  To secure attendance of outsiders with relevant

expertise, if it considers necessary.

vl To have independent back office support and other
resources from the company.

(vi)  To protect whistle blowers.

IV. AUDIT COMMITTEE MEETINGS

During the year under review, three (03) Audit Committee
Meetings were held.

o wden g | fadie GILECERCIC] Rudit Committee Date No. of Directors
feerel @1 GEn No. attended
66 30.06.2021 4 66 30.06.2021 4
67 27.11.2020 4 67 27.11.2020 4
68 24.12.2020 3 68 24.12.2020 3

TRA WRER & SRG [QURT & A=RTH 3§ HU-1 |
g T dasar Af¥eNr (Hdien) e o o
qe afafd @ 9o@ H Wm wu ¥ faey A
g | aemie 99 & SR S 9 A orar |
P JoP FH 9T foram |

V. &Yl &1 - gfaa @ oiar afifa
& 9k & Wy ¥ Hrd Hdr 2 |

1. fRI® &1 erdere

el Ud yey fee ok 3 quidiicrs wraicis
el @ g WM |16 9y 2| HU & o ud
Ty Fevd IR YUidlie driics Fedl Bl

Chief Vigilance Officer (CVO) of the Company appointed by
the Govt. of India through Department of Fertilizers is the
permanent Special Invitee in the Audit Committee meeting
of the Corporation. During the year under review, he has
attended in all the three meeting of Audit Committee.

.  Company Secretary of the Company acts as the
Secretary to the Audit Committee.

1.  Tenure of Directors

The age limit of Chairman & Managing Director and
other Whole Time Functional Directors is sixty years. The
Chairman and Managing Director and the Whole Time
Functional Directors of the Company are appointed by the
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RE TR 9IS | HATIg< 81 SId & | R ARPR gRT
Waa fAedl B Uh IR § 09 99 & FRie ©
fog g foam Srar 2 |

2. fRuel &1 uiRsufe

3MYe! B YUIT T aTell durd Adai-d &=
BT UG & R BU 1A, 2013 & WTaem=i 3R
D I §9¢ MU Ef B fq T Uh ARBR
AR 3R SRP HATGI & 799 I Ul gRT
g / AR fbam STl € | 5991 IR, figeh b
e Jaaal @ Sfelfie #A8WE w1 (3mEsi)
Jed @ i d YRd WRER §RT IAd—Hd TR
SR e ud el & IR UTRSAe T $Rd
21 U B drs H FUBITh RGN (ARBRI ATFH)
el & Big aRsiffe 81 far SIem | 9 WREN
HHARAT & ©9 | IS 9T o i aRsifie
YT B & | T & fe9d qvsa @ sfgrdiferd iR
fereIR® (=) e ars 3iR /a1 S9ar |fafa
P UJPb d96h P fT¢ 10,000 /— BYU HT SURfT
b DI YA U & U B & IR S5 dR<ddd
AT Y, AN, Aol G T BUAl & FqaT
A AT s @d @1 ufagfd @1 Sl g |

i R w3 (TRiY) QIR ol SeM o
(EiE) grT SR foenfAdell @1 el @ SER
DONTT 7 FAI—F90 R e @ aiRsifie
AT &1 T /gTied fdar g1 31 A€ 2021 H
qRsIfAe |fAfa ¥ IR Few IR i¥eRe ewres
(@reme), Qe (Saree) iR 98 (SRiv®) # <
TRGR] AT ez rid i fa9g HaR s 3R

President of India through the Department of Fertilizers for
a period of five years from the date of taking charge or till
the date of superannuation or till further instructions from
the Government of India, whichever event occurs earlier.
The Government Directors representing the Department
of Fertilizers, Government of India, retires from the Board
on ceasing to be officials of the Department of Fertilizers.
Independent Directors are appointed by the Government
of India for a tenure of three years at a time.

2. Remuneration of Directors

Your company is a wholly owned Central Public Sector
Undertaking and being the Government Company under
the provisions of Companies Act,2013 and rules made
there under, the Functional Directors of the Company
are appointed /nominated by President of India through
the Ministry of Chemicals and Fertilizers, Department of
Fertilizers. The Functional Directors so appointed, draw
remuneration under Industrial Dearness Allowance (IDA)
pattern of pay scales and as per the terms and conditions
issued by Government of India from time to time. The
part-time official (Government Nominee) Directors on the
Board of the Company do not draw any remuneration from
the Company. They only draw regular remuneration from
the Department of Fertilizers as Government officials.
The Part Time Non Official Directors (Independent)
on the Board of the Company entitled for the payment
of sitting fee of Rs. 10,000/- for each meeting of the
Board and/or Committee and reimbursement of actual
travelling, boarding, lodging and other expenses incurred
in connection with the business of the Corporation.

In compliance with the conditions of guidelines issued by
the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) and Department
of Public Enterprises (DPE), Corporation has constituted/
re-constituted remuneration committee of Directors from
time to time. As on 31st March, 2021, the Remuneration
Committee of the Board of your corporation comprises
four members i.e. Non Official Director (Chairman),
Director (Production) and two Govt. Nominee Directors
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s . T, A 999, IR da9 gd 3R
HRUTAS MR IR-FE gdderdl H SHB  faaRor
e HAifd w Aol o €1 faxi ad 2020-21 #,
gRerffe AfAfT o P8 N Job JmARTT Tl &) T8 |
gTetifh, URsiffs AfAfT @7 ugell 98& 24 3T,
2018 ®I ARG @ T8 ot Rrad v # aR®
AFHIRAT & folv gz oR 3mary feenfacer TR &=
& forg orgeifd, wraw /Wil § dweRar gfeaion
BT YT B, SIS fQRniesn & o/ ure H Aioal
HATFGRT o™l @7 FHIe @ 75 3R o9 27 RideR,
2018 ®I IMATT 94 df d8d § fAesd Asd gRT
IR AR garfed fbar |

27.11.2020 I AR Fewrd Aved @1 10241 d3h
# uRsifie Affd &1 g Tew fhar war, e i
At feer) uEll, IR nfdamRe fewres (3rege), i
fAaR e[, Feess (SdreH), 5 faTa AR u1vs,
TG W Feers (SRS fr) =it &, o,
RGN AT Fews (dRe favm) iR i a8, @.
A, 78T Ued (AU gd A1, ) SWRIh 9db &
Aot BN | SWRIh A & U faxig af # oA
A HH 3 R d8H AT 8RN 3R 9 d3d & forg
PRE IR BT TH fT8E 95 A1 & 9ew o
ey g, B =2y |

3. gfuarerl dwr wdar Raid

PIORIE B FART (TRIN) gRT ORI s
PIaReE WA faenfeen @ | VB gurer
# 9 999 BoR Ue vHikied, UfAARET FHudr
Afea & Afearery okar wen Rare urd & TS ®
T Rard § &1 73 fewofiaf wR veeq & SR fAeere
@ RS & srfera—Il (@)@) # Hel e 7 |

4. fofa affremaa feenfadesn W
IUTA Y09

de M foarr @E) g N fRenfewt @
S ENIIEHIECECIPNINEICIINRIIC S SIS RC R CL

on the Board (DOF) viz. Shri Vinay Kumar Pandey
and Shri K. Gurumurthy, to decide the Annual Bonus,
Variable pay pool and policy for its distribution across the
executive and non- unionized supervisors. No meeting of
remuneration committee meeting was held during financial
year 2020-21. However, 1st meeting held on 24.08.2018
and recommended for framing lease accommodation
guidelines for senior executives in the corporation, follow
cafeteria approach in perks/allowances, review existing
superannuation benefits in compliance of DPE guidelines,
which was accepted and approved by the Board of
Directors in their 94th meeting held on 27th September,
2018.

In102nd meeting of Board of Directors heldon27.11.2020,
Remuneration Committee was re-constituted comprising
members Shri Bipina Bihari Padhy, Non Official Director
(Chairman), Shri Digambar Sahai, Director (Production),
Shri Vinay Kumar Pandey, Govt. Nominee Director(DOF),
Shri K. Gurumurthy, Govt. Nominee Director (DOF)and
Shri Y.K.Goel, GM(Marketing & HR) will be convener of the
above meeting. The above Committee shall meet at least
twice in a financial year and the quorum shall be one-third
of its total strength or two members, whichever is higher.

3.  Secretarial Audit report

Secretarial Audit Report have been obtained from
M/s Pravin Chhajer & Associates, Practicing Company
Secretaries, Guwahati regarding compliance of the
conditions V of Voluntary Corporate Governance guidelines
issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) and
the management replies on the observations stated in
the report are enclosed at Annexure- Il (B) (D) to the
Directors’ Report.

4. Compliance Certificate on Corporate Governance
guidelines

Compliance Certificate have been obtained from M/s Pravin
Chhajer & Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries,
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THTOTOS B e B RUE & srgera—|l () #
e fopar T 2|

6. <Nd sdldR ifa

BRI YT B & A0 T Al ATART (FdrT)
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T HHATRAT 3R UTEDI & oIy HU=N H UH JoTrelr
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e UG Yee Qe BT P SR, IRAAD
7 Gfery GRS & IR H WY dR ) RAé # |
e Avsd &I oraT TRIET AT B R FHey
A e & forg =18l T S & |

7. YUdhcH:

o Full 7 el a1 ST FdAl & Ay g
T Uit o el fhar @ (el grr
IdTe ARhTd U H HUAT IAFTIH B aRT
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o T o | welga Al & Ay | e @l
dlc 9. 226 ¥ T[T AT § S AR Uret
oFed R @ihT AMG—18 & AJAR dIND

Guwahati regarding compliance of the conditions of
Corporate Governance in accordance with the guidelines
issued by Department of Public Enterprises (DPE) is
enclosed at Annexure- Il (C) to the Directors’ Report and
the management replies to the observations stated in the
Compliance Certificate is enclosed at Annexure- Il (D) to
the Directors’ Report.

5. CEO /CFO Certification

In compliance of clause no. 4.5 (vi) of the guidelines on
corporate governance for CPSEs, 2010 issued by the
Department of Public Enterprises (DPE), Chairman &
Managing Director and Director (Finance) of the Company
give annual certificate on financial reporting and internal
controls to the Board of Directors of the Company. The
certificate given by the Chairman & Managing Director
and Director (Finance) is enclosed at Annexure-Il (E) to
the Directors’ Report.

6.  WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY

Your company being a Government Company under the
administrative control by the Ministry of Chemicals and
Fertilizers, Department of Fertilizers is covered under
Central Vigilance Commission (CVC). Therefore, as per
CVC guidelines, a mechanism has been established in
the Company for all its stakeholders to report about
any unethical/corruptible behavior, actual or suspected
fraud to the CVO or the Chairman and Managing Director
directly. No employee has been denied access to the
Chairman of the Audit Committee of the BVFCL Board.

1.  DISCLOSURES :

. The Company has not entered into any related party
transactions with the Directors or their relatives
(Disclosure made by directors individually pursuant
to Section 184 of Companies Act) having potential
interest with the Company at large, which were
noted by the Board in its meeting. Transactions
with related parties are disclosed in Note No. 2.26
forming part of the Annual Accounts, in line with
the Accounting Standard -18 on Related Party
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oIt a1 BT 2

PUEI T Y 2010 H @ld SeH frT (SrdE)
U BT & Y Had ST © |

Ho A foxig 99 2020-21 @& IRE U
rgufa & fden &1 srgure fasar T 2
I8 @ral § @ A6l O BIS A T Srelt
TS & Sl a9 & Yo & forg 7 &1

e s qor WY e & fou O g
g E far T 7 R udia @fRhTd 8 |

f<i =@ &1 gor T H g @9 & gl &
™I H YINIG 3R Braferd I &1 KT T
gfg & PR FFgAR &

2020-21 2019-20

gd | gd faca | @da | @ faw
I DI | I DT | AT BT | FT BT
yfaerd | ufaera | ufaea | ufaea
(eiaR®) (eriaR®)

ERISINER 2.42 A 1.27 NS

Pt @9 | 0.02 LA 0.03 NS

Transactions.

The Company has taken adequate steps to comply
with the guidelines on Corporate Governance issued
by Department of Public Enterprises (DPE), 2010.

The Company has complied with the Presidential
directive received during the financial year 2017-
18.

No items of expenditure debited in the books of
accounts, which are not for the purpose of the
business.

No expenditure incurred which are personal in
nature and incurred for the Board of Directors and
top Management.

Details of Administrative and Office expenses as a
percentage of total expenses vis — a vis financial
expenses and reasons for increase are as under :

2020-21 2019-20 Remarks

% of | % of Total | % of | % of Total
Total | Finance | Total | Finance
Exp. | Exp.(int.) | Exp. | Exp.(Int.)

Administrative | 2.42 Nil 1.27 Nil

Office Exp. 0.02 Nil 0.03 Nil
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g/—
Rra yarg wigdh
el Ud ydy fAevre

fedT® : 29 FdER, 2021
M ;. AHET

ANNEXURE -1l (R) TO DIRECTORS’ REPORT
DECLARATION OF COMPLIANCE OF CODE OF CONDUCT

In compliance with the clause 3.4.2 of guidelines
of Corporate Governance for CPSUs issued by the
Department of Public Enterprises, Board has approved
the Code of Conduct Rules for all members of Board of
Directors and Senior Management of the company, which
has been posted on company’s website www.bvfcl.com.

All the members of Board of Directors and the Senior
Management Executives do hereby affirms the compliance
with the above Code of Conduct Rules.

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Brahmaputra Valley Fertilizer Corpn. Ltd.

Sd/-
Siba Prasad Mohanty
Chairman and Managing Director

Date : 29th November, 2021
Place : Namrup

107



ot <t Tw
BVFC

TGS dell BicaTsoR Have™ fafics

BRAHMAPUTRAVALLEY FERTILIZER CORPORATION LIMITED

fre®l @& Rud &1 sga-a-1l (@)

BTH UHIIR—3
afada dwr gder Raid

31 A9 2021 BT 9 fax<ig 99 & forg
HIAT IIfAFTIH, 2013 BT GRT 204 (1) AR HUA
(Frgfe ik uiiRsiAe w1H®) M, 2014 & 9
H. 9 B IR H

Aar H,

GESUI

98Iqa defl widarsor uiveE fafics

CIN: U24123AS2002G010067386

SIHER: YIdYR, A%y, TeT: fS5re (3r97+)—786623

g fdermT Aifaferes vraemii & rgurer &1 |farer)
oIGT TIeT Bl & 3R FEIYH dell BicArgoR BN
fafics (9@ 91 9 ®U @ ©U H Seold fhar T
8) BRI SPE BIURS Ygfd BT Ui fbar wan
2| Afareril of@T U 39 aNg 9 @ s off b
S §H PIURCT 3MeRTl / HifAd U Hoih
PR R B R BART AT @H B BT Sferd SR

fear 21

P, Al MGl BT WERETT BUN d J&e
P DR B | 89T DR 89R oiar oRiel
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ANNEXURE-II (B) TO DIRECTORS’ REPORT

FORM MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2021
Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act,
2013 and Rule No.9 of the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014

To,

The Members,

BRAHMAPUTRA VALLEY FERTILIZER CORPORATION LIMITED
CIN: U24123AS2002G01006786

PO. Parbatpur, Namrup, Dibrugarh (Assam)-786623

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance
of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to
good corporate practices by BRAHMAPUTRA VALLEY
FERTILIZER CORPORATION LIMITED (hereinafter called
the company). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a
manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating
the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and
expressing our opinion thereon.

We report that:-

a.  Maintenance of Secretarial records is the
responsibility of the management of the Company.
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
secretarial records based on our Audit.

b.  We have followed the Audit practices and processes
as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance
about the correctness of the contents of the
secretarial records. We believe that the processes
and practices, we followed provide a reasonable
basis for our opinion.

c. We have not verified the correctness and
appropriateness of the financial statement of the
Company.
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HINe I Wited feen—fader, 2009;

d.  The compliance of the provisions of the Corporate
and other applicable Laws, rules, regulations,
standards is the responsibility of the management.
Our examination was limited to the verifications of
procedures on test basis.

e.  The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance
as to the future viability of the Company nor of the
efficacy or effectiveness with which the management
has conducted the affairs of the Company.

Based on our verification of the Company’s books,
papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and
other records maintained by the company and also the
information provided by the Company, its officers, agents
and authorized representatives during the conduct of
secretarial audit, We hereby report that in our opinion, the
company has, during the audit period covering the financial
year ended on 31st day of March, 2021 (“audit period”),
complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder
and also that the Company has proper Board-processes
and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the
manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books,
forms and returns filed and other records maintained
by BRAHMAPUTRA VALLEY FERTILIZER CORPORATION
LIMITED. (“The Company”) for the financial year ended on
31st March, 2021 according to the provisions of:

() The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules
made there under;

(i) Other Laws specifically applicable to the Company.

We have also examined compliance with the applicable
clauses of the following:-

a)  Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of
Company Secretaries of India.

b)  Corporate Governance Voluntary Guidelines,
2009 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs,
Government of India.
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AT 3afy) & SR g8 Mawd dsdl Bl FE
H gRqc affafa & yraeEl & srgurerd H by
MY | dle @ dodl, HR-FAI AR BRI
R foega fRwlril &1 FaiRa &= & fau a0
el @ M # $9 ¥ F9 9 T usd
TG AIfEH HST TAT o7 (H8 dIS §6h Pl BISHR
q TehTdl Al IR HH Alfcd WR 486 riterd
PR B forg Qe 4 AedAfa o gg ofl), 3R
45 ¥ Ugel Toisl a¥gall UR 31Nl 3R SHHRI gd
WEETBRUT YT HR ol <refeh Arfiarl & oy e
Ol HI9[E ¢ |

ars o fofa wdwfa | fy o € ik gafer,
BRI & 9N & WY H Dlg (ARG T8 ;AT IR A
B 9 BRI H IO [HAT TAT| U+ BRIgT A
fFeere ded W ura @ fewfor &1 W g< fear
g |

c)  Corporate Governance for Central Public Sector
Enterprises, 2010 issued by Ministry of Heavy
Industries and Public Enterprises, Government of
India.

During the period under review the Company has complied
with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations,
Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above except our
ohservation in Note-1 subject to observation as under:

We further report that:-

The status of the Company during the financial year has
been that of an Unlisted Public sector Company and all
the shares are held in the name of President of India and
officials of Department of Fertilizers, Govt. of India.

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted
except inadequate number of Independent Directors on
the board which is not as per guidelines of Corporate
Governance for Central Public Sector Enterprises,
2010 issued by Ministry of Heavy Industries and Public
Enterprises, Government of India.

The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors
that took place during the period under review were
carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.
Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the
Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda
were sent at least seven days in advance, (except at
few board meeting when consent was received from the
directors to hold meeting at shorter notice on urgent
matters) and a system exists for seeking and obtaining
further information and clarifications on the agenda items
before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the
meeting.

Board decisions are carried out with unanimous consent
and therefore, no dissenting views were required to
be captured and recorded as part of the minutes. The
Company has also recorded few comments received from
the Board of Directors in the minutes of the Company.
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& 3t g WY Ruld oxad & & femm o,
FHRed e & oY SU & ATHR AR Taredd &
IR HUR H g yonferat iR wufharg € |

B4 AT RUIE ovd @ & orarodien s@fe & SRM
FHo # VA B T/ dRarE T8 g8 off e
AMDI MG & JFERV H Ul D AHAl W By
THTg TT B |

g9 3T RUie oxd & & oRaulen 3rafdy & SR
fr=feRad &1 BIs AFT |AH F81 AT

I IR/ fSdoR /e sfaady anfe &1 greavifae /
DR / JAHAT HET ;

i FfRfRr @1 T gRh /arm TNT;

iii.  BUT AMAFTIE, 2013 BT GRT 180 & IFTUTAA
# wewl g1 fow v v ot

v. fdera /e / gAE, e,

v. faceh @ aEanT |

I FdIOT BIOR U€ THIRIYCH
HUAl Afa

8./ —
(TdIvT IR BIGR)
RIS R
THGET: U25787
eI 9231
faT®: 27.11.2021
TIT: T[aTeTel
Jerems e A025787C001573509

feagofy:

1. BER oGl G & SR, I§ ol AT fdh
v Hed, of@r wieT aifa R uiRafe
gfafd ¥ wwdz el @ W, dod

We further report that there are adequate systems and
processes in the company commensurate with the size
and operations of the company to monitor and ensure
compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and
guidelines.

We further report that during the audit period the
company had no specific events / actions which have a
major bearing on the company’s affairs in pursuance of
the above referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines,
standards, etc.

We further report that during the audit period there were
no instances of:

() Public/Right/Preferential issue of
debentures/sweat equity, etc.;

shares /

(i) Redemption / buy-back of securities;

(i) Major decisions taken by the members in pursuance
to section 180 of the Companies Act, 2013;

(iv)  Merger / amalgamation / reconstruction, etc.;

(v)  Foreign technical collaborations.

FOR PRAVIN CHHAJER & ASSOCIATES
COMPANY SECRETARIES

SD/-

(PRAVIN KUMAR CHHAJER)

Proprietor

M. No.: A25787

COP: 9231
Date: 27.11.2021
Place: GUWAHATI

UDIN: A025787C001573509

Note:

1. During the course of our Audit, it was observed
that the number of Independent Directors on the
Board of Directors, Audit Committee, Remuneration
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ArdSiE &5 & Seml & foy dlaRe wema
TR 2010 RT SN by 1Y feenfenl & o aR
&l oft, R 9 el Ud e SEH 3R
ATdGih M HAT, YRT IRGR gIRT ST
fopar T or| I8 A <@ mr o Ay ki
99 2021—22 & CRME, BUAl & dle § gIT
AT § WA el iR vmsH |fafay @
s far 1 ok da ArEsie 8 b
STl @ folU HRURE A+ 2010, YR ST
IR GG SEH HATG, YRT WRAR gRT

SRY feRm—ferdel &1 srgurer fabar 1 |

AN IEURIE & SR, I§ ol A e
oG oM fRT (S19E) gRT SRy = ifor
IR feonfde & erfgT w AGvaEs &
Hae # g1 argurer Rulc (2020—21) ffdse
RIS #Aad BT Giod fhar 137 or | /14
G 3R YR A I Haled §o Sy
feenfreeT aruTed & foly uded & faemRmed=
€ | 39 3fefral, 31 aRe B fewfordl @1 ol
H R gdad! Afed dEgRier R 7
Jaa b a1 o | Feed Hsd Bl 59 Hay
T TP HRATS BRI FoATe ol Sl 2 |

FART TETURIE & SR, I8 <@l A fb
U 7 gRsIfAE AfRfy @ PIg 9o T8 Bl
2127 /11 /2020 BT AT e Hedd &1
Jo@ # uIRsIAe Afffa & &7 F A 3T d5b
MG &R &1 WY fofg ferar am, st fo
DoieX 9¥ B YD BHEI H HH A BH TH
Job AT BT Y |

TARI SIETORIET & SR, I8 <@l T b
PUFT DT AITHAR AT DI 7T B feam ar
off Hifs HU-N TIC H I &l SHls & 3MR
U IAMAFTIH, 2013 B GRT 135 B UGl H
HIIRS AMINTG SR & Ui AHcs
BT gAY G D fol¢ Ul & U g AR
STl &l B |

Committee of the Company were not as per the
guidelines issued on Corporate Governance for
Central Public Sector Enterprises, 2010, issued by
Ministry of Heavy Industries and Public Enterprises,
Government of India. It was also observed that
during the current Financial year 2021- 22, the
adequate number of Independent Directors on the
Board of the Company and respected Committee
were appointed and complied with the guidelines
issued on Corporate Governance for Central Public
Sector Enterprises, 2010, issued by Ministry
of Heavy Industries and Public Enterprises,
Government of India.

During the course of our Audit, it was observed that
Annual Compliance Report (2020-21) in respect of
CPSE’s on implementation of Policies and guidelines
issued by Department of Public Enterprise (DPE)
were reported to the Administrative Ministry
specified. Few DPE guidelines pertaining to HR and
administration matters are under the consideration
of management for compliance. Further, similar
observations were also reported in the Earlier
Secretarial Audit report issued to the Company. The
Board of Directors are advised to take necessary
action in this regard.

During the course of our audit, it was observed
that the Company has not held any meeting of
Remuneration Committee. The meeting of the Board
of Directors held on 27/11/2020, also decided to
hold at least two meetings of the Remuneration
Committee provided that at least one meeting to
be conducted in each half of the calendar year.

During the Course of our audit, it was observed
that the CSR Committee of the Company was
dissolved as the Company is a loss making unit
and the criteria enumerated in the provisions of
Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 regarding
the Corporate Social Responsibility has ceased to
attract the Company.
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CIN: U24123AS2002G010067386

SIHER: YIdYR, AHwy, STeT: S5Te (3197+)—786623

gAY 9N SET 3R Ardeiie S #ATe™, WRd
WRHR RT SN JAET g oAld & S,
2010 & forg fovmm erferemas R feenfacen & fAuiRa
AR 31 HE 2021 B WA 99 & (ol F&YA
Jell BidagoR ®IReE fafics (due) grRT fAm
AR @7 Al & U B Sid B ¢ |

e srferemres @1 wrdl @1 SruTeE gdEe @
e & | g9 S e srfdemee @ vl @
TS gfspamell iR drRIagd d@ & AT off | I8 |
I oiar g 8 SR 7 € Ul & faxii faarer w
M BT ARG T |

BRI I H 3R AN HAH SIMGRI & AR 3R
g 3T Ty TR & SR, & W ARd §
6 TR | Wen & IRE @ T8 §B fewfrr
Pl BISHY HUHT 7 IRT ST 3R Ald STH HAT,
IRA AR gRT JAT [T AR IR Hd
JIh &3 JeM, 2010 B HWR SfodtRad FRTHT o
# fefRa orat @ urem foar 2|

B9 31 I8 Iooikd B © 1 I8 AT 7 dl Hul
DI AT FIERIdr iR 9 & gerar a1 ywraeiierdr &
forg Ig amzard ¥ RNy dee geud 3 39 Bl
BT Tt fhar 2|

ANNEXURE-II (C ) TO DIRECTORS’ REPORT
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CERTIFICATE

To,

The Members,

BRAHMAPUTRA VALLEY FERTILIZER COPORATION LIMITED
CIN: U24123AS2002G0I006786

PO. Parbatpur, Namrup, Dibrugarh (Assam)-786623

We have examined the Compliance of Conditions of
Corporate Governance by BRAHMAPUTRA VALLEY
FERTILIZER CORPORATION LIMITED (“The Company™) for
the year ended on 31st March 2021 as stipulated in the
guidelines on Corporate Governance for Central Public
Sector Enterprises, 2010 as amended issued by Ministry
of Heavy Industries and Public Enterprises, Government
of India.

The Compliance of Conditions of Corporate Governance
is the responsibility of the management. Our examination
was limited to the procedures and implementation thereof,
adopted by the Company for ensuring the Compliance of
the Conditions of Corporate Governance. It is neither
an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial
statement of the Company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanation given to us, we certify
that the Company has complied with the Conditions
of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the above
mentioned Corporate Governance for Central Public
Sector Enterprises, 2010 as amended issued by Ministry
of Heavy Industries and Public Enterprises, Government of
India, as applicable except few observations made during
the course of our Audit.

We further state that such compliance is neither an
assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor
the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management
has conducted the affairs of the Company.
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feomfaden &5 ) erffard sraf &1 gres f=rferfRgg All mandatory conditions of the said guidelines were
complied subject to following observations:-

fewforgt & ef= fovar ar om —

1

2)

4)

TARI oGl TR & SRME I8 <@l T feb
P & QYd Aed 3R ol uien Afifa &
dd Fewel @ e IR ST iR dAld
STH HAT ARd WRAR HATd §RT oI
Pl Alb &3 SeH 2010 B BARS I
R SR feenewl & ey Fgl ol | Hu
I & Q9d BT Foarg & e 8 b a8 39
fovg # Sfua eriarEl o | I8 W <@n T b
gaae fa<ia a9 2021—22 & ERM, HIN B
ars H ygiw g1 H WA el @ Fgie
TRAT WRPBR §RT HRURE Ta=4 feenf~dat &
AR B T oY |

TARI SIETORET & SR, I8 <@l T fb
oG Sed fORT (S19E) gRT SRy = ifo
IR feenfcen & eI W Adas @
g H i JguTe Rure (2020—21) ffdse
RIS #ATEd BT giad fhar w37 or | /94
G 3R IR A G $8 S
feenfresT sruTed & foly uded & e\
2| S 3fATdl, S I8 & TWoRN o1 Hu=
B SN gdadt Afad orarader Raid # of
Jaa far 1 o | (Feed Hsd Bl 59 Hay
T IIID HRATS BRI FolTg ol el 2 |

TARI SIETORIET & SR, I8 <@l T fb
FIT ° RS AT B B dob & B
2127 /11 /2020 BT ARG e Hedd &I
Jo® H UIRsA® AT o &9 9 &9 <1 dob
M &= &1 WY ol forar am, st f&
Dolek I P UAD BAR! H HH T HH UD
Jod AT BT Y |

BN oIGTONIeT & SRIF, I8 o™l AT b
HUAT DT ATTHIR I Br 7 B fear T
o FIfd HUN °OIe | Il V& ghls & AR

1)

2)

3)

4)

During the course of our Audit, it was observed
that the number of Independent Directors on the
Board of Directors, Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee of the Company were not as per the
guidelines issued on Corporate Governance for
Central Public Sector Enterprises, 2010, issued by
Ministry of Heavy Industries and Public Enterprises,
Government of India. It was also observed that
during the current financial year 2021-22, the
adequate number of Independent Directors on
the Board of the Company were appointed by the
Government of India as per Corporate Governance
guidelines.

During the course of our Audit, it was observed that
Annual Compliance Report (2020-21) in respect of
CPSE’s on implementation of Policies and guidelines
issued by Department of Public Enterprise (DPE)
were reported to the Administrative Ministry
specified. few DPE guidelines pertaining to HR and
Administration matters are under the consideration
of management for compliance. Further, similar
observations were also reported in the Earlier
Secretarial Audit report issued to the Company. The
Board of Directors are advised to take necessary
action in this regard.

During the course of our audit, it was observed
that the Company has not held any meeting of
Remuneration Committee. The meeting of the
Board of Directors held on 27/11/2020, also
decided to hold at least two meetings of the
Remuneration Committee provided that at least
one meeting to be conducted in each half of the
calendar year.

During the Course of our audit, it was observed
that the CSR Committee of the Company was
dissolved as the Company is a loss making unit
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HYAT FAFTIH, 2013 BT IRT 135 & UG & and the criteria enumerated in the provisions of
HaNe GEfTe STReRa & Aoy grcs Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 regarding
B AN G B 0 FUN B U gITT AT the Corporate Social Responsibility has ceased to

IUAE Tl T | attract the Company.

FOR PRAVIN CHHAJER & ASSOCIATES

$d wdIvT BIoR Us galfiigew COMPANY SECRETARIES
HYAT Ggfeq

g /— Sd/-

(T BAR BIR) (PRAVIN KUMAR CHHAJER)

TIORTS R Proprietor

7w 3R A25787 M. No.. A25787

<aird: 9231 COP: 9231

TSiaE T A025787C001573553 UDIN: A025787C001573353

: Date: 27.11.2021
TRl 27.11.2021 Place: GUWAHAT

RSZIGH gzrrgrc‘“[
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o<l 99 31 9, 2021 & foru Ao arfdrema= ik’ MANAGEMENT REPLIES ON THE OBSERVATIONS OF CORPORATE

afraTerl) oRaT TdET SEEe @ RS /S GOVERNANCE CERTIFICATE AND SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT FOR
THE FINANCIAL YEAR 31ST MARCH, 2021

ANNEXURE-II (D) TO DIRECTORS’ REPORT

9T T fE AreiNe S
fmT (SE) g1 SR <ifora

@ ATAR AT HHE

AR YT Al 9

R faenfaden & @t
w® Wvgs & ddy § afife
JguTer  RUIE (2020—21)

Hqefa ufTe Sids
feenfocdet &1 @mg
A b U IavIs

fafde wemafe H=me @t
gea fear T oor| AEg
A SR U AWl
Hafg @ <O e
U & folg ueEd @
foarTeig €1 s 3rerar, g
WE P fewfora o Bu= B
SR gdadi e elarasien

URTHS  HRATS D

SIEEES

it was observed that Annual
Compliance  Report  (2020-
21) in respect of CPSE’'s on
implementation of Policies and
guidelines issued by Department
of Public Enterprise (DPE) were
reported to the Administrative
Ministry  specified. few DPE
guidelines pertaining to HR and
Administration matters are under
the consideration of management
for compliance. Further, similar
observations were also reported
in the earlier Secretarial Audit
report issued to the Company.

ﬁtﬁéﬁ; i qﬁ wfE fe W Qﬂl The Board of Directors are
qeA PN TH e A advised to take necessary action

JNMATIH HRATS B DI AATE in this regard.

CURSICI

. feugofy PECERNEGIC] S. Observations Management replies
3| No.
1 |59 oEr wem & SR |9 BUH 1 |During the course of our Audit, | Statement of Fact.
Jg Q@ T b Ul B it was observed that the number
feee Heo iR orar udier of Independent Directors  on
TR @ vads Creewi 9 the Board of Directors, Audit
L N Committee, Remuneration
) Committee of the Company were
SEH e XA SRR not as per the guidelines issued
SN av; S <l & e on Corporate Governance for
2010 @& WHIINE AT W SR Central Public Sector Enterprises,
feenfrdell & orgwu T | 2010, issued by Ministry of Heavy
g 1 <@ m & gdae Industries and Public Enterprises,
i af 2021—22 @ SRM, Government of India. It was also
FOH T A H O e H observed that during the current
S e Bt financial year 2021-22, the
afr 3 W; adeguate number of Independent
N m Directors on the Board of the
enfdel & IR &1 T €| Company were appointed by
the Government of India as per
Corporate Governance guidelines
2 |ER WEwiEeT & SR, I8 |0 fa<ia 9¥ H Aee 2 |During the course of our Audit, | The necessary corrective

actions are being taken to
implement the relevant
DPE guidelines related
to HR and Administration
matters as advised in the
current financial year.
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T AT 6 BT T UTRSHD
|ffT @ Big d8F TE B

Tod ¥ 9—9Fg W
Rad= 8 Y& § | 31

21 27 /11 /2020 B AR
feers dsd @ d8d  H
TR Affd @ &9 d
PH T §3D IMMARTT BT BT
f foofa forar wram, gerd &
Polex 9Y B UAD BAE! |

ferd Hsd @ oA H
I5ad & 915 RIS
wd o= wfAfa @
gTied  JAHd dle
gR1 fdar e
ERE IR I CRRG T

B W PH Ud d3d I
B WY |

o
STUTAT ThIT ST |

TAN! TR & QRM, I8
TET AT o B B AR
AfAfT BT {7 B feIr T e
Fife BUN " H dd @
IHE T IR U rfdfem,
2013 P ORI 135 & W@ H
HIURT AHINS SR &
FuiRa aMds @ 91U e
% fou dol & U gai
A STl &l # |

q hUA

was observed that the Company
has not held any meeting of
Remuneration ~ Committee.The
meeting of the Board of Directors
held on 27/11/2020, also decided
to hold atleast two meetings of
the Remuneration Committee
provided that at least one
meeting to be conducted in each
half of the calendar year.

in the composition of
Remuneration Committee
from time to time.
Now, after the changes
in the composition of
Board of Directors, the
remuneration and other
committee will be re-
constituted by the Board
in due course. The
necessary compliance will
be made in this regard.

During the Course of our audit,
it was observed that the CSR
Committee of the Company was
dissolved as the Company is a
loss making unit and the criteria
enumerated in the provisions of
Section 135 of the Companies Act,
2013 regarding the Corporate
Social Responsibility has ceased
to attract the Company.

Statement of Fact.
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oo dsd,
981qd dell Bfdager siulkeE fafics, rey

#, oW HAR 91, 3emet Ud wdy fewred, gard dg
TN, e ([9<), s81qa defl BidAsoR HiuNe™
fafics Afivws, 2010 @ ffaa Siferemas <eeh
feencell & @S 45 (i) & AR UAGEN I8
UHIOTT xR éﬁ?

(@) B9 31 W€, 2021 P A g¢ fa<ig a9 &
forv foxig faaRor 8iR Addl gare faavor @t
THET B ® R FARI HalkH SMeRI 38R
[EACIGECCR I

) 3 ARl # PIg aR<fde wU A Blg
g faamer 98 g W &) avafds
qT ®T A9 el fhar 37 § a1 U1 Dig
faqzor enfiaer =21 € S 9T 81 AT g;

i) A AR U B BT BT U Al AR
fAreger gfedIvr IRgT wRd § IR AT
AT AHDI, AN Bl AR At
& T H € |

AR A TSR] R favar & R,

31 #T€, 2021 B FAG Y o7 99 & IR

BU RT PIS oFed o T8l fbar war i

HUAT BT AR FfedT BT SooTed IT LTS,

37T BT |

gH fa<ira Ruifée & forg sraRe fFri=or wenfud

P 3R B Y WA B FORIERNT WIeR

P IMARS T Jomell &1 gwraiierar &1

ANNEXURE- 11 (E) TO DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Certification of Chief Executive Officer and Chief Finance
Officer in compliance of Guidelines on Corporate Governance
for CPSEs, 2010

To,
The Board of Directors
Brahmaputra Valley Fertilizer Corporation Limited, Namrup

|, Ashim Kumar Ghosh, Chairman and Managing
Director and Subash Chandra Das, Director (Finance)
of Brahmaputra Valley Fertilizer Corporation Limited do
hereby give certification as per Clause 4.5 (vi) of the
Guidelines on Corporate Governance for CPSEs, 2010,
that:

(@)  We have reviewed the financial statements and the
cash flow statement for the financial year ended
31st March, 2021 and that to the best of my
knowledge and belief:

() These statements do not contain any
materially untrue statement or omit any
material fact or contain statements that
might be misleading;

(i) These statements together present a true
and fair view of the company’s affairs and
are in compliance with existing accounting
standards, applicable laws and Regulations.

(b) To the best of our knowledge and belief, no
transactions entered into by the Company during
the financial year ended 31st March, 2021 which
are fraudulent, illegal or violates the Company’s
code of conduct.

(c)  We accept the responsibility for establishing and
maintaining internal controls for financial reporting
and we have evaluated the effectiveness of Internal
Control Systems of the Company pertaining to
financial reporting and we have disclosed to the
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qRIH fhar & T 849 i@l wWiefdl 3iR
TR AT B e A1 U AARS
FFRIF0T, @1 WUl H BHI, BT GeIar dx fadn
2 afe o &, s IR § g1 IFaRT 2, *iR
S QU B YURA & oY 89N gRT fby ¢
T IRATAT U & IR H I 2 |

auditors and the Audit Committee, deficiencies in
the design or operation or such internal control,
if any, of which we are aware and the steps we
have taken or propose to take to rectify these
deficiencies.

(@) T o Wl R ol |fAfd @ () We have indicated to the auditors and the Audit
gam™T g & Committee that :
) 31 HE, 2021 B A foRI 99 & ()  There was no significant change in internal
M fo<im Raifdn wR enaRe o control over financial reporting during the
# BIS AEEyYl 9GATd TEl g B financial year ended 31st March, 2021;
i) 31 A, 2021 @ G RN a9 @& (i) There was no significant change in accounting
IRE oEiee Aift # @i wEyof policies during the financial year ended 31st
Seeltg TE AT ®; March, 2021; and
i) 31 A, 2021 B G RN a9 & (i) We have not come across any instance during
SR & 5 991 gIETeST &1 udr T8l the financial year ended 31st March, 2021
o & Rt ydue a1 et e @ of any significant fraud and the involvement
ARl i 8 @R RRE o of the management or an employee having
aiaRe FrEEer yome sl i Rafsr a significant role in the Company’s internal
. trol system over financial reporting.
% 1S fer 2| eon
g. / — 8./— Sd/- Sd/-
(garer 9w <T4) (@rT AR =) (Subash Chandra Das) (Ashim Kumar Ghosh)

freeres (far)
DIN : 08988297

el Ud gdy fAeere
DIN : 08222413

Director (Finance)
DIN : 08988297

Chairman and Managing Director
DIN : 08222413

feATd  30.09.2021
W : TS

Date : 30.09.2021
Place: Namrup
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Hadenfae @r e a1 fewfrat

Ud-E-1 Dl 3I<IX

3. 9l fsf¥=aar 9 defea Ridae-e ama

®T 19 JoT 25128.04 ARG JUY AHRID 2 |

Pl TR =TS H = J81 8 AR 59 A1l A1 Bl Bl 13775,
24 TRI BUY BT ©IST GAT 8, FTAH 13775.24 R BUY &I
a8 P U ¥TRR YSH 36583.24 oG ¥UY & RIATh
gfg |

9 UBR WK HU I VAT T © fd BUAl &I AR das
B R A ¢ AR T T & (U PR A §B fI<ig werdn

& A g foidr & SiRded BT g9 S I @ |

HU B fag fqavor Ridoie R w® R fHu
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ANNEKURE-11l, FORMING PART OF DIRECTO'S REPORT

Revised Management Replies on the ohservations stated in independent Audit Report for the financialyearended 31 March, 2021.

STATUTORY AUDITORS’ OBSERVATIONS

MANAGEMENT REPLY

3. Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern

The net worth of the Company has been totally eroded, as the net
worth of the Company is in negative of Rs. 25128.04 Lakhs.

The company is continuously running in loss and this year also
the company has incurred loss of Rs. 13775.24 Lakhs, which has
geared up the accumulated loss to Rs. 61711.28 Lakhs against its
Share Capital of Rs. 36583.24 Lakhs. .

Thus apparently it seems that the Company's existence of Going
Concern is under doubt unless and until the company would get
some major Financial Reshuffle or Support from Govt.

Financial Statements of the company has been prepared
on a going concern basis. Management is responsible for
assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern and BVFCL being a CPSU in core sector & lead
fertilizer supplier cater to the requirement of entire north
eastern states. Gol/ BVFCL management has no intention
to cease the operation of the company because of erosion
in net worth.

4. KEY AUDIT MATTERS :

4.1 The current reporting period loss of Rs. 13775.24 Lakhs is
after accounting of prior period net income of Rs. 358.41 Lakhs.
Thus without considering Prior Period income the Company real
current year loss is of Rs. 14133.65 Lakhs.

Statement of Fact.

4.2 The Company has not paid or provided for liability of Renewal
Purchase Obligation for the Financial Year 2014-15 to 2020-21
Rs. approx 666.92 Lakhs (calculated as per last traded rate of
REC certificates was updated on June — 2020 as per Indian Energy
Exchange Website) .

The Company has not paid or provided for liability of
Renewable Purchase Obligation for the Financial Year
2015-16 to 2020-21 approximating Rs.666.92 Lakhs
(calculated as per last traded rate of REC certificates
during June, 2020 as per Indian Energy Exchange Website)
Excluding GST and IEX charges. In this regard an appeal for
exemption of RPO was filed before Regulatory Authority.
Assam Electricity Regulatory Commission advised BVFCL
management to raise the issue of non compliance of RPO
with MNRE through MoC8&F. Board in its 105™ meeting has
authorized Executing Management to approach Ministry
of New & Renewable Energy, Gol through DoF to get the
exemption for BVFCL from the compliance of Orders of
AERC Regulatory Authorities.

4.3 As per FICC Regulation, the Company is entitled to claim the
subsidy only after clearance of stock from ultimate Point of Sale,
i.e ultimate sell to the agricultural consumers. But the Company
has accounted Subsidy Income in the Financial Year 2020-21
amounting to Rs.1276.28 Lakhs without clearance of Stock from
ultimate Point of Sale (i.e. on the POS stock 20176.121 MT lying
with whole sellers and retailers as on 31.03.2021).

Revenue is recognized when performance obligation is
satisfied by the company by transferring control of goods
or services to the customer (i.e. dealer/ whole seller) and
it is probable that consideration will be received regardless
of when the payment is actually received.
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The BVFCL management has explained the company has accounted
subsidy income of Rs. 1276.28 lakhs on the POS stock, as per
past precedence and the BVFCL managements are putting their
best efforts to liquidate the BVFCL neem coated urea stock from
whole sellers to retailers and from retailers to end users.

As regards the urea stock of 20176.21 MT lying with whole
seller/ dealers, retailers etc. as on dated 31.03.2021, the
entire quantity has been fully liquidated before 15.06.2021
through POS sale & Accordingly subsidy hills have been
submitted to DoF & settled thereafter.

4.4 There is reported POS Stock of 20176.121 MT against the
total Sale of 1,37,569.455 MT of Urea during the year. Thus
around 2 months of the urea sales is reported to lying as POS
Stock, in spite of very high demand of urea and scarcity of supply
of Urea. Internal Auditor has reported substantial shortage of
Physical Stock of Urea in cases of verification of go down stock of
two dealers out of 4 verified dealers on 11.02.2020 at Tinsukia.
Thus the chances of misappropriation / diversion of urea stock in
black market cannot denied by the designated wholesalers. This
shows complete lacking of Internal Control System of Dealers
Stock by the BVFCL Management.

BVFCL urea stock of 20176.121 MT as on 31.03.2021
has been liquidated before 15/06/2021. The total PoS sale
up to 15% June’21 is 22447.755 MT and corresponding
subsidy has already been reimbursed through weekly DBT
bill.

Audit observation is noted regarding discrepancy in
physical & book stocks of the concerned dealers. Suitable
instructions will be issued to all field Marketing officials
to periodically visit all the dealers and verify the physical
stocks and give report to Management if any deviation is
observed.

4.5 As per physical verification report produced by the
management, the Company has found shortage of Finished
Goods of only 20.865 MT of Urea Stock out of total Opening &
Production stock of 1,44,490.345 MT Stock of Urea. Thus as per
physical verification report there is only nominal shortage of Urea
Stock of around 0.01%. As per newspapers report dated 28th
August 2021 the local police has arrested two marketing officials
of BVFCL on 29/08/2021 on the alleged excess bag unloading of
Urea Stock found at Tinsukia Railway Yard. The incident of arrest
of two marketing officers on alleged involvement in dispatch of
excess bag itself reveals the lacking of internal control system on
dispatch of Urea Stock from Production Department to Marketing
Department and also from Marketing Department to Railway
Loading Yard / Truck Consignments. This issue also raises suspicion
on proper accounting of production of Urea Stock, in view of very
normal shortage of Urea Stock on physical verification but the
incident of unaccounted dispatch of Urea Stock.

The quantity of shortage of Finished Goods of 20.865 MT
was the figure that had been found in the Physical Stock
Verification in the fourth quarter ending 31st March, 2021
which was well within the approved norm. This has been
already put up to Audit Committee in its 69th Meeting
dated 13/05/2021.

The nominal shortage of Urea stock of around 0.01%
pertains to the 1% quarter of FY 2021-22 which is yet to be
taken note by the Audit Committee and for the 2" quarter
of 2021-22 will be done after 30th September 2021.

Regarding dispatch of excess bags of Urea through Railway,
the matter is under investigation by Namrup Police Station
as well as by Vigilance Deptt. The reports are awaited.

After occurrence of this event, internal control system
has been further strengthened by way of deployment of
sufficient numbers of officials to supervise/counting of bags
during wagon loading activities.

4.6 The Company has allowed credit sales of Rs. 1056.29 Lakhs
as at 31st March 2021 to 131 Dealers (all Non Govt. and/ or Non
PSU dealers) against their Security Deposits amounting to Rs.
346.48 Lakhs, thus there is excess credit limit allowed to the Pvt.
Dealers amounting to Rs.709.81 Lakhs

The BVFCL management has explained that credit sale without
adequate security cover were allowed on trading goods only and
not on the own manufactured products of Urea & Bio Fertilizer.
But we were not in a position to verify this contention of the

Entire sale of BVFCL owns products i.e. Urea, Vermi-
compost & Bio fertilizers are done only after receipt of
payment from the dealers. Only trading products are
allowed for sale on credit basis. For business growth of
the company & improvement in Topline, credit period are
normally allowed to the dealers for traded product. In case
of trading product there is no involvement of BVFCL working
capital. After realization of amount against credit sale from
dealers' amount is paid to suppliers. As sale of trading
product is made on credit basis due to this reasons
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management, as the Company do not maintain separate account
ledgers of the dealers for sale of own Manufactured Goods and Sale
of Trading Goods, in spite of specific direction of Audit Committee
Meeting dated 27* November 2020 that “existing practice of
consolidated accounting of Urea & Trading business in the books of
accounts of the company is not proper and desired that it should
be kept under separate accounting heads with immediate effects.”

Rs. 1056.90 lakh stands as debtors and Rs. 1651.87
lakhs stands as creditors as payable to supplier as on
31.03.2021.

From beginning BVFCL product & trading products were
booked jointly in accounts. As we are using unix and COBOL
based old FAS accounting software and system could not
generate separate ledger for own and trading product. After
proposed implementation of “ERP-SAP system”, separate
accounting to be maintained in respect of each product.

4.7 Trade Receivables of Rs. 852.42 Lakhs (Notes 2.12) includes
claim for subsidy receivables from Ministry Rs. 2.25 Lakhs (of the
Year 2010) which seem to be not realizable.

The BVFCL Management has explained that the company is still
hopeful to get back the subsidy receivable from Ministry of Rs.
2.25 lakhs.

Rs. 2.25 lakhs as receivable from Ministry stands in
accounts from 2010 is noted and required provision will be
made in next financial year 2021-22.

4.8 Short Term Loans and Advances Rs. 3538.12 Lakhs (Note
2.14) includes Input Credit on account of GST Rs. 3033.33 lakhs,
whereas as per GST portal electronic credit ledger balance as on
31st March 2021 is Rs. 3223.63 lakhs.

Statement of Fact

4.9 Short Term Loans and Advances Rs. 3538.12 Lakhs (Note
2.14) includes prepaid expenses of Rs. 70.39 Lakhs paid to the
various Transporters during the Financial Year 2016-17 to 2020-
27 against their produced bill in respective Financial Years. But the
Company has not booked the corresponding expenditure against
this prepaid expenses in the year of availing the services.

The management has explained that the company shall reconcile
all these payments of Rs. 70.39 lakhs with the respective party
ledgers and if require shall pass the due adjustment entries in FY
2021 - 22

Statement of fact. Rs. 11.90 lakhs is being reconciled for
the FY 2019-20.

4.10 Other Current Assets Rs. 268.06 Lakhs (Note 2.15)
includes Sundry Debtors Estate of Rs. 216.31 Lakhs (Original
dues of Rs. 413.88 lakhs Less Provisions for Doubtful Debts Rs.
197.57 Lakhs), against one year accounted income of Rs. 243.55
Lakhs ( Note 2.17). Thus almost 10 months accounted income is
still blocked as arrear receivables from Tenant. BVFCL has granted
tenancy right to others on the guarantee of BVFCL Employeel(s],
however BVFCL has never exercised to revoke such guarantee
of its employee to recover the dues from defaulting tenants.
Further out of total 2726 Quarters 124 Quarters are reported
to be vacant, 2 Quarters under unauthorized Occupation and 209
Quarters declared as unfit, but the exact status report of the
these 335 Quarters could not be furnished by the management,
even on the requisitions made by the Internal Auditors.

Regarding recovery & liquidation of outstanding dues from
defaulters, the following actions have been taken:

1. Minimum two Notices issued to defaulters.

2. In case no positive response comes from defaulters
after receipt of minimum two notices, cases are reported
to the Estate Court for recovery and eviction from
quarters.

3. As on date, 25 cases are under disposal of the Estate
Court.

Regarding exact status report of the 335 quarters, the

report was already been submitted to the Internal Audit
on 31/05/2021.
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4.11 Financial Concurrence System in BVFCL is currently monitored
and guided by a three pages Inter Office Memorandum dated
12/12/2015 by the then Deputy Finance Manager to the then
CMD of BVFCL, proposing to exercise the Financial Concurrence
Right by the different ranks of BVFCL officials based on volume of
expenditures. The then CMD by his note dated 12/12/2015 has
recommended on the said IOM to form a committee to re- design the
existing DOP. But the Company has not formed any such committee
till date and thereby the company is continuously adopting the said
IOM dated 12/12/2015 for exercising of Financial Delegation and
Concurrence. The Financial delegation power proposed in the I0M
dated 12/12/2015 is only a half hearted draft without complying
the guideline of General Financial Rule applicable on PSU and also not
vetted by the Board of the Company.

As per Audit Committee minutes dated 24th December 2020, the
Audit Committee was informed that the draft Delegation of Power
(DOPJ of CMD, BVFCL, has been prepared after thoroughly examining
each point by the constituted Committee in the light of DOP of
NFL, RCF & BCPL. After detailed deliberation, Audit Committee
recommends the proposed DOP of CMD, BVFCL and powers are
required to be sub - delegated by CMD to the Functional Director
of the Company in appropriate manner, as early as possible for
approval of the Board. While Sub Delegating powers by CMD, there
must be a three tiers system adopted and followed in the entire
organization always. Further Audit Committee stressed that , while
finalisation of delegation of powers, the provision contained in GFR
and observations of Statutory Auditors and the three tier system
suggested by the BOD to be followed at all stages, so that there will
be value addition in decision making and also to ensure internal check
and Balance. The BOD Committee on the same day also approved the
recommendation of Audit Committee.

However, the Company has not yet finalised the DOP. as suggested
by the Audit Committee & BOD.

The Company has even seen to superseded the prescribed financial
delegation power proposed in the stated IOM dated 12/12/2015, as
the financial concurrence for expenditure beyond of Rs. Fifty Lakhs
were seen to be granted merely on the recommendation of Two Tier
Delegation System.

Few Examples of such cases are:
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Name Work Name Designation of | Date of Total work
Contractors | Officers involved | award of Value (Rs.
of in granting and | Contract in Lakhs)

recommending
Financial
Concurrence.

bottom hemisphere | Associated | DGM (Finance) |05.10.2020 |94.28
liner petals works Infra | & CMD
replacement job Put. Ltd.
of Urea-lll Plant
on nomination to

single party.

Handling of Urea | M/s. Chetia | DFM (I/C) & 30.09.2020 |81.24
for dispatch from | Infracom CMD

BVFCL Plants

Handling of Urea | M/s. Chetia | DFM (I/C) 31.07.2020 |670.11
for dispatch from | Infracom & Director

BVFCL Plants Finance

As per Board Resolution dated 30th June 2020, the Company
Management was directed to place the details of contracts awarded
on nomination/ single tender basis before the Board every quarter
in compliance of CVC guidelines. However the Company Management
seems to be totally non compliant on this direction of Board.

The BVFCL is a PSU and hence it is bound to follow the proper
internal control and internal checks mechanism on all of its Financial
Transactions and must exercise more vigil checks and controls
particularly on granting the concurrence for high volume of Financial
Transactions. But the instances of allowing to bypass the internal
control mechanism (even of highest slab of Financial Transactions)
from the hand of a sitting middle officer cannot be treated as vigil
checks and controls of Financial Transactions.

Further the Company is adopting the very old pattern of L1 Price
Criteria instead of adopting to ‘Weighted average method of Quoted
Price & Technical Experience of bidders’ for granting Financial
Concurrence even for the appointment of specialize services
providers like appointment of Technical Consultants, Internal Auditors
etc. and thereby indirectly debarring entry to the more deserving
and specialized professionals/ technical experts and ultimately the
company is being deprived of from getting best specialize services
within time bound due to failure vendors in delivering the accepted
assignments (like non implementation of ERP System by the
appointed consultants M/s Alfa Links Technologies, Bangalore even
after wasting of most of time and energy of the BVFCL Officials.
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Finance Department acts as a facilitator to the executing
department in various ways such as pointing out deficiencies for
necessary corrections, giving the appropriate suggestions in case
of faulty procedures being followed, helping the negotiation team by
providing commercial data, etc. In view if the latest changes made in
the Companies Act 2013, enhancing the role of statutory auditors
and in view of CSG’s reports on mega corruptions, particularly in
26 spectrum scam, commonwealth games scam and other scams,
it would be prudent to have and independent finance concurrence
department with due scope of proper internal control in all PSUs
who ensures that the policies, systems, procedures and delegation
of powers laid-down by the management are complied in all respects.

Department of Expenditure (under Ministry of Finance, Govt. of India
has prescribed General Financial Rules 2017. General Financial Rules
(GFRs) are a compilation of rules and orders of Government of India to
be followed by all while dealing with matters involving public finances.
These rules and orders are treated as executive instructions to
be observed by all Departments and Organizations under the
Government and specified Bodies. The BVFCL is a Central Govt.
Undertaking and hence its Financial Delegation and Concurrence
must be in accordance with the Guidelines of General Financial Rules
2017 and the said Financial Delegation and Concurrence Power must
also be duly vetted by the Board of Directors of the Company.

4.12 The MSMED Act, 2006 specifies 45 day credit period for the
recipient of any goods or services to pay to the MSME supplier. In
case the buyer fails to make payment as required under Section
15 of the Micro Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act,
the buyer is liable to pay compound interest with monthly rests
to the supplier for delayed period beyond 45 days, on the amount,
payable at three times the bank rate notified by Reserve Bank of
India as provided under Section 16 of the MSMED Act, 2006. But
the Company has not paid/ provided for prescribed interest to the
buyers in case of delayed payment beyond 45 days.

The Company has explained that as per Purchase Order/ Work Order,
there is no provision for interest on delay payment made to MSME.
But this explanation is not the suitable compliance of the MSMED
Act, 2006

The company is releasing timely payment to all MSME
vendors within the stipulated period of 45 days as per
the MSMED Act 2006 except cases where the required
invoices or any other related documents for payments
are not in order or delayed in presentation of bills by the
vendors.

Therefore interest amount due to MSMED parties during
the year is not due/accrued or payable.

4.13 The company could not produce for our verification the
Independent HR Audit Report, as directed by the Board in its
Meeting dated 30th June 2020, inspite of facing some legal disputes
with some of its Ex employee and current employees, relating to
experience certificate/ false declaration etc. In absence of HR Audit,
we are unable to comment on the possibilities of crystalising of some
more legal disputes with employee.

Although HR Audit is not a statutory /mandatory
requirement, still BVFCL has conducted the HR Audit
M/s Sandeep Mukherjee Consulting Services, Kolkata
for a comprehensive assessment of HR activities and
bring more effectiveness into observance of HR policies,
procedures & systems. The consultant has submitted
their draft report which is under process of finalization
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4.14 Due to lack of time and Statutory Constraints for involving
our self in deep investigation audit, we could not examine the
complaints levied in mail dated 12th August 2021 ( also addressed
to CAG), received from Shri Sanjai Maheshwari {Ex Director Finance
Cum CMD (Additional Charge)} describing in more than 1000
Pages the details of complaint against Corruption, Malpractices &
Unprofessional Business activities into affairs of Brahmaputra Valley
Fertilizer Corporation Limited (BVFCL) by past & present CMD,
BVFCL in deep collusion with CVO, BVFCL(Mr. Prabhas Kumar) and
senior officials of BVFCL & Department of Fertilizers. Hence we are
unable to comment the Financial Implication and lacking of Internal
Control measures, as alleged in the said letter. The Hon’ble CAG may
investigate the allegations, as per their own discretions.

However, prima facie, we have observed that HR Department of
BVFCL has intentionally violated the provisions of Section 10 of
the Employees’ Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act,
1952 by way of illegal obstruction in granting NOC from its side
and paved the way for illegal withholding of genuine EPF Claim of
Shri Sanjai Maheshwari, even in spite of clear direction of Finance
Department vide Ref. No. A/VI/PF/20-21/1505 dated 14.09.2020
that there is protection against attachment of EPF money and it
cannot be withheld.

Observation of Audit is noted as they are unable to
comment on the Financial Implication and lack of Internal
Control measures, as alleged in the e-mail dated
20.09.2021 of Ex-Director (Finance).

Disciplinary proceeding was initiated against Shri Sanjai
Maheshwari, Ex-Director (Finance) beforesuperannuation.
In such cases, final settlement of retirement dues are
made after conclusion of disciplinary proceedings by
Vigilance. Due to the pendency of vigilance clearance,
PF amount could not be paid immediately. Subsequently
legal opinion was obtained from our empanelled Advocate
pertaining to release/ withhold of retirement dues of
Shri S. Maheshwari, Ex-Director (Finance). After receipt
of legal opinion, the matter was appraised to Ministry
of Chemical & Fertilizers and the Ministry also agreed
to release of PF amount. Accordingly, his accumulated
PF dues alongwith interest has been paid to Shri Sanjai
Maheshwari on 10.08.2021.

4.15 The Company is processing only some portion of accounting
transactions through IT System and that too present established IT
system is outdated and is not full proof.

Major Accounting System within BVFCL Factory Premises is being
operated through COBOL 85 on UNIX Operating System, however
remote located centers at Noida accounting is being done in Tally
Accounting System. However, Guwahati is sending manual monthly
Trial Balance. COBOL 85 on UNIX Operating is too old system of

accounting. This operating system is outdated. The present |-

installed Operating System COBOL 85 on UNIX Operating System
at Factory Premises is integrated for MM Department, Store
Account Department & Central Account Department only. Quarterly
summarized Trial Balance of Sales Department, HR Department and
remote located centres (NOIDA & Guwahati) are being manually
merged into Central Accounts by passing consolidated manual
Journal vouchers for each centers. This is the main reason of delay
in updation of Central Account Trial Balance. Further BVFCL Central
Accounts is unable to access data details related to Trial Balance of
remote centers. Thus the present installed system of Accounting
software is unable to generate real time accounting MIS. The
present operating system follows batch processing which is not
a real time processing system. This system is a command based
system and the reports are not generated in MS-Excel or MS-Word,
thereby rendering possibility of only manual analysis of the reports
generated. This consumes a lot of time and energy of all concerned,
including the employee and the auditors, in analysis of the reports.

For a long term solution & considering the recent
notification of MCA for adoption of Accounting Software
with audit trail, Executive Management has approved
for implementation of SAP ERP through Consultant. In
this regard company is in the process of floating RFQ for
appointment of consultant for SAP Implementation. ERP-
SAP is expected to be roll out during FY 2022-23.
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Since all of the financial data are not incorporated in the COBOL 85
UNIX Operating System. Therefore, there is compelled dependency
on Subsidiary Ledges to get extracted the realistic financial
records of a single ledgers. Internal Auditor of the company has
pointed out differences between main ledger and subsidiary ledgers
in a few instances thereby raising a doubt on the accuracy and
the reliability of the system. Further many subsidiary ledgers of
the Company is being maintained in Excel Based Sheets, which is
not at all full roof, as the possibility of un authorised tempering
of such data and possibility of getting alteration of balances of
any particulars individual ledgers at any time cannot be denied.

In order to overcome the shortcomings of the present system, a new
system of IT Accounting needs to be put in place at the earliest, so
that the complete financial records of BVFCL can be incorporated in
a single IT System with full proof recording and safety of all recorded
financial transactions with no chances of tampering of the recorded
Financial Transactions..

Management Replies on the ohservations stated in Revised Independent Audit Report (Annexure-A)
dated 22.11.2021 on the financial year ended 31t March, 2021.

STATUTORY AUDITORS’ OBSERVATIONS

MANAGEMENT REPLY

i) b) The Company is actually having intangible assets in the form of
computer software amounting to Rs. 1.70 lakhs and the company
has maintained proper records for this.

However, the Company has also disclosed another expenditure of Rs.
715.68 Lakhs under intangible Assets (project), which is really the
pre-operative expenditure related to proposed brown field Ammonia
/Urea Project-complex (Namrup-IV) , But these expenditure are
not in the nature of Intangible assets and should be classified and
depicted as Tangible Assets —Capital work-in-progress instead of
depicting the same under Intangible Assets (Projects).

We noted the observation of the Statutory auditor.
Intangible assets like goodwill, licenses, trademarks,
patents are not available with BVFCL, But intangible
assets like software for an amount of Rs. 1.70 Lakh is
shown as net value under note no. 2.9 in the Balance
Sheet.

Noted for compliance in next financial year.
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5 U9, 0. AR, BUHl & 3Fe Ud eI Hed
JAvHATd | JeRHQR fwg fenerd, sifeen
I aqad yeRE (Ao foic) § ARR
(FITPRR) fFAT &1 SBM SMEIAETH, TGS 4
HRIGRI fdHRT BRIHH 3MR ITS.3MS.TH, DIThIdr
J ST Ye=H BRIGH Il fohar ¥ |

S Arg= BT 7T 39 A HY el & fuom
H 32 qul 9 IIfF &1 Hqg AR fAfdy srgva
21 S=IF ¥ 1989 W 2015 Th TSI DHiAdbed
UUS Wicaso™ fafics, g9s d A1 fafa=
el R B fhar g1 S Aew B RIS
Ul § 99 1995 & SR “q9 & AT 7"
P REPR TAT q9 2012 § "FIHS HHAR]”
RIBHR U ol 2|

ST Ag=l orfl ol Teemsua sfeur & aremer
wd yEy ewe & ug WROSIORW UWR &
T H BRRAG 21 N A St @) egerdr #
frar Efean) fafice @ R T8 (LT8R
TR 3rdie), Thra AR ardrs, fhawm! sfear
DA, Wcd AITHIR. Adre, 330 % dois
fquor # Scpedt & oy IS srats, ST
faumT, T8 #3Aed & P REBR AT &
3T ST HIfc REBR 37 Hy Ufdftsd
37are Ul gV ¢ |

i T, OY. Argwh @1 gferor sfRa favafdenera |
AE Tl0 TPV, RIeTd Hearr iR ST
UG e dg gRT Sidexe & A ST (ST,
forg) & awfa fbar 21 B € § g%
AR & 50 HA¥d UWEeNell dToT fagoe
MBI & wU F TG fhar T 2

s offde orewdd WM (SR S&ifw
g[S TSN) FRI "IN I RER

DIRECTORS’ PROFILES

st Rra yare MEd, e ve ey v 1

Shri Siha Prasad Mohanty, Chairman & Managing
Director (From 1.10.2021) [DIN- 053367871

Shri S. P Mohanty, Chairman and Managing
Director of BVFCL have done his Masters in
Business Management from Berhampur University,
Odisha. He completed his Executive Development
Programme from [IM Lucknow and Advanced
Management Programme from IIM, Kolkata.

Sh. Mohanty carries more than 32 years rich
and diverse experience primarily in Marketing of
Agri Inputs. He has also worked in M/s Rashtriya
Chemical & Fertilizers Ltd (RCF), Mumbai, in
different capacities from 1989 to 2015. Dr.
Mohanty is recipient of “MARKETING MAN OF THE
YEAR” Award during 1995 and “BEST EMPLOYEE”
Award during 2012 in RCF.

Sh. Mohanty is also in additional charge of CMD,
HIL (India) Ltd. Under the Chairmanship of Sh.
Mohanty, HIL (India) Limited has been awarded
with several Prestigious Awards by renowned
Institutions like Bureaucracy Today (CSR Excellence
Award), SKOCH Merit Award, FICCI INDIA CHEM,
Greentech CSR Award, ET-Now World CSR Award,
National Award for Excellence in Rural Marketing by
CMO Asia, Rajbhasha Award under Kirti Puraskar
Scheme of Rajbhasha Vibhag etc.

Sh. S. P Mohanty has been conferred honorary
Doctorate Degree (D. Litt) by Dr. Radhakrishnan,
Teacher’s Welfare and R8D Centre affiliated to
University of South America. Recently, he has
been awarded with the most Influential 50 Rural
Marketing Professional of India Award.

He has been awarded “UDYOG RATTAN AWARD”
and “EXCELLENCE AWARD” by the Institute of
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Td "Ieptedl YREBRT H GG fhar wan
g1 & A=l @ B fdaw 2016 & AW
TR, 2 fh RSN, T8 g #3401, 9Rd WRBR
ERT 3= Sed TUH BRadl & SuRefa #
“fE=Y TRT” YRR A FRAIT fBar 1 g |
# AIB=Il BT AT, 3R FH B IISIuTd
ERT IRIE- Hal, IGT U AR Ieeraiyg
IHeT & foly "R AT REBR /T
o T 2 | I $RTTHE 31 SRRTEH (37T,
3NN, fham waer YR AffT & Ag—arege,
ThIT & WRY b & HRIUTTS dad 41 8 | d
fauore ug oHor fauere get uR SIARTSE T ufdreror
@ foru sHTfore wiflteres Td 3o aer € | g8
P TG & [AYUH IR ! ol 3iR T /
CEIfaST ardied & ATIH | ARTa 3 7 |
s gl U1 SMEBIRG et # o= <=0
M iRkeferar, fhels, A1d, 79D, evds,
SR, B SIR SeYoT SAflhepT & ATUS BU A
SR TR gD T| RGN SRS G (qdT &)
SR ARG faf= AR & oy va Frafaa
AP TS ¢ |

off 3rfiw AR =i, ey 3R yde Faes
(30.09.2021 d=) [DIN-082224131

Al H HAR HIY TASTES! GUIYR 1985 o
I HApfepe sy § Frae €1 S
TAUHHITE R § HTS HRIuTed i
(AbFImer) & S F STAT BRIX T o o 3R
TAUHHIVS SR H HTS IHAar (Hab e
g9 Y | ST_IF AT 2003 H AHEY IRD HIS
¥ PRIMR Tl | S781+ GIdeniIee, g o
HEMEY® (YF1C) 997 W Ugel HobfTddl [T
# faf=T el W TaumHEe i ddvmece
¥ B fhar|

T 30 I DI JADI Pl BRI AIHd G

dRE I &HAT SYANT, ol [@ud 3R T Uedm
@ Hed H WIFE BT GHY GEUR PR B oY

Economic Studies. Sh. Mohanty was also awarded
“HINDI GAURAV AWARD” on the occasion of Hindi
Divas 2016 by Sh. Kiren Rijiju, Minister of State
for Home Affairs, Government of India in the
presence of other high dignitaries. Sh. Mohanty
has been awarded with BHARAT JYOTI AWARD for
meritorious services, outstanding performances
and remarkable role by the Governor of Tamil Nadu
and Assam. He is also a “FELLOW MEMBER" of
Institute of Directors (FloD), Co-Chairman of FICCI
Crop Protection Committee, Executive Member
Governing Body of SCOPE. He is also a certified
trainer for conducting International Trainings and
Lead Speaker on Marketing & Rural Marketing
aspects. He has also contributed number of articles
and delivered Radio/Television talks on Agriculture
Inputs Marketing. Sh. Mohanty has extensively
travelled to number of countries namely Australia,
Finland, Norway, Denmark, Netherlands, Germany,
France and South African Countries in his official
capacity. He is a regular faculty member for different
Seminars organized by Fertilizer Association of India
(Eastern Zone).

Shri Ashim Kumar Ghosh, Chairman & Managing
Director (Upto 30.09.2021) IDIN- 082224131

Shri Ashim Kumar Ghosh is a graduate in
Mechanical Engineering from NIT Durgapur 1985
batch. He started his career as Junior Executive
Trainee (Mechanical) at HFCL Barauni & became
Junior Engineer (Mechanical) at HFCL Durgapur. He
joined Namrup Fertilizer Unit in March 2003. He
worked in HFCL and BVFCL at various capacities in
Mechanical discipline before becoming GM (Unit) at
BVFCL, Namrup.

His total work experience of around 30 years
has been dedicated entirely to the industrial
aspects of maintenance, Production planning and
operations in Ammonia & Urea plants aiming to
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SR 3R IRAT FIF & IWREME, I
AT R AT & Aefid ugdsll &
gfcr wEftd e 81 S8 ™Y Bl JTeGR
RIS # \fehg iR T & AHEI—| g
@ foAfor ofiR ermor # srroft yfder s |

B AT HIdex dRBC B TR Afed
gfide SR FdeRer, aea—ll & Rl
H 31y fhmrac ST &A1 A BT 8, R
TS| 11 ﬁ-m’ew 2018 9, S=M fQe® (\-SC*JICH)
dGUEATA, BT ug TEu fhar den fadie
14 /10 /2019 &1, S €19 7 SIAUHAVS F 3reel
IR UEy fS9d BT ug WR GWre| s =y
THUTS & s H e 3R AEHTHUHEINR

P AT BRI B AT 9T 2 |

sfi fTR W', fAQus (Swreq) (DIN
0008961963)

=N faTTaR ATy 1986 991 & IATSAR, He™
AR, YACH (Aif3@) 8 | S M ar—gRar
SRD GIAT H 26 auf |ied faf= sar |
33 W 31 auf & rgWa 2| SeiH fEgwam™
HicAsoR BUReA fafcs, i H# yeaeA
uRRre] (Fif3®) & w9 H U e Shadgd
DI YBIAT P AR g8l BE WA db DA
fhar| S=F 1992 ¥ gl Mo BISATZOR
DRUNT H 15 AT H AD I T AMIAT
d RS Yeue dh 9= &l O I@Ryq,
Fel IAEH YEREMG IR FHY O TaerT
% A= ual R sE fhar| =i Jfdele
R fofics & 3 9l @ forg gRadH
T & W@ & w9 7 fl B far | 39 91
I 4 A A 3MTH Th SONRRT e
T e e wRe fafice | Tora
qAqT FHOT IO USET & TR D w9 A
P fhar| s der fR¥aR 2015 H F&IgH

overall improvement of plants in terms of capacity
utilization, energy consumption & profitability. He
played an active role in Namrup Revamp Project
and took a lead role in erection & commissioning of
Namrup-II group of plants.

He has initiated a number of actions including
replacement of Synthesis converter basket, many
critical heat exchangers, cooling tower renovation,
retrofitting of EMG turbine of Syn. Gas Compressor
of N-lll, other cost effective measures in the plant
leading to the long term sustenance of BVFCL,
Namrup Fertilizer plants. From 11th September,
2018, he assumed the post of the Director
(Production),BVFCL. W.e.f 14/10/2019, Shri Ghosh
took over the charge of Chairman and Managing
Director of BVFCL. He is also Director on the Board
of FAl and member of Governing Council of ICCFTR.

Shri Digambar Sahai, Director (Production)
(DIN 0008961963)

Shri Digambar Sahai is a Post Graduate, M.Tech
(Mechanical) from IIT, Madras of 1986 batch. He
has more than 33 years experience in different
industries including 26 years in Ammonia-Urea
Fertilizer Plants. He started his industrial carrier
as Management Trainee (Mechanical) in Hindustan
Fertilizer Corporation Limited, Barauni and worked
there for six years. He also worked in Indo Gulf
Fertilizer Corporation from 1992 for more than
15 years in various positions from Engineer to
Senior Manager in different fields like Maintenance,
Total Productive Maintenance and Total Quality
Management. He also worked in Jubilant Organosys
Limited as Head of Change Management for 3
years. Thereafter he worked for more than 4
years in an Engineering Industry namely Lakshmi
Precision Screws Limited as Head of Quality and
Total Quality Management. He joined Brahmaputra
Valley Fertilizer Corporation Limited, Namrup
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il Wicarsor draneE ferfics(@duwane),
AHEY H U HET YIS (TATAT TAT STHRT)
% Ug W YT gU| 16 TTdeR, 2020 Bl I/l
fhvEdiva & fFeere (Scre), o 99R T80T
T | 47 FETT SMSHIUBUHEIAR &I HRIBRI
AT & Jew A1 2|

sfi gearer @ <N, fewe  (fa<)
(DIN—08988297)

1 GaTeT @i a9 7 ddundIve H o (fad)
BT TR 18 fadaR 2020 BT UBUT fhar| S9d
U SW IR UHIIH & & hs—Uqd
JquTs O Wol, Aol 3R Aol YR =T |
g ST # 24 997 ¥ 1% au’ o7 P T

dquETd # e (fO9), & ©9 H eme
A BHRIMR A Ug, 3N ST U A&l UawIdh
(famq), ATe! § 22.12.2017 W HRIRT o | I8 ATodh!
P Yq SHoll gRASTHR, a9 AN iR
IgHU™ G far wMrT & fog fad & &
TR o 3R 1Y 8 WTHAIR T 3MR ATehl &
Iy Ay & Al B TR BRI A | ATed]
i wfie 89 ¥ U, SiM W iR
A sfear fofics, Rear W wie #
faf=r emwaell # o™ fHar| < <ord o s
@ Slggd A B ARM, I/ AT AT
3R 0T, ST SR oRAT TNETT, THISUY 3R
Al 3T & &3 H 3FJd I foha |

05.07.1971 BT ST %1 T SICICIC AT HIRC
IFPHTICTH 31T REAT (BMETRE) & frTaw
g 3R IR g HeIm, 3 @ qd e W
g, Sigl | I/ Yeud § JawEd Ul S
g7 foba |

URreR RTRTEIRAl § Ip B & Jfelrdl, 98
[T Afafafl ok areiie e |
T w9 W AfhT w2

in December, 2015 as Dy. General Manager
(Operation & Instrumentation). He Assumed the
charge of Director (Production), BVFCL w.e.f. 16th
November, 2020. Shri Sahai is also member of
Executive Committee of ICFFTR.

Shri Subash Chandra Das, Director (Finance)
(DIN-08988297)

Shri Subash Chandra Das has assumed charge of
Director (Finance), BVFCL w.e.f. 18th December
2020. He has a rich industry experience of more
than 24 years in steel and aluminium sector in
premier CPSEs like SAIL & NALCO and private paper

industry.

Prior to his present assignment as Director
(Finance), BVFCL, Shri Das was working as DGM
(Finance), NALCO w.e.f. 22.12.2017. He was in-
charge of finance function for wind power projects,
Business Development and R&D division of NALCO
and also supervising affairs of CSR Trust and
superannuation funds of NALCO. Prior to joining
NALCO, he worked in various capacities at Steel
Authority of India Limited, Rourkela Steel Plant.
During a career span of more than two decades, he
garnered experience in the field of Financial Planning
and Control, Accounts & Audit, MIS & Budget, fund
management & Investment, Commercial and Tax
matters etc.

Born on 05.07.1971, Shri Das is a Fellow Member
of the Institute of Cost Accountants of India
(ICA) and also an alumnus of Indian Institute of
Management Ranchi from where he completed
Executive PG Diploma in Management.

Apart from excelling in professional responsibilities,
he has been equally active in social activities and
community development.
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$i > o, Wwe fiqus (@OIN 5.

-08741900)

SR fPRT # fAeee (@ore iR o) s &
T T Y Yew P fdeafdened, fawufa
I ST W H 4 1 /2 99 BT FHdb 3R
ST fagafdene™d & Telverd! H e urd
foam | JuToeRT Rafde AT 1993 @1 uier Il
DI 3R D Aferarera dar (fivaus) o1 smdfed
o T | 2N &, THHA & U e WD,
foRT 3R B g9 2 3R B RAIR
foyrr,  SNUma 3R PluRe dMs Haed ¥
e & w9 H SR RO agell =TSR,
TS H U WRER & w7 § » fhar 2|
SR 2015 W Gellg 2017 b, A FaR,
3 e faue 4T Sfuss! @ w9 ¥ SR FdaR
2019 % TGl & MfaRw Afva, Sige!, & U
H &M fhar e =T AN e At
@ IR H R SFGRI § 9 SRR BRIl &
Frafera § S—Frafaa & a1 ff oS O | W
T 3R s IR I3 & Uh R &
®Y H AT W) B AW ) e o
Refe I &7 & foIv Uh faaR &Ik srafae
# 3m fhar ok A9 favg Rere & to 8 #
11987 ART §RT U 37T & Hfas Rafs # 1 9
I B 2/2017 H TLT AT I THAT
H g e g, rH wRa @ fier |9
20,000 ¥ 1% AR uferfl & “rT foram |

I WM YR Fard, Wl e,
Sd¥® faurT (DIN-9351744)

M GaR AT Bl GRISHT JaeE, R
faeeryor ok uRaremT faw & faRmsar & @
O ok @ral § e gV B |

TR & U8dt, S84 5 d91 & foIv warer
TR ST HATGd § IU a9 & w9 H
BRI BT 8, ST81 I WM TS T AT SI
FACR ZIEHIV R AR W= AT Sl

Shri K. Gurumurthy, Gout. Director (DIN

-08741900)

Shri K Gurumurthy, Director(Budget and
Finance),in the Department of Fertilizers, did 4 1/2
Years graduation in Dairy Technology from Andhra
Pradesh Agricultural University, Tirupati and LLB
from Osmania University. Passed UPSC Civil services
1993 exam and allotted to Central Secretariat
Services(CSS). Shri K Gurumurthy is having rich
Administrative, Financial and Legal experience and
served in the Department of telecommunication, in
EPFO and as Director in the Ministry of Corporate
affairs and as a Registrar in Debt Recovery Tribunal,
Chennai. From January 2015 to July 2017, worked
as 0SD to Hon’ble speaker, Andhra Pradesh
Legislative Assembly and as Additional Secretary,
GAD, Govt of AP till November 2019 and is having
full knowledge on Government business rules and
was associated in the implementation of E — office
in field Offices. As part of Swachh sattenapalli and
clean India Message, conceived and implemented
an idea in obtaining Guinness World Record in
the name of Hon’ble Speaker and also involved in
Guinness world record an organ donation pledge
in one hour by 11987 people. Played key role in
national women's parliament conclave in 2/2017
which was attended from nook and corner of India
by more than 20,000 women participants.

Shri Shyam Sundar Agrawal, Govt. Director, DOF
(DIN -9351744)

Shyam Sundar Agrawal has extensive experience
in finance and accounts, with specialities in Project
Management, Financial Analysis, and Project
Finance

Prior to FICC, he has served as Deputy Director in
Ministry of Food Processing Industries for 5 years,
where he was instrumental in implementation
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THICR, QITST 311X 3Te] (STU) He 2l & Ul
e & fau e o 8 REer Sgw
TRIHRY b Y Ueh A1 WTel THDRYI
g ST S 8, A Bl 59 yqd
AT & DrRI~aIT § Hewayol qHbr f4urg
2| I/ A BEIGCdhe TR iR
([TTddY), wEgRede  favrr, e 8k
SRE FATST S AT 41 5 Al Tb B (HAT
2, 981 9 TIeTE & oI MR Jed e,
BT & doR AERAT Jed iR, qoa
=T @7 R SR acd= T2 < duferl
A 3w AT I & Hag § BRI @R Ww
| IR TRBR @ |qaT § Wi 89 | U8,
IR T 8 aul T HEFIR Cellhe A
farfice (Tadivagd) o & |

qg 2002 9F B TS UPHIScc & AR S/
Fce R fvelvd (FITHY, JUEY) & 2 WRI
31 1 ur fhar 2

Al fIa uR urvs, R e, Sdie
fawmT (DIN-0008529023)

s o9 HAR UOS (SMSTHTH, 2004 d9),
S T # fFewre I9uedna 9 |
T FS9ad & ®U H HRIRT § | S=_iT 1999
H IR 23 feafdene, arRmoRT & ARzt
H Fdarm) e iR R & forg
ANTHIMERR (Tg2)) | St foba | a8 fedaR
1999 ¥ WRBNI WAl # I TAT AIeToT
e H IYd & WU H WedT e WY, 3R
SATEIETE, STRYCY H HRIRT 9| S 99 2004
H IR AiRF®T AT (MSUATH) & g =T
T SR AiRId 3R BRIGH R
AT & Wiee HrATerdl (TATfeldR, #e UQem
3R AP, BIANTE) H HaT @l 2| a8 R,
2010 ¥ facell # 9 < fawmT fas, sM @ik
ISR HATT 3R ST 9ameH, 41 faer
3R T BRITHST H U HaTg, fadax 2018 |

of Mega Food Parks Scheme, a flagship scheme
of the Ministry, aiming to create a modern food
processing infrastructure for the processing units
based on a cluster approach and formulation and
implementation of Operation Greens Scheme — A
Scheme for integrated development of Tomato,
Onion and Potato (TOP) value chain. He has also
worked with National Pharmaceutical Pricing
Authority (NPPA), Department of Pharmaceutical,
Ministry of Chemicals & Fertilisers for 5 years,
where he was doing Cost based pricing of APls,
Market based pricing of formulations, Monitoring
& Enforcement of price control, Recovery of
overcharging amount from delinquent companies.
Prior to joining Government of India, He worked in
Mahanagar Telephone Nigam Limited (MTNL for
about 8 years.

He is a 2002 Batch Chartered Accountant and has
also cleared 2 levels of Chartered Financial Analyst
(CFA, USA).

Shri Uinay Kumar Pandey, Govt. Director, DOF
(DIN- 008529023)

Shri Vinay Kumar Pandey (ISS, 2004 Batch),
working as Director in the Department of Fertilizers,
is the Govt. Nominee Director on the BVFCL Board.
He did his M.Sc in Statistics from Banaras Hindu
University, Varanasi in 1999 and qualified CSIR
(NET) also for Lecturership. He was in Government
service from December, 1999 as Investigator in
National Sample Survey Organisation and served at
Khandwa, M.P. and Allahabad, U.P. He got selected
for Indian Statistical Service (ISS) in 2004. He has
served in the field offices (Gwalior, M.P. & Raipur,
Chhattisgarh) of Ministry of Statistics & Programme
Implementation. He is posted in Delhi since
September, 2010 and has served in Department
of Expenditure, M/o Finance, Ministry of Labour
& Employment and Ministry of Water Resources,
River Development and Ganga Rejuvenation before
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SRS fIHT § fe9d & wg & Ifd 89 9
Uge, A WAl T @ 2 |

s faftar fagr urefl, AR wRer e
(DIN-01859238)

s fafeem faem) urell (DIN—01859238) =T
3R T 65 a4 ©, SWICYS A dics
JHISce 3 3T & TP Hell I & IR
JAHE H 2013 | AICS dISce ®©9 H HRIRG
2| 98 9gd [ BH e e fAfR Us
THIREH A1ce rdTece YameaR, e <9
3 faf= el # drafeg € § aRs WiieR
g R Tgpd o iR wrdue  SubHi
P IMAR®, duTfd MR FHddr oiar e H
U fIemel o/ wa €1 2013 ¥ Yd S8l 3MfeEn
AT, goldei-ad, Rael wee e, anfe
# foxia @ & w9 # w6 | orae 38 aut
@ WAl Siad & QRM, =T, oRam u_ier, S,
Afda A, dfdh, IS faer™, geragias,
IS & &3 ¥ ATUD AT T T |

S9b U SIfIRTE IARIAN O d8REgR
favafdeney & Ay =ras, wo Ifa (€eX)
2| 98 fafa=1 |mfores wfafafeal & ff 9 g
gl

1.052020 ®I IATHATA & de § Th IR
afmIR® fAceres (@ads) @ ®©U # IHD!
fgfih TRA WRBR ERT @I T & 3R IBH
3T UGHR 9.05.2020 DI T-UT T |

M W o9 949, I ftreiRe fFive
(DIN - 09400040)

st XY o9 99 uf¥EH § & dedr bl |
Tdh IS AR IR e T & wa
2| T OgY, A3 fdeell 9 SN H UHY
3R wHfhar fhar B, &R 2002 & frem ue™
PR T | 9B 1841 Al B HABRTSE, 1991

joining as Director in the Department of Fertilizers
in December, 2018.

Shri Bipina Bihari Padhy, Non Official Director
(DIN -01859238)

Shri Bipina Bihari Padhy (DIN — 01859238) aged
about 65 years is a fellow member of the Institute
of Chartered Accountant of India and presently
practicing as Chartered Accountant since, 2013. He
is a senior partner in very old firm M/s. Anil Mihir &
Associates, Chartered Accountants Bhubaneswar,
having offices in different locations of the country
and have a vast experience in Internal, Statutory
and Concurrent Audit of Nationalized Banks and
PSUs. Earlier to 2013, he served as Financial Head
in various industrial sectors of Odisha Government
like Construction, Metal, Chemicals, Electronics,
Real Estate Regulator, etc. During his 38 years
service career, gained extensive experience in the
field of Finance, Audit, Legal, Secretarial matters,
Banking, Urban Development, Electronics, etc.

He possess additional qualifications such as
Bachelor of Law from Behrampur University,
Company Secretary (Inter). He is also associated
with various social activities.

He has been appointed by the Govt. of India as a
Non Official Director (Independent) on the Board
of BVFCL on 1.05.2020 and assumed charge w.e.f.
9.05.2020

Shri Rahi Ranjan Sen, Non Official Director (DIN
- 09400040)

Shri Rabi Ranjan Sen is an Associate Professor
and Head of the Department of History at Katwa
College, West Bengal. He has done M.A. and
M.Phil in History from JNU, New Delhi, and has
been teaching since 2002. He has researched
and written on various topics like 18th Century
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TATe] & el & ARl & 3fidbs, Uf¥ed
H AT FEpd & JAR o A= st anfe
R 9 3R oA fhar 71 9 IRdg sfoem,
IR AMINTH—efid sfiele i IR uf3dRl H

frafid wu | AeE ¢ RE 2 |

IE AU BIF Silad | B ARG 3R s
wfafafert & afba 8 € iR gdqE | grior
&3l # ok ufgw dma # =RW & wHgrr
@ W eI W S U € | g8 2014—2018 ¥
A UQY AR & IS Ied F&r SmanT
(T I=g freT) & Ae 3R 2017—2020 IR
STR—YAl UBre! fqeafdernery, Rieim 4 driar!
IRyg, We QRIFIg® AfHd) 8 21

Ie YRA WRBR §RT 02.11.2021 BT SIATHHATA

% 9 H B IR—SMEPIR®G o9 & wy 4
e frar am 2|

Maharashtra, renaissance figures of 19th Century
Bengal, spread of Yogic culture in the West, etc.
He contributes regularly to periodicals on Indian
history, culture, heritage and thought, especially
Vedantic and socio-religious movements.

He has been active in social and educational
activities since his student days and is currently
deeply involved with nurturing of educational
institutions and facilities in rural areas and among
marginalised communities in West Bengal. He has
been a Member of Rashtriya Uchha Shiksha Ayog
(State Higher Education Council), Govt. of Madhya
Pradesh, from 2014-2018 and also Member
(Visitor’s  Nominee), Executive Council, North-
Eastern Hill University, Shillong from 2017- 2020.

He has been appointed by the Govt. of India as a
Non-Official Director on the Board of BVFCL on
02.11.2021.
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Office of the Director General of Audit
(Agriculture, Food & Water Resources), New Delhi

Dediing io T in Pubse: nowewst

MR :
Redte/2-66/2). 5 T./(T. 0. &3e7g, HR)/Company/A/es/BVFCL/2020-21/
e - /1172021
Har #,

e AR yay e,
FEAYT I wfeasst SsRuns AfAes,
AmAwg, 7 L340
REAG - 786623,
e - Bypre (3rw9)

T s & Fees @ mpeeing @R wEE IRPEE 203 % seete
143(6)(b) & JHadtd FEwga df wfamor FaRww ARz § 31 #2021
F wATT o F Rl 't w gt |

Heledr,

W 9 & WY FEoA HOREEE 2013 fr R 143(6)(b) F HANT FeAT I
wfearser Hiaee faffes & 31 &t 2021 &1 @A a¥ & faeda @ | e
feogforar s o W@ &

FIAT 3H 9T H gradr S FOFA |

Hadn,
Holdel: TGy

(i forardh)
aEfRyE Serie (FR, @Ry T 99 FEE)

el @ @i a9, WoToohle WH™ 77, 10 Fwge e v AV, 7F feeet- 110002
8th & 9th Floor, CAG Annexe Building, 10 Bahadur Shah Zafar Marg, New Delhi-110002
TYTH/Phone : 011-23239419/20, %6 /Fax ; 011-23239416
E-mail : pdaafwr@cag.gov.in
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ISl s
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R12/2-66/31.3.0./(T. 0. & 5&5g HI)/Company/A/cs/BVFCL/2020-21/  f&aia:! /11/2021
87 14

uf 39-Fcyes, Fiay Fpfadus owr oien (R, @y @S9 FEyE), e
FATET FIAFEAT F FI TF JETF FREERT &g 300 7|

N\

afres SaT TiE FUEH (FRdE)
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Sl 3rferfad, 2013 & oRT 143(6) () ® d8a
9819a doll wfdarsor aRuReE fafics @ 31
7T, 2021 B AT 9% @ fa<iia @R w® URa
@ e iR seraEige o fewufort

U A, 2013 @ Ted MuiRa faxia Raifdr e
F AR 31 A 2021 B GG 9 & fou wEIgH
Joil widaeor ®ureE  fafics & o faaxor
TR BRAT BUAl & Yag= @1 e ® 1 iffrm
B GRT 139(5) & ATd IRA & FRIFG—ARTeRETRITS
gRI g<h Aifdfes orariers, A =E @ arT 143
P I faxig faaRol R add oiar uNieT b SR
TR IrfAfTd @ aRT 143(10) & Siqeia ReifRa sfameror
W AMGI & JFAR I h d B forg RFER 2 |
Jg 9P gNI fodAld 22 FGaR, 2021 BT O FNEd
orgTole RAé & gRT foar am &, S 27 RidsR, 2021
P IPT ol aamaien Rare &1 v ofdr 2

H, Rd & 3 IR AgTeramRiedd @ 3R 4 1S aH
B GRT 143(6)(T) & Ted 31 AT 2021 BT FAG 99 B
foy SR ael wicasor diRuReE fofics & faxig
fqeRol &1 YRS <I@T wRieT B 2 | Ig YR oIl el
IS T WDl & HHEBISI BRI db ugd &
fo T wu ¥ @ U8 2 MR g wu 9 Aifdte
Jrfferdl @ gfiar Sfa d& WfAd 2|

|ifafdes Faries o Ruc d fBy 77 FeeE o &=
H @A g, /P @l Wil & R SO Y N FHY
SIRATIRIET STl Pl T 99 & fory, #R Uiy €T
143(6) (@) srfafem & Ted wifdfrs oETwRies o Rurd
W WRAd AT R B b oy dIg iR fewolt 7&F 2 |

P foIv 8k @Y IR &
YRd & 36 3R A8TeRgl WRIgTh

8./
(@t foaar)
el EREIR I BEN G
(P, T &R ST |aTeE)
STE: Ty faeell

feeTe: 30 AdaR, 2021

COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR
GENERAL OF INDIA UNDER SECTION 143(6) (b) OF THE
COMPANIES ACT, 2013 ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
OF BRAHMAPUTRA VALLEY FERTILIZER CORPORATION
LIMITED FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH 2021

The preparation of financial statements of Brahmaputra Valley
Fertilizer Corporation Limited for the year ended 31st March
2021 in accordance with the financial reporting framework
prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 is the responsibility
of the management of the company. The statutory auditors
appointed by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India
under section 139(5) of the Act is responsible for expressing
opinion on the financial statements under section 143 of the
Act based on independent audit in accordance with standards
on auditing prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act. This
is stated to have been done by them vide their Revised Audit
Report dated 22nd November, 2021 which supersedes their
earlier Audit Report dated 27th September, 2021.

[, on the behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General of
India, have conducted a supplementary audit of the financial
statements of Brahmaputra Valley Fertilizer Corporation
Limited for the year ended 31st March 2021 under section
143(6) (a) of the Act. This supplementary audit has been
carried out independently without access to the working
papers of the statutory auditors and is limited primarily to
inquiries of the statutory auditors and company personnel and
a selective examination of some of the accounting records.

In view of the revision made in the statutory auditor’s report,
to give effect to some of my audit observations raised during
supplementary audit, | have no further comments to offer
upon or supplement to the statutory auditor’s report under
section 143(6)(b) of the Act.

For and behalf of the
Comptroller & Auditor General of India

Sd/-

(Keerti Tewari)

Director General of Audit

(Agriculture, Food & Water Resources)

Place: New Delhi
Dated: 30th November, 2021
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1. 9

g FBIYS Il BicargoR HiuNed fafics (‘Hul’)
% Herd faxig faavor a9 31 A9 2021 I& B T
ORIET BT AT 31 HIE, 2021 BT JAT—UF DI FH
foxig af @ fog @ &R g\ fJaRor, 9@ yare
feRor; e fa<i fqavor (Heayul @i iRl &1
TH AR Td R ARG a1 afed) 2 |

AR f3aR # &R gARI Spte I a1 g4 g 1Y
IR & AR SRh I fdaror, qerr sue
31, 2013 §IRT ST a1 Ul I & 3IR
ARA H M AR W WIHd oidid- Rigidl & 3wy
He! 3R Sfea gfiespror yaM oxd 2, fo 31 a7
2021 BT BT & B RART 59 dRRG Bl FH I9
% foTQ e ware @1 Rfa <2y 718 © |

2. ™ & fIv 3R

T 3T IET TIET BT AfAFIH,2013 B €T 143
(10) & aga fAFfd< oraie FddT a9® & AR
@ 2| TN RUIE & foxfg faaRor srgumT @t oran
Wie & forg 991 9l & dgd g9l ReIRal &1
T Wl @1 freREl § o aftla fasar w2
T Wad 9 W ARd & dIce YhreSced Avq gRT

\/S PARIK & CO.
GUWAHATI

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
Aasheerwad, Namghar Path, Natun Chachal, Six Mille,
Guwahati-781022

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To,

The Members,

Brahmaputra Valley Fertilizer Corporation limited,
Registered Office: PO. Parbatpur, Namrup,
Dibrugarh District, Assam

1.  Opinion:

We have audited the accompanying financial statements
of Brahmaputra Valley Fertilizer Corporation Limited (“the
Company™”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st
March 2021, and the Statement of Profit and Loss, and
Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and
Notes to the Financial Statements (including a summary
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
financial statements give the information required by the
Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’) in the manner so required
and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the
state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2021, its
loss and cash flows for the year ended on that date.

2. Basis for opinion:

We conducted our audit in accordance with the
standards on auditing specified under section 143 (10)
of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under
those Standards are further described in the auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Company
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SR fde |iRdr & SR Sl Afdd Aawadarsil &
AT EH & wraeri R SHe d1e & A @
AR 3R AR AT & JJAR BN A
Afde fSTTRTRET BT qRT BT & |

BURT 99T © {6 899 S olar ulen 91ey urd fhu
2 I BENY oraT ue Ad BT JMUR ST B B
oy Tt 3R SugE € |

3. arE faR=aar @ wdfea Riar

dUHl BT Fad Joa QI TRE W WEW B T
2, WIfd SN &1 Fad o 25128.04 ARI BUY
THRIHAD ¢ |

HU AR G H I W@ © AR 39 A W
HU Bl 1377524 ARG UG HT IHAM T ¥,
ST 31 TR bfUcd & 36583.24 TRI TUY b
qoTael Afad THA B 61711.28 BUY X faam 7 |

39 YR W ®Y F 0T oFrdr 2 fb o9 9@
6 Ul @I Ho d¢ A< BRIGA AT WHR A
FEd el el Budl &1 1R a9 d& far 9
A D SRR H B

4. UHE d@T UEr qd

IR T URIE HH d JEel 8, S gAR gasirdl
foofa & g9 eafy & oy fAxol & g9R orar
oeT H HaR HEgyul o | 39 AW Bl fa<iiy fqaRor
IIT—oigT b Fed # dafRra fohar war e, S Ry
I BT AER 4T TAT IR §RT 39 Al TR Iy
T I U el &b S Facll § |

U GAdE DUl BF & BRYI, TAY 701 & FAR
WRG ofEl WRIETT AT @l RIS 39 U W AL
TET Breil 2 |

in accordance with the code of ethics issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with
the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit
of the financial statements under the provisions of the
Act and the rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the code of ethics.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

3. Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern

The net worth of the Company has been totally eroded,
as the net worth of the Company is in negative of Rs.
25128.04 Lakhs.

The company is continuously running in loss and this year
also the company has incurred loss of Rs. 13775.24
Lakhs, which has geared up the accumulated loss to
Rs. 61711.28 Lakhs against its Share Capital of Rs.
36583.24 Lakhs. .

Thus apparently it seems that the Company existence of
Going Concern is under doubt unless and until the company
would get some major Financial Reshuffle or Support from
Govt.

4. Key audit matters:

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our
professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the financial statements of the current period.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit
of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters.

Reporting of Key Audit Matters as per SA 701, are
not applicable to this Company, as it is an unlisted
company.
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44

AISET AR Al & QR 1377524 ARG
BUY P JHAH T4 AR B Yg AT 35841
AT ¥YY & oRdid @ 915 gl © | 9 UBR
U4 @af B 3 R AR by 91 Hu @1
AT @Te] I BT HICT 14133.65 G TUT & |

Ul A faxiT 99 2014—15 | 2020—21 & foIw
T 666.92 IRG BUU &I A6 @RIg B
Sy @1 YA J8l fhar g (I8 T *rH
Solfae il eyl iR, JIRSAT HATOIS!
1 3| @MUR & & AR 0FET B Tg o,
R IR oo fafg d9dme & I 9R
S[A—2020 ®I JUsc fHar T o)

fig R 4! A Wi el & a8 AT B
SYARHTRN BT 3ifeH Wy & 99T &1 Afeas! &1
gl HRA BT THeER B, offdbd Hu=1 9 faxi
¥ 2020—21 H AfSHS! M BT A9 QT &, S
o siftm fdg & wie &1 MR & 3= 1276.
28 @G ¥UY © (I 31.03.021 dd URITH
lh 20176.121 Hifeh e AT o famar
3R Reard & <),

AUEATS Y€ F garr ® f ®on A
qaadl B & SER, Uity Wid W
127628 oI BUY &I AleFS! A1 &1 249
T 7 3R GAUHHIV Jaee a1 fashareii
H G fasaret iR gexT fawarsi ¥ siftm
SUINTHael & oy didvedte | «ftd
IRAT i BT AT B @ folU 37U HIS
AT IR T B

9Y & SRM H{A 1,37,569.455 Hilgd < IRAT
@ 9T & HPlEel 20176121 Wigh T B
GIale i qarT T | 59 YPR IRAT B
Igd 31f¥e ART AR IRAT BT YT dT A &

However, we draw attention to read this Audited
Statements with due emphasis on under mentioned
Key Matters:

4.1

4.4

The current reporting period loss of Rs. 13775.24
Lakhs is after accounting of prior period net income
of Bs. 358.41 Lakhs. Thus without considering Prior
Period income the Company real current year loss
is of Rs. 14133.65 Lakhs.

The Company has not paid or provided for liability
of Renewal Purchase Obligation for the Financial
Year 2014-15 to 2020-21 Rs. approx 666.92
Lakhs (calculated as per last traded rate of REC
certificates was updated on June — 2020 as per
Indian Energy Exchange Website).

As per FICC Regulation, the Company is entitled
to claim the subsidy only after clearance of stock
from ultimate Point of Sale, i.e ultimate sell to
the agricultural consumers. But the Company has
accounted Subsidy Income in the Financial Year
2020-21 amounting to Rs.1276.28 Lakhs without
clearance of Stock from ultimate Point of Sale (i.e.
on the POS stock 20176.121 MT lying with whole
sellers and retailers as on 31.03.2021).

The BVFCL management has explained that the
company has accounted subsidy income of Rs.
1276.28 lakhs on the POS stock, as per past
precedence and the BVFCL managements are
putting their best efforts to liquidate the BVFCL
neem coated urea stock from whole sellers to
retailers and from retailers to end users.

There is reported POS Stock of 20176.121 MT
against the total Sale of 1,37,569.455 MT of Urea
during the year. Thus around two months of the
urea sales is reported to lying as POS Stock, inspite
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4.6

qrace, IRAT B A & IET 2 7EW Ui
Wi & w9 H U8 /A @ I 2| INdRk®
oIl WRiereh | fadi 11.02.2020 BT fa=gfar #
4 I SRl § A T ARl B TEH Tih
& AU & Al H IRAT & WIfdd Kl o
G B B G & § | 59 UHR AT ATh
fagarell gRT drel aoiR H IRAT & Ll &
THUANT / [queM &1 FHIEaT | STHR gl fhar
ST |HAT 2 | I8 SANEHINE Hdud gRT Sier
eI 2 |

TeE §RT IR Aifad G RUic & 4R,
DU T GRAT & 1,44,490.345 HIgdh T Fih
® H{I URMS AR IUGT WLl H I b
20865 Hifgd 1 IRAT Wi o FH 18 B |
9 UBHR Hifad FaId RUic & AR eI
001% & IRAT lH B A B HH 2|
28 3T 2021 BT 3RIGRI B RUIC & TR,
WM gfer q e & & fduee
JAABIRAT BT 29,708 /2021 BT A= gGfHAT Veld
IrE | U U gRAT id o B ifaR
I IR R ARTAR o 2| aifoRes a1 &
Uy § BT dferaar w1 fquuE srfdrarRat
F AREIRT &1 gear 9 & Ided faurT <
fauo faunT @ik fauoe favmT | Yed aee
ATS /¢ WUl DI IRAT i Aol IR IMARS
iz YomTefl &1 HHY BT U ot 7 | s
AU W IRAT Wb dl ggd AMEG HHI
dfee gRaT Wi & dfard Juor & g
DI < BY I8 Hel YRAT Wl & Iedad d
3o eraied W W Hag UaT dRar B

PIAT 7 31 A 2021 TH 131 o0 SteRi (T
IR—TREHN 3R /A1 IR gy SIeri) &1 9
GRET ST & 346.48 TG TUY B 01T & Raelh
1056.29 ¢TI BUY &I fec Al &l srgafa 1
2, 39 UBR UTgde AMIRAT BT 709.81 IRG BUT
& forg afafRes wfee A wsR @1 718 2|

4.5

4.6

of very high demand of urea and scarcity of supply
of Urea. Internal Auditor has reported substantial
shortage of Physical Stock of Urea in cases of
verification of godown stock of two dealers out
of 4 verified dealers on 11.02.2020 at Tinsukia.
Thus the chances of misappropriation / diversion
of urea stock in black market can not denied by
the designated wholesalers. This shows complete
lacking of Internal Control System of Dealers Stock
by the BVFCL Management.

As per physical verification report produced by the
management, the Company has found shortage
of Finished Goods of only 20.865 MT of Urea
Stock out of total Opening & Production stock
of 1,44,490.345 MT Stock of Urea. Thus as per
physical verification report there is only nominal
shortage of Urea Stock of around 0.01%. As per
newspapers report dated 28th August 2021 the
local police has arrested two marketing officials of
BVFCL on 29/08/2021 on the alleged excess bag
unloading of Urea Stock found at Tinsukia Railway
Yard. The incident of arrest of two marketing
officers on alleged involvement in dispatch of
excess bag itself reveals the lacking of internal
control system on dispatch of Urea Stock from
Production Department to Marketing Department
and also from Marketing Department to Railway
Loading Yard / Truck Consignments. This issue also
raises suspicion on proper accounting of production
of Urea Stock, in view of very normal shortage of
Urea Stock on physical verification but the incident
of unaccounted dispatch of Urea Stock.

The Company has allowed credit sales of Rs.
1056.29 Lakhs as at 31st March 2021 to 131
Dealers (all Non Govt. and/ or Non PSU dealers)
against their Security Deposits amounting to
Rs. 346.48 Lakhs, thus there is excess credit
limit allowed to the Pvt. Dealers amounting to
Rs.709.81 Lakhs
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ffvEiiva yeee | we fear § fe o=
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IR uRe ™l & [ & g Serl
P ST WAl &l g9 ®, oIGTaRIel
Afafd @t 9@ fedid 27 TdaR, 2020 & faf¥re
e & drasE “PU & WAl Bl GRIBT H
IRAT IR AR AT & FH(bd @ iDh Bl
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S ThIed UHTT 3 31T orm 2t & dgd wr
STHET A1y |
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reuTfafer For &R SrffrH 353812 TRG HUY
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g 0T AR A & 3538.12 @RI JUY (Al
2.14) # o= 99 2016—17 ¥ 2020—21 & SRIA
faf=1 givgardst o1 ddfta o< asf # s9a
IAIed 9 & Yool 7039 g BUY Bl
gderd W9 A g1 ofed du A a9 B
SR HaT3i BT ™ IS & 59 Ydard &9 &
Raers Hafda < &1 g& 781 foar 2|

T W FHIRT & & HUAl 70.39 R TUY B
S 9T YAl BT FERT Ul & Sigcadbdial

4.7

4.8

4.9

The BVFCL management has explained that credit
sale without adequate security cover were
allowed on trading goods only and not on the own
manufactured products of Urea & Bio Fertilizer. But
we were not in a position to verify this contention
of the management, as the Company do not
maintain separate account ledgers of the dealers
for sale of own Manufactured Goods and Sale of
Trading Goods, in spite of specific direction of Audit
Committee Meeting dated 27th November 2020
that “ existing practice of consolidated accounting
of Urea & Trading business in the books of accounts
of the company is not proper and desired that it
should be kept under separate accounting heads
with immediate effects.

Trade Receivables of Rs. 852.42 Lakhs (Notes
2.12) includes claim for subsidy receivables from
Ministry Rs. 2.25 Lakhs (of the Year 2010) which
seem to be not realizable..

The BVFCL Management has explained that the
company is still hopeful to get back the subsidy
receivable from Ministry of Rs. 2.25 lakhs.

Short Term Loans and Advances Rs. 3538.12 Lakhs
(Note 2.14) includes Input Credit on account of
GST Rs. 3033.33 lakhs, whereas as per GST portal
electronic credit ledger balance as on 31st March
2021 is Rs. 3223.63 lakhs.

Short Term Loans and Advances Rs. 3538.12
Lakhs (Note 2.14) includes prepaid expenses of
Rs. 70.39 Lakhs paid to the various Transporters
during the Financial Year 2016-17 to 2020-21
against their produced hill in respective Financial
Years. But the Company has not booked the
corresponding expenditure against this prepaid
expenses in the year of availing the services.

The management has explained that the company
shall reconcile all these payments of Rs. 70.39
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3= dTe], WURT 268.06 I BUY Bl (IS 2.15)
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el fbar S A | 399D AfARD Rl 2726
FAERT H W 124 F@ICR @rell §d¢ T, 2
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I gt drel SiaRe BrIferd Su(STSagH)
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JdTHEAINa @ = Sl @ sifeTiRal &t
focia wgafd o\ dT & U o7 | dcblell|
A o U Al 12,/12,/2015 & ATAR
AIS[ET Thdl T IR &l fhe | WU
B D oy UHp FRfT a9 & fo I @R
PRI A0 (QMEATTH) W RABIRET 7 o |
fhd HuAl 9 oS dd U ol afafa &
T el fhar iR 39 I8 HU! AR A=
yfafafd oike iR e fams & fow 12.12.
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411

lakhs with the respective party ledgers and if
require shall pass the due adjustment entries in FY
2021 - 22.

Other Current Assets Rs. 268.06 Lakhs (Note
2.18) includes Sundry Debtors Estate of Rs.
216.31 Lakhs (Original dues of Rs. 413.88
lakhs Less Provisions for Doubtful Debts Rs.
197.57 Llakhs), against one year accounted
income of Rs. 243.55 Lakhs ( Note 2.17). Thus
almost 10 months accounted income is still
blocked as arrear receivables from Tenant. BVFCL
has granted tenancy right to others on the
guarantee of BVFCL Employee(s), however BVFCL
has never exercised to revoke such guarantee of
its employee to recover the dues from defaulting
tenants. Further out of total 2726 Quarters 124
Quarters are reported to be vacant, 2 Quaters
under unauthorised Occupation and 209 Quarters
declared as unfit, but the exact status report of
the these 335 Quarters could not be furnished by
the management , even on the requisitions made
by the Internal Auditors.

Financial Concurrence System in BVFCL is currently
monitored and guided by a three pages Inter Office
Memorandum dated 12/12/2015 by the then
Deputy Finance Manager to the then CMD of BVFCL,
proposing to exercise the Financial Concurrence
Right by the different ranks of BVFCL officials based
on volume of expenditures. The then CMD by his
note dated 12/12/2015 has recommended on the
said IOM to form a committee to re- design the
existing DP. But the Company has not formed any
such committee till date and thereby the company
is continuously adopting the said |IOM dated
12/12/2015 for exercising of Financial Delegation
and Concurrence. The Financial delegation power
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proposed in the IOM dated 12/12/2015 is only a
half hearted draft without complying the guideline
of General Financial Rule applicable on PSU and also
not vetted by the Board of the Company.

As per Audit Committee minutes dated 24th
December 2020, the Audit Committee was
informed that the draft delegation of power
(DOP) of CMD, BVFCL, has been prepared after
throughly examining each points by the constituted
Committee in the light of DOP of NFL, RCF & BCPL.
After detailed deliberation, Audit Committee
recommends the proposed DOP of CMD, BVFCL
and powers are required to be sub - delegated by
CMD to the Functional Director of the Company in
apporiate manner, as early as possible for approval
of the Board. While Sub Delegating powers by
CMD, there must be a three tiers system adopted
and followed in the entire organization always.
Further Audit Committee stressed that , while
finalisation of delegation of powers, the provision
contained in GFR and observations of Statutory
Auditors and the three system suggested by the
NOD to be followed at all stages, so that there
will be value addition in decision making and also
to ensure internal check and Balance. The Board
of Directors on the same day also approved the
recommendation of Audit Committee.

However, the Company has not yet finalised the
DOP, as suggested by the Audit Committee &
Board of Director.

The Company has even seen to superseded the
prescribed financial delegation power proposed in
the stated IOM dated 12/12/2015, as the financial
concurrence for expenditure beyond of Rs. Fifty
Lakhs were seen to be granted merely on the
recommendation of Two Tier Delegation System.
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As per Board Resolution dated 30th June 2020,
the Company Management was directed to place
the details of contracts awarded on nomination/
single tender basis before the Board every quarter
in compliance of CVC guidelines. However the
Company Management seems to be totally non
compliant on this direction of Board.

The BVFCL is a PSU and hence it is bound to follow
the proper internal control and internal checks
mechanism on all of its Financial Transactions
and must exercise more vigil checks and controls
particularly on granting the concurrence for high
volume of Financial Transactions. But the instances
of allowing to bypass the internal control mechanism
(even of highest slab of Financial Transactions)
from the hand of a sitting middle officer can not
be treated as vigil checks and controls of Financial
Transactions.

Further the Company is adopting the very old
pattern of L1 Price Criteria instead of adopting
to ‘Weighted average method of Quoted Price
& Technical Experience of bidders’ for granting
Financial Concurrence even for the appointment
of specialize services providers like appointment of
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Technical Consultants, Internal Auditors etc. and
thereby indirectly debarring entry to the more
deserving and specialized professionals/ technical
experts and ultimately the company is being
deprived of from getting best specialize services
within time bound due to failure vendors in delivering
the accepted assignments ( like non implementation
of ERP System by the appointed consultants M/s
Alfa Links Technologies, Banglore even after wasting
of most of time and energy of the BVFCL Officials.

Finance Department acts as a facilitator to the
executing department in various ways such as
pointing out deficiencies for necessary corrections,
giving the appropriate suggestions in case of faulty
procedures being followed, helping the negotiation
team by providing commercial data, etc. In view if the
latest changes made in the Companies Act 2013,
enhancing the role of statutory auditors and in view
of CSG’s reports on mega corruptions, particularly
in 2G spectrum scam, commonwealth games scam
and other scams, it would be prudent to have and
independent finance concurrence department with
due scope of proper internal control in all PSUs who
ensures that the policies, systems, procedures and
delegation of powers laid-down by the management
are compiled in all respects.

Department of Expenditure (under Ministry of
Finance, Govt. of India has prescribed General
Financial Rules 2017. General Financial Rules (GFRs)
are a compilation of rules and orders of Government
of India to be followed by all while dealing with
matters involving public finances. These rules and
orders are treated as executive instructions to
be observed by all Departments and Organizations
under the Government and specified Bodies. The
BVFCL is a Central Govt. Undertaking and hence its
Financial Delegation and Concurrence must be in
accordance with the Guidelines of General Financial
Rules 2017 and the said Financial Delegation and
Concurrence Power must also be duly vetted by
the Board of Directors of the Company.
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413

414

period for the recipient of any goods or services to
pay to the MSME supplier. In case the buyer fails to
make payment as required under Section 15 of the
Micro Small and Medium Enterprises Development
Act, the buyer is liable to pay compound interest
with monthly rests to the supplier for delayed
period beyond 45 days, on the amount, payable
at three times the bank rate notified by Reserve
Bank of India as provided under Section 16 of the
MSMED Act, 2006. But the Company has not paid/
provided for prescribed interest to the buyers in
case of delayed payment beyond 45 days.

The Company has explained that as per Purchase
Order/ Work Order, there is no provision for
interest on delay payment made to MSME. But this
explanation is not the suitable compliance of the
MSMED Act, 2006.

The company could not produce for our verification
the Independent HR Audit Report, as directed by
the Board in its Meeting dated 30th June 2020,
inspite of facing some legal disputes with some of
its Ex employee and current employees, relating
to experience certificate/ false declaration etc. In
absence of HR Audit, we are unable to comment on
the possibilities of crystalising of some more legal
disputes with employee.

Due to lack of time and Statutory Constraints
for involving our self in deep investigation audit,
we could not examine the complaints levied in mail
dated 12th August 2021 (also addressed to CAG),
received from Shri Sanjai Maheswari {Ex Director
Finance Cum CMD (Additional Charge)} describing
in more than 1000 Pages the details of complaint
against Corruption, Malpractices & Unprofessional

156



TGS dell BicaTsoR HraveH fafics

BRAHMAPUTRAVALLEY FERTILIZER CORPORATION LIMITED

EF
= f Tw &
BVFC

4.15

Tfafafedl & Raars Ardeh, dduwdea (o
T HAR) b ARI dAUHANA AR IRD
farT @& IR S1ffeN, dUEHTa & 44 &Ik
A AUES], GBI gRT B TS T8
AT &1 1000 A 8 g&i d Rrdrad @1
faror aftfa 2| sdfery &9 faxig Mifgand &R
JMdR® 0T Surl @ A R fewl) o= #
Y E, O f S 9F H IRIY IRIT T
2| AR Aol U fI9d & STER SR
P S PR Ahd 2 |

glcTifch, U2 ST, g <l 41 fb e dive
& | ST ot "RIa] & dR<dd SuUiNh
T BT AAYT BY I AhDHR HHAR] gfasy ey
3R fafaer uraer= ™, 1952 @ ORT 10 &
g BT Seciod fhar 2|

DO B T GAAT URNATDS JoTell (3msa)
S HEIH H AEBA ofed ® dhad B9 2w
Bl AAMEIT B Bl S8 © 3R Ala IMeC
JOTTell GRTT 2 3R quid: yHIforg =181 2 |

IFEE SRfET W BEd 85 DA DI
ToTTell §gd YR & | I8 SATuRfST Ried gRi
2| Hhag! IR # g AT Rven w
IAHE H I Jarey RIRTH $idTd 85 dhddl
AT eee {9, SR oA favmT 3iR SE
el faur & fou vaigd B fashr fawm,
AME W T iR e @ Rerd aal
(AITST iR I@Er]) & NG AR Ay
ISR U GR® Dol Erdl | AafhTd © |
UHAS fHa1 ST R8T 2 | I8 Wgd IIBee S
Jol & JEANHRT H 8 B I BRI & |
TAD IFeATaT FATHHITS & DT Wi R
Pl ® RIS doi W Hefd ser faaRer a&
Uge H e € | 39 YPR Wi TR

4.15

Business activities into affairs of Brahmaputra
Valley Fertilizer Corporation Limited (BVFCL) by past
& present CMD, BVFCL in deep collusion with CVO,
BVFCL(Mr. Prabhas Kumar) and senior officials of
BVFCL & Department of Fertilizers. Hence we are
unable to comment the Financial Implication and
lacking of Internal Control measures, as alleged in
the said letter. The Hon'ble CAG may investigate
the allegations, as per their own discretions.

However, prima facie, we have observed that
BVFCL Management has violated the provisions
of Section 10 of the Employees’ Provident Fund
and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952 by way
of illegal withholding of genuine EPF Claim of Shri
Sanjai Maheswari.

The Company are processing only some portion of
accounting transactions through IT System and
that too present established IT system is outdated
and is not full proof.

Major Accounting System within BVFCL Factory
Premises is being operated through COBOL 85 on
UNIX Operating System, however remote located
centers at Noida accounting is being done in Tally
Accounting System. However, Guwahati is sending
manual monthly Trial Balance. COBOL 85 on UNIX
Operating is too old system of accounting. This
operating system is outdated. The present installed
Operating System COBOL 85 on UNIX Operating
System at Factory Premises is integrated for
MM Department, Store Accounting Department
& Central Account Department only. Quarterly
summarized Trial Balance of Sales Department, HR
Department and remote located centres (NOIDA
& Guwahati) are being manually merged into
Central Accounts by passing consolidated manual
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Journal vouchers for each centers. This is the main
reason of delay in updation of Central Account Trial
Balance. Further BVFCL Central Accounts is unable
to access data details related to Trial Balance of
remote centers. Thus the present installed system
of Accounting software is unable to generate
real time accounting MIS. The present operating
system follows batch processing which is not a real
time processing system. This system is a command
based system and the reports are not generated
in MS-Excel or MS-Word, thereby rendering
possibility of only manual analysis of the reports
generated. This consumes a lot of time and energy
of all concerned, including the employee and the
auditors, in analysis of the reports.

Since all of the financial data are not incorporated in
the COBOL 85 UNIX Operating System. Therefore,
there is compelled dependency on Subsidiary Ledges
to get extracted the realistic financial records of
a single ledgers. Internal Auditor of the company
has pointed out differences between main ledger
and subsidiary ledgers in a few instances thereby
raising a doubt on the accuracy and the reliability of
the system. Further many subsidiary ledgers of the
Company is being maintained in Excel Based Sheets,
which is not at all full proof, as the possibility of un
authorised tempering of such data and possibility
of getting alteration of balances of any particular
individual ledgers at any time can not be denied.

In order to overcome the shortcomings of the
present system, a new system of IT Accounting
needs to be put in place at the earliest, so that
the complete financial records of BVFCL can be
incorporated in a single IT System with full proof
recording and safety of all recorded financial
transactions with no chances of tampering of the
recorded Financial Transactions.
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Information other than the financial statements
and auditors’ report thereon:

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible
for the preparation of the other information. The
other information comprises the information
included in the Board’s Report including Annexures
to Board’s Report & Business Responsibility Report
but does not include the financial statements and
our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the
other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained
during the course of our audit or otherwise appears
to be materially mis-stated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material mis-statement
of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

Management’s responsibility for the Financial
Statements:

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible
for the matters stated in section 134 (5) of the
Act with respect to the preparation of these
financial statements that give a true and fair view
of the financial position, financial performance and
cash flows of the Company in accordance with
the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, including the accounting standards specified
under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility
also includes maintenance of adequate accounting
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records in accordance with the provisions of the
Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company
and for preventing and detecting frauds and
other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
and design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant
to the preparation and presentation of the financial
statement that give a true and fair view and are
free from material mis-statement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management
is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless management either intends to liquidate the
Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so. The board of directors
are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s
financial reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibhilities for the audit of the
financial statements:

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material mis-statement, whether due
to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is
a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs
will always detect a material mis-statement when
it exists. Mis-statements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we
exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material
mis-statement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and
perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material mis-statement resulting from fraud
is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal contral.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control
relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances. Under section 143(3)
(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on
whether the company has adequate internal
financial controls system in place and the
operating effectiveness of such controls.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by management.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of
management’s use of the going concern
basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material
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uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attentioninour auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of
our auditor’s report and we have duly placed
our doubt on the company existence of going
concern under. the reporting Head Material
Uncertainty Related to Going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure
and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether
the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged
with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with
governance with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on
our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those
charged with governance, we determine
those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the financial statements
of the current period and are therefore
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8.1

8.2

the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor’s report unless law
or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our
report because the adverse consegquences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Report on other and

requirements:

legal regulatory

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report)
Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of
section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give
in the "Annexure A", a statement on the matters
specified in paragraph 3 and 4 of "the Order", to
the extent applicable.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we
report that:

a)  We have sought and obtained all the
information and explanations which to
the best of our knowledge and belief were
necessary for the purposes of our audit;

b)  In our opinion, proper books of account
as required by law have been kept by the
Company, so far as it appears from our
examination of those books;

c)  The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit
and Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement dealt
with by this report are in agreement with
the books of account;

d)  In our opinion, the aforesaid financial
statements comply with the accounting
standards specified under section 133 of
the Act, read with rule 7 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014;
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)

In pursuance to the notification No GSE
829(E) dated 21.10.2003, issued by the
Department of Company Affairs; section
164(2) of the Companies Act,2013
pertaining to disqualification of Directors is
not applicable to a Government Company.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting of
the Company and the operating effectiveness
of such controls, refer to our separate
report in "Annexure B". and

With respect to the other matters to be
included inthe Auditor’s Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to
the explanations given to us;

The Company has disclosed the amount of
pending litigation on its financial statement
under Note 2.28 as contingent liability,
however the company has not disclosed the
impact of its pending litigation on its financial
position.

The Company does not have any long-term
contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable
losses; and

There has been no delay in transferring
amounts, required to be transferred, to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by
the Company.

With respect to the other matters to be included
in the Auditors’ Report in terms of the directions
of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India
(CSAG) under Section 143(5) of the Act and on the
basis of our examination of the books and records
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the matters specified in the Directions and Sub-
directions of Comptroller & Auditor General of India.

Fd RS TS HUAI For PARIK & CO

S YhTSCcH Chartered Accountants:

THITRT: 302147 E FRN: 302147E

Aususl waiere Fav: ER0855 C&AG Empanelment No: ER0B35

Sd/-

gf_/— Partner

CA Bipin Kumar

e fafr AR ICAl Membership No. 059805

SRMTSTE AT AT 059805 UDIN:21059805AAAAFPBE05

JeIeTsy : 21059805AAAAFPEB05

R ATl Place : Guwahati

. Date : 27.09.2021
oA : 27.09.2021 ate
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report for
the Financial Year 2020-21

Referred to in paragraph 8.1 of Independent Auditor's
Report to the memhers of the Company on the Financial
Statements.

We report that:

) a) (A} The company has maintained
computerized records showing particulars
and value of Property, Plant & Equipments.
Since all of the Property, Plant & Equipments
of the company is confined to one place i.e.
Namrup (Assam) only therefore the company
has not maintained the specific situations of
its Fixed Assets in its Fixed Assets Register.

(B) The Company has not reported any
intangible assets in its Financial Statement,
therefore maintenance of records wrt
intangible assets is not applicable on
company.

b)  As per information and explanations given
to us, fixed assets of the company were
physically verified by a commitee specially
constituted for this purpose and the said
committee has certified that all assets of
the company are under the control of the
respective department and inspected plants
and machinery are in working condition.
However the in-house committee report of
physical verification of fixed assets do not
provide quantitative reconciliation of verified
Fixed Assets with its Fixed Assets Register.
Further the constituted in house committee
of the Company did not mentioned about the
physical verification position of its landed
property and building.

¢ According to the information and explanations
given to us, the records examined by us and

166



BRAHMAPUTRAVALLEY FERTILIZER CORPORATION LIMITED

= f Tw &
BVFC

yae fby U gaRd foeral @ SmR
R, &1 Rurd a=a € &, sfeR faomg,
S 41 &R 9edi & Wi @ O
A &, S Wl 8les g, PUAl & A W
T Al AP & AR AT fa
T A IR HaT BT rEd FuRRl &
weer #, 2 ug R forr mam ® el foxi
faeRoll 3 e FuRRll @ wU H G
far T 2, B BiSATSOR BIUie
P IH W @F du o fidemdnd
®T fderd gom &) gorm uAl @l [y &
AR fbar T ®, Wifd U s
HON D AH R 2

g QTR AHAR IR IR B
AR, BU A RUIfdT fo=ig a9 &
SR AT FURT, A3 R SYBROT BT
JTHIH Tel T 7 |

g & TS TN IR WEIGRT ®
AR, "I oia () a7,
1988 3R S¥® de8d 990 U A &
aed fdr ¥ 997 HufRy &7 @ & fore
HUHl & RIATH DIy BrIATS! Yo ol DI
TS B A1 dAfdd TET B

A TS gl ik weeRe &
AR, JdE T S cRTel WR gdgl
B e ®U I A9 fBar T '
IR gl @ ¥ifde Fa9s d T TS
fodrfo M= iR "Meel & iR
off ST 10% ¥ 98 &4 ofi, 3R AT
AT JHA™ @rdl dI fharal § g o
Ad I Aued T 2|

U=l fHdl W @ a1 i dxem 9
DS PRI Yol AT BT A T8l S0l
W ® R gafer (i) (1) CARD 2020,
FHUN W AN 78T B |

i)

e)

a)

based on the examination of the conveyance
deeds provided to us, we report that, the
title deeds, comprising all the immovable
properties of land and buildings which
are freehold, are held in the name of the
Hindustan Fertlizer Corporation Limited ( a
Company from which the BVFCL demerged)
as at the balance sheet date. In respect of
immovable properties of land and building
that have been taken on lease and disclosed
as fixed assets in the financial statements,
the lease agreements are in the name of the
Company.

According to the information and explanations
given to us, the company has not revalued
its Property, Plants & Equipments during the
reporting Financial Year.

According to the information and explanations
given to us, no proceedings have been
initiated or are pending against the company
for holding any Benami property under the
“Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act,
1988 and Rules made thereunder.

As per informations and explanations given
to us, the inventories has been physically
verified by the management at reasonable
intervals and the discrepancies noticed in
physical verification of inventory was normal
and within the norms and was much lesser
than 10%, and the said normal loss of
inventory has been properly dealt with in the
books of accounts.

The Company is not availing any working
capital limits from any banks or financial
institution and hence (ii) (b) of CARO 2020,
is not applicable on Company.
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i)

iv)

v)

vi)

vii)

The Company has not has made investments in,
provided any guarantee or security or granted any
loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured
or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liability
Partnerships or any other parties. and Clause (i)
of the CARO 2020 is not applicable on Company.

The Company has complied with the provisions of
section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act 2013
in respect of loans, investments, guarantees and
security provided by it.

The company has not accepted any deposits from
the public and hence the directives issued by the
Reserve Bank of India and Provisions of Section 73
to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Act
and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposit) Rules,
2015 with regards to deposits accepted from the
public are not applicable.

We have broadly reviewed the Cost Records
maintained by the Company pursuant to the rules
made by the Central Government for maintenance
of Cost Records under Section 148(1) of the
Companies Act, 2013 and we are of the opinion
that prima facie the prescribed accounts and
records have been made and maintained.

a)  According to the information and
explanations given to us and on the basis
of our examination of the records of the
Company, amounts deducted / accrued in the
books of account in respect of undisputed
statutory dues including Provident Fund,
Income-tax, GST, Sales-tax, Service-tax,
Goods and Service Tax, Duty of Customs,
Duty of Central Excise, Value added tax and
any other material statutory dues have been
regularly deposited during the year by the
Company with the appropriate authorities.
As stated by the management the
Company's is not covered under the purview
of statutory compliance prescribed under
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vii)

X)

ESI Act. According to the informations and
explanations given to us no such undisputed
arrears of statutory dues were outstanding
as at 31st March,2021, for a period of more
than six months from the date they became
payable.

b)  According to the information and explanations
given to us, no disputed dues against
the Company are outstanding as at 31st
March,2021, in respect of Provident fund,
Employee State Insurance, Income-tax, Sales-
tax, Service-tax, Goods and Service Tax, Duty
of customs, Duty of excise, Value added tax
and any other material statutory dues.

According to the information and explanations
given to us, the Company has not surrendered
or disclosed as income during the year in the tax
assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961.

Based on our audit procedures, and as per
the information & explanation given by the
management, the company has not defaulted in
the repayment of dues of principal or interest on
loan to the bank, financial institution or debenture
holder and hence the remaining sub clause ato e
are not applicable on this company.

(@) During the reporting Financial Year, the
Company has not raised money by way
of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments). Accordingly,
the provision of clause 3 (x) of the Order is
not applicable on the Company.

(b)  During the reporting Financial Year, the
Company has not any preferential allotment
or private placement of shares or convertible
debentures (fully, partially or optionally
convertible) during the year and therefore
the requirements of compliance of Section
42 and Section 62 of the Companies Act,
2013 is not applicable on company.
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(a)

(b)

i) To the best of our knowledge and
according to the information and explanations
given to us, there was no material fraud
committed by company or on the company
by its officers/employees.

To the best of our knowledge and according
to the information and explanations given
to us, no report under sub-Section (12)
of Section 143 of the Companies Act has
been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4
as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules 2014 with the
Central Government.

Due to lack of time and Statutory
Constraints for involving our self in deep
investigation audit, we could not examine the
complaints levied in mail dated 12th August
2021 (also addressed to CAG), received
from Shri Sanjai Maheswari {Ex Director
Finance Cum CMD (Additional Charge)}
describing in more than 1000 Pages the
details of complaint against Corruption,
Malpractices & Unprofessional Business
activities into affairs of Brahmaputra Valley
Fertilizer Corporation Limited (BVFCL)
by past & present CMD, BVFCL in deep
collusion with CVO, BVFCL(Mr. Prabhas
Kumar) and senior officials of BVFCL &
Department of Fertilizers. Hence we are
unable to comment the Financial Implication
and lacking of Internal Control measures,
as alleged in the said letter. The Hon'ble
CAG may investigate the allegations, as per
their own discretions.

This Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence
this clause of CARO 2020 is not applicable.

170



BRAHMAPUTRAVALLEY FERTILIZER CORPORATION LIMITED

= f Tw &
BVFC

xii)

Xiv)

XV)

XVi)

HI- - AT Uell b AT by oo A8l
fohar B 3R saferv wus rfSfs & gt 177
3R 188 BT IUTATT B R ] &l BIelm ¥ |

®)  HUAI DI IMARG TGN TH dice
UHISCHl BH §RT JAMERS IR TR Bl
ST RET & SR gAY DUl & U 370

FIA & AMMBR 3R TP & IHT T
3TARS oRaT TRIET HoTedl 2 |

Q) T e & @y & forg eraR®
ogT TeTdh 1 Rurel wrR fafdad faar
fopar 2|

BUAl 1 el I WY Jg AhAl B AT
PIs IR—Adal o-ed el fhar g RaEm
el & da9 v o= aRerferdl St fob dar
el & sicefa <a 2

FHUN DG IRER BT IUHA T AR AT A8
quicTiele Uee fFawrd & fory gaaT udga
HAhed e WReN faurl sieria ||
3R SRD HACE gRI FMEiRa 9 feiRor
® ATAR 2| A UBR HUA 7 Bg IR
D QY D IFIAR B TETHI UIRSHG B
YA /9&H a1 8, S W SuAl Sifeiem
2013 @I TR 192 & UEGET Bl AT T
2 |

®) DU B ARAGI Ro@ dF  srRiRm,
1934 P IRT 45—3MSU & dgd foex
BT Iuferd -8t 2

W) HUN A PIs IR—dfpT O AT 3mard
ATy WURIRST 2020 HT IE WS HUAT
WR AR el BT © |

xXiii)

Xiv)

Xv)

Xvi)

The Company has not entered into any transactions
with the related parties and hence compliance with
sections 177 and 188 of Companies Act are not
applicable on the Company.

a)  Internal Audit of the Company is being
conducted on periodical basis by a Chartered
Accountancy Firm and hence the Company
has an internal audit system commensurate
with the size and nature of its business.

b)  We have duly considered, the reports of
the Internal Auditors for the period under
audit.

The company has not entered into any non—cash
transactions with directors or persons connected
with him, except for payments of salary and other
perquisites as mandated in service rules for
directors.

The Company is Central Govt. Undertakings and
its managerial resolution to the Chairman Cum
Whole Time Managing Director is as per the
pay fixation prescribed by the appointing Govt.
Departments i.e. Ministry of Chemicals and
Fertilisers. Thus the company has paid/ provided
managerial remuneration only as per mandate
of the Central Govt., which is itself a sufficient
compliance of provisions of section 192 of
Companies Act 2013.

a)  The company is not required to be registered
under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934.

b)  The Company has not conducted any
Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance
activities, and hence this clause of CARO
2020 is not applicable on Company.
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Xvii)

Xviii)

Xix)

¢c)  The Company is not a Core Investment
Company (CIC) as defined under the
Regulations by the Reserve Bank of India,
and hence this clause of CARO 2020 is not
applicable on Company.

d)  The Company is not being managed by any
Group Concerns, and hence this clause of
CARO 2020 is not applicable on Company.

The current reporting period loss of the Company is
Rs. 13775.24 Lakhs is after charging depreciation
Rs. 3639.57 Lakh and accounting of prior period
net income of Rs. 358.41 Lakhs. Thus the Company
has incurred Cash Loss during the reporting period
amounting to Rs. 10494.08 Lakhs during the
current year business operation.

The Company is a Govt. Company and its Statutory
Auditors is being appointed by C8AG of India. None
of the appointed Statutory Auditors of the Company
has placed its resignation so far.

As per our examination of books of accounts and
on the basis of analysis of the financial ratios,
ageing and expected dates of realization of financial
assets and payment of financial liabilities, other
information accompanying the financial statements,
we state that the company is continuously incurring
substantial cash losses and its net worth has been
completely eroded and therefore there is much
possibility of material uncertainty in company
capability of meeting its liabilities existing at the
date of balance sheet as and when they fall due
within a period of one year from the balance sheet
date, unless and until the company get some major
financial support from Govt of India.
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xX)  ®UH T Tl Y&l URASTRN & orermar fadt i xxJ  The Company not transferred any unspent fund,

e IRy &Y ARy T8 fhar f, gafer in respect of other than ongoing projects, hence
TSRS 2020 FT T8 TS HIN W AT T8 this clause of CARO 2020 is not applicable on
3 Company.
) BTN T T THE T R ST xxi)  The Company is a single entity and has no group
) R R I e e e zoji;;}_i concerns and hence this clause of CARO 2020 is
e R o T not applicable on Company.
9 TRE TS HaN For PARIK & CO

Chartered Accountants

gIcs ThlSced FRN : 302147E

THIIRT: 302147 § CSAG Empanelment No : ER0855
oyl THIMeHT Fav: $3TR 0855 p

Sd/-

g/— Partner

SIRIEN CA Bipin Kumar

die fafeT AR ICAI Membership No 059805

JMSVITINS ST HERT 059805 UDIN: 21059805AAAAFPE605

TSy : 21059805AAAAFPEB05
Place : Guwahati

TIT: I[@TETe Date : 27/09/2021
fa=1ia: 27/09/2021
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Annexure —B to the Auditors’ Report

Referred to in paragraph 8.2 of Independent
Auditor's Report to the members of the
Company on the Financial Statements for the
Financial Year 2020-21

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause
(i) of sub- section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies
Act,2013 (‘the Act’):

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of Brahmaputra Valley Fertilizer Corporation
Limited (the Company’) as of 31st March, 2021 in
conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of
the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial
Controls:

The Company management is responsible for establishing
and maintaining internal financial controls based on the
internal control over financial reporting criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI).
The responsibilities include the design, implementation
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls
that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly
and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence
to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets,
the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
and the timely preparation of reliable financial information,
as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility:

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s
internal financial controls over financial reporting based
on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with
the Guidance Note on Audit to Internal Financial Controls
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over Financial Reporting (‘the Guidance Note’) and the
Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to
be prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies
Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal
financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal
Financial Controls and both issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and
the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal
financial controls over financial reporting were established
and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in
all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and their
operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial
controls over financial reporting included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls over financial
reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control bases on the assessed
risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’
judgment, including the assessment of the risk of material
mis-statement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls
system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial
Reporting:

A Company’s internal financial control over financial
reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting
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and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A Company’s internal financial
control over financial reporting includes those policies and
procedures that"

1. pertain to the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
Company;

2. provide reasonable assurance that transactions
are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
of financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts
and expenditures of the Company are being made
only in accordance with authorization of the
Management of the Company; and

3. provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention
or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use
or disposition of the Company’s assets that could
have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls
Over Financial Reporting:

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial
controls over financial reporting, including the possibility
of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material mis-statements due to error or fraud may occur
and not be detected. Also projections of any evaluation
of the internal financial controls over financial reporting
to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal
financial control over financial reporting may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions or that the
degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects,
an adequate internal financial controls system over
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financial reporting and such internal financial controls
over financial reporting were operating effectively as at
31st March,2021 which is based on internal control over
financial reporting criteria established by the company
considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India.

For PARIK & CO

Chartered Accountants

FRN : 302147E

C8AG Empanelment No : ER0855

Sd/.

Partner

CA Bipin Kumar

ICAI Membership No 059805
UDIN: 21059805AAAAFPE605

Place : Guwahati
Date : 27/09/2021
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Annexure C to the Independent
Auditor’s Report for the Financial Year
2020-21

Referred to in paragraph 8.3 of Independent Auditor's
Report to the memhers of the Company on the Financial
Statements.

COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE

We have conducted the audit of accounts of Brahmaputra
Valley Fertilizer Corporation Limited for the year ended
31st March 2021 in accordance with the General
Directions issued by C8AG of India under Section 143(5)
of the Companies Act, 2013 and certify that we have
complied with all the directions/ sub directions issued to
us.

For PARIK & CO

Chartered Accountants

FRN : 302147E

CSAG Empanelment No : ER0855

Sd/.

Partner

CA Bipin Kumar

ICAI Membership No 059805
UDIN: 21059805AAAAFPE605

Place : Guwahati
Date : 27/09/2021

Enclosed: Reply on General Directions issued to us by
CSAG of India under Section 143(5) of the Companies
Act, 2013.
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Enclosures to Annexure C of the
Independent Auditor’s Report for the
Financial Year 2020-21

Referred to in paragraph 8.3 of Independent
Auditor's Report to the members of the
Company on the Financial Statements.

Reply on General Directions issued to us hy
CSAG of India under Section 143(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013.

Directions under section 143(5) of the Companies Act,
2013 for the Financial Year 2020-21:

1.  Whether the company has system in place to
process all the accounting transactions through
IT System? If yes, the implication of processing
of accounting transactions outside IT system
on the integrity of the accounts along with the
financial implications, if any, may he stated.

Our Reply:

The Company has in place to process only some portion of
accounting transactions through IT System and that too
the said IT system is outdated and is not full proof.

Major Accounting System within BVFCL Factory Premises
is being operated through COBOL 85 on UNIX Operating
System, however remote located centers at Noida
accounting is being done in Tally Accounting System.
However, Guwahati is sending manual monthly Trial
Balance. COBOL 85 on UNIX Operating is too old system
of accounting. This operating system is outdated. The
present installed Operating System COBOL 85 on UNIX
Operating System at Factory Premises is integrated for
MM Department, Store Account Department & Central
Account Department only. Quarterly summarized Trial
Balance of Sales Department, HR Department and remote
located centres (NOIDA & Guwahati) are being manually

179



ot <t Tw
BVFC

TGS dell BicaTsoR Have™ fafics

BRAHMAPUTRAVALLEY FERTILIZER CORPORATION LIMITED

D Dal WM T bal D oA o H Gl
ST f9eRvr & uge H 3 € | 39 UPR I@id
AMMERR P IaA RIIfUd Uorell aRdfdd a9
TEIHT JEEE AT TSl Sa B H - IraHed
2| IAAM FETed UOell 99 WRIRIT @1 SR
IRAT § S b aRdfdd FHI B Hrenfidl gomel
TE © | I8 UUMTell U DTS IMERT Jomell & 3R
Rard Y-y 1 UHUE—a< H S~ T&l gl
2, ot s Ruid & daat afea fawemor o
H91E Bl 2| a8 Ruid & faweyor § $9an ek

SHoll B WUd Bl 2 |

Tfh Tl foxTr SeT dIaIel 85 Jiad ST RiweH
H wfie w8 €1 39T, Uahd oied & Jemefard)
faxia Rais &1 Faeq & foy afcas oo W
fiRar 8t 81 o & oiaRe okal WieTd o HB
SaTERvl H & Wil 81 3R e pufEl &
ToTTell &1 fAvqa-aar R a8 U1 BIer 8 | Uaie
R ¥ew H S & iR W &3 afsafesdy @rdr
P IERWE BT &1 8 8, W b Il wu 9
g™ @1 9T © iR el ff 9= fosdt faeiy
WAl & A9 H yRacE P FIEAT 8 Fhdl 7, O

IATPN gl fhar ST Adhdr 2 |

aAH TSl BT BRI Bl gX bR B fory, ML
AGIHT BT UH -5 Tl Pl Sed 4§ Sleq AN B
D AETIRAT &, dlie GAIUHAYS @ goul =i
ReprS &1 goi g/oT RBIRET iR FRem & |1y Ravfe
fru U foxiig oF e # 9T BSB1e & BIs AHaT,
@ AT T RapfS fhy 71U faxi oi9es Udhd sl
qoTrelt # enfier fohar <7 a9 |

2. T A HigEr ®oT &1 By gAioA
2, A &l geH & faw Fvigrar gw™a
Bl DY gHfAr ® BRI FOT / FOT WR

merged into Central Accounts by passing consolidated
manual Journal vouchers for each centers. This is the main
reason of delay in updation of Central Account Trial Balance.
Further BVFCL Central Accounts is unable to access data
details related to Trial Balance of remote centers. Thus
the present installed system of Accounting software is
unable to generate real time accounting MIS. The present
operating system follows batch processing which is not a
real time processing system. This system is a command
based system and the reports are not generated in MS-
Excel or MS-Word, thereby rendering possibility of only
manual analysis of the reports generated. This consumes
a lot of time and energy of all concerned, including the
employee and the auditors, in analysis of the reports.

Since all of the financial data are not incorporated in
the COBOL 85 UNIX Operating System. Therefore,
there is compelled dependency on Subsidiary Ledger to
get extracted the realistic financial records of a single
ledgers. Internal Auditor of the company has pointed out
differences between main ledger and subsidiary ledgers in
a few instances thereby raising a doubt on the accuracy
and the reliability of the system. Further many subsidiary
ledgers of the Company is being maintained in Excel Based
Sheets, which is not at all full roof, as the possibility of
un authorised tempering of such data and possibility of
getting alteration of balances of any particulars individual
ledgers at any time can not be denied.

In order to overcome the shortcomings of the present
system, a new system of IT Accounting needs to be put
in place at the earliest, so that the complete financial
records of BVFCL can be incorporated in a single IT
System with full proof recording and safety of all recorded
financial transactions with no chances of tampering of the
recorded Financial Transactions..

2. Whether there is any restructuring of an
existing loan or cases of waiver/ write off of
dehts/ loans/ interest etc made hy lender to the
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ge /< /anfe fear = g1? afe &f, ai
$9d $IRYT gV < y9E 9aig |

RIS CICH

ao RAféT s@f® & SRM, HisEr ko & Ul
DIS YAGRTAT Tl DI g 8, BTl HUN 1 oA DI
T Ut & HeAoiR 57275 @RI BUY DI T
FT AR W ART TRHR GRT RY 7Y o1 R PIE

7ot T8l fear B

3.

T DU /s ol 9 faflrse ayen
@ foag a1 (e /afsasdy anfe)ura fear
T o7 AT A2 AR DY AGf AR Al
P IR SYART fHAT 171 o1? fa=eq &
Al & gl 9919 |

AIS[ET FHIET 3fafey & SR HUI =T 10146.
45 G ®UT BT HIFT B 3R R Afeqs! 3
3R ATt 9IS BT AfSHS] BT AT—SIAT T &
IR Y Afed<T 3, TARH Ud SR HATTY
(Sreluw) gRT faaRka &1 T8 2|

THARH™ & AT & R, duAl e
® Wik A FeR & a8 Al HiY STHRBISI
BT 3t ®U W d99 & 91€ & Afeds! @I
qMa] HRA B THER B | oAfbd du=it 7 fai
99 2020—21 H 127628 I BUT P Afeds!
Mg &1 e <@m B, o <iftm vy 99w @
€ (S 31.03.2021 BT 20176.121 Hed W
gV fashareil iR FaxT fasmdmil & us) wih
el @ fomr e fdar 2

FNTHATST v o 9T 2 fb du T
et i WX 127628 oRg  HUT Pl
AfTST M &1 39 o 2| gddr JER
AvHEATe yhed 9 AW dftd gRar wie

company due to company's inahility to repay
the loans? if yes, the financial impact may he
stated.

Our Reply:

During the current reporting periods no such restructuring
of an existing loan has been made , however the company
has not provided for any interest on Loan Granted by
Govt. of India on principal loan amount of Rs. 57275 lakhs,
in view of non availability of sufficient profitability.

3.  Whether funds (grants/ subsidy etc.) received
/ receivahles for specific scheme from Central
| State agencies were properly accounted for/
utilised as per its term and conditions? List the
cases of deviation.

Our reply:

a)  During the current reporting period the company
has accounted Subsidy Income on account of price
variance and freight subsidy amounting to Rs.
10146.45 Lakhs and all of the accounted subsidy
income has been disbursed by the Ministry of
Chemicals & Fertilizers (DOF).

b)  As per FICC Regulation, the Company is entitled
to claim the subsidy only after clearance of stock
from ultimate Point of Sale, i.e ultimate sell to
the agricultural consumers. But the Company has
accounted Subsidy Income in the Financial Year
2020-21 amounting to Rs.1276.28 Lakhs without
clearance of Stock from ultimate Point of Sale (i.e.
on the POS stock 20176.121 MT lying with whole
sellers and retailers as on 31.03.2021).

The BVFCL management has explained that the
company has accounted subsidy income of Rs.
1276.28 lakhs on the POS stock, as per past
precedence and the BVFCL managements are
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Bl AT fAsheall | GexT ATIRAT 3R GaxT putting their best efforts to liquidate the BVFCL
ORIl § 3" SUANThdRl db  Sudel neem coated urea stock from whole sellers to
B D TOTU 3IUAT FISS TN Y T ¢ | retailers and from retailers to end users.
Pd RS T U For PARIK & CO
IS Upreced Chartered Accountants
UHTRUS: 302147 § FRN : 302147E
JUSTS THUATHE Ha¥: $3MR 0855 CSAG Empanelment No : ER0855
8./—
SIHIEIN Sd/-
iy fafeT gar Partner

CA Bipin Kumar
ICAl Membership No 059805
UDIN: 21059805AAAAFPE605

JMSUTINS TIdT GRAT 059805
21@311@?[: 21059805AAAAFPE605

'\’Qﬂ_ffi Tdre < Place : Guwahati
fesia: 27/09/2021 Date : 27/09/2021
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Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2021
9899 dell widdger siufleE fafics
31 914, 2021 & JJAR Ja9-UF
(e ot )
X In lacs)
[ECEL] PARTICULARS fewfor | 31 &€, 2021 B | 31 W, 2020 B
Note No. | asat 31 March, 2021 as at 31 March, 2020
I | sfdad) silk Sgamw | |EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
P | IIRERD Afer A | Shareholders’ Funds
(®) IR goft (a) Share Capital 2.1 36,583.24 36,583.24
(@) Retd o srfdey (b) Reserves and Surplus 2.2 (61,711.28) (47,936.04)
(25,128.04) (11,352.80)
9 | IRN—qd¥rE gdry B |Non-Current Liahilities
(@) <rafaf Sur (a) Long-Term Borrowings 2.3 97,275.00 97,275.00
() SMRAfIT B IATY (b) Defferred Tax Liabilities 24 - -
() sy drefafd I (c) Other Long-Term Liabilities 2.5 1,949.17 1,876.82
(&) <rafafdr graem (d) Long-Term Provisions 2.6 4,354.94 4,781.24
63,579.11 63,933.06
| qdaE SHeRAT C | Current Liabilities
(@) SATIR I (a) Trade Payables 2.7 3,490.04 3,847.34
) TS H G G EITOI] i) Total Outstanding dues on MSE 96.15 96.75
i) THOHS & 3fTetal @iFeRR Bl ii) Total Outstanding dues of 3,433.89 3,750.59
e Creditors other than MSE
(@')ogq:q EREIBICEInILY (b] Other Current Liabilities 2.8 7,528.83 9,935.92
11,018.87 13,783.26
AT (H+EH4T) TOTAL (A+B+C) 49,469.94 66,363.52
Il | yRyufeaar Il | ASSETS
g |i—gdua yRyaufeads D | Non-Current Assets
(@) Uy, I IR USRI (a) Property, Plant & Equipment.
0 W gRufcaat (i) Tangible Assets 2.9 22,057.22 24,609.71
(i) 3;11;? Ryt (i) Intangible Assets 29 1.70 1.70
(i) qﬁ"'ﬂ I T W (iii) Capit_al Work-in-Progress 2.9 628.46 961.25
(W ) (Capital Stores)
(iv) ;HT} Fuferat (@RareT) (iv) Intangible Assets( Project ] 2.8 715.68 715.68
(g) <raferfers For ud e (b) Long-Term Loans and Advances 2.10 14.64 -
23,417.710 26,288.34
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g |adu= aRgufeaar E |Current Assets
(@) WA (a) Inventories 2.1 2,871.15 3,792.58
(@) IR urftaat (b) Trade Receivables 2.12 852.42 28,727.87
(1) Th<T T Ahl THBE (c) Cash and Cash Equivalents 2.13 18,522.49 2,624.53
(51) STcuTIferd FOT Td AfH (d) Short-Term Loans and Advances 214 3,538.12 4,730.65
GERESUERITSEIREI (e) Other Current Assets 2.15 268.06 199.55
26,052.24 40,075.18
AT (& + S) TOTAL (D+E) 49,469.94 66,363.52
HEqUl @i Hifoa Significant Accounting Policies 1
oy o w oot Notes on Financial Statements 2.1t02.31
e & forg @R IFd! IR A
For and on behalf of the Board
8. /- 8. /- g/—
ARSD. [l Ty o <™ TP Uy
BUAT Fiaq RENCHES) e UG gy fqera
SIATSUA : 08988297 SIMSUT : 08222413
Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
R.K.Gupta S.C. Das A. K. Ghosh
Company Secretary Director (Finance) Chairman & Managing Director
DIN : 08988297 DIN : 08222413
ARG S ARG BT AR Held RAE & AR
As per our report of even date annexed
$d RS s HU
For Parik & Co.
Place : Namrup Date : 27/09/2021 s THISced
R @ ATHSRY &= : 27/09/2021 Chartered Accountants
g /- Sd/-
€v Afe s9R CA Bipin Kumar
2 2 Partner
JMEAYRTE FSIAT ¥, 059805 wH TSl . : 302147 §
ICAI Membership No. 059805 Firm Regn. No : 302147E
Hrovers wHierie |, $aTR 0855 JRIRMETA : 21059805AAAAFPE605
C8AG Empanelment No. ER 03;55 UDIN : 21059805AAAAFPEE05
Place : Guwahati Date : 27/09/2021
I : T[ETETE fasias : 27/09/2021
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BRAHMAPUTRA VALLEY FERTILIZER CORPORATION LIMITED
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March, 2021
9899 dell widdger siufleE fafics
31 AT, 2021 &I AW 99 & TH U4 &I &1 fqavor
(BUT @l H)
X In lacs)
faa=or PARTICULARS fewfor < | 31 A, 2021 9 | 31 5, 2020
Note No. gufta Tt
year ended 31 year ended 31
March, 2021 March, 2020
® | Toid A | REVENUE
AT § o Revenue from Operations 2.16 22,318.06 32,727.45
3T A Other Income 2.17 1,014.43 1,039.85
AT (P) TOTAL (R) 23,332.49 33,767.30
g |y B | EXPENSES
ITH B IEPIR IR IRSINGE Cost of Materials Consumed 2.18 5,194.21 8,525.01
WIh—gT—¢s P WIS Purchases of Stock-in-Trade 2.19 4,738.13 4,709.52
TR aqggﬁ B AT g ¥ gRed+, Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods, 2.20 1,194.54 (168.03)
AR Hemadt Seure (e Intermediaries Products (Ammonia) &
Stock-in- trade
SR f2d oY g Employee Benefits Expense 2.21 5,979.89 7,337.59
g arg Finance Costs 2.22 - 0.27
W 3R WIRgTg Repairs & Maintainence 2.23 1,454.77 1,198.98
faa ok o Power & Fuel 2.24 9,306.79 16,834.94
ST 3R esfeliT = Freight & Handling Expense 2.25 1,846.97 2,982.32
e 3R g™ &g Depreciation and Amortisation Expense 2.9 3,639.57 3,669.61
I g Other Expenses 2.26 3,752.86 1,647.19
T (@) TOTAL (B) 37,101.713 46,731.40
T IRV HE (@) o q‘a‘ C |Profit / (Loss) for the Current year (13,775.24) (12,970.10)
M/ g (A-B)
g | 3R 49 D |Extra ordinary item - -
< IGIERYT HE & 914 o9 /8 E |Profit / Loss after Extra Ordinary Item (13,775.24) (12,970.10)
q | B} I F |Tax Expense: - _
B |99 & forg oy /=i G |Profit / (Loss) for the year (E-F) (13,775.24) (12,970.10)
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9y IRR S (1,000/— BUU B Earnings per share (of ¥ 1,000/- each): 2.28
TF H)
ol 3T U IR (3UY) Basic Earnings per Share (Rupees) (376.55) (354.54)
fafdra ema ufer TR (3uv) Diluted Earnings per Share (Rupees) (376.55) (354.54)
I{g;—qt‘[lﬁ Ngte i Significant Accounting Policies 1
M faaeo w® fewfort Notes on Financial Statements 2.1t02.32
e & forg @R B! IR A
For and on behalf of the Board
8. /— 8. /- g/—
ARD. [« Ty W <™ U3 °y
CARIRSICE] feers (fam) el Ud ydy Qe
SIS : 08988297 SIMMEUA : 08222413
Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
R.K.Gupta S.C. Das A. K. Ghosh

Company Secretary

Place : Namrup
T @ 9MH™Y
B./—
e fafta gar

TSRS ASHAT . 059805
ICAI Membership No. 059805

HYUSTS THUEHHE 9. $3TR 0855

C8SAG Empanelment No. ER 0855

Place : Guwahati

T+ TaTETe

Director (Finance)
DIN : 08988297

Chairman & Managing Director
DIN : 08222413

FAHGS TRIE B AR Feld RAE & AR
As per our report of even date annexed

$d IR® Us HUI

For Parik & Co.
Date : 27/09/2021 IS THrSeeH
fedias : 27/09/2021 Chartered Accountants
Sd/-
CA Bipin Kumar
Partner

B UG 9. : 302147 ©
Firm Regn. No : 302147E

JRITEYA : 21059805AAAAFPGE05
UDIN : 21059805AAAAFPG605

Date : 27/09/2021
fesie : 27/09/2021
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BRAHMAPUTRA VALLEY FERTILIZER CORPORATION LIMITED
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31 March, 2021
98MYA dofl widargor s fafics
31 414, 2021 &l AW a9 & ¢ bl yare faavor
(dug ot H)
R In lacs)
faraor Particulars 31 #1d, 2021 31 91, 2020
31 March, 2021 31 March, 2020
yarad TRafaferaY & o< yare : | CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES :
X yd i / (&19) - Profit/(Loss) hefore tax : (13,775.24) (12,970.10)
Sire: wEmeE Tafafel @ oroefrar derm A |Add: Adjustments for Non Cash items & other than
TS 72 B Fore RIS Operating Activities
—IE™ - Depreciation 3,639.57 3,669.61
—¥eRT 3R AfAR® goif & R & - Provision for Obsolescence of stores & Spares (399.08) 92.92
[ENEIECIE]
—BEl & qHg A B oY g - Provision for Leave Encashment 254.01 758.35
—JuyeH & forv grag™ - Provision for Gratuity 468.79
—yftrenfyd uRewafmt & gorr # 98 - Fixed Assets written off against replaced assets 191.33 264.33
G H Srell 78 Frd aResREl
3rael Yol Td AT & foTg wraem= Provision for Unmoved Capital Stores 265.38
—amod fordY 718 uRemafRRll 3g B8 - Provision no longer required written back (30.14) (14.95)
T Suferd el |
—aReIfig R Sgary -Provision for doubtful Debts / advances 1.55 6.32
3.922.64 5,245.37
Frieid goft yRacdH, v 3R ararenRor | Cash flow from Operation Before Working Capital (9,852.60) (1,724.13)
7ot ¥ qd AT @ TS aTs Changes, Taxes § Extraordinary ltems
HRIEME goll gRexHl & foy Farier: Adjustments for Working Capital changes :
—TIR R 3 v ¥ (&) /FH - (Increase)/Decrease in Trade and Other Receivable |  27,873.90 (1,846.55)
— AA-JAN # @fF) /HN - (Increase)/ Decrease in Inventory 1,320.49 1,072.50
— IUR T AR Y Idr § gfg / - Increase/(Decrease) in Trade Payable and (1,837.48) 3,771.38
(@) other payables
—31f 3N 3=y gda99 uRGuRyai & - Increase in Advance & other Current Assets 1,124.02 (1,588.60)
FIC:
— GOl W H gy - Increase in Capital stores 67.41
— UM R GBI BT THS AT - Gratuity and Leave encashment paid (1,404.73) | 27,043.61 (744.80) 663.93
17,191.01 (7,060.80)
— TR qE -Extra Ordinary Items -
yarerq Tfafaftray @ 9od) yarg (@) Cash Inflow from Operating Activities (R) 11,191.01 (7,060.80)
fraer wfafafty & &S yars CGASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES :
fraa uReufal & @l Purchase of Fixed Assets (1,278.41) (812.79
m@,ﬂ’g’tﬁ & forg amfdm (q%’)/a;ﬁ[ (Increase)/Decrease in Advances for CWIP (14.64) (576.19)
3Tl AR BT 98 WA bl FATATSTT Adjustment of fixed assets write - off 0.24
frraer afafaftral @ o) yarg (@) Cash Outflow from Investing Activities (B) (1,293.05) (1,388.74)
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facdha Tfafaftry @ o< yare CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES :

TH T IHE wAged § frad g | NETINCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS: 15,897.96 (8,449.54)

(37+E+T|') (R+B+C)

a¥ @ ARY N TH U ThE AHDE CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE BEGINNING 2,624.53 11,074.07
OF THE YEAR :

af @ 3d ¥ dHg Ud Tbq AHDE CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE YEAR: 18,522.49 2,624.53

feoofy : Notes:

—  FPg AR The dHGE § i &
B R b THT, euTaey R =T ST XA, S AR R
3R Fhl B, 3R W IMITIhAT Us+ R fPbIel S Fhdl

— g aREuREl & wRie o GRS wU A g9 TS B

— @ yare fJaver ormied # FAUiRd ogaR amwe sl &
e AR fham T & | SMSHTE §RT SN b Harg faxor
W HED (TTH—-3)

— fod af & fiFs! @I, S8 Bel ARSI T, YAHE /I
AR T T & Aip a9y H IR B gfe B S 66 |

Cash and Cash Equivalents include :

Cash & Bank Balances, Short term and other deposits, which
are highly liquid and encashable as and when needed.
Purchased of fixed assets has been shown net of
adjustments.

Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the "Indirect
method" as set-out in Accounting Standard (AS) - 3 on Cash
Flow Statement issued by ICAI

Previous Year's figures have been regrouped / rearranged,
wherever found necessary to confirm to current year's
presentation.

e ® forw &R S9! 3R |
For and on behalf of the Board
8./ — 8./ — B8./—
ARD. [l g W <™ U3 °y
BT afa fewr® (fam) JeTeT Ud ydy e
SI3MTSTA : 08988297 TISMMSUA : 08222413
Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
R.K.Gupta S.C. Das A. K. Ghosh
Company Secretary Director (Finance) Chairman & Managing Director

DIN : 08888297

Place : Namrup Date : 27/09/2021
R @ ATHSRY =i : 27/09/2021
8 /—
v fafta gar
GINICIN

TSRS ASHIAT . 059805
ICAI Membership No. 059805

AeTeyS TAUSHE |, $3TR 0855
CSAG Empanelment No. ER 0855

Place : Guwahati

RN GIEIE

DIN : 08222413
D TRIG DT gARI Held RUE & AR
As per our report of even date annexed
$d TIRP TS SO
For Parik & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Sd/-
CA Bipin Kumar
Partner

BY UG 9. : 302147 ©
Firm Regn. No : 302147E

LIS + 21059805AAAAFPE605
UDIN : 21059805AAAAFPB605

Date : 27/09/2021

feeia : 27/09/2021
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fa<h faazenl & wT & w®u A fewPrRT

Notes forming part of the financial statements

fewofl 1: A@yel dEiea Afern
(@) emrfl aREufrar

Vi

frad alReufral &1 arrd | 9 Gfd 9ea 24
el B QI S § |

AN H T AT TR W oI RIS AT,
AP AT 9rel, IR GOl AFT HR, T
B JIATT WH R 39P TIART § oflU O
dd b fou o o @ A B |

froa oReufral @ ana & sreran, AT
MR XAMUAT S & SRM WA IoRd I
TSy e & Yo B b Yoil H gRod
o ST & | 9ISy ITE & Y B 9 g4
NS 3 BT URATSTAT B AN H MM
fpar SITar 2 |

A IR MR & HAoHE H U A
3R TdHR0T 3R Ui Jemue wnfie € S A
D1 3MY SR &Il g7 <01 | U AEal o, afe
gl g uREuRT &1 foiRad =Faw o ual
= T ST AT & Al ol § aHed @
forg ameId! Heare fhar omar 2|

g P Geg H 8 ST fbU ST Whd g 3R
e Sy g 89 @ §9aeT §, @l

dofid far R 2 |

TG Y e UGN §RT Tfod  fdRe
fAfy gRT erae Ukl 3R &R Ul A H
TP IR ol 9= UemaR Uil gRT adrferd
3rad Ul &1 HWifdd I fhar Srem g |

NOTE 1: SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(R)
(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

FIKED ASSETS

Fixed Assets are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation.

Cost includes cost of purchase and all expenditure
such as installation cost, inward freight, non-
refundable taxes and any other expenses incurred
for bringing the asset in its current location till it is
ready to use.

Apart fromcost of Fixed Assets, Revenue Expenditure
incurred during construction and commissioning
period is capitalized til commencement of
commercial production. Incidental Income prior to
commencement of commercial production is set-off
against the cost of the Project.

Additions to Plant & Machinery include major
repairs as well as renewals and replacements
which will increase life and efficiency of the Plant. In
such cases, if the written down value of the assets
replaced is not ascertainable, technical valuation is
made for adjustment in the accounts.

Machinery spares which can be used only in
connection with an item of fixed assets and whose
use is expected to be irregular are capitalized.

The Physical Verification of fixed assets is carried
out by the internal committee constituted by
competent authority each year. And once in every
five years the Physical Verification of fixed assets
conducted by an outside professional agency.
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9.

fo<ia faazon @ w11 @ wu # fewfrn (G)..)

Notes forming part of the financial statements (contd.)

HI—2T¥ AR FoT uRene=

5,000 / — BYY deb Dl AN, SUBRON BT oI
B Fad fhy S arel 9y § guie: fda
ST € |

I B9 HUAT AAFRH, 2013 B IggA—Il H
iR FfET T UR el @1 ugfa’ R g
STt Sfad & SR far Sram 2

Sugth T & (V) H SfeaRaa #=T gl
D AN A WIF | START Y B ATAR
aRenferd far S 2|

IRGURTT Bl wWfid &= 3R I9hT SRl
PR W A BT BT U@ {Har Sram 2|

CER oIld

I gRGuREl & aoiE /oo & ey #
Td P T3 SUR ARGS9 IRG dd U
gRefufrdl & 9T & ®U H Uofigd € o9
gRGuRET aifdd ST Bva B v duR B |
3 YR AT & a8 H§ @9 & w9 H foram
ST & o I8 @t fhar T @

Hqre—g =t

A § Fedl |, YT T, SR
3R AR Yol, IR IS/ TRY 3R
TR i e

FHedl A B ed dnTd ) e T
(TR IR &) |

AfpT FHRRT o WeR g iR SifaRd gl
& HIRYD ARG AT AT THAID] A, S 41
BH Bl, & AR W oarTa (g aaae Rerfa
3R IS B AFERAT Tb M BT SRS
Y AWHA & TAT PR WERINRAT A BUA
ERT a9l TV Yo MR BRI BT TCTIHR) BT oo
forar Sar 21

(B)
(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

€

(D)
(i)

(ii)

(iii)

DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION

Machinery, Equipments and Office Appliances
costing up to ¥ 5,000/ are fully depreciated in the
year of addition.

Depreciation is charged on “Straight Line Method”,
as per useful life and rate of depreciation specified
in the Schedule — Il of the Companies Act, 2013 .

The cost of Machinery spares referred to in Para A
(v) above are amortized over the useful life of the
Original Plant.

Depreciation is provided on the assets after they
are certified to be installed and put to use.

BORROWING COST

Borrowing costs incurred in relation to the
acquisition/construction of qualifying assets are
capitalized as part of the cost of such assets up to
the date when such assets are ready for intended
use. Other borrowing costs are charged as an
expense in the year in which these are incurred.

INVENTORIES

Inventory includes Raw Materials, Packaging
Material, Stores & Spares, Intermediate product/
goods and finished stock.

Raw Materials are valued at cost (monthly weighted
average).

Packaging Materials and Stores & Spares are
valued at Cost (inclusive of expenses incidental
to bring the materials to the present condition
and location less duties and taxes recoverable by
company from taxing authorities) on the basis of
monthly weighted average or technical estimates,
whichever is lower.
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Notes forming part of the financial statements (contd.)

gl ISR Bl AF 99 Bl 3afy § g2 @ra 7 (V)
STl AT 2 |

(9]

IE EE'

(®)

BRIEICN S
IRAT BT I =Y AN WR AT Haet a6l
A gou W fornm wirer 2 forad Rarwd

e ISAeEd 3R ST ISTAsTd]

A BT & |

AT O Hegadl IeTe /a3l !
AN & HA Hed AT ad Il Ay
oI R foram omar 2 |

T WRIS MY IR SART BT A

D! A AR AT el Ui Ay Jed
TR foram <Irem 2|

HUHI F FATH AT AT et Wit Je
F gal O & oI goll HeRD den
Al BT qH—aR U= B & oY T
g AT I8 2 |

Trae fAreforRad SR IR 9917 SIaT g—

(v)

Loose tools are written-off over a period of three

years.

Stocks of :

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Finished Goods :-

Urea is valued at lower of cost or net
realizable value comprising concessional
price subsidy and freight subsidy.

Intermediate products/ goods like Ammonia
is valued at lower of cost or net realizable
value.

Bought out finished products — are valued at
lower of cost or net realizable value.

The company has formulated a comprehensive
policy for age wise provisioning of inventory
for capital stores and other stores & spares
on the book value for determining the lower
of cost or net realizable value.

The provision is made on the following basis :-

. Sl DT Prargshd Sofl DIGIE Sl. Age wise item category Provision

9. (gﬁrg‘ﬁ-[) No. %

1. |3 997 9% SYINT | 9 s TS 9 IR 1 Items not moved upto 3 years Nil

2. |3 auf 9 o1fd® 3R 5 quf I SYANRT 5 2 |ltems not moved for more than 3 5
¥ 9 A TS A years & upto 5 years

3. |5 a9t =¥ a1fdre 3k 10 auf q@ sw=Er| 10 3 |ltems not moved for more than 5 10
¥ 9 A TS A years & upto 10 vyears

4. |10 a9t & @@ &R 15 guf d®| 29 4 |ltems not moved for more than 10 25
I § A8 TS TS years & upto 15 years

5. |15 9uf & 21fde 3R 20 IO d&b 50 5 |ltems not moved for more than 15 a0
IYANT | 7 S TS A years & upto 20 years

6. [20 auf & fdw SwmET § T @g| 99 6 |Iltems not moved for more than 20 95
NERE years.
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Notes forming part of the financial statements (contd.)

XTol e Idr

JISRIERIAT &1 AT &R T Tidey v 0
IRG BT U B MR TR BT Sl § R @1
H ISIERIdl BT $dd 9dl Ts qE & wY H
ST SITAT & IR Taret=i o S1fvid Ioid & w4
¥ oY ud Bty faaRor § forar S &1 qenfy,
it MueM & foly Uwensaril & fegaT
@ U< BN O 3e qedi H uRacd & foy
ISTAERIAT H @RS & 7oer feenfaae,
R, TRBR gRT AT T STt 3R TThRor
@ M H @I g BT WA B |

XTol¥d HIYdT

TAUACRT & 91 S9id—§ud (RR) &
AR T &R & AR W 77T 97 31 orkan
H enfAe fdar Sirar g 99 4R IR @l
AT 3R S9® g1 SR fewnfade & srgarR
FHRITSA fdar ST |

St ameer sk Iferd divie & O 89 ™
el f9 &1 J=dr <1 Sl 2 |

3 /Y D FHE: Ieqd AR YR IT07T
P ST B 9 dd b o= favy wu 9
Seerg  fHar Sy |

HHATRAT BT AHA W AT HI TUFT HALH Bl
o agell BF @ 915 Bl Il 2|

DTS /o gY Al /AU FHRRT @1 7T
T R E D R 7

yd—yexl &g

A el guT W G R\ b wWd fhu v
Udh HHSA § 10,000 /— BUY Tb I AGEg
P I © 5T 9 # @ fear R ey

The subsidy is billed and accounted for on the basis of
receipt of fertilizer at the destination and credit for subsidy
in the accounts is taken only for the quantities sold and
stated in the Profit and Loss Statement as revenue from
operations. However, pending receipt of notification from
FICC for final settlement, the subsidy claim for variations
in input prices is provided for in the accounts on the
estimate basis taking into account the prevailing method,
guidelines, policies, instructions and clarifications given by
the Government.

(F)  REVENUE RECOGNITION

() Export sale accounted for based on the rate as per
Memorandum of Understanding (Agreement) with
MMTC subject to the adjustment as per policy and
guidelines issued by the Govt. of India.

(i) Indigenous Sales is recognized on issue of Delivery
Order and proper invoice.

(i) Income/Expenditure is generally accounted for on
accrual basis unless otherwise specifically stated.

(iv)  Interest on Advances to Employees is accounted for

after the principal is fully recovered.

(v)  Scrap/Salvage/Waste Materials are accounted for

as and when sold.

(G) PRE-PAID EXPENSES

Expenditure up to ¥ 10,000/- in each case incurred in
advances relating to the following year(s), is accounted
for in the year in which it is incurred.
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(&) <raf—yd wHrESE

ud srafY (rafedl) | Hefd o /@@y @l UMl
S a—gH & AW H & DI I B |

(1) ImeIfia v AR e e

A AR A, ofe R T @1 T8 R BT Ui
gyt P afy & forw 92 @rd H STell Srdr 2 |

(31) SRS W) Y

SARG I WUd B foIv U TU T BT T@ih
AP B AT THREA] 91 Wgq & folu I o
¥ 3faRd foar Sidar € |

(e) war—fgfram
JUSH AR Bl Thaldol Sl & fofg diifeha

TAGRI BT UTaE IRIdd Jedidhd & MR TR fdhar
SIS

() wul & giRaR® 999 A1 & Favd
AT

HU B YIRAIRS U AT & A Iar B
TOET YA by I R TSl B SR ¢ |

() wErdr Agar—dIRYy

wWfed Aa—Fght o1 & foy AeRar ore™ &
SYANT BT U] g AR TR BT Sl © |

(@) ameafRra sxEm

[qde, 9 =11, AT AT oGIdhA 3T/ &I
% W QAT fU=IaT, ST U € 31afr # gg 8l aem
U A 3fd Iraci Ifafey (raferl) H uRecH
IART B DI IA W JMRAAT R & forg ifism

(H) PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT

Income/Expenditure relating to prior period(s) is accounted
for only in cases of errors or omissions.

(D)  DEFERRED REVENUE
EXPENDITURE

AND  DEVELOPMENT

Expenditure incurred on sales promaotion, staff training,
Research and Development etc. during construction
period is written off over a period of five years.

(J) EXPENDITURE ON CATALYST

Expenditure incurred towards consumption of catalyst is
capitalized and depreciation charged as per its useful life
given in technical specification provided by supplier.

(K) RETIREMENT BENEFITS

Provision for gratuity and leave encashment liability is
made on the basis of actuarial valuation.

(L) PAYMENT UNDER COMPANY’S FAMILY PENSION
SCHEME

Payment under Company’'s Family Pension Scheme is
accounted for as and when paid.

(M) GRANT IN AID-URS

Utilization of Grant in Aid against Voluntary Retirement
Scheme is accounted for on cash basis.

(N)  DEFERRED TAXATION

Deferred tax is recognized, subject to consideration
of prudence, on timing differences, being difference
between taxable and accounting income/expenditure that
originate in one period and are capable of reversal in one
or more subsequent period(s). Deferred Tax Assets are
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frar Srar 21 omReIfiid @) uRYuRrt &1 s
U MR B IRFURM W w9l By
M YT B @ “arafde F¥gdaar’ 7 89 a6 T8
fopar e 2 |

(o1) faQwr qsT AR

A1 Sl # M T BT T8 a5l Ja1 uRFuRE iR
SIARN BT 9Y B T H fAeme <= R forar rar 2
g aReufrl & Hefta fafmar ofar &1 aReufrr
P AT H FHRINTG B Siar g1 o +ig fafaw
3fAR BT o™ 3R B oRaT # STelT STl B |

(@ aREuRRmal &1 ey (FARAT)

ol alRFufRT 1 g8 FNTd, IFd! a¥gell I AT
J e BF WR S 3Foid UREURT HET AT R |
Sid I BT S a¥ & o UG B faaRor #
yaiRd fear w8, RN ad #§ = uR«uly &1
U= Bl g o) TAT IHD 310l a1 B T P
g ol | agell IR AR & A H gaard 84 DI
Rerfar # aifigma @t 1€ sie &1 & ey # gd
TRIIH Ay § gaota fhar ST B |

(e1) fAawr

Tl el T oo arTd WR far T €| denfy,
el & qou # Rl & orear RRae &1 udn
T & o Hoa sramfa &1 wraw faar T 2

(]) MHfH® IaaIifa

P UTae BT d9 UgAET ST ® 79 BUH B 9T
ol ®RIGAT © IRVITAREGHY Id9E <RI 8IaT ©
BT e &A1 B8R s ey § te favaaHy
STAM T ST |ehall & | el (SHar) & o
DI BISIR) DI b IAAM Hed W GE 78l qI Sl

not recognized unless there is “Virtual Certainty” that
sufficient future taxable income will be available against
which such deferred tax assets will be realized.

(0) FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSACTIONS

Foreign currency assets and liabilities not covered by
forward contracts are stated at rates ruling at the year
end. Exchange differences relating to fixed assets are
adjusted in the cost of the assets. Any other exchange
differences are dealt with in the Profit and Loss Account.

(P)  IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS

An asset is treated impaired when the carrying cost of
assets exceeds its recoverable value. An impairment loss
is charged to the Profit & Loss Account in the year in
which an asset is identified and declared as impaired. The
impairment loss recognized in prior accounting period is
reversed if there has been a change in the estimate of
recoverable amount.

(@ INVESTMENTS

All investments are stated at cost. However, a provision
for diminution in value is made to recognize a decline other
than temporary in the value of investment.

(R) CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

A provision is recognized when the Company has a present
obligation as a result of past events and it is probable
that an outflow of resources will be required to settle
the obligation in respect of which a reliable estimate can
be made. Provisions (excluding employee benefits) are
not discounted to their present value and are determined

194



BRAHMAPUTRAVALLEY FERTILIZER CORPORATION LIMITED

= f Tw &
BVFC

fo<ia faa=on @ 911 @ wu # fewPrg (9)..)
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2, 3R I goud @ AN R IR &1 foem
PR B eIy U P AN & MR IR FeiRd
foar ST | 39 A% JrTua Bl TG BT e
B A 2 AR ITAH ISP AFAMT BT Y: U HRA
@ oy FHRITST T ST & | SR aarRar o1
fewforl 3 G fBar S 8 | shRHe gReuRl
BT 7 ar faxig faRor § Argen & S € SR T 8

ST Gl b Srel 2 |

HUHl D led qHeHl W I WU H HHANRAT /
TEd! / AMYfibaisll, e §RT B AT 3 ARDHN
MRSIRAT & U1 <fdd SRIAE gRT a1 SUAl &
RgetT a7 efet 81 € | U 7 37U wfdd Gehad!
R FRIAIAl & FHer B 7 R U Oy
feRoli 3 S8t SIUferT & ofR ST8l &) B, 981 diedh
QaTRAT BT eIl fdar 8| Hu &l 7+ & b
R AIfTE FT F DS Uddma a T8 g9 3R
229 # f&am mam T

based on the best estimate required to settle the
obligation at the Balance Sheet date. These are reviewed
at each Balance Sheet date and adjusted to reflect the
current best estimates. Contingent liabilities are disclosed
in the Notes. Contingent assets are neither recognized
nor disclosed in the financial statements.

The Company’s pending litigations comprise of claims
by or against the Company primarily by the employees/
customers/suppliers, etc. and proceedings pending with
tax and other government authorities. The Company has
reviewed its pending litigations and proceedings and has
adequately provided for where Provisions are required
and disclosed the contingent liabilities where applicable,
in its financial statements. The Company does not expect
the outcome of these proceedings to have a materially
adverse effect on its financial statements and appropriate
disclosure for contingent liabilities is given refer note no.
2.29.
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Notes forming part of the financial statements (contd.)

As on 31st March 2021 contingent liability are as under:

X in lacs) R in lacs)
2020-21| 2019-20 2020-21| 2019-20
a) | ey & Raois e R o a) |Claims against the Company
& w7 3§ WeR T8 not acknowledged as debts:
() |qeas s @ik o wfias 99.97 gggy| | |Litigation and Other 99.97 99.97
i o Commitments :
) ' . 62208 6og.og| |li) |Tax Liabilities against ‘CST', 622.06| 626.29
(i) r\[ THCLURT PR Ffﬂuaa @ Entry Tax &VAT
RIEATP PR TSR (iii) | AERC Regulation 2010 666.92| 835.00
(iii) | TSamR= f= 2010 666.92|  835.00
TOTAL 1388.95| 1561.26
@“—" 1388.95| 1561.26 b) |Estimated amount of contracts 0 0
b) | @ W fywfed srgeet 0 0 remaining to be executed on
PI AT IR Y capital Account
e & forg @R 9@ IR A
For and on behalf of the Board
B8./— 8./ — 8./ —
ARD. = Ty <™ U3 Ay
Ul Afaa e (fo) ey UG uey fqerd
SIS : 08988297 SIMEUA : 08222413
Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
R.K.Gupta S.C. Das A. K. Ghosh

Place : Namrup
T - JATH™Y

Company Secretary

Director (Finance)
DIN : 08988297

Date : 27/09/2021
fe-ie : 27/09/2021

g /-

Wy faft AR

CIRIIEARS

IMSATTRTS ASIAT . 059805
ICAI Membership No. 059805

HUvSTS THeHE 9. $3TR 0855
CSAG Empanelment No. ER 0855

Place : Guwahati

W : AT8Ie!

Chairman & Managing Director
DIN : 08222413

FAARS ARG B TN el d RUE & JJaR
As per our report of even date annexed

$d RS s HU

For Parik & Co.

CA Bipin Kumar

Partner

BH Tofl. 9. : 302147 $
Firm Regn. No : 302147E

YIRS - 21059805AAAAFPEE05

UDIN : 21059805AAAAFPGE0S

Date : 27/09/2021
feie : 27/09/2021

Chartered Accountants
Sd/-
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(PUQ orEt H)

 In lacs)
NOTE No. 2. NOTES ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fewoft 2. fawfa faavon ox fewforn

faaxor PARTICULARS 31 91d, 2021| 31 #1d, 2020

31 March, 2021

31 March, 2020

fewoft 2.1 : SR gt NOTE 2.1 : SHARE CAPITAL

gTfered gofi: Authorised Capital :
1000 %. UFY YRR HeF dTel 5,100,000 SIS 5,100,000 Equity Shares of X 1,000/- each 51,000.00 51,000.00
IR
T, e iR Ied goin: Issued, Subscribed & Paid up Capital :
TR BT 3fere Promoters' Contribution
UAPH 1,000 /—B9T B 100 ST IRR 100 Equity Shares of I 1,000/ each 1.00 1.00
GTogR & U YR PR F The § Ui Equity received in cash from Gol against Revamp 5,880.00 5880.00
s TRIF 1,000/— JUY & 588000 B 588000 Equity Shares of Rs. 1,000/- each
gfdad) IR |
I Others
TP 1,000 /— BUU B 3,070,224 Sdac! 3,070,224 Equity Shares of ¥ 1,000 /- each 30,702.24 30,702.24
TR 01.04.02 W TRGRAT BiEegoR ORI issued against transfer of Net Assets as at
fifee ¥ 05042002 @7 Fad gREYRE 05.04.2002 w.e.f. 01.04.02 from Hindustan
& sider & e i A e Fertilizer Corporation Limited.

36,583.24 36,583.24
5 Ifqerd 9 31fdp IR @ drel IRRURGT The details of shareholders holding more than
BT =T - 9% shares :
B, AARN B G, ARSI ® T Sl. No. No. of shares Name of Share holders % held % held
1, 3,658,224 YRT TRBR 1. 3,658,224 Govt. of India 100% 100%

fewoft 22 : axféra fAferar @ik sty NOTE 2.2 : RESERVES AND SURPLUS

@, dr9 gd g1 &1 faavor Statement of Profit and Loss
IRF oy Opening Balance (47,936.04) (34,965.94)
SIS: 99 & ERE o/ (819) Add: During the year Profit/(Loss) (13,775.24) (12,870.10)
AT Total (61,711.28) (47,936.04)
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Notes forming part of the financial statements (contd.)

(ug it )
R In lacs)
fewofy : 2.3 Sefafy w=or NOTE 2.3 : LONG-TERM BORROWINGS
1 STRR FeoT 1. |Unsecured Loan 31 |d, 2021 31 ¥, 2020
31 March, 2021 | 31 March, 2020
TRT WNHR T 0 Loan from Govt. of India 57,275.00 57,275.00
(R TRBR ATl Gl V) (Interest free loan from Gol)
anT Total 57,275.00 57,275.00
feuoft 2.4: afa—ax TRl NOTE 2.4 : DEFFERRED-TAX LIABILITIES
IRAMAT B SIRAT Defferred Tax Liabilities -
QT Total - -
feuoft 2.5 : a=g drafafd SR NOTE 2.5 : OTHER LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
1, ffaRaa & ura g aferfer SRl 1. | Security Deposit received from
%) Mmyfefamar a) Suppliers 155.86 144.57
W) SHER b) Contractors 721.86 662.04
) HEAN ¢ ) Employees 7.57 7.43
") UTED d) Customer 528.89 527.89
2. figw widargor wuie fafics &1 <u|2. | Payable to Hindustan Fertilizer Corporation Ltd 534.89 534.89
AT Total 1,949.17 1,876.82
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(PUQ orEt H)
X In lacs)
faaxor PARTICULARS 31 |r€, 2021 31 ¥, 2020

31 March, 2021

31 March, 2020

feaoft 2.6: Srafafdr grasum=

TE 2.6 : LONG-TERM PROVISIONS

1 | pHarY fedam™ @ fov yraeam™ 1 | Provisions for Employee Benefits
SUeH & U uTgur Provision for Gratuity 3,057.75 3,387.45
GTTl AREIHT & for yraem= Provision for Leave Encashment 1,297.19 1,393.79
JhT Total 4,354.94 4,781.24
2 2 | Disclosure pursuant to AS 15 (Revised) 2005)-

qqH 15 (Feifea) @ SguRvr § ydped — wHar
fedem:

Employee Benefits:

B IMSARME §RT SN B & o & forg
TTH 15 (FAIRIT 2005) ATART B |

The Company has adopted AS 15 (Revised 2005) for
Employee Benefits issued by ICAI.

Ffipxor & URUTERAGwY, oRgied, Ife W e
ffeRad udes yud 15 (FeNferd 2005) & 3fcia
gER & AR ¢ Y T |

Consequent to the adoption, the following disclosures
related to accounting etc. are made as far as
practicable under AS 15 (revised 2005) requirement.

2.1) R sferer™ AreFg

2.1) Defined Contribution Plans

HHAIRAT 3R PRUTER & forw vfasy i § o=
BT AT 474.67 TG BUT 2 |
(oot av 501.99 AT ¥UY)

The Company's contribution to Provident Fund for
employees and executives is Rs. 474.67 lakhs
(Previous year Rs. 501.99 lakhs)

2.2) TRFIRG a9 AT

2.2) Defined Benefit Plans

‘A IRASHY, S Hdared # 8 Afasy A ek
fady ggr & | areIar @1 adAe qou gRASH SETE
wiee (I Tgfd &1 JaT o= gu dHifed et
& IR W iR fear smar 8, s da1 1
A BT HHAN B A D U B ARG gHbTS
Ted Y HIAT &1 SR € SR 3w areardr a9 &
foIg UQA® THIE BT ST AT o ¥ | Ry gE
& foy aregdr @I SueH @ ®U # S S A AWIar
@ S

The Benefit Plans which are in operation are Gratuity
Fund and Privilege Leave. The present value of the
obligation is determined based on Actuarial Valuation
using the Project Unit Credit (PUC) method, which
recognizes each period of service as giving rise to
additional unit of employee benefits entitlement
and measures each unit separately to build up the
final obligation. The obligation for Privilege Leave is
recognized in the same manner as gratuity.
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Notes forming part of the financial statements (contd.)

(U A&l H)
 In lacs)

faazor

PARTICULARS

31 #T=, 2021
31 March, 2021

31 #Td, 2020
31 March, 2020

2.3) fifdra ™1 gl IR fafr= sriss -

2.3) Various data as certified by Actuary :-

&. =g a9 Tregar @ anfe R 3id 9@ A. Reconciliation of opening and closing halance of Gratuity Privilege Leave
5 e Defined henefits Obligation

IY B YT H AT BT qdHT eI Present value of Obligation at the beginning of the year 4,428.19 1,800.38
3T THTITST Acquisition Adjustment -
TS T Interest Cost 300.67 122.25
Uoel qar g Past Service Cost -
JIHE HaT o Td Current Service Cost 234.26 126.83
FHerd AT Curtailment Cost -
ue™ onTg Settlement Cost -
feu TT v Benefits Paid (850.32) (554.41)
et & SEifhd (dm) /8 Actuarial (gain)/loss of obligations (539.38) 493
af & sfa ¥ qrEAAT BT IAA A Present value of obligation at the end of the year 3,573.42 1,499.98
) refafy e i) long term liability 3057.75 1,297.19
il gdE eHeRY i) current liability 515.67 202.79

3573.42 1499.98
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(eC et #)
R In lacs)
faravor PARTICULARS 31 9, 2021 | 31 9, 2020
31 March, 2021 | 31 March, 2020
feaoft 2.6 : Aafafr graem (@) NOTE 2.6 : LONG-TERNM PROVISIONS (Contd)
9. o aRaufeaal @ sfua L % yRad= <o+ |B. Statement showing change in fair value of plan assets
qreT fagwor
AR TEl AT Fifes IS W fdcd—amor =&} faar sirdr| Not Applicable as Scheme is unfunded.
1. fafafdse o sreudar ok airo=T aR<gufeaar & | €. Reconciliation of present value of defined henefit
S T 3 adar T ¥ g TS obligation and fair value of plan assets.
AR el BT Fifh AT W Aca—amor F& fear S| Not Applicable as Scheme is unfunded.
o, /8N & faaver ¥ gr=dar 9rd g D. Expenses Recognized in Statement of Profit/ Loss
ELEE] faeiy g
Gratuity | Privilege Leave
CREIGESEIRSIN] Current Service Cost 234.26 126.83
sl Jar o Past Service Cost
TS T Interest Cost 300.67 122.25
Ao aREufeaal R snufea g Expected return on Plan Assets
Ferd AT Curtailment Cost
que™ o g Settlement Cost
qregdRl & dEifha (a'rq)/g‘ﬂ%{ Actuarial gain/(loss) of obligations (5639.38) 493
o /BN & fdaRor § 9d1 oY T @ Expenses Recognized in Statement of Profit/Loss (4.45) 254.01
. dHifes AT E. Actuarial Assumptions
socr | fady ged
Gratuity | Privilege Leave
TR el (TeAsgRAIens) Monthly Table (LICI) 2006 - 08 2006 - 08
rferafar smyg Superannuation Age 60 60
9 cEi Hq..‘.\ﬁiﬁd 3R faEHaTar Early Retirement & Disablement
(10 vfy EoIR uftaw) (10 Per Thousand PA)
— 37Tg 45 99 ¥ Af® - age above 45 ] ]
— 37Tg 29 3N 45 99 & 9= - age between 29 and 45 3 3
— 3 29 I§5 I HH - age below 29 1 1
BT R Discount Rate 6.79% 6.79%
TETEHIfY T Inflation Rate 5.00% 5.00%
gRGIRT ufemy <% Rate of Return N/A N/A
9. Sugad R fewforr F. Notes on ahove
P iy Al ek Ry wraere s, 1952 @ ORT 17 & The Company's Provident Fund Trust was granted
e U @) A A g BT Reie 08.00.2007 SRR ww@T relaxation under para 79 of Employees Provident Fund
AS/B20/Exempt / Genl/ 1468 ¥ HTETH W BE & TS &1 T, HU A scheme 1952 vide Naotification No. AS/620/Exempt
ol ARTEAT & FROT, ST 7 BE SR AT o & forg RAte / Genl/ 1468 dtd. 08.08.2007. However, due to past
20042009 BT T AS/ TSK/ EXEMPT/APCL /2008 / 287 B HTEaIM R T A profitability of the company, EPFO has issued a notice
ST T 2 vide No. AS/ TSK/ EXEMPT/APCL / 2008 / 287 dtd.
20.04.2009 for withdrawal of relaxation order.
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Notes forming part of the financial statements (contd.)

facha faavon @ @ © ®u o fewlrn GY.)

(BUY oGl H)
X In lacs)

faaxor

PARTICULARS 31 #1d, 2020

31 March, 2020

31 9, 2021
31 March, 2021

fewofy 2.6 : drafafer yrauam= (Grd..)

NOTE 2.6 : LONG-TERM PROVISIONS (Contd)

9. SuYad W fewforn

TILATT AMEY Bicagor 4ifd g ¥ JRdew), fgfear gr1 ge mew
B IO O /E P B oY WA aTeTS) ST e & GHeT 2009 B U
Re afaer dw@ 5310 TRAA 31| $H9S a8 AR ARTERT S MY SRR
A7 30 2010 & ol gRT wE emey &R fdw Ry & orTen ey B A%
yferardy Sifumiiver & wfasy ffy @re o ~IrTerd @Y SRRy & faer Siowan #
RIRAIART el S | faid 13.03.2018 BT AT Iea =TT 1 i Foarg
@ SRM, I8 @ 17 o 6 $6ew ok vt aifdfrem 1952 & IR 79 & A8 BT
UG /<& B & Fo1g STRUTTH=Y Y | 7 21fthl BT 57 3R ISR H3Terd, HIRd
WHR gRT fRAF 24.07.12 & U= i C&Il/MISC/02/06/EX/ Vol 81/ 11854 EIRT AT
T Iy o7 | IR & U 9IRA WRBR B 07T H geid R BT DI MR &
R 31 2009 BT Re ATRIBT H. 5310 BT STTLAD AT Y TehTel 98 B (377 TAT R |

T §AR fA1® 07.05.2018 & T H AVI/PFEXMPT/18819/10042 ERT MSUITH 3fR
Tt AR 1952 @ WRT 17 (1) (@) T80 gL 7 B forg AfaRes Wrduw g
(8c),3mEdiumal, 78 faeeh @ Us ararde faar M 8 off faare= & afe siftm
Jreer 3 U BT R |

T 18, A Fedl =ARATerd & gRT &A1 13.03.2018 BT & 71U fFofa & argar
IRAHH, EGE &, TF HHIG NI/ TSK/BVFCL/ 1334 faie 13 Ridar 18 @1 sifcH
IR W NAHHTS ITE g¥e & foe Fag o1 I @ # RriaRka &
T e fam T | 59 9, WdIewH iR SIRYTEH & |1y 3TE™ @ B & fory
TR FAR 1 5T §AR U3 {716 2 7 2018, 16 TS 2018, 8 ST 2018, 28
AR 2018 3R 22 37aCER, 2018 GRT fbar 74T | AIfdhT Ardfiewe afix adgw=dr
ERT 39 g & 7 a1 313 i o ok 7 & u=t o1 Sare gy

qrg #, 27 RIdaR 2018 BT AT =a=AT 91 ¥ 19+ 36 df Io&b H UH Re aifaar
T STd <RI & A1 BIgel B BT HRaell {haT 3R BRIGNT BRI / g3
fera a1 g1 g ufafAf frsfad e &1/ g% & SHSR BT AT GRR B
BT AP BT 1T | TSR, [ATRIE! I2al AR | B H=AT WP (C) 7528 /2018
=15 01.11.2018 BT T Re ATFRABT TRR B T | AFHII AR 7 19.11.2018 BT
TS BT AP T A A T iR Rdew, fegfaar grRr oy u=t fasies
13 Ricdiar 2018 T fAidwr & forg Aen a9 9= fRT| 19.11.2018 @Y, U&ll &1 Gy
@ qIE G- 18.12.2018 BT W & o0 AMeT a1 fam & 1 18.12.2018 BT JfFIT i
ST 3R 37 frelt Y &R A DI gaviat BIE F IuRerd el gam iR gafery A=
=Jrarerd 7 e R 5 59 9 31 @R 2018 & MMV W AG TR I3 | 3T
B AR & forg e & SR $1g ARG 79 781 &1 718 © |

HHANT wfawy A g 9 oow wfig @ grr Re fafee™ 251018 &1
BISPIC B ¥ YhaRwhl Wielr &1 3R ameer e, NE/ TSK/ Exe / BVFCL/ 1334
fHT® 13.00.2018 BT IE B BT WIIAT @1 | AT 13.09.2018 BT Hfcrardy Hwa—4
( srrfa RIS —1 faegfram) ok w=r wwie CSEX/C&11/14(16)/2005/EX/EL
fA1® 24.00.18 BT Ufardl weem 2 (@ SHUwa 93 faeel ) gRT SRy foar a7
IR fafga ameer wear fRAid 31.10.2018 AMFIT Sod <M 7 HRIATE R Adh
T AR fIATH 13.09.2018 37X 24.09.2018 BT TTIAT AT AT BT E B AT 74T |
3o A 06.03.2019 BT off iR 3R WFHR ~TATEd = AT 3Ter f&ar & yger
feam T SR e (A 31.10.2018 BY) T & W] 27, 3FTeH R 3l T
g 7E B R

aifcr fafr 06.03.2019 BT MR @1 TE SR A T[ATRTE! Soa <RI 7 3Taer
e fo uger R ARy ameer SNt &7 |

F. Notes on ahove

Thereafter, Namrup Fertilizer Shramik Union filed a writ Petition No. 5310 of 2009
before the Hon'ble Guwahati High Court for set aside / quash the withdrawal of
relaxation order by RPFC, Tinsukia. Subsquently, the Hon'ble Justice Mr. I. A. Ansari
vide judgement dated 7th April 2010 has ordered and directed that until further
order, therespondents shall nat transfer the Provident Fund Account of BVFCL to EPFO
without obtaining leave of the Court. During final hearing of the Hon'ble High Court on
13.03.2018, it was viewed that since power delegated to RPFC for grant / cancell of
relexation under para 79 of EPF & MP Act 1952 have been withdrawn by Ministry of
Labour & Employment, Gol vide letter No. C - 11/ MISC/ 02/ 06/ EX/ Vol - 1/ 11854 Date
24.07.12, The Court has no basis to cause interference with the impugned decision
of the Gol and the instant Writ petition No. 5310 of 2009 stands closed as having
become redundant.

However, a representation has been made to Addl. CPF Commissioner ( Exemption),
EPFO, New Delhi vide our letter No. A/VI/PF/ EXEMPT/ 18 - 19 / 10042 Date
07.05.2018 for grant of relaxation under para 17(1) (a) of EPF & MP Act.' 1952
which is under consideration but final order is yet to come.

Subsequently, the RPFC, TSK, vide letter No. NE/TSK/Exe/ BVFCL/ 1334 dated 13th
September'18 has ordered for transfer of past accumulation of BVFCL EPF Trust to
CBT Account hased on the final judgement of Hon'ble High Court on 13.03.2018. In
the meantime, series of communication have been made with CPFC & RPFC for grant
of relaxation vide our letter dated 2nd May 2018, 16th July2018, 8th August 2018,
28th September 2018 and 22nd October 2018. But no representation have been
responded by either CPFC & RPFC.

Later on, The Board of Trustees in its 36th meeting held on 27th September 2018,
have decided to file a Writ Petition again with Hon'ble High Court and Authorized
the Executive Officer / Secretary of the Trust and any member trustee representing
workman / employee on behalf of the Trust to execute the petition. Accordingly, a
Writ Petition have been filed with Guwahati High Court on 01.11.2018 vide Case
No. WP(C) 7528/2018. The Hon'ble Court has fixed the case for instruction on
19.11.2018 and ordered to staying the operation of latter dated 13th September
2018 issued by RPFC, Tinsukia. On 19.11.2018, upon hearing the parties has fixed the
case for instruction on 18.12.2018. No counsel on behalf of Union of India & Ors has
attended the Court on 18.12.2018, hence the Hon'ble Court further pleased to direct
that the stay Order dated 31st October 2018 will in the meantime shall continue. No
further date has fixed for instruction till date.

Employees Provident fund Trust (BVFCL EPF TRUST), Rep. by its Secretary field writ
pitition on 25.10.8 before Gauhati High Court praying interalia for setting aside and
guash the order No, NE/TSK/Exe/BVFCL/1334 dated 13.09.2018 issued by respondent
No. - 4 (i.e. RCPF -1, Tinsukia) and letter No. - C - EX/C- 1l/14(16)/ 2005/ Ex/ EZ dated
24.09.2018 issued by the respondent No. 2 (i.e. EPFO, New Delhi) and vide Order
dated 31.10.18 honourable High Court stayed the operation of impuged order dated
13.09.2018 & 24.09.2018. Last date was fixed on 06.03.2019 and honourable
Court further ordered that the interim order passed earlier (i.e. on 31.10.2018)
shall remain in force, Next date has not been fixed till date.

Last date was fixed on 06.03.2019 and honourable Guwahati High Court ordered then
the interim order passed earlier shall continued.
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Notes forming part of the financial statements (contd.)

(U oATEl H)
 In lacs)

faaor

PARTICULARS

31 91, 2021
31 March, 2021

31 91, 2020
31 March, 2020

fewofy 2.7 : AR Igaw

NOTE 2.7 : TRADE PAYABLES

1 &) QAUHS DI Fol gHTT IR0 1 a) Total Outstanding dues of MSE) 96.15 96.75
W) TATHS @ ITATdT 37T MGl Bl G IHTT Rl b) Total Outstanding dues of creditors other than MSE 3,433.89 3,750.59
aJmr Total 3,490.04 3,847.34

2 THUHUAS B SUATH NI Sueiel gal & ugen fos |2 Above amount of MSE has been identified from available

TS B

information.

SURRE ST BT YA 30 AT & FeR far mam g |

Above dues have been paid within 30 days.

A, oY JFe Agd Sgd faer I, 2006
(TIUaUAs ) ftfem) @ sidifa Jew, oy iR Hemd
TETH & TEd IHTIT R BT DR U S T STALT
I R AERT & 97 e U 7

The details of amounts outstanding to Micro, Small
and Medium Enterprise under the Micro, Small amd
Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED
Act), based on the available information with the
Company are as under.

faa=or

Particulars

As at 31.03.21

As at 31.03.20

%) ol <F IR R AT A= 7 @ TS FhR A

a. Principal amount due and remaining unpaid

@) W () W 3T AR IR Y 7 faar @S

b. Interest due on (a) above and unpaid interest

) TAUAUASST I & i face & e it
s R & & e

c. Interest paid on all delayed payments under the
MSMED Act

H) 99 & IR R & & are fBar T g

d. Payment made beyond the appointed day during the
year

) SWRRG (Md rerar 3= fadig 31 afy & forw 31
AR fear ar

e. Interest due and payable for the period of delay
other than (c) above

) WP & IR Prae 7 5 T 9w Ay

f. Interest accrued and remaining unpaid

B) 9 aTel qu1 H T ¥ R e o= arer <ot

g. Amount of further interest remaining due and
Payable in succeeding years
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Notes forming part of the financial statements (contd.)

facha faavon @ @ © ®u o fewlrn GY.)

(BUY oGl H)
X In lacs)

faazor

PARTICULARS

31 91, 2021
31 March, 2021

31 91, 2020
31 March, 2020

fewofy 2.8 : 31 aduara Saar

NOTE 2.8 : OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

wifafde Jyor (@fasy A, devefa =, e g, Statutory remittances (Contributions to PF, VAT Withholding 211.65 1,733.58

JaT P afe) taxes, Excise Duty, VAT, Service Tax etc)

qEDI A A Advances from Customers 1,328.56 399.07

IUST 3R PRI AHSIHI & Ia9F STeRIAT Current dues of Gratuity & Leave encashment 718.47 1,447.33

3 Others

) IR SIIRI & raTar fafdy oFeR i) Sundry Creditors other than Trade Payables 4,128.26 5,311.38

il g < ii) Liability for Expenses 623.98 522.78

i 3T TTarg iii) Other Liabilities 517.91 521.76
1,528.83 9,935.92
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Notes forming part of the financial statements (contd.)

facha faavon @ wT © ®u H fewPrn GmY.)

(BUq oGl H)
X In lacs)

fewof} 2.9 : Tl aRYufeqar (). NOTE 2.9 : FIKED ASSETS (Contd.)

1. &A@ o1 e 2002 &1 g™ wiamsor 1.
FIReH fofics 9 o T8 il uRyufaat
W T AN AR FET Thd eI eMie
=l

2. HEUE SUG HRIT AT & A7 e A9 Ry 2
MY gER forr /g forar mam g—

Includes  original cost and corresponding
accumulated depreciation on Fixed Assets taken
over from Hindustan Fertilizer Corporation Limited
as on 1st April, 2002.

Depreciation has been provided or otherwise
charged/written-back as detailed below :-

2020-21 2019-20
o™ B9 &1 fdaxoy Statement of Profit & Loss 3,639.57 3,669.61
B qoIsd Total Depreciation 3,639.57 3,669.61

3. PHUAl F 31 ATF 2021 BT AARD dh-Id! AT 3

# RuTe fadi® 11.06.2021 & MR TR gfoRenfia
ga gREFuREl & 921 @ o @ forg
99 ® SR 191.33 oG vUU (Usel a9 264.
33 SIRg ¥UY) T2l &l adl &l g2 @ 4
a1dl fean €, Rifd a€l qea ora w8l fdar o
|qdT | T gRRenfua eifdreier aREufrdl s
aut | AR 2 |

The company has written off Rs. 191.33 lakhs (net
of depreciation) during the year (Previous year
Rs. 264.33 lakhs) towards written down value of
replaced fixed assets on the basis of report dated
11.06.2021 of an inhouse technical committee as
on 31st March, 2021 since hook value was not
ascertainable, major part of such replaced assets
related to earlier years.
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Notes forming part of the financial statements (contd.)
facha fqavon @ ar1 @ wu ¥ fewPrr (G)..)
(BUq ol #H)
X In lacs)
faavor PARTICULARS 31 9, 2021 | 31 ", 2020

31 March, 2021

31 March, 2020

feoqoft 2.10 : frafafdr s&or sz afg

NOTE 2.10 : LONG-TERM LOAN AND ADVANCES

PSIRCIPE]

Capital Advances

JRigr, f5 areer AT T

Secured, considered good

srﬁ—\rféﬁ, o a1 |7 AT Unsecured, considered good 14.64 -
SIEES) Doubtful 30.77 30.77
e dfewe |t & v uray= Less: Provision for doubtful advances (30.77) (30.77)
a7 Total 14.64 -
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Notes forming part of the financial statements (contd.)
facha fqavon @ a1 @& wu 4 fewPrr (GY..)
(PC et #)
R In lacs)
faravor PARTICULARS 31 914, 2021 | 31 414, 2020
31 March, 2021 | 31 March, 2020
feuoft 2.11 : 7T YA NOTE 2.11 : INVENTORIES
1. HeAac ScTe/avgy (@) 1. Intermediate product/goods (Ammonia) 62.99 287.56
(e =T ST A g wiy T ™) (valued at lower of cost or net realisable value)
2. AR SAE(ATIR B Wiftq & 3refrar) 2. Finished goods (other than those acquired for Trading) 761.42 1,735.34
(FFam ar o e it gem W o {Valued at lower of cost or net realisable value
Rarae e ISR 3 o &R WS including element of Concession Price Subsidy).
SRR A €)
3. $SS Uieded Bl Cid (Taywd) 3. Stock of traded Products (SSP) 3.95 -
4. 3 4. Others
(eI = fraet iy e J B T ™) (valued at lower of cost or net realisable value)
T BT TR Stock of Food Grains 0.4 0.30
801 & ol veR iR SifgfRed Hﬁ Stores & Spares under inspection 53.84 0.42
A § 9eR Stores in Transit -
54.25 0.72
5. ¥WeR IR AfaRed gof (@@ W) 5.  Stores and spares (At cost) 3,163.01 3,323.85
fpT At &1 Tie (@ W) Stock of packing materials (At cost) 123.20 141.84
ger : Less:
E) gﬂﬁ'q—v-[ 3R gy & forw g a) Provision for obsolescence & Impairement (1,267.00) (1,666.06)
Q) o & forg yrqem= b) Provision for shortage (30.67) (30.67)
1,988.54 1,768.96
Jhr Total 2,871.15 3,792.58
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6.

fom a9 202021 & IRM R TG, 6.

Tegafad iR e At (@ESdiE 9 @
qrRafdd Fage fear @ g !k us T8
eIl / Jaar @l H ST JBR 9 gol
fpar ar €|

Hu A fewo (@) V)(E) d Sfealad R
g & folv Uh @age i R @
2l

Physical  verification of  Finished  Goods,
Intermediaries, and Packing Materials (HDPE Bags)
have been carried out during the financial year
2020 - 21 and discrepancies/ damages found have
been properly dealt with in the accounts.

The company has formulated a comprehensive
policy for age wise provisioning for inventories of
Stores and spares as stated in Note 1 (D)(v)(d).
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Notes forming part of the financial statements (contd.)

facha faavon @ @ © ®u o fewlrn GY.)

(oug <t )
R In lacs)
faawor PARTICULARS 31 wrd, 2021 | 31 W, 2020
31 March, 2021 31 March, 2020
fewoft 212 : =UR grftaar NOTE 2.12 : TRADE RECEIVABLES
TTaE & folg <7 aiig 9 ©: #18 9 e smafy @ Trade receivables outstanding for a period exceeding
oy gerT @R wTiaat six months from the date they were due for payment
RISl (YRT WRPR) Subsidy ( Government of India) 1,749.74 20,232.86
I Others 93.55 16.85
1,843.29 20,249.71
S: Hqie 9 $H 4Gl g urfitaar Trade Receivahle less than six months
RISTAEAl (YR IRPR) Subsidy ( Government of India) (1,959.26) 7,136.68
] Others 1,015.29 1,386.83
(943.97) 8,523.51
fevy wftqal @ fore graem Provision for doubtful receivables (46.90) (45.35)
(990.87) 8,478.16
T Total 852.42 28,721.81
ATYR giitaal o1 AT - Aggregrate of Trade receivahles :
IRfET = 3ree /91 T § Unsecured, Considered good 852.42 28727.87
aRfera o= dfesy 97 Ty 2 Unsecured Considered doubtful 46.90 45.35
<fery wiftqat & fow e Provision for doubtful receivables (46.90) (45.35)
T Total 852.42 28721.81

fewofy : foxia o 2016 — 17 & SRM TR
IOR H WHdE T & Jod & HH b BRI
el IR AHRY Il §IF & Raraa e |
g TS| 39 U ® URUITARTSY 89 THITSHIIT
Bl dY 2016—17 & QAR & foIg W& AR &
B 1,3100.00 TRG TUT P R 999 PR < | 39D
IfafRs a¥ 2018—19 & SR S1fafRxs et b fdr
R SNIfd 3260.30 <TRG BUY off UHIAMSART Bl 3R
H IFD W FHERT B Mg | O TAN foU g TRE
F IR o 3R Rrd BRYT & Hrield Yol

Note. : During the financial year 2016-17 the concession
Price of Namrup-Il & Namrup-lll plant was de-escalated
due to reduction of Natural Gas Price in the international
market. As a result of the reduction we have refunded an
amount of Rs.13100.00 laklhs to FICC against excess
amount received towards subsidy during the year 2016-
17. In addition to this another deduction was made by
FICC towards interest on excess amount paid in earlier
Rs. 3269.30 lakh during 2018-19. which is totally
unexpected for us and which make so many problems in
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= f Tw &
BVFC

TegE § 98 AR Gl BT AHAT BRAT TSl | B
3o+ U & 29 I 2019 3R 4 T[H, 2019 B
SdRS T &1 ve wfafieea uga fban e gaq
31S s Bl & BRYI IR [l §RT a9l by MY
TSl Bl A% DR Pl R {HAT| 13 TS, 2019
B feers (30E), ThemsHRT @1 grferar am=m & uar
Tl fh S—Wheled R AN & B & oIy TART
ARG iR Ry TRA IR SReG 7@ H
faaRENT & 3R S & fory s fear a2 |

G 98, MR AR (THATSHRY) 7 3Meel ava
2—2 /2020—21/FICC/ESA fe=1ies 30 ATE 2021 & HAEIH
A 262487 G JUY ONI fhw| Afg@ (@m) @i
JegeTdT H 31 A/, 2021 HI ARG IR o=
FIIRTH ¥ SATH DI SRBeITH I R A &
®Y H BIC MU GAUHANA BT 3269 PIS OINI
B BT MY AT T o7 | Ay, BAR UF ARE
U/ UdTd] / THIMSHIRT / 2020—21 / 872 f&=TTd 24.06.
2021 & AETH W Y 644.43 ARG SIRT BRA B oIV
Afa (Th) BT SR IF WSl o &7 2 |

our working capital management. We have submitted a
representation to the Department of Fertilizers vide our
letter dated 29th April, 2019 and 29th June,2019 and
requested for waiver of interest recovered from our
subsidy hills towards de-escalation claim. It was learnt
from the recent visit of Director (CE), FICC on 13th
July,2019 that our representation and request for waiver
of interest on de-escalation is under consideration in
the Ministry of Chemicals & Fertilizers and order for the
same.

Subsequently, Gol (FICC) has released Rs. 2624.87
lakh vide order No. 2-2/2020-21/FICC/ ESA dated 30th
March 2021. In the 3rd gtr. GRM held on 31st March,
2021 under the chairmanship of Secy (F) DoF, it was
ordered to release 32.69 cr. to BVFCL deducted towards
interest on de-escalation hill. Hence, request letter is
being sent to Secy. (F) to release balance 644.43 lakh
vide our letter No. A/ XV/FICGC/2020 - 21 / 872 dtd.
24.06.2021.
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BRAHMAPUTRAVALLEY FERTILIZER CORPORATION LIMITED

Notes forming part of the financial statements (contd.)

facha faavon @ @ © ®u o fewlrn GY.)

(¥UQ o H)
R In lacs)
faraxor PARTICULARS 31 @14, 2021 | 31 W7, 2020
31 March, 2021 | 31 March, 2020
feaofi 2.13 : o 3R THe GHdA NOTE 2.13 : CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
F  AHg 3R THe UG A Cash and Cash Equivalent
T H TPl Cash in hand 2.90 8.53
qnr (@) Total (R) 2.90 8.53
g I 3P BT B Other Bank Balances
(@) Circd Srar § (a) In Current Accounts 4,521.96 2,048.14
(@) Amafy S @ar | (b) In Term deposit accounts 13,047.28 340.17
(@ TERT o IEY P @ GRygadT Sty (Having maturity of twelve months or less)
are)
() BT FERIY, SUR R o1 UfagaRl & (c) Balances held as margin money or security against 950.35 227.69
fore W eeRIRT A R & BT ) TE | borrowings, guarantees and other commitments
2T (@) Total (B) 18,519.59 2,616.00
AT () Total (A + B) 18,522.49 2,624.53
fewufy 2,14 - rcuTafer FwoT AR wFH NOTE 2.14 : SHORT-TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES
IgRaa, S 38 "M MY Unsecured, considered good
HHARAT BT o7 AR M Loans and advances to employees 37.58 40.77
SHER] Y AH Advance to contractors 50.10
IATE 3R IXHRI UIHIRAT & 9rg STE7 fer Deposit with Excise & Govt. Authorities 228.16 326.45
m{ﬁmﬁﬁ BT AR Advance to suppliers 82.91 451.55
IO Other Advances 3,118.92 3,791.05
JMyfcfemateil o1 Hiawer 1l Doubtful advances to suppliers 34.78 34.78
urer: ey f¥Hl & forw uraem= Less: Provision for doubtful advances (34.78) (34.78)
W qg Prepaid expenses 70.55 70.73
ahT Total 3,538.12 4,730.65
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fara=or PARTICULARS 31 9Td, 2021 | 31 9, 2020
31 March, 2021 | 31 March, 2020
Brogof) 245 - s gdTRT GRRIGRTAT NOTE 2.15 : OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

IRIRIET, S 31T A Y

Unsecured, considered good

Rl Other Receivables 226.07 166.09
eﬂﬁﬁ?ﬁ, ol gfeweyr 94 v Unsecured, considered doubtful

AT U™ Other Receivables 197.57 197.57

e dfewe gty & fore urgen Less: Provision for doubtful receivables (197.57) (197.57)

ST IR T &t Interest accrued on deposits 41.99 33.46

qIT Total 268.06 199.55

I U H ATSHT geb 3 B g 41388 g Other receivables include sundry debtors (Estate)

3T (ool 9¥ 35357 oIRg $UY) &I IR AMHA 2 |
Ueg gAY, e fIMRT & SISaTRAl, ARBR
@Ry AT SR o= fhal Si-ll urfdal | qredia
PRD U ATSHA Yoob AT BT & oY raedd
FTIAE PR &1 2| SuY ufhAar & 9N & wU A
FO Al | < U & TS & | gHD I,
oot B Fara gz f IRy g g € |

SID ITATdT, HIIIHRI ffSfd iR 9+ & T8d
Raets fvy faer feu v 2| qnf, ofRar 99 9
“RTSTRE HIRIAT & MR R, HHATRAT B AT 3T
A THIRT AU Yob ATe b oY 197.57 ARG BUY
(ot 99 &7 197.57 G $UY) UTGEE IG@T 137 2 |

amount Rs.413.88 lakhs (Previous year Rs. 353.57
Lakhs due against licence fee etc. The management is
taking necessary initiatives to recover the licence fee
receivables etc., by calling on the parties like BSNL, Police
Department authorities, Govt. Health Department and
other individuals. Dues from some of the parties have
been received in the process. Moreover, warning letters
have also been issued to the defaulters.

Further, in order to protect rights under Tenancy Act and
rules, rental bills have been raised against the defaulting
tenants. However on the basis of Accounting Standard 9
"Revenue Recognition", Provision has been kept against
arrear licence fee etc. from other than employees Rs.
197.57 lakhs ( Previous Year Rs. 197.57 lakhs).
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BRAHMAPUTRAVALLEY FERTILIZER CORPORATION LIMITED

(BUY oGl H)
X In lacs)

faazor

PARTICULARS

31 #rd, 2021
31 March, 2021

31 wrd, 2020
31 March, 2020

feaoft 2.16 : Tl @ o

NOTE 2.16 : REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

ST 19 T% (—) 3859.84 oG BUT (FUwet ¥ 2008.
87 IRI ¥UY) & ¢ Y W Hed SIOTHERT |
HRAT FHMEGH @ TUMT RA ERBR §RT SR
feremfarder, o, ergel &R WaRYT @f e #
@A §Y A MR TR &Y 778 |

Coordination Committee (FICC), the adjustment
relating to escalation / deescalation price subsidy
payable / receivable amounting to Rs. (-)3859.84
lakhs (previous year I Rs.2008.87 lakhs) has
been accounted for on accrual basis taking into
account the guidelines, policies, instructions and
clarifications issued by the Govt. of India.

% g sael @ [T R. Sale of Manufactured Products
qﬁm Urea 7,285.07 8,482.01
Sifas SRa Bio Fertilizer 11.32 14.80
EAR Gt Vermicompost 11.26 9.09
& T INT Total of 'A' 1,307.65 8,505.90
g ANUR aﬁaﬁ: @7 faaT B. Sale of Trading Goods
THATT @7 ey Sale of MOP 1,360.67 1,418.06
AT FH A Sale of DAP 123.97 265.88
TG B Iy Sale of SSP 1,738.50 772.74
Jtpmime &) ) Sale of Rockphosphate 485.84 162.10
JeA AS qeat B AT Sale of Micronutrient 73.56
RS sERe City Compost 93.37 31.42
TIUHUS IRAT B Sale of NFL Urea 988.05 2,284.06
&' BT AT Total of 'B' 4,863.96 4,934.26
(@+@) BT AT Total of (A+B) 12,171.61 13,440.16
IS/ 9T 15T A8 TIdT Subsidy Received/Recoverahle
P, T 15T TR A. Price Subsidy 8,665.99 16,759.27
. qIel AreT Al B. Freight Subsidy 1,480.46 2,528.02
10,146.45 19,287.29
gare=l o Irored Revenue from Operations 22,318.06 32,7121.45
T 1014645 o ¥V (Dol 9§ 19287.20 wg wuy) | C.  Subsidy received / receivable of I Rs.10146.45
P T/ IR IISTASTIAT BT o7 AR 1T H ST Y lakhs (previous year Rs.19287.29 lakhs) is credited
T$ | I8 WRBRY IS & 1Y qua—12 oieH & to statement of profit and loss. This is followed as
AR i T ¥ | per AS- 12 Accounting for Govt. Grants.
T IIRD ST TG AAfT (qhang) W e | D Pending  notification  from - Fertilizer  Industry
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(duy et #)
X In lacs)
faavor PARTICULARS 31 Wd, 2021 | 31 Wrd, 2020
31 March, 2021 | 31 March, 2020
feweft 2.17 : 3= A NOTE 2.17 : OTHER INCOME
®. YISl A A.  Interest income
i) 3TeUTafey ST NI R &reT i) Interest on short term deposit 177.79 357.06
(2048 TTRg WYY & SISITH BT Bl (TDS deducted ¥ 20.48 lacs
Usel a9 4549 g Q) Previous year ¥45.49 lacs)
i) AT R FIT i) Interest received on TDS -
i) 3= W TSl iii) Interest on others 8.92 0.01
iv) IHTIT SR UR HHATRAT 9§ AT AT AT iv) Interest recovered from employees against 0.49 0.17
outstanding dues.
187.20 357.24
9. Pdrs AR A9 IJEAA 9 B.  Sale of Scrap & Salvaged materials 31.17 273.33
T PHAIRAT I A [, ADHM feseram, uh @ | C. Recovery of Licence fee, Electricity & Water charges etc. 243.85 255.08
yaRT anfe &l ﬂﬁ?«ﬁ | from employees & others.
g fafdy sma D.  Miscellaneous income 552.21 153.22
. gR¥uREl @ 9@ w) e E.  Profit on Sale of Assets 0.98
ar Total 1,014.43 1,039.85

Al T Yob, Aol iR Ul TMRT @ aegelt
A AT Yob, T AR ST Yo TART BT AGw
W I ¥ 21681 @ vuy (o a¥ 21681
BIQ) T B |

Note: Recovery of licence fee,electricity & water charges
includes Rs. 216.43 lakhs from others on account of licence fee,
water & electricity charges (Previous year Rs. 216.81 lakh).
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BRAHMAPUTRAVALLEY FERTILIZER CORPORATION LIMITED

(BUY oTEl H)
X In lacs)

faa=or

PARTICULARS

31 9T, 2021
31 March, 2021

31 9T, 2020
31 March, 2020

fewoft 2.18: SualT A 1 GHA P ARG

NOTE 2.18 : COST OF MATERIALS CONSUMED

urgfae i NATURAL GAS
URfYS Tlh Opening stock B
ST NG Add: Purchases 3,948.20 7,203.07
YRS ldp AR W BT INT Total of Opening Stock and Purchase 3,948.20 1,203.07
@ ud CONSUMPTION
g7l Plant - Il 2,201.68
Rspesll Plant - lll 3,948.20 5,001.39
Tud HT T Total of Consumption 3,948.20 1,203.07
R R WRR ued &1 @ud Consumption of Stores and Spare Parts 776.98 755.41
776.98 755.41
UfepT AT @ @ga Consumption of Packing Materials 469.03 566.53
469.03 566.53
SYHIT Y TS GERrAT @ AN BT AT Total of Cost of Materials Consumed 5,194.21 8,525.01
fewofy 2.19 : SUBHUN D) @S NOTE 2.19 : PURCHASES OF STOCK - IN - TRADE
R pHURe & @NIE Purchase of City Compost 80.31 26.91
ST B wRIg Purchase of DAP 120.58 258.60
THIY & W Purchase of MOP 1,333.53 1,389.49
TATAY B EWRIE Purchase of SSP 1,709.98 752.88
Jp BRBE BT TS Purchase of Rock Phosphate 463.04 154.49
TS | gRAT B @hg Purchase of Urea from NFL 960.53 2,127.15
e o1 @RI Purchase of Zinc 60.14 -
IRA B TR Purchase of Boron 10.02 -
ahr Total 4,738.13 4,709.52
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(ouq et #)
R In lacs)
faazor PARTICULARS 31 914, 2021 | 31 A€, 2020
31 March, 2021 | 31 March, 2020
fewul) 2.20: AR axqal, 9 SR SR NOTE 2.20 : CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED
AR a¥qal B a1 A § gRad GOODS, WORK IN PROGRESS AND TRADING GOODS
a¥ & Ifd ¥ Ara—gA Inventories at the end of the year
7 fafafia swgan &1 w<fe R Stock of Manufactured goods
;Iﬁ-m Urea * 746.51 1,735.32
AeAafiat / TE—TIR gy () Intermediaries product (Ammonia) /goods 62.99 287.56
SIg SINBT B LT Stock of Biofertilizers 12.12 0.01
FfH TE FT Wh Stock of Vermicompost 2.79 -
IS SAE BT Llh (THTAU) Stock of Traded Products (SSP) 3.95 -
AT Total 828.36 2,022.89
99 & P& A A Gga Inventories at the beginning of the year:
g fafaffa rﬂﬂe,ﬁ' BT ClIh B  Stock of Manufactured goods
IR Urea 1,735.33 1,788.38
AT / FE—TIR I (SrAI+am) Intermediaries product/goods (Ammonia) 287.56 65.33
g SIRDBI BT Flh Stock of Biofertilizers 0.01 1.15
EatReicicaisicy Stock of Vermicompost -
AT Total 2,022.90 1,854.86
wie o fad (qﬁ(;) VA i Net (Increase) / Decrease in stock 1,194.54 (168.03)
*IRAT HT FEIYT Wi 31.03.2021 B 6917.72 *The Closing stock of Urea as on 31.03.2021
Aifed e (Ao a¥ 1262805 HMZdH e) 6917.72 MT ( Previous year 12628.05 MT)
foupoft 2.21 : HHATE ReadrT @ NOTE 2.21 : EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE
JI9 AR T Salaries and wages 4,313.70 4,581.71
9fasy iR o= A} & afvre™ Contributions to Provident and other funds 485.01 512.33
TIh B T Staff welfare expenses 927.17 1,016.41
SUSH <gal & oI grgg Provision for Gratuity Liability 468.79
GBI <FAT B T UTger= Provision for Leave Liability 254.01 758.35
IR Total 5,979.89 1,331.59
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(BUT oTEl H)
X In lacs)

faa=or

PARTICULARS

31 Tk, 2021
31 March, 2021

31 T, 2020
31 March, 2020

fewofy 2.22 : facha «@ra

NOTE 2.22 : FINANCE C0ST

ol gY:

Interest expense:

F) AR AR 9§ fag 17 R For w) |

a)  Interest on Unsecured loan from Gout of India

i) A TSl

i) Normal Interest

il &S &rel

i) Penal Interest

@) RGN W 96 ¥ JGRA ® R AT

b)  Interest on Unsecured loan from State Bank of India

i) fagy e @axen @ forw i) For Special Banking Arrangements 0.27
i) THITSAR gRT S—U&pole & foru i) Interest charged by FICC for De-escalation -
SAIRIRIEIRCIN
AT Total - 0.27
feaofi 2.23 : avwra SR SEREYT NOTE 2.23 : REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE
AT IR RET — Wad Repairs and Maintenance - Buildings 138.36 101.88
W 3R JRETOT — WY Repairs and Maintenance - Machinery 1,237.49 1,026.27
HIHT 3R FREATT — 3T Repairs and Maintenance - Others 78.92 70.83
AT Total 1,454.77 1,198.98
feoquft 2.24 : faga ik o NOTE 2.24 : POWER & FUEL
ﬁ—g’ﬁ R SuA Power and Fuel 9,306.79 16,834.94
aT Total 9,306.79 16,834.94
feuoft 2.25 : grawTST 3R foiT <Y NOTE 2.25 : FREIGHT & HANDLING EXPENSE
HTTHTST Freight 1,480.46 2,528.02
SfoiT TR Handling charges 366.57 454.30
ar Total 1,846.97 2,982.32
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(P ot )
R In lacs)
faravor PARTICULARS 31 @14, 2021 | 31 #1d, 2020
31 March, 2021 | 31 March, 2020
fewufy 2.26 : I T NOTE 2.26 : Other Expenses :
uer T wfed foxran Rent including Lease Rentals 10.33 11.50
T Insurance 485.94 128.02
9 3R EIREELL R0 B IR ITHY Water & Air Pollution Control Tax & Cess 10.03 10.03
A T Land Revenue 21.07 21.07
o 3R TN Rates & Taxes 0.43 -
IR I Communication Expenses 11.49 16.06
Im=T 3R argd Travelling and Conveyance 5.17 21.77
ST 3R oA Printing and Stationeries 11.68 12.54
IR A= Business promation oM
T 3R 3fEH Donations and Contributions 0.40 13.26
fafy iR araas geb Legal and professional fee 13.45 12.85
AefE I ET TRIeThT BT GURID Payments to Statutory auditors 2.20 2.20
BF B 3SR THTS BT B Cleaning work inside Factory 404.24 379.58
Badl & forg fafay =g Miscellaneous Expenses for factory 138.61 155.07
gre I Security expenses 1,421.12 1,348.07
v o Director expenses 5.24 11.01
fewey ol /g & fore wraem™ Provision for doubtful Debts / Advances 1.55 6.32
YeRT iR grrﬁ B YT B foI Uraer Provision for obsolescence of stores & Spares 92.92
3rael Gofl #at & forg wraem Provision for unmoved capital items 265.38 -
fafaer srafRes o9 a1 Miscellaneous Casual labour township 176.40 164.80
fafaer yore =g Miscellaneous Administration expenses 359.39 398.20
TP o B RERIE] @ Rgams T Payment against loss of EPF Trust 300.14 -
ReTd @1 A Payment to Retainers 275.68 265.15
ufa zenfue forag oReuRal & o 98 @ o Fixed Assets written off for replaced assets 191.33 264.33
s1elt s aReuRe
thi 3rafS gHTAST Prior period adjustment (358.41) (1,687.67)
JT Total 3,752.86 1,647.19
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BRAHMAPUTRAVALLEY FERTILIZER CORPORATION LIMITED

(BUq oTEl H)
X In lacs)

faa=or

PARTICULARS

31 91, 2021
31 March, 2021

31 91, 2020
31 March, 2020

feupoft 2.26 : 31 @ ORI

NOTE 2.26 : OTHER EXPENSES Contd....

SEH P gRATYT B i 3l B |

Heftra udt ywed: sul WIRM @R SR$
AGHT AFH—18 B UM 10.13 B IFFAR I7 FRIGBR

Related Party Disclosures: Company is under the administrative
control of Ministry of Chemicals and Fertilizers, Government of
India and is within the meaning of state controlled enterprise as
per para 10.13 of Accounting Standard -18.

& gggd ifife:

Key Management Personnel:

) S wE, = srwe SR way fdwa (¥)

(1) Shri A. K. Ghosh Chairman & Managing Director (*)

(2) Shri D. Sahai, Director (Production)®*

3) o v TN, PRwe(fas) (FF)

(3) Shri S.C. Das, Director (Finance) (**%)

(1
(2) A S wEE, Feve ([SwreH)™
(
4

(a) =0 <o Ay, Fewe (@) ()

(4) Shri Sanjai Maheswari, Director (Finance) (¥¥#¥)

(5) 3N RS, Ta1 (HuN wfera)

(5) Shri R.K. Gupta (Company Secretary)

Fefrg gifeay & 9y o e Transactions with related Parties : 2020 - 21 2019 - 20
(1) =0 . =y reme R yay e (%) (1) A. K. Ghosh Chairman & Managing Director (*)
%) TRsIA® a) Remuneration :
JI9 IR T Salaries & Wages 28.37 23.92
gfasr Ay sfere™ Provident Fund Contribution 2.86 2.51
@) AT T b) Trevelling Allowance 2.42 571
) fifeear ag ¢) Medical Expenses 0.19 0.43
anT Total 33.84 32.57
(2) =0 < wer, FfRYe (Sarea)** (2) D. Sahai Director ( Production) (*¥)
%) TRsIA®: a) Remuneration
J99 IR T« Salaries & Wages 9.69 0.00
vfsy 4 afere= Provident Fund Contribution 1.27 0.00
RIEKS b) Trevelling Allowance 0.48 0.00
) frfeear =g ¢) Medical Expenses 0.00 0.00
Jnr Total 11.44 0.00
(3) i vadl, <4, e (fasy) (#+%) (3) S.C. Das Director ( Finance) (*##)
%) TRIA® a) Remuneration
JI9 AR T Salaries & Wages 6.63 0.00
9iasr Ay sfere™ Provident Fund Contribution 0.70 0.00
@) I A b) Travelling Allowance 1.06 0.00
) fifear g ¢) Medical Expenses 0.32 0.00
anT Total 8.711 0.00
(a) =N wora AR, FRwe (fax) (#+++) (4) Shri Sanjai Maheshwari Director (Finance) (*##%)
%) TR A® a) Remuneration
JI9 2R T Salaries & Wages 6.26 24.04
gfasy Y sfee™ Provident Fund Contribution 0.53 2.41
IR b) Travelling Allowance 0.37 479
) Rifeear =g ¢) Medical Expenses 0.08 0.00
anr Total 1.24 31.24
(5) S IR®. T (@ut afa) (5) R.K.Gupa ( Company Secretary)
%) RIS a) Remuneration
JI9 AR T Salaries & Wages 18.81 17.53
9fasr Ay sfee™ Provident Fund Contribution 1.84 1.70
@) I b) Travelling Allowance 0.00 2.01
) fifeear @g ¢) Medical Expenses 0.03 0.10
JnT Total 20.68 21.34
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BVFC
(¥ug @l W)
X In lacs)
frrefalaa @ Gdg & < uiRefAe & fou <uar Liability for remuneration payable in respect of
1. Shri A. K. Ghosh CMD (*) 2.53 1.81
2. ShriD. Sahai  Director (Production) (*¥) 2.12 0
3. Shri S.C. Das Director (Finance) (*#¥) 2.44 0
4.. Shri Sanjai Maheshwari, Director (Finance) (**%¥) 0 1.68
5. Shri R. K. Gupta (Company Secretary ) 1.75 1.10
Total 8.84 4.59
*fadieh 15 TdaY, 2020 ddb ASoH CRUES)) > * Holding regular post of CMD with additional charge of Director (Production) till date
IR TR B A1 GoEd B g ug w, ik 15th November 2020, and additional charge of Director (Fnance) w.e.f. 01.07.2020
e (fa<r) @1 eifaRe uMR f391% 01.07.2020 & t0 30.09.2020)
30.09.2020 TP) ** Hold the regular post of Director (Production) w.e.f. 16.11.2020.
#16.11.2020 9 Qe (Scured) & Fafia ug
#faeie 18,12.2020 ¥ Feve (Ra) & Frafd 1 *** Hold the regular post of Director (Finance) w.e.f. 18.12.2020.
R 30'06'2.020 T e (@) & 9w *#% Hold the post of Director (Finance) on deputation till the date of 30.06.2020.
afatrgfe <&
dEradesl o1 yiRsfie - Audit Expenses :
®) wifafde d@r as a. Statutory Auditors
i) T U Yo i) Audit Fee 1.80 1.80
i) AT @ AR ok o9 wd & oy i Reimbursement of travelling and out of pocket expenses 0.40 0.40
) B el gEr b. Tax Audit
i) orET qRIe Yo 3MR o wdl 1 uigfd i) Audit fee & Reimburshment of Other expenses 0.42 0.42
) AfaRe d@r ades c) Internal Auditors
i) oIl TR Yo i) Audit Fee 1.79 2.15
i) T &R o wEl @ Rt ii) Reimburshment of TA & Other expenses 0.21 0.55
) dNTd ol uEd ) Cost Auditors
i) orar o e SR I wat @ ufgft i) Audit fee & Reimburshment of Other expenses 0.74 0.32
) UHIASHR /Al dEr wdas e) FICC / TOP Auditors
i) oTE wRIe e SR o= @El P gyl i) Audit fee & Reimburshment of Other expenses 1.34 2.26
=) fivw CECIR RIS f) PF Auditors
i) orar o Yo 3R = wat @ wfgfd i) Audit fee & Reimburshment of Other expenses 0.20 0.35
B) CECIR R I[eh q\iﬁ /-a:ﬁﬁrcﬁ ATy @t ger | 9) Audit fee Inventory / Physical varification Audit 3.40 -
o) 31 Aar @ oy dwr ader b 3~ ar=g < | ) Audit fee & Other expenses for other services 0.30 0.35
anT Total 10.60 8.60
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BVFC

BRAHMAPUTRAVALLEY FERTILIZER CORPORATION LIMITED

(BUT oTEl H)
X In lacs)

faazor

PARTICULARS

31 Tk, 2021
31 March, 2021

31 71, 2020
31 March, 2020

feaofy 2.26 : 3= =g WM.

NOTE 2.26 : Other Expenses contd...

(qd eafr & wwrATe)

(Prior period adjustments)

s & kM sfae ()

DEBIT DURING THE YEAR (-)

SUENT @) TS AT Material Consumed 0.05 0.20
HITATST NIoTAgTIdn Freight Subsidy 230.00 1.02
fafeer =9 Misc Expenses 2.30 14.64
HreMETaTe g CISF Expenses 13.46 9.74
IERES] e, g 3R faoren NI Licence fee, water & Electricity Charges 35.67
ahT TOTAL 245.81 61.27
99 & <IRE Hfse (+) CREDIT DURING THE YEAR (+)

UIge= I 3 99 forg o9 &) aegdhdr Provision no longer required written back 36.62
T 2

THEIT TR TSl Interest on SBA 1.50
STEETIT Subsidy 604.22 1,710.82
ahr Total 604.22 1,748.94
frraa Sfae/sfee/ (+)/0) NET DEBIT/CREDIT / (+)/(-) (358.41) (1,687.67)
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executed on capital Account

BRAHMAPUTRAVALLEY FERTILIZERCORPORATIONLIMITED St & & @t
BVFC
(PC et #)
R In lacs)
faazor PARTICULARS ay gaiftd 31 | ¥ @i 31
AT, 2021 T, 2020
year ended 31 March, | year ended 31 March,
2021 2020
fewofy 228 : ufd IR A NOTE 2.28 : EARNINGS PER SHARE
®) | a5 B TS T iRy IRl & Hen a) | Number of Equity Shares at the beginning of the year 36,58,324 36,58,324
ayf & ofd ¥ gfeac! IRl @ dear Number of Equity Shares at the end of the year 36,58,324 36,58,324
¥ B SR gHIT Sfdac] IART B iRk i Weighted average number of Equity Shares outstanding 36,58,324 36,58,324
ST during the year
TA% 3RS TR BT Sifhd e Face Value of each Equity Share 1,000 1,000
@) | 33T IR gRPT B BRI a9 B forw g A b) | Net Profit for the year attributable to Equity Share (13,775.24) (12,970.10)
(EET Sl @ SRS S oTe SR AR Holders (after Prior Period Adjustments but before
Tl ¥ TR & o #) Exceptional items) (% in lacs)
SISl I YRBT B HRUT 9¥ & forg g o™ Net Profit for the year attributable to Equity Share (13,775.24) (12,870.10)
(‘1'0? Gl G I Al SRR Gl 6 Holders (after Prior Period Adjustments and Exceptional
) & o %) items) R in lacs)
M) | SEMRY AEl W Yd AR B 9§ o W AT c) | Basic and Diluted earning per share on profit after tax (376.55) (354.54)
SR b 3k Rl amg (Y /W) before Exceptional items (%/share)
) | “®R B AR A&l (U /IRR) & a1 oy | ) | Basic and Diluted earning per share on profit after tax (376.55) (354.54)
R R IR e iR Al s and Exceptional items (3/share)
feugoft 2.28 : MHERIH SIAT NOTE 2.28 : EARNINGS PER SHARE 2020 - 21 2019 - 20
%) | B B Raerd <79 R o1 & 7 war 2 ¢ | @) | Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts:
i) qHeH qroi 3R 3= gfaagand i) | Litigation and Other Commitments 99.97 98.97
i) | Hoad) U B qer d¢ & Racrd By <erRaf | i) | Tax Liabilities against ‘CST',& Entry Tax 622.06 626.29
i) | vgerefy faffmw 2010 (QIRSEY WO @ | i) | AERC Regulation 2010 (as per traded rate of REC 666.92 835.00
RS IR AT Certificates was updated on June — 2020 as per Indian
- J Tl_;_f‘r“:[;ﬂzozo c © Rf R @ N Energy Exchange Website)
STINR)
ol TOTAL 1388.95 1561.26
@) | Yoi @ w e aa—sigﬁ B rgmIfa b) | Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be 0 0

feagefl 2.29 : WAe Ruifdy

DU &I HY H JRAT BT TG 3R Iepl el
2 3R 3ARY I8 Uh Ve IaNN S 2| 39D
JTATAT, HIT IRT H Vel 3N AR § U
TGl B ST HRICH § SR ST T dell ©
Jrfd I8 Yo dIMferd W 1 o 3 iR BIg

G el fHar T B |

NOTE 2.29 : SEGMENT REPORTING

made.

The Company manufactures and deals primarily in urea and
as such there is a single business segment. Further, the
company is engaged in providing and selling its products in
single economic environment in India i.e. there is a single
geographical segment. Hence, no further disclosures are
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BRAHMAPUTRAVALLEY FERTILIZER CORPORATION LIMITED

ot <t Tw
BVFC

fouqofl Wemr 230 : 9§ 2020—21 @ forg  MNOTE 2.30 : ADDITIONAL INFORMATION FOR THE YEAR
2020-21

JifafRad ==

AT BT e, faceh gar § gy WeR 3R AR
UGl 1 U, JoAT 3 e faaRor = fear wan

=3
(FUq oArEl H)
. faa=or 31.3.2021 B 31.3.2020 BT
9. gerrferfa gerriRerfar
M dprEsee ImER w®
o fey T ImaTa
BT A :
(@) w=d JmEfr
(@) g BRI 21.73 47.71
() SYBRYT 3R IfR<H
ot
@  faef qar & @7 -
(@) SRl B WIS
(@) THATDT STTBRT
(1) argaTie aRrHE
N
(@) 3= AT (Im)
3 Ig9iT fpe T XA AR SARCd Gfed d=l gy,
HeR vd JfaRed goll &1 g :
(Buy wEt #)
31.03.2021 % 31032020 %
B gHTE B qHT
3rafer 3rafer
() s 29242 519% 75853 B.90%
(@) wToeh 5345.51 94.81% 7766.48 91.10%
T 5637.93 100.00% 8525.01 100.00%
@ fagef ga1 & sy
(B)  Hu™ vd fawr
(@) Tod g
(@) dofrTd @

Additional information in regard to value of Imports,
Expenditure in Foreign Currency, Stores & Spares
consumption, and other related details are furnished as

under:
X in lacs)

Sl Particulars As on As on
No. 31.03.2021 31.03.2020
(1) Value of Imports

calculated on CIF hasis :

(a) Raw Materials

(b) Capital Goods 21.73 47.71

@)

)

()]

(5)

(c) Components & Spare
Parts

Expenditure in Foreign
Currency :

(a) Purchase of Products
(b) Know-how

(c) Professional
Consultancy Fees

(d) Other Materials
(Travelling)

Vlalue of Raw Materials, Stores & Spare Parts and Components including
Chemicals & Catalysts consumed :

R in lacs)
As on % As on %
31.03.2021 31.03.2020
(a) Imported 292.42 5.19% 758.53 8.90%
(b) Indigenous 5345.51 94.81% 7766.48 91.10%
Total 5637.93 100.00%  8525.01 100.00%

Earning in Foreign
Currency (X In Lacs)

Research & Development
(3 In Lacs)

(a) Revenue Expenditure

(b) Capital Expenditure
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BRAHMAPUTRAVALLEY FERTILIZER CORPORATION LIMITED

= f Tw &
BVFC

fewofy 2.31: gd auf 4 o

T ome B Fided @ ST O quiifea frar  NOTE 2.31 : PREVIOUS YEARS COMPARISON

T g RO S9a gl 3l Ul Sooid
foar a1

W, fUBe 99 @& offhsl & ®ISd H ST T )
g 9 d® B YAT Seekd A fhar AT & |
fUoe a¥ sfids o1 gl A1 saeds o, Yo
iffpd, g @aRerd iR g aifiga far an
=

a)

Figures have been rounded off to the nearest lacs
of rupees except where otherwise stated.

Previous year’s figures have been shown in brackets
unless otherwise stated. Previous year’s figures
have been regrouped, rearranged and reclassified,
wherever necessary.

s ® fov iR S9! 3R |
For and on behalf of the Board

8./— 8 /-
AR [l vy 9l 9
CARIRSIED [RESEN(ES))

SIMMSTH © 08988297
Sd/- Sd/-
R.K.Gupta S.C. Das

Company Secretary Director (Finance)

DIN : 08988297

Place : Namrup Date : 27/09/2021
W : Sy fa=ies : 27/09/2021
8./ —
div faft |aR

3MSXITRATS FEAT ¥, 059805
ICAI Membership No. 059805

ATUSTSTT THI-HE 9. $3TR 0855
CSAG Empanelment No. ER 0855

Place : Guwahati

T : IATETe

B8./—
U P HIY
Jegel Ud ydy fevd
SIAMSUT : 08222413

Sd/-
A. K. Ghosh
Chairman & Managing Director
DIN : 08222413

D NG B §ARI Her | RUE & gdR
As per our report of even date annexed
$d IR® s Hu
For Parik & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Sd/-

CA Bipin Kumar
Partner

WH Uol. . : 302147 §
Firm Regn. No : 302147E

JSIRMSTA = 21059805AAAAFPE605
UDIN : 21059805AAAAFPEEOS

Date : 27/09/2021
fesip : 27/09/2021
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ot st @ @ BRAHMAPUTRAVALLEY FERTILIZER CORPORATION LIMITED
BVFC
9g9yd defl siulReE fafics, Aoy
BRAHMAPUTRA VALLEY FERTILIZER CORPORATION LIMITED
e v IoR A
PERFORMANCE AT A GLANCE
(¥uy @@l # / Rs. in Lakhs)

+. {4931 Particulars 2020 2019 2018 (2017-18| 2016 |2015-16 |2014-15|2013 -14(2012-13 | 2011-12 | 2010-11 {2009 -10| 2008 (2007 -08

- -21 -20 -19 -1 -09

1 35T SALES 12172 | 13440| 16089 | 17801| 17278 | 17760| 21039| 18421 | 29026| 23135| 17589 | 17762 | 11245| 15994

2 ST AETIAT Subsidy 10146 | 19287 | 30025| 20315| 27284 | 44894 | 38712 | 27375| 27803| 17449 22504 8416 3827 9381

3 @W “1+2) 22318 | 32727 | 46084 | 38116| 44562 | 62654 | 59751 | 45796 | 56829 | 40584 | 40093 | 26178 | 15072 | 25375
TOTAL Turn Over (1+2)

4 319 3T Other income 1014 1040 1600 4199 1712 2019 1436 2641 2907 2357 1309 1529 1396 946

5 |wefe : gfy (+) & ) -1194| 18| 72| -881| 19%0| 39| 582 11| 63| 248 58| -128| -494| -228
Stock: accretion(+)decretion(-)

6 |&meT 3 22138 | 33935 | 47612 | 41454| 48264 | 64992 | 60605 | 48426 | 60359 | 43189 | 41244| 27579 | 15974 | 26093
TOTAL INCOME

7 |l A rEly (‘ﬁ?‘;’ Fﬁ—CF) 5194 8525 11691 9326 | 10758 | 14239| 14845 11418| 12106 8321 8005 5382 4841 5767
Y arrht anfe
Raw materials (Feed Stock)
packing materials etc.

8 |99 9 v 5980 7338 8112 6110 6212 7439 5950 5955 6421 5010 4504 4156 4109 3868
Salaries & Allowances

9 AT G ARET0T 1455 1199 1167 1282 1052 1036 980 1262 761 1200 767 1045 1230 1245
Repairs & Maintenance

10 ﬁ'ﬂﬁas‘aﬁ 9307 | 16835 | 20280 | 15857| 17353 | 25123 | 26366| 20050 | 20937 | 16185| 17011 9734 8418 9551
Power & Fuel

M ey fafesior &g 10337 9338 9026 7496 8568 | 10693 | 11071 9041 8593 8613 7154 5772 7452 4975
Other Manufacturing Expences

12 \pet &g 32273 | 43235| 50276| 40071| 43943 58530| 59212 | 47727 | 48818 | 39329 | 37441| 26089 | 26050 | 25406
TOTAL EXPENDITURE

13 |qper Tt (6-12) -10135| -9300| -2664 1383 4321 6462 1393 699 | 11541 3860 3803 1490 | -10076 687
Gross margin (6-12)

14 a1 9 faciy v R 0 0 2 0 10 0 9110 9091 9079 8112 7446 6361 7951 7185
Interest & Financial charges

15 AoIET 3640 3670 3649 3632 3561 3612 3494 4548 4433 4364 4099 4071 3845 3951
Depreciation

16 |qafafy WA [RRCHHY 0 0 0 0 0 0| 1507| ©2889| 1293| 4265| 767| -2689| -369| 135
Bfee ()]
Prior Period Adjustment [Debit
(+)/ Credit (-)1

17 EPT‘{VEFFI'PT -13775| 12970 -6315| -2249 750 2850 | -12718| -15829 | -3264| -12881 -8509 | -6253| -21503 | -10584
Profit before taxation

18 | ¥q sreET 0 0 0| 18 0 0| 13 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Provision for taxation

19 (AT |/ 0 0 0 2196 0 0| 77462 0 0 0 0 3467 0 0
Exceptional items

20 ]%TEI?'IHT"T/ETTET -13775| -12970| -6315 79 750 2850 | 64612 | -15829| -3264| -12881 -8509 | -2786| -21503 | -10584
NET PROFIT/LOSS
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o & Tw |t
BVFC

21

fder 9 &R wmHaRa
ESERIG

Transfer to and from invesment
AT = AT
Allowance Reserve

22

BRI ERRGICIN R CR BT
Gond
Provision for dividend

23

IR AT TR BIIRe

Gond
Corporate tax on propose
dividend

24

REZSIECS]
Gross Block

114058

113050

112583

112252

110853

111178

110914

108737

106547

107425

102454

101591

97819

97745

25

EEMESER IR E ]

Less :Cumulative Depreciation

91999

88439

84850

81200

77603

75651

72067

69454

65296

62159

57794

53678

48879

45034

26

"l ;g1 & forw uraem

Less :Provision for Impairement

543

113

113

113

113

113

1821

2142

27

IBEERER
Net block

22059

24611

27733

31052

33244

34984

38734

39170

41138

45153

44547

46092

46798

52711

28

T I Yoird Hr

Capital work in progress

1359

1677

1101

1143

1456

3130

3644

6437

4838

3455

2984

3750

2917

2807

29

fge @ forw enRa
aRewafrrt

Assets Held for Disposal

847

30

o aReuferan

Current assets

26052

40075

46261

46483

48686

49504

48793

41314

51052

38073

34894

26088

15875

20321

31

qAqE STEIRAT g T

Current Liabilities & Provision

17323

20441

16203

13471

16776

20911

27313

22108

25465

21657

20890

18204

13849

11658

32

e

Invesments

33

fofds =@ (s @ # A
AR =1 &1 TS 91 Th)
Misc. expenditure ( to the extent
not written off or adjusted)

255

117

161

34

SERIRIE]

Accumulated Losses

61711

47936

34966

28651

28729

29479

32328

96940

81111

77848

64966

56457

53671

32168

35

fel STATT

Total Utilisation

93858

93858

93858

93858

96186

96186

96186

161753

152674

143127

126618

114344

105412

96349

36

SR goi (30 - 31)
WORKING CAPITAL (30 - 31)

8729

19634

30058

33012

31910

28593

21480

19206

25587

16416

14004

7884

2026

8663

37

HEICIERSEIN

Long Term Borrowings

57275

57275

57275

57275

57275

57275

57275

125170

116091

106544

90035

77610

68684

59687

38

TR SR

Short Term Borrowings

151

145

79

39

WR Yol
Share Capital

36583

36583

36583

36583

36583

36583

36583

36583

36583

36583

36583

36583

36583

36583

40

IRAMAT B TN
Deferred Tax Liability

132

132

132
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BVFC

41 |Rord T aRrey 0 0 0 0| 2198| 2196 2196 0 0 0 0 0 0
Reserve & Surplus

2 |xea g 93858 | 93858 | 93858 | 93858| 96186 | 96186 | 96186 | 161753 | 152674 | 143127 | 126618 | 114344 | 105412 | 96349
Tgtal Sources

43 ﬁ—qaa\;q[3g+4/|_34] -25128 | -11353 1617 7932 | 10050 9300 6451 | -60357 | -44528 | -41265| -28383 | -19874 | -17088 4415
NET WORTH (39+41-34)

44 ﬁaﬁﬂ{\?ﬁ (27 +36) 30788 | 44245| 57791 | 64064 | 65154 | 63577| 60214 | 58376 | 66725| 61569 | 58551 | 53976 | 48824 | 61374
Capital Employed (274 36)

45 |9R W 762 1735 1790 1750 2434 658 383 994 1013 299 82 278 279 926
Finished Goods

46 |59 w® I 63 288 65 177 353 140 95 66 58 148 50 79 1583 53
Work Progress

47 ey et aeqd 4 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 68 1 54 0
Trading Goods

48 |vdegr g Eﬁ anfe 2043 1770 3103 3052 3270 3498 3578 3337 4350 3271 3452 3614 3244 3023
Stores & Spares etc.

49 ¥y e eR 852 | 28760| 26878 8740 | 27561| 42200| 38831 | 22223 | 19941| 10758| 13458 5664 191 3659
Sundry Debtors

50 ;mv—cﬁaa\;ﬁg}q 18522 2625 | 11074 | 30678 | 13819 1734 4821 | 13876| 24944| 23106 | 16833 | 15489 9352 | 11765
Cash & Bank Balance

51 |arey g qRwgfTat 28| 167| 38| 708 21| 150| 444| 32| 333 278| 355| 390 515 581
Other Current Assets

92 |=gor g RH 3538 4731 3023 1378 1038 1124 641 496 407 213 596 573 367 314
Loans & Advances

53 & (45 to 52) 26052 | 40076 | 46261 | 46483 | 48686| 49504| 48793 | 41314 | 51052 | 38073 | 34894| 26088 | 15875 | 20321
Total (45 to 52)

54 WWW 12968 | 14213 | 10457 9465 | 12343 | 16092 | 22501 | 17102 | 20934 | 17499| 17032 | 15261| 10152 8147
Less: Current Liabilities

95 |yraem 4355 6229 5746 4006 4433 4819 4812 5006 4531 4158 3858 2943 3697 3511
Provisions

9 |HeT (54+55) 17323 | 20442 | 16203 | 13471| 16776| 20911 | 27313 | 22108 | 25465| 21657 | 20890 | 18204 | 13849 | 11658
Total (54+55)

57 ﬁaaam‘sﬁaq?ﬁ[%-%) 8729 | 19634 | 30058 | 33012| 31910 | 28593 | 21480| 19206 | 25587 | 16416 | 14004 7884 2026 8663
NET WORKING CAPITA(53 - 56)

58 |qarer arfdRe daTe -10135| -9300| -2666| 3711| 4311| 6462| 68106| -11281| 1169| -8517| -4410| 1285| -17658| -6633
(15+20)
Gross Internal Resources
(15+20)

59 =t peT iR Famee| 0288 | 40503 | 49884 | 52543 | 48880 | 46172| 39739 | -27486 | -15815| -15691| -7172| -2779| -4792| 12868
(25-33)
Cumulative Gross Internal
Resources(25-34)

60 @W@:ﬁ E?[) erTfq | 910000 | 510000 | 510000 | 510000 [ 510000 | 510000 | 510000 | 510000 | 510000 | 510000 | 510000 | 510000 | 510000 | 510000
& (T
Total Urea (MT) Install Capacity (N)

61 agaqﬁm(ﬁ EW)W(Q;T) 131880 | 155992 | 286315 | 269586 | 310605 | 322645 | 359003 | 306071 | 390693 | 278889 | 285143 | 309577 | 190528 | 329977
Total Urea (MT) Production (N)

62 |eTqar SUANT (%) ?Iﬁaﬂ 25.86 30.59 56.14 52.86 60.90 63.26 70.39 60.01 76.61 54.68 55.91 60.70 37.36 64.70
Capacity Utilisation (%) UREA

63 137569 | 160186 | 286435 | 269972 | 297641 | 320606 | 364704 | 306703 | 383354 | 276449 | 288303 | 308812 | 200067 | 333473

Bl JRAT fSsp! AT (L <)
Total Urea Sales Quantity (MT)
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TSV B ATT THSIT SMU IR BXA1ER v |
MOU signed by BVFCL with HIL to market NPK Fertilizer in NE

States

\ 2 "::‘"ﬁnn L =y

e
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)

| DEALERS TRAlMING PROGRAMME

L W ENUE: Z0eia 0TI REAom:
] ORI T O R, WaIEATe

DATE 117

s g AR, 31eder ud ey feerss, si g, fAews (Sdre),
3N v 91 <M, e (faw), Sidgwiive gRT 739 oG fdaw )
|ISIS UG BT dTel STkl Bl FHATHT Bl 8T |

Shri S.P. Mohanty, CMD, Shri D. Sahai, DP, Shri S.C.Das, DF, BVFCL
honouring best performing Dealers on 73rd Republic Day

| DEALERS TRAINING PROGRAR” |

SHEANITEDR BY

HRABRAPUTEA 'WWLLEY FERTILIIDN COAPRRETION LSVTID

4

e *—

fegtTe H 8Y ol LI+ 9™ & g9 |
Scenes of Dealers Training Programme held in Dibrugarh

P & foy SRS & Fgfeld ST & IR H fHFAMT B STHHRI <d 8U |
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|niL B 1% - ATOON MHOTSAYV
=l
gy

i
T

L

Sharing information to farmers for balance use of fertilizers for Agriculture
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